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COUNTY OF KENT

Kent County in the Province of Ontario is situated in the
most southerly part of Canada. It is further south than approximate=-
ly one third of the habitable area of the United States; it is
further south than the celebrated Niagera District; it is 700 miles
further south than the English Kent, and a parallal drawn through
the City of Chatham would pass through Southern France.

Latitude gives Kent a position singularly favorable. To the
south lies Lake Erie; to the northwest is Luke St. Clair; to the '
north, with no great distance intervening is Lzke Huron. These i
great bodies of water serve to modify the climete and Kent exper-
iences neither the extreme ccld of a northern winter nor the extreme
heat of a scuthern summer.

The surface of Kent is almost level, broken only by two large
gtreams, the Sydenham andé the Thames, which provide natural drainage
and deep water navigation; and by the Ridge along the Leke Zrie
Shore., Practically every square inch of its 580,000 acres is arable
land - partly clay loam, with gravelly loam and sandy loam along
Lake Erie, and considereble sandy and gravelly loam in the northeast
portions or_tho County. _ |

Farmming is the corner stone of Kent County's prosperity and
it is as a farming county that it makes its strongest appeal to I
the intending settler. It is not mere grain farming but it is !
mixed farming in the widest sense of the words and rotation of crops
is scientifically practised. It today probably produces & wider
veriety of orops than any other portion of Canada and is famous
as the home of specialized ferming - of crops such as tobacco,
corn, sugar beets eand tender fruits, that, owing to climatic con=-
dit:ons can be grown only in Southern Ontario. Yet in the crops
which can be grown in most parts of Canada, Xent also tuckes a
conspicuous place. It is first in the Province in the production
of Leans and away in the lead for corn and soy beans.

In addition, its proximity to Detroit, the fourth largest
city of the United States, the many industriel concerns which :
have located in Chatham, development of the summer resort facilities
provided by an ‘extensive lake and river frontege, excellent roads, '
and the faot that it is traversed by both the Provincial Hiahwaya
between Niagara Falls and Windsor, make Xent COunty a very 1nviting
place in which to visit or settle permanently.

a



When Kent was Ruvaged by
Indien Warfare.

1.

According to ancient tradition the Ontario Peninsula between
Lake Huron and Lake Erie was once held by the Attiwandiron Indians, also
known as the Neutrals from the ract that they held aloof from the warfare
between the Huron Tribes of Northern Ontario and the rising Iroquois power
~in New York State. ;

Doubtless prosperous Attiwandiron villages broke the monotony of
forest and swamp; for the Neutrals could muster 4000 warriors. In historic
tires, traces”of an Indian village were found on the Tobin and licGeachy
ferms east of McGregor's Creek in Harwich Township, close to the site of
the present Maple Leaf Cemetery. There are vague hints, too, of Jesuit
Missions planted in this teirritory. )

- ———

.l!
(i

Shortly efter the first white men eppeared, the Hurons and Iroquoiaﬁ

formed a temporary alliance. They united their forces to exterminate the
Attiwandirons. What is now Southwestern Ontario was ravaged by Indian
warfare; the villages were wiped out; and the powerful Neutral nation was
exterminated.

here are some hints of later Indian settlements in this desolate
territory. The Jesuits at one time had a mission near Clearville; and in
1790 traces of an Indian village then recently abandcned, were found near

M"u L e

' : Sucn settlements, however, were merely transitory and were all
close tc the Creat Lakes. The interior of the peninsula traversed by the
Themes - krown to the Indians as HEskuniseepi and to the French as La Tranche
was vaguely mepped and litvtle inown. A great expanse of soggy swamp and
hardwood fcrest, peopled by deer, bears, beaver and other animals, this
territory was practically urntraversed by white men until the oloaing years
of the eighteenth century. > -

!

The early French explorers, Gelinee, Dolier de Casson and la Salle, |

had explored the Great lakes which bounded the peninsula, had mapped Longue
Pointe, Point aux Pins snd Point Pelee, and had given lac Ste.Claire its
neme. Thes= explorers were, however, in search not of new lands in a new
world out of & water rouie to China.

It w28 not until Canada became British and the American Colonies
won their freedom that Southwestern Ontario received real attention from
the whice men or saw the beginning of permanent settlement.

After 1759, the disbanded French soldiers who remained in Canada,
many of thex struck westward toward the Detroit River. Some of these men
seem tc have settled along the Riviere La Tranche, as it had come to be
known. However, very little was known of the interior of Ontario. For
the most part, the country remained practically a wilderness of melarial
swamp covered with hardwood timber until the latter years of the Eighteenth
Century when John Graves Simcoe became the first Governor of the new
Province of Upper Canada. It was his ambitious projects which gave the

first imwulsc to permanent settlement in Kent County.

1

1
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' Thames Settlement

Except for a narrow strip of comparatively high land adjoinin
the Thames River on either side, most of the land gﬁr sgveral miioa bagk
from the river was practically useless owing to lack of drainage. This
explains why settlement staurted along the Thames and gradually worked back.
There were many requests for land along the Thames River before any surveys
_::;alﬁgge. In fact, the surveys were the result of the numerous requests

In 1790 Patrick McNiff, the pioneer surveyor, seems to have laid
out the lots fronting on the River Thames in the Townships of Dover East,
Chatheam, Raleigh, Harwich and parts of Howard and Camden, but apparently
did not lay out any lots from the mouth of the river up to the Raleigh
and Tilbury East Townline owing to the fact that the land was low and wet.

In 1791, writing to the Surveyor General, McNiff states that in the
Townships surveyed along the river, he had found 28 familes settled in
front, some with considerable improvements on their land. This would
indicate that the settlers had been there for some time. Probably 1775 or
178C would be the date of the first settlement along the River Thames.

After 1794 LcNiff seems to have done no work on the River Thames
and the next surveyor to appear was Abram Iredell who im 1795 laid out
part of the townsite of Chatham, an area of 600 acres (four hundred in
Harwich and two hundred in Raleigh) having been set aside for a town plot
and military reserve. In the seame year Iredell was instructed to survey
three concessions deep from the river in each of the Townships of Howard
Harwich, Raleigh, Dover, Chatham and Camden and to survey a road as strafght
as poszible between Chatham and Rond Eau on lske Erie, which road is now
known as the Communication Roed running through Blenheim.

In 1803 Iredell was instructed to complete the surveys of the
Townships of Chatham and Dover and early the next year another surveyor,
Williem Hambly, was instructed to join Mr. Iredell in the work.

After the War of 1812 the work of-survey was teken up by M. Burwell
who in the period between 1821 and 1831 surveyed parts of Tilbury East,
Releigh, Harwich, Howard, Orford and Zone. In 1838 part of Zone was sur-
veyed by Surveyor LelIntosh and still adther parts in 1845 by B. Springer.

The front portion of Orford seems to have been reserved for the
Indians, the Reserve extending the full width of the Township (something
over six miles) and reaching from the River for about the same distance.
The reserve was afterwards cut down and about 1857 & surveyor named F.Lynch
surveyed the land adjoining the Reserve as we have 1t today.

There were a great many difficulties and hardships encountered by
eerly surveyors and their assistants. All supplies had to be brought long
distances by water or on the ice. If coming by water from Detroit, the
weather had to be fine in order that their small boats might cross Leke
St. Clair in safety. If coming on the ice, unless the weather was steadily
cold, the ice was apt to be treacherous and there is no doubt but that for
lengthy periods in the Spring and Fall it wes practically impossible to get
supplies in at all by water or ice. Then, there was the difficulty in
doing the work. In summer they had the marshy ground to contend with and at
the same time fight the fever and ague as well as mosquitoes and black flies;



"and the remuneration was very small.

The early settlers are indeed deserving of the highest praise
in braving the untold hardships which presented themselves from every side
for those were times of wild and rough experiences. They never knew when
they would be subject to attack from unfriendly Indians or when their
cattle would fall a prey to the beasts of the forests around their little
clearings. The long process of clearing their land and making it ready
for crcps must have been at many times discouraging but gradually the
expansion of the clearings showed that industry and energy were the order
among tne pioneers in their fight with the forests.

Wiith the opening of the 19th Century, the Themes Settlement had
made consliderable progress and numbered more than one hundred families,
There hid been a gratifying increase in the extent of the clearings and the
first settlement in the County could well be considered as having been
Egm?aneﬂtly established before the close of the first ten years of its
history.

3

..after the settlement along the Thames came that of Fairfield in
1792. Christian Indians of the Delaware Tribe under the leadership of
Rev. Devid Zeisberger, a missionary of an ancient Protestant Church called
The United Brethren of Moravia, came to Cunada to escape persecutions and
massacres which they suffered at the hands of hostile pagan Indians in the
United States. They arrived at Detroit in 1791 and a year later moved
further inland, establishing a permanent Mission on the banks-of the Thames
River. A villege by the name of Fairfield was laid out and grew rapidly.

In 1792 the village was visited by Governor Simcoe on his first j
visit to Detroit as well as on his second in 1794. So well pleased was he
with it, both in respect to the loyalty of the missionaries to the British
Covernment ard thelr religious activities on behalf of the Indians, that he
promised them & grant of land and a few months later Surveyor McNiff laid
off for them the promised tract twelve miles long and six miles wide.

After seven years' service at Fairfield in the performeance of
faithful work, Rev. David Zeisberger returned to the United Stetes to try
to establish one more community of Christian Indians. Of a total of thirteen
communities established, the only one standing today is at Fairfleld.

To Rev. Mr. Zeisberger is given the credit of establishing the
first house of worship, the first school and Falirfield, the first town or
village in the County of Kent.

imong the several missionaries who laboured at Fairfield was the
Rev. Jesse Vogler who also ministered to people of denominations who were |
without a minister. In 1837 he led a band of Indians to Westfield, Missouri,
&s the Reserve in Kert County had been reduced in size. MNr. Vogler and his
wife staved in Missouri until early in 1843 when they returned to Fairfield,
some of the Indians coming with them. Rev. Mr. Vogler was stationed at
Fairfield from some time in the 1830's until his death in 1866. There is a
ronument on his grave in the West Bothwell Cemetery. .

+ter twenty years of prosperity, the War of 1812 gave a severe
blow to the work of this Mission. The Battle of the Thumes took place



nearby and the village wes overrun by the victorious Arniericans, plundered
and burned to the ground.

(During 1946, while Wilfred Jury of the London University was
digeing where the village once was, many articles used by the Indiens prior
to 1817 were unearthed and a quantity of wheat was rescued, a sample of
which is on exhibit at the Chatham-Kent Museum.)

It was during this Battle of the Thames that Tecumseh, ally of the
British and probably the most famous Indian of all history, was killed.
Thig, Kent's only battleground, is today marked by a commemorative boulder.

After the close of the war, enother village was built about a mile
and & half from the former one. This they called New Fairfield, later
Moraviantown. This Mission continued under Moravian auspices for a period
of one hundred and ten years. During this pzriod, there were many changes

emong the Indians both in regard to the tribes revresented on the Reserve and

the cheracter of the educational work done emong them. However, in 1902, an
understanding was arrived at by Moravian Missionaries and the Methodist
Church whereby the loravians withdrew, leaving their work in the care of the
lethodist Church.

Throughout the years of Fairfield's history, the population has
stood in the neighborhood of three hundred and varies little from year to
year but the saving of this remnent from extinction by the venture of faith
of Moravian Missionaries in 1792 has fully justified its undertaking.

{About the year 1642 the United Church of Canada through
some of the public spirited citizens of Chatham and the
surrounding district, orgenized themselves into a committee
with the assistance of Mr. John R. Mc¢Nichol, M.P., of
Toronto, with a view to establishing a historic site of
what was once the old village of Fairfield, and, through
the generosity of Mr. Willliam A. McCeachy, of Chatham, who
purchased a guantity of land where once stood the old
village, have tiaken steps to make a memorial historic park
at this point on the banks of the River Thames in the
Township of Zone.)

L.
Baldoon.

The first movement of the Nineteenth Century towards further
settlement was the well-meant but ill-fated effort of Lord Selkirk, at that
time a nobleman of considerable wealth, vast enterprise and great philanthrop-
ic attributes, the latter of which he demonstrated by his endeavors to better
the conditions of many of his countrymen.

To this end, Lord Selkirk had received from the Government a grant
of ell the land lying within the angle formed by the Gore of Chatham Base
Line on the nerth, the Chenal Ecarte on the west and the Sydenham on the
southeast; among other conditions of the grant being one for colonization
of the territory by a certain number of settlers.

To this place the name of Baldoon had already been given in honor

of a ! Rarl's Highland Estate.
parish on the Ea g geotland

T.e first shiploag of his immigrants left Greenock/in the ship

PRS-
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"Cughton", landing at Montreal in July, 1804. They were conveyed thence to
lackine in French carts, thence up the St. Lawrence to Kingston in batteaux,
thence to Niegare by sailing vessel, thence across country on foot and in
vehicles to Fort Erie, and from that point to imherstburg and up the Detroit
River and Chenal Ecarte to their landing place, which they reached during
the month of August. The Earl also brought out a great quantity of very
choice farm stock, ineluding horses, cattle, sheep and swine. ~

The appearance of the place was from the start a rude disappoint-
ment. Ship carpenters and others had been sent in advance by the Earl to
provide dwellings but none had been erected, Tradition informs us that
these, afraid of Indians, had betaken themselves to Sendwich, leaving the
future settlers of Baldoon and their children to their uneheiterad fate.
The days were shortening, rains were frequent, cool nights had already :
come. Without equipment or materiel, they had only & short mouth left to
provide themselves sufficient shelter to meet the requirements of a Canadian
winter.s The only other white settlement in the District was seventeen
wiles away and could only be reached by trails through the woods. However,
these hardy settlers set to work to wrestle with the problems facing them.

For some time the settlers drew their means of support from a
common fund provided by the Earl when their individual efforts were not
successful in gleaning a sufficiency from the soil. :

Ir spite of the hardships of that first winter, many of the :
settlers remained. Later, fortune turned slightly, log houses were built,
and, after years of hard work at cleering the land, farming operations were
cerried on. In fact, the settlement had even a degree of prosperity until
the War of 1812 when the Americans raided it and robbed it of its grain,
cattle and sheep. +

S

-

Almost the worst enemy cof the settlement were the waters which
overflowed the banks and plains every 3Spring and finally for this reason
the settlers moved away to make new homes on higher ground at the fork of
the Sydenhem. One of these, Hugh lMcCallum, in 1832 became the pioneer of
Eallaceburg, which he named in honor of Sir William Wallace, the Scottish

ero.

While the partial fallure of his large enterprise is to be regretted
the Earl is deserving of high praise for the liberal and courageous spirit
displayed in bringing to our shores so large and useful a class of citizens
as has been developed from the party alluded to, none of whom now live to
relate the trials, privations and vicissitudes attendunt upon thelr early
experiences in the vicinity of the Sydenham and Chenal Ecearte.

o
The lake Erie Settlement.

Following next in.order to the Baldoon Settlement we have the Lake
Erie Settlement. Although settlers began to locate on the lands bordering
on the lake as early as 1809, it was not until 1816 that settlement in the
Southern secvion of the County could be said to have really begun. Even
then it was but an extension of| the Talbot Settlement in the County of
Elgin, & part of that colonization scLeme entrusted to Colonel Tealbot.

There are many who have tried to analyze his motive for his renun-
ciation of so brilliant a prospect as seemed to be awaiting him in the 014



Country for the comparatively obscure life of & pioneer in the forest
wildernesses of Upper Cunada. Some c¢laim his reasons to have been patriotiec
others commercial. Perhaps it would be nearer the truth if it were satd q
they were e combination of both though no man could have chosen the career
which he followed unless he had strong likings and other propelling reasons
for his choice. ILife in the illimitable forest must have had its appeal to
him else he would not have sacrified so much even for a doubtful hope that

he might some day be the lord of a large landed estate in Canada. Like
Governor Simcoe, with whom he was associated so long, and whose counsel

must have hed much influence over him, his heart was made sore as he saw the
enterprising and thrifty sons of England, Ireland and Scotland emigrating from
their own native land to become citizens under the now alien flag of the
United States. To turn this tide of desirable settlers toward Czunada was

nis great aim and for its achievement he devoted the remaining vears of his
1ife. The country through which he pessed on his initial journey to Detroit
in 1793 suggested to him the possibilities which awaited all those who had

tne courage and perseverence to face the hardships of pioneer life for those
few years which would be reguired to transform the tree-covered fertile soils
into grein producing farms. s

To divert emigration to Canada, he sent agents out emong the
newcomers in New York and adjacent states to tell them about the favorable
climate and soil of the Lake Xrie District and to offer a free grant to each
of fifty acres of land and a promise of help during the first few and hardest
years of pioneer life. His agents were instructed to meke a wise selection
of the men given grants.

On his own estate he worked diligently clearing lands to produce
the necessities of life. He was not above the menial tasks attached to the
pioneer's life. Col. Talbot knew that the successful man must cultivate {
a spirit of self reliance and he set an example to others by his own efforts. |

) Lach settler was given the aforementioned free grant of fifty
acres on condition that he would erect & house on his lot fifteen feet by
twenty feet and clear a strip of land across the front of each lot one e
hundred feet in depth, & totel of zbout six acres of cleared lend in aresa.
4t the end of five years, having completed these settlement duties, he was
given a certificate of ownership.

By 1820 Colonel Talbot had cbipleted the location duties on the
lands first zllotted to him. After this the whole of Southwestern Ontario
was put under his cherge and the construction of the Talbot Road from Delhi

to Sandwich completed.

Road building wes considered by Colonel Talbot as an essential
part of the work of settlement and the first task which he undertook after
he had established himself on his own five thousand acre estate in Elgin
County. A road was surveyed four hundred rods from the shore of the lake
and running parallel to it, on either side of which were laid out farm lots
of two hundred acres each. These lots were made narrow, eighty rods wide,
in order thet the settlers should be established close to each other and
heve the benefit of near neighbors. The survey of the road in Kent County
was made by Colonel Burwell. Ke began his survey of this road in 1812 but
his operations were interrupted by the outbreek of war. His stores and sur-
veying instrunents were captured and cerried off by the american xilitia and
he was unable to proceed with the work until after the close of the war in
1815, Thet year it was resumed and continued as far as the Raleigh Townline.

The construction of this rcad in 1816 was the occasion for the
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incoming of many settlers into the county. There were & few settlers

located prior to this in the Leke Erie District. A man by the name of i
Crawford locsted at the Eau as early as 1809 and with him two other settlers,
Dickson, an azerican hunter, efterwards murdered by some unidentified and -
therefore unpunished person, and Ramsay the owner of twelve hundred acres -
of what 1s now very valuable farm lands on the Eau Road. Three years later
two brothers, Edwerd end Joseph Hackney, added two more to this first con-
tingent of the Lake IZrie Settlement. Following these there were none until
erter the Talbot Road was opened up. However, by 1820 most of the lots

lying thereon, perticularly in Howard, had been taken up.

The vastness of the forest and scarcity of "landmarks"™ constituted
a source of combined annoyance and danger in those early days. It was not
&n unusual occurrence for settlers to lose their way amid the wilderness
while it long remained positively dangerous to allow children toc traverse
the primitive trails lest & like fate should befall them. :

Tales of privetion and distress prevailing during that peried
form & more interesting than edifying link in the chain of early reminiscences
Some who later rose to affluence in the community arrived in the ccunty with
orly the proverbial shilling in the form of cash assets and one gentleman .
declared his czsh capital on erriving in Canada to have been six cents. So |
rare was the "purchasing power" in those days that many of the settlers were
for years unsble to provide tea for their tables end for a like reason were
unable to purchase the thread necessary for ordinary use and were obliged
to unravel strands from such cotton garments as they were so fortunate to

possess.,

Until improved by artificiel means, the drainage wus very defective
the surface in some parts being submerged at seasons to a depth of nearly
two feet, and one year this state of affairs continued as late as July, thus
preventing agricultural operations that year. Scarcity of food and money ,
of course resulted end during a fumine of more palateble and nourishing . :
viands, it is related that pig-weed was extensively resorted to as an article |
of diet. Shoes could scarcely be purchased by those with money while those -
lacking that potent commodity were compelled for several years to swaddle
thelir feet in cloth, this being the prevailing style of winter foot dress.
Their crops were sown upon the rough and only partielly cleared land and hoes
substituted for harrows in covering the seed. Some of the women shouldered
the axe when household duties permitted znd chopped side by side with the men
of the family, often displaying a degree of skill in the use of that implement
which would shame & youthful farmer of the present day. The music of the axe
was accompanied by psalm singing in the cases of several of the ladies
mentioned by the pioneers, this combination of industry and piety displaying
a degree of muscular Christianity highly commendable.

The chief service which Colonel Talbot rendered to the County of
Kent was the building of the Talbot Road which opened out the Southern
Section of the County for settlement. While Elgin County where he lived and
vhere he 4id the major share of his life's work, owes its settlement more to
him than to any other men, Kent County was well on its way towards settlement
two decades before he may be said to have begun his. Every institution of a
ploneer settlement, grist-mill, saw-mill, trading house, school and church
hed become a permanent establishment along the Thames well on towards a selr
supporting stage a full decade at least before Talbot had begun to settle
Zl#in County. But settlement on the South awaited this road, and for that
enterorise in Kent County he should receive his just mead of praise.



6.
Along the Talbot Road

by 0.K.wWatson, B.A., K.C.

Ploneer settlement in south Kent, along the Talbot Road, was due
to the initiative of the famous Colonel Thomas Talbot. It was on May 21
1803, that Telbot established himself in Dunwich Township; and the rapidity
with which he peopled the wilderness may be judged by his statement in June,
1833, that he had placed a settler on every lot in Howard Township excepting,
of course, the clergy reserves and the Canade Company lands.

In the yeer 1804 Surveyor John Bostwick blazed the road westward
through Howard. As late as 1830, however, Colonel Talbot wrote that the
Tovnship of Iarwich was "locked up by non-residents and clergy reserve lands,"
and that he was not extending his road through that township.

Settlement in Howard,however, znpears to have antedated Bostwick's
survey; though dates are difficult to determine because the land was sold
on time end the patents were usually not issued till the last cent was peid. |

The first considerable settlement on the Talbot Road in Xent was
lorpeth. It seems to have come into existence as a resting place for
travellers after climbing the steep hill. At a hill, help was required.
Either the settlers' effects had to be partially unloaded, or extre ox-teams
or horses secured; and, after negotiating the steep climb, the average
traveller felt disposed to rest overnight before continuing his tedious b
Journey, the more so as repairs to chains, wagon end harness were often
necessary. -~

S0 lorpeth doubtless came into existence - helped by the brawling
creek at the bottom of the gully, which furnished ample power for primitive
grist and saw mills. At one time there were at least four mills on this
stream - one located a half mile scuth of llorpeth, another just north of the
villece, Camvbell's mill ‘on the back rcad farther north, and Green's mill
on Lot 13, Concession 12. West of Morpeth another stream provided power for
two more mills, The surplus products of these mills, together with farm

roducts, were shipped from the port of Antrim at the mouth of Morpeth Creek.

Antrim in the ploneer deys had an excellent besis for dockage -
long since silted up - and with a little dredging could have been made a
£ood harbor. For some years it handled a large trade and helped the develop-
ment of Morpeth into the third most important community in Kent.

Tredition has it that the naming of Morpeth was done by open vote
in which the pioneer 'settlers split into two factions, one championing
"Jamestovn" - in honor of Jumes Coll, the first settler - and the other
"borpeth" in honor of Lord Morpeth, who had recently visited Upper Canada.
Soth sides supported their claims with speeches, argument and whiskey; till
the Morpethites captured the whiskey supply of their rivals, dumped it in the
road - and won the day.

~ traveller in 1845 credited Morpeth with two taverns, one distillery,
three stores and a number of artizans. At a later periocd the town possessed
no less than thirty shoemaxers. Between 1861 and 1872 the population must
have been 80C, though an old mep gives it as 1200, and shows a large area =
now ferm land - surveyed in town lots. :



~bout this period the shipping vort of Morpeth was moved from
antrim to the farm of Nr. Lill, waose dock became & busy piace. A huge
warehouse was constructed and lerge quantities of grain stored for ship-
ment as favorable markets were found. '

But In 1872 the advent of the Canade Southern Railway, which
passed a few miles notth, radically changed the destinies of Morpeth, in
common with other communities on the Talbot Road. New communities sprang
into existence along the reilroad, end farmers, instead of taking their
grain south to luke Erie ports, took it north to the railway. Ilill's ware-
house and dock became deserted and dilepidated. In 1885 the Dominion
Government built & pier and established the place as & harbor of refuge,
but today fishing i1s the only industry in what was once a thriving lake

port.

Morpeth, still a busy community in the 80's, gradually declined;
though the paving of No.3 Highwey and the development of tourist traffic
brought sore revival

The newer community of Ridgetown, on the Canada Southern Railway,
sprang up to take Morpeth's place as a trading centre. The high ground
on which it is situated and from which it takes its name wus still a
wilderness when in 1823 an Englishman nemed William Marsh made the first
clearing on Lot 9, Concession 10, Howard. Jemes Watson came next; then
Edrund Mitton and Thomas Scane, with their families. Ebenezer Colby, from
New York State, came a little later. Their farms represent the lerger part
of what is today the town of Ridgetovn.

.

»

A word as these ploneers., William liarsh, familiarly known as
"Daddy" Marsh, owned the first hand mill, which was in constant use by the
settlers and is still in existence. James Watson, & little Kentishman,
walked all the way from Ridgetown to Philadelphia when making his first
trip home tc Zngland after locating. Walking, indeed, seems to have been
4 common stunt; for Edmund Mitton, an old ccuntry weaver, is said to have
walked nearly the whole way from New York to Colonel Talbot's place with
his wife end family, the wife carryins en infent in arms. The Mitton
family, ten in all, made their first home in a 14 x 18 log cabin, one
storey high.

Mrs. Nersh, wife or "Daddy" l.ursh, walked more than once from
Ridgetown to Toronto, a distence of 180 miles, cerrying a load both ways.
That such strenuous exercise did not impair her health is evidenced by the
faet that she lived to be 104, and on her 10lst birthday, the last of the
pioneers, she wzs publicly honored by the entire community, and presented

with a medal.

The settlement grew; but, as late as 1837 the nearest stores were
at Morpeth and Antrim, and for many years these remained the important
tradinz points of the surrounding country. The building of the Canada
Southern Railway in 1872, however, brought & rapid development to Ridge- .
town; on October 16, 1875, it was incorporated cs a village; and thencefcrth

its growth continued stezdy. :

TLough, accordins to Cclonel Talbot, his famous colonization road
had not been extended into Harwich before 1830, & colonization survey
farther west was made by Colonel lichlon Burwell shortly after the War of
1812, when the first attempts &t permanent settlement were made. There vas
a conciderable settlement in the south end of Releigh by 1817, the names of

D'Clute, Toll, Lytle, Goulet, Perdo, Huffman and Simpson - still well
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" known in tle vieinity - appearing on the Telbot land registers.

In 1817 the beginnings of municipal government were established
in tie townships; and the census taken by William Sterling, a resident of
the Ticwes River front, in 1820, shows 45 heads of families along the
Telbot Road in what are now Raleigh, Tilbury Zast and Romney. Most of
this settlgnent was in the Ouvry district. A post office named Erieus was
opened in 1831, if not earlier, by Colonel Jumes W. Lytle, the storekeeper.
This gave rlace in 1850 to Dealtown; while the name of Quvry first appears
in 1876. Tuie first school had already been established in 1842.

South of the Talbot Road lies the natural harbor of Rondeau Bay.
The first lieutenant governor of Upper Canada, John Graves Simcoe, had
embitious plans for this natural port; end, when ordering the establishment
of the Chatham Townsite on the Themes in 1795, he also directed Deputy-
Surveyor Abram Iredell to survey a "road of communication™ south to
Rondeeu, with 200-acre lots on each side for United Empire Loyalist
settlers, Simcoe's instructions also called for a townsite at Rondeau.

The road appears to have been opened only as far as the present
Elenheim; but the town was surveyed and named Shrewsbury. The extent of
Simcoe's dream may be realized from the fact that six hundred acres were
reserved and at least four hundred acres actuelly plotted. The plan shows
numerous streets, ncmed after the royalty and the military heroes of the
time; & large square for gaol and court house, another for a market and
yet another for a churche. Across the bay the present Eau Point was desig-
ruted "Ordnance lLands" where fortifications were to Le erected to protect
the harbor of Rondeau and the City of Shrewsbury. Here were built, at a
later day, some of the ships of Captain Barclay's squadron, defeated by
Perry at Put-in-Bay.

Conditions changed, however, before any actual settlement :
could take place; and in & later era the still vacant townsite of Shrewsbury
was used as a refuge for fugitive slaves from the United States, some of

whose descendants still dwell there. _ i

Another community important in the early days was the village
of Buckhorn which sprang up where the "Gravel Road" from Chatham crossed the
Talbot Road. Traditionally this site had once been occupied by & village
of Neutral Indians. By 1840, a small village had sprung up along the
Talbot Road. A tavern, the "Farmers' liouse", kept by Nelson Chapmen, dis-
pleyed a set of buck's antlers as a sign; and wayfarers united in christen-

ing the villege "Buckhorn".

Ilugh MePherson was the first storekeeper and, after 1850, the
first postmaster. In 1866 he wus succeeded by V. S. Stripp, then 26 years
old, a man of unusuel vision and enterprise, who established the beginnings
of various irndustries, planted vineyards, and visualized & thriving town

and nerhaps a large city. '

Unluckily for him, Stripp plunged into politics as Liberal
candidate for parliament in 1872 and 1873, and though he came close to
wresting the constituency from the redoubtable Rufus Stephenson, politics
put & crimp in his business enterprises. Buckhorn was, however, for many
years & busy pluce, farm products and cordwood being shipped in large
gquentities from Buckhorn dock just west of the present summer resort of
Erie Fecch; while a heavy traffic was conducted between the lake and
Chuthem over = plenk toll road through Charing Cross. In the early 80's
Buckhorn, grown aesthetic, rechistened itself Cedar Springs.
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lredell's survey, carried out subsequent to 1795, had blazed
the Comuunication Road from Chatham as far as the Ridge, though at the time
it seems to have gone no farther. The stretch of the Talbot Ropad across
South Harwich, granted by the Government to absentee landlords, was a long
;i?’ g1t§f°1d from settlement; and as late as 1833 was known as the "Ten
e Bush",

About that year, Richard Chute purchased a block of land from
Robertson, Laird of Inshes, and built & log shanty south of Talbot Street
and west of the Communication Roaud. Other settlers made clearings, among
them John Jackson, who, after some years of pioneering in Romney, moved
tc the Ten Lile Bush and became one of the outstanding figures in the new
conmunity. Arother lecder was Colonel Jarmes V. Lytle, who came from the
Quvry settlement in Raleigh to purchase Chute's property, add some of his
own, end therefrom plat, in 1840, the original village of Blenheim.

; Settlement was slow till the completion of the Communication
Roed through to lake Erie in 1844; when the resulting increase in trade
end population, and the demand for mercantile services within easier reach
then Chatham, led to the esteblishment of stores and small industries.
grrig gee, founder of the first brickyard, was also the first postmaster

It L N

Till that time the locelity was still known &s the Ten Mile
Bush., Then it wes discovered thet Cclonel Lytle's name of Blenheim already
belonged to & post office in Oxford County; so the post office was
christened Rond Zau, a name which continued in use for several decades.
Zventually the name of Blenheim was adopted.

1t was long before the first settlement of Blenheim that
in 1828, Colonel Burwell completed the township surveys begun, yeers earlier
by Abram Iredell and Patrick McNiff. An Englishman, William White, one of
Telbot's settlers, was the first settler on the Middle Road, meking the
trip through the bush with ox teams, and cutting a road of his own from
the Talbot Road near Blenheim to his location in Raleigh, a distance of |
81x miles. This wes the beginning of the liiddle Road.

Some years later znother EZnglishman named Cook settled close
to the Harwich-Raleigh townline, giving his name to Cook's Corners, now
Charing Cross.

In course of time the tide of settlement flowed farther and
farther westward, across Ruleigh and into Tilbury East, and the blazed
trail of the days of Burwell and White became one of the most travelled
highways iz Kent, linking Xing's HighweysNos. 3 and 2, and the thriving town
of Blenheim and Tilbury.

The latter, youngest of Kent's towns, owed its existence in
the first instance to the Canada Southern Ruilroad, and for many years

had a keen commercial rivel in the thrifty Scottish settlement of Valetta,
in the early days the commercial metropolis of Tilbury East.

8 ) |

The Home MNade Products of the
Early Settlers.

Pioneer life is no respecter of persons. The Jewelled hand ‘
that knew no toil in the 0ld Country had the same tasks, the same beds,
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tic gere kind of houses to dwell in, and the same conditions of life to
face &s had thelr hired help which they brought with them from across the
ccean. "I hed often made my bed of hemlock, boughs and considered it no
hard work", wrote Colonel Telbot in regard to his first yvears of experianca -
as & settler in the woods of Canada. These pioneers came from every walk
of 1life but they found nothing reedy for them but evervthing to be made by
their owvn hends 1f they vwould build for themselves homes in Cencda.
Although Colonel Talbot considered it his duty to share his experience with
others and instruct all the newcomers to his settlement how to build
houses, clear lands, plant corn and rotetoes, and do other necessary work,
the pionsers who first came to Xent County were not so well favored. Their
only teacher was Experience and they learned to do by doing.

With only one tool, an axe, but with abundant material in the
surrounding woods, each rioneer undertook, with courage and petience, his
initial task - the building of & house to dwell in. With eyes to see what
others had done, he felled the trees that were adapted in size for the
worik, cut them in suitable lengths, and then commenced the laying of its
foundations. This structure was usually a small one, a one-roomed building
with a floor space of not more than ten by twelve feet in area. The
timber selected for the walls was of a size such as could be handled by one
man working alone. On one of the sides, the front, larger logs than
the back were used, that by the time the last tier of logs was put in its
place, there was a sufficient slope from the front backward to make his
roof. Poles were laid crosswise and on these was placed the bark peeled
cff the trees In large sheets, opened out and laid two tier deep tc make
the roof. On the top of this bark were placed poles tied down by basswood
thongs to those beneath and thus & strong roof was obtained without the
use of nail or bolt.

The lumber for the floor and door was also self maede. Buss-
wood logs were split as evenly as possible and smoothed with an axe, on
one side for the floor and on both sides for the door. The open spaces
between the logs were filled first with chinks and then plastered over
with merter made of clay and eshes, the ashes being used instead of lime.
If any window were used, it had only one small pane of glass or at most
two but the most of the first cebins were devoid of even that size of
light giving convenience. The completion of his shanty thus far marked
the pioneer's first achievement toward the establishment of himself and
his family in their new home. -

This primitive hut served the settler and his family for the
first summer of their abode in the bush or perhaps for several seasons,
if he were more ambitious to clear his land, then to provide for himself a
more comfortable home, The erection of & house large enough to fulfil the
requirements of his settlement duties was a later undertaking and was
usually the co-operative work of the whole settlement. The logs used to
construct the walls were hewn with a broad-axe, they were hauled to the
place where the house was being erected, by oxen, and in contrast to
the rude "nctch and saddle"™ corners of the first shanty, expert axemen were
employed to build up neet and perpendicular 'dove-tailed' corners.

Cornelius licBrayne, the first postmaster of Botany, thus des-
ecribes an o0ld time house raising:

"The logs were cut and hauled on the ground and about the
middle of October they would have an old fashioned house raising. An
invitation was given to about twenty men from the old settlement and with
the help they had among themselves would have enough. The invitation
was locked upon &s gensral and some twenty-five or thirty were ready and
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glad of a chance to assist. . good supply of hendspikes, mulays and skids,

with the berk peeled off, were nrovided beforehand so that there would be

no hiteh when operations cormenced in the raising, =-- It might be well

here to exrlein what a "mulay" is as & great many people had never seen

them. The head is in the shape of a crescent, or exactly like a new moon

put upon the end of a pole by which the men would push the logs up the

skids. It answers the same purpose in raising a log building as the pike

roles of today do in the frame. As soon as the log reached the top it

was spotted - & chip taken off the heaviest end and turned over; this

would keep it from rolling while the men on the corners prepared the ends

to fit the logs below.-- There would always be a race to see which party

would get its end up first., The men on top would stand back a few feet

and stick their axes in the top of the log laid down and thus prevent the

rolling log from crushing their toes., 3ometimes the cutting at the corners

would be rather deep and cause the log to 'ride' as it was called, then it

would be turned up and some taken off so it would rest firmly on the

corners, and at the same time have as small a crack as possible.

: Curing the time the corners were being prepared, those on
the ground had a chance to discuss any matters of public or private interest
and such &s the general news of the neighborhood was givenand in a like
manner received. After the walls were raised up to a height of about
seven cr eight feet the beam plates were laid. The beam plates are two
side logs somewhat larger than the other logs of the building with grooves
cut for placing the beams which support the rloore&bove. Three or four
rounds are placed above the beam plate, the first ridb, and then the roof
is commenced. A straight grained oak is selected and cut in lengths for = '
clapboards which when nailed together make a very good roof."

As was the house, so also wus mostly every article of its
inside furnishings, a home-made product of the settler's skill and work-
manship, although both of these were not always of too high an order. The
bed wes & one legz structure built into the corner of the house, the walls
of the house doing duty for the other three legs. The "springs" were
either poles or basswood planks; the "mattress", first hemlock boughs,
later corn husks, rye or wheat straw; and still later, sewed up in & tick,
the feethers of wild fowl, so easily obtained every autumn, especially *
those of duck and geese. Sometimes the skins of wild animels were used,
both to lie upon and as an upper covering,

The open fireplace was an indispensable part of the equipment
of every pioneer dwelling. An opening was made in the far end of the wall
of the cabin and here was rudely erected the boxlike structure of stone
with oren front which supplied & threefold service - cooking, lighting and
heating - for the first dwelling houses of the County. The fireplace was
large enough to take a back-log four feet long and a foot through. A few
stones would be used for aldirons and sometimes a round green stick was
used, Zvery night in the cold weather a backlog would be 'walked in' and
placed in the large chimney, ard this, with a fore-log and some split wood
would make = rousine fire for all the night.

The chimney wes built of clay and straw kneaded and rolled to
such a consistency as to hendle firmly and stay when placed between the
poles that were put upright as the skeletons of the chimney. When building
the chimney, & rod of iron, if it could be procured, was put in on which
to heng the pots. Quite on improvement was the 'crane' which was set in the
jer. end could be turned out, the pots put on and then turned back over the

fire. .

The light from the fireplace was generally sufficient for the



e
i 1‘}

work being done after night.  The men emnloyed th ; :

handles which were oftesn broken in choppingyand s:iiigzggxgggdm::%nfta::s
necessary to have a few extra on hand to replace %hem. Sometimes they
devoted thelr cvenings to mendingz their children's shoes or making hickory
brocms for the housewife, while she, in turn, spent her evenings in spinning,
initting, patching clothes, derning socks, ,or one of the many other duties
wiich fell to her lot. As « heat distributor when the weather was very
cotd;igaewiiiep%ace ras not very satisfectory as you would be burning on the
on e ITreezing on the osther, bu

this difficulty was rggedied. . LR arognd Aoy

The clothes worn by the early pioneers were all home made,
usually woolen homespun. Even if the settler could conveniently obtain from
the trader the cloth required to stand the rough usage of the bush life, it
was so dear tlLat few could afford to buy. luny of the 0ld Country immigrants
brought with then quantities of liren cloth but the great majority were
clothed with the p»roduct of their own toil. The manufacture of the wool
into cloth was by the primitive means of the hand cards, spinning wheels and
hendlooms., Spinning was & by-occupation of the women of the household but
weaving wus the occupation of weavers, either men or women, who had to take
farx products in exchange for their work. As soon as the clearings were
lirge enough to warrant the safety of keeping sheep, a few, at least, would
be kept bxeach settler for the clothing of the family. After the wool was
teken off the sheep, it was washed to free it from dirt and picked by
hand, making it ready to be carded, which was done with two hand cards
working it into rolls, ready for the spinner., These rolls were spun into
yarn by the old fashioned spinning-wheel. The elder women used & smaller
vheel operated by foot which encbled the work to be done sitting down. The
younger women and girls used & large wheel which was spun around by the
hends The wool was stretched und twisted into yarn by walking backward
away from the wheel the whole length of the room. Sometimes girls would
be employed to do the spinning in homes which could afford it. Three
skeins of yarn composed of fourteen knots of forty threads around the
home made reel of a certain size, constituted what was termed a day's work.
The weges paid a girl for spinning eighteen skeins, a week's work, was
one dollar, board included, The distance travelled to spin three skeins
would be something over six miles, half of the distance backward. Every
thread was gone over with the fingers after being drawn out when the
required even twist was givem to it. A good spinner would complete four
skeins a day, which materially added to the distance travelled, and then
say she was rot tired. For a fancy plece of dress goods, the wool wus
spun into & fine quality of yarn about three skeins to one pound of wool.
The yarn wes colored to suit the taste, end, when woven in plalds, checks,
or stripes, or any pattern selected, by the artistic selection of colors,

& very feney riece of cloth would be turned out for the wives and daughters
of the most aristocratic femilies. The ladies vied with each other in
raking desizns suitable to their fancy. For the use of the men the yarn
wes mede coerser in order to provide heavier cloth.

Sometimes the clothes would be made out of the cloth as
it came from the weaver, but, for the winter wear, the cloth was put through
& process of fulling. This was done by plaecing it into a tub of lukewarm
water with plenty of soap end trarped hour after hour by the boys and girls
getting into the tub with their bare feet. By this means the cloth was
shrunk up ard nade much thicker, & process which was called 'fulling’,
Sometimes this work was done by 'fulling bees'. Tie web of cloth, previous-
ly soeked for some time in soepy, tepid water, w:s placed in a circle on a
stron; table provided for the occasion. The neighbors gathered to do the
work took their places around this table, picked up the web together with

4 oan
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| their hends and brought it down with a thud on the table. e pounding wa
continued for azbout two hours, the company stopping ocoasioggllgotod%age aa
rest while the web was treated with a fresh supply of soap and water. The
cloth was passed round at intervals so that the strong might alternate with
the weak and in the end the web receive =n egual degree of pounding
throughout its vhole length, To produce an equal shrinkage in every square
inch of 1ts eree was an operation which required art and skill and hence a
tetter result followed from the 'hbea' than from the 'tub end children'
wethod., The web was then 'hung out to dry' after which it was made into
clothes by the ever resourceful and capable mother of the home.

The making of straw hats for the family was the work too of the
housewife., Olie selected the struws by hard from either the wheat or rye
fields of grain before they hed guite rivened. These she cut with a scissors
ind aprecd out in the sun to bleach. UWhen finished, they were tied up and
rut cerefully away until the leisure of the winter months would enable her
to huve the time to plait them into breids about one half inch in width.
These, when the hct was to be made, she wetted and bent into the required
shape as she sewsd them together by hand. In this way, by the spring
months she had & hat ready for each member of the family which often times
meant a dozen or more hats made every winter. .

. The first light used after the fireplace was simply a piece
of reg set in a savcer of oil which had the advantage over the fireplace,
in thet it-could be moved from place to place in the room. The oilused
was principally coon o0il as the settlers kept a good supply on hand for the
ruirpose. Tellow candles were the next in order. The method of meking these
w2s &8 simple as it was tedious. The wicks were dropped into melted tallow
end withdrawn. The tallow adhering to the wicks soon cooled when withdrawn
and svery time they were dipped added to the size of the candle. This was
continued until the proper size wzs obtained. A block of wood with a hole
to place the candle in answered the place of candlesticks. Finally goulded
candles came into genercl use. loulds capable of making three, six, eilght
candles at a time came to be a part of every pioneer's household furnishings*
and the labor of meking candles was thus greatly curtailed. These made a
tetter appearance than the dipped candle though not giving any better light.

Paper, ink and pens were 2ll manufactured by the early settlers
for their own use. Bark was peeled from the birch tree and the inner
bark divided and subdivided until it was &s thin and pliable as paper,
supplied & material which could be written on with ink very nicely. 1Ink
was sometimes made by dissolving gun powder in water but the fluid mostly
used by the settlers for many years was made by bolling soft maple bark
till it would bhe sbout the consistency cof ink. Some copperacs and a little
sugear were thon added, making the cost of the fluid about one cent a gallon.
This ink was used in the schools for many years and was considered & first
class product, The pen was whittled out of a hickory stick and about the
eize of a lezd rencil sharpened four scuare, with grooves from the point
runnir~ baelk znd widening as the square increased in size., Quill pens also
were used and could be made by anyone with a sharp knife.

For the coldring of their cloth and yarn, the early settlers
“ad to provido their own dye stuffs. There were three of these most 1in
¢oryon use. The one was the butternut brown which was made by bolling
the burk of +tle butternut tree or the outer covering of the tutternut in
water which ~.ve a very durable brown. Brown was also obtained by boiling
surac bobs in the same manner. Yellow wus obtained from the blossoms of
Golden Lod, wnd black by boiling the bark of the soft maple, which, with the

«ddition of copperas, gave a deep black.



_— | 16

-

Sluck salts, or pearl ash, was manufactured from the ashes

¥
gethercd from the fireplaces or from the fallows where the log heaps had

been burat up. It wus an ingredient contained in the ashgs, principally

of the lardwoods, but more especially of the elm. It was soluble in water
ana hence =.sily obtained by a simple method well known to all the e.rly
settiers, The ashes were jathered into leaches over which was poured
water, which, after passing tirough the ashes and caught in vessels under
tae leach, was known as lye. TLis lye was boiled in large kettles until
it became a solid, or, in other words, until the water was evaporated,
leaving the desired ingredient cclled by the well known neme among the
eariy settlers as “"Black Salts". The making of this black salts was the
work usually of the housewife und added one more to her meny domestic
duties. It was in greeat demend for the making of soap and was one of the
first products r'or which the settlers could get money, all other articles
being bartered for other commodities.

This product of the leached ashes of burnt logs and timber,
rendered into pearl &sh by this boiling process was hurourously defined
a@s "tie father of potash", the grundfather of pearl ash, the great grand-
father of saleratus, the grezt great grandfether of soda, and a distant
reletion of the baking powder of the present day." i |

(The above is information compiled by the late
Rev. Hugh Cowan sbout the year 1926.)

8.

Interior of Kent

The only hope of settling the interior of the County was the
advent of settlers or communities brave enough to dare the solitude, the
herdships and dangers, known or unknown, that lurked in the depths of the
primeval forest. There the night was made hideous by the eerie hooting of
the owl. From its unsunned recesses at times would come to the settler's
ears the baying of the wolf and thence at any time might emerge the
figure of the Indien Savage. Added to the terrors that were real as well
as those - creatures of the imagination - born in the gloom of the forest,
were the practical difficulties never experienced or theretofore imagined
by the new settler. To the ere of the newcomer, the prospect wus dreary
in the extrene. Almost everything in lature seemed hostile. Night and
day through the gloom of the woods his body was tormented by moscuitoes
and every tree in the forest, in form however magnificent or in beauty
however dressed, for him hed little attraction for in each he saw a

barrier to his progress and an enemy tc be overcone.

A fertile soil awaited 2is skill and industry and gave promise
of future rewcrd. Before the soil could become hospitable to plant or
geed, the origiral crop must first be cut down and burned off, root and
brench., To most of the immizrints the work was new and arduous.

Different settlements arrived from yecr to year, to each of whom
wes ziven hospitable and enthusiustic welcome without guestion us to
country, clen or creed. Without an hour's unnecessary delay, & raising bee
would be czlled =ud in the morninz of the first available day would assemble
on the designated lot every able-bodied man, axe in hend, to clear the site
for and out of the standing timber in thie surrounding woods td construct
for the accormodction of their new neighbours & primitive shanty. Such
structures rouvgh and rude as they were, afforded shelter and a degres of

comfort cormensurzte &t least with the modest expectation of their
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%rgspective ogcupantzdwhg had come determined to do and endure whet might
e necess=ry to provide for therselves and families a h a
yet be able to call their own. ¥ ome that they might

In spite of the industry of the early settlers and the gradual
improverents resulting, conditions continued to be extremely trying and
consecuently many became discouraged and some left the country in disgust.
indeed nany that remained recdily confessed that they remained only because
of inability to leave. One settler on a lot on the liddle Road near Kerlin
ig salid to have sold out his farm with all improvements, for a pair of
boots. In these he was uable to get out with dry feet and utterly vanish
frox the scene of his tribulation. Another neme-forgotten men who settled
on Lot 13, Liddle Road South in Tilbury Eest Township,is said to have sold
out his property for & barrel of whiskey and preferring apparently a small
simple of gocds that were wet to a hundred acres of land in the same con-
ditior, passed otherwise from sight and memory.

Over the scene of discouragement, however, in a few years
begun to show on the horizon the first streaks of dawn. The tree stumps
that for years after the tolilsome removal of the standing timber impeded
sorely the progress of the plough began at last to yleld to decay in the
earlier clearances, and, as the emencipated area increased from year to
year, & corresponding increase in the ucreage devoted to wheat production
took place. In those early days the crops were peculiarly abundant and
in consequence a moderate prosperity soon began to throw its radiance.

Drainace.

Because of the extreme flatness of part of the County, artifi-
cigl drainege was indispensable. Vithout it not only was road construction
impossible but no crops could be raised. The first settlers, being located
on the lends irmedietely adjoining the creeks found it impossible indi-
vidually to effect the drainage of their small clearances, but, if the rest
of the land were to become fit for settlement, drainege would necessarily
‘have to be accomplished by the united efforts of all the community. The
imperative necessity for such co-operation, therefore, soon leid its hand
upon the growing settlements and the compulsory powers first of the annual
Town l.ceting and subsequently the Lunicipal Council, by Legislative
gutiiority conferred, were eagerly hailed and enforced for impressing upon
every scttler the performance of Statute Liubour and the epplicaticn of
every spure dollar of municipzl funds for highway drainege and construction.
fortunately ditches made for road construction were usually .aveilable as
outlets for the drzinage of tihe adjacent lands, and to this faect is largely
due the sagerness, as shown by the records from 1836 and for many years
cfter, with which applications hud been made to Town lieetings and Councils
for lecve to coixute for statute labor liability for e number of yeurs for
the irredicte construction of roesd ditches, ostensibly for road construction.
or improvements solely, but in reality to obtain drainage for their own lands

From the time of the earllest settlement, it seems to have been
well understood that under tnae rrovisiomns of Cormmon, if not lunieipal, Law,
the occupier of lands on &« hizher level was restrained from constructing
drainc-e worlss whieh should huve the effect of causing injury to lands on a
level lower thun that of his ovn, but for years there seems to have been no
realizztion of responsibility, legul or otherwise, for dameges arising to
lower lunds through flooding of the natural creeks through the artificlal
Ardinige of lands on & higher level. In the course of time, however, as



R < i : ' el Lo 18

* dreinoce improverments went on and as the aertificially drained area in-
erecsed, 1t eventuzlly became evident that the creeks themselves were
‘beecoming inzdequate to beuar their increcsed burden without encroaching more
end =ore uron the lands irmedictely «djoining that had, in a state of
_nature, been free from inundation and thut something should be done for

the relief of the lands so injured. This ecanvietion found first expression
practically in connection with creeks wnich were deepened and enlarged
under the provisions of the Lunicipal .ct on the petition of the owners of
lands to be thereby benefitted or which should use sald creek as an outlet.

Tiie work of construeting the drainage works covered many years;
it involved heavy capital outlay; it reguired exceptional courage to under-
teke =pd excertional engineering and business ability to earry through.

The ccurage, ambition and enterprise of the descendants of the Kent
pioneers mcy be judged by the fact that they did not shrink from the taske.
Today, extensive drainage works, their capital cost paid and their main-
tenance trifling, have brought back to fertile production, areas which once
seemed wortihless and which today represent some of the finest farms in
Hept, It hes pald for itself many times over and ddded immensely to the
wealth of Xent County.

-

10
Township and County Roads

All Tovmships in the County between 1925 and 1935 adopted the
Towvnship Good Rouds System, coumenced to improve their roads under a
qualified Township Road Superintendent, and at least 75% of the residents
of the Townships have access to surfaced roads which they can use all the
Year round.

At present there are two hundred and ninety-three miles of
good Gounty roads and the mileage is fairly evenly distributed among all
ileé Tovnshirs in the County. Abcut fifty rcent of the roads are paved

and the balance hard surfaced, gravel or stone.

11
Buxton l.ission & Elgin Settlement

- - by kiss Cassie Hill,
South Buxton.

The 2lzin Association was formed at the urgent desire of

N

_Rev., .illiszn King in 1849.

Wwilliem Xirz was & nztive of lLondonderry, Ireland, and as a
youth h:ud come over to the United States and settled in louisiana where
for sore years he was connected with a college. Here he mingled freely
yith the first femilies in the State and became acquainted with their
institutions. Iiis heart was sore us he behéld the cruelty of slavery and
he becare a strong adveccate of freedom, holding that no man has a right to
enslave another.

He became heir, in the course of time, to fifteen slaves. [e
wished to bring them at once to Caenada and give them their freedom. Legal
difficulties stood in the way for & time but in the meantime he purchased
& plen+ztion, placed his slaves on it and gave them the proceeds of their
own l:bLour, thus developing in them some self reliance and training them
for tl.:+ Prcedom which he wished to give them. In 1848 the legal diffi-

sulties were removed and he immedictely set out for Cunada, & distence of

- ok o
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1500 miles, with these slaves, paid their
freedom. 3 g P Péssage and gave them their

Shortly before this the Fugitive Slave Bill had been passed.
Tuis bill deprived all slaves and refugees of all safety in thepgnited
Stetes and thus many found their way to Canazda and freedom. The white
setilers were bitterly hostile to their settlement here. This hostility was
<t its height when Rev. W. King arrived with his slaves. His life was
threetened; a meeting from three counties was convened by the sheriff to
rrevent him from carrying out his nroject, Petitions were sent to the
Cormissioner of Crown Lands demending thet no grant of land should be given
bim on which to settle these people.

* Xr. King resolutely went forward, secured Lord Tlgin's co-oper=-
stion and & grant of 9,000 acres of land in Raleigh Township in Kent County,
and a sum of J1&,000 was subscribed. The land was divided into 50 acre
famms and sold to the settlers at 2,50 per acre to be paid in ten equal

apnugal Insteluents with interest. Then the settler would receive his title
to the land.

lany fulfilled these terms and received their deeds. Xach
settler clso had to erect a house 24' x 18' x 12', back from the road 33°',
and in the front of each & picket fence.

A larger, more pretentious home might be built if the s ettler
wished. The land wus heavily timbered, elm, hickory, oek, maple, ash,
which had to be cleared out before the lend could be cultivated. The leand
geifg very level, numerous ditches, large and small, had to be dug for

reinage.

There was but one roacd, a rilitary road constructed.through the
Egrorts of Colonel Telbot &after the liar of 1812, running from Seandwich to
ndon. ‘

To further the morel interest of the community, a Mission was
formed and Rev. W. King was eppointed to the charge. Tre name "Buxton"
wWes given in honour of Sir Thomas Fowel Buxton, a friend of the slave.

The house in which Mr. Xing made his home had been built and
occupied for several years by a white settler. It was not large but
bulldings which were for & while used as church and school house were incor-
Porated in the dwelling house. Later & church was built & short distance
east of this house, close to the road, & post office on the right hand side
of the :zvenue leading up to the house, also a school to the left a short
distencs, These were all of log and only temporary structures.

sbout the year 1855 a steam saw-mill was erected, also a grist
11 in 1856, a pearl-ash factory, a tvwo storey brick hotei, a store and
veral private dwellings. A new industry, the meking of black salts from
2 ashes of various timbers, wus begun. A brick yard was in operation and
2Xcellent bricks were nade.

In 1857 there were two schools, attended by 100 pupils, and
three district schools near the settlement. The Sunday Schcol had 100

-

Pupils con the roll with eight teuchers and a superintendent.

In 1857 the settlement wus visited by Lord aAlthorpe and others
urd & wonderful benguet was provided in an arbour erected for the purpose
in & srove on lr. Xing's furm. The menu was luxurious - turkeys, ducks,
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ghfekens, roast pigs, geese, verison, beef, wutton, lamb, vegetables of
a1l kinﬂssdricﬂleﬂ, preserves, ccies und pastry. Z2ight hundred people
were served.

In 1858 the prezent church wes erected. Funds for building
the same were_collected by & deputation, consisting of Rev. Dr. Burns and
sev. Williem King, in Ireland, Scotlund and England. Willing hands cut down
the prepared tlie timbers which were of the best and still are in good con-
diticon as was discovered a few yeurs aco when a basement wes being excavated.

| Tag Directors of the Zlgin Association revorted sixteen years
after the formztion of the ascociution tiat seven hundred pupils had passed
through the l.ission 3Schools, some hud been truined as teachers, and two were
surgeons of prominence. The schools yware self supporting, the subscribers
Lad subseribed $1000.00 for educational purposes end also $400.00 towards
the erecction of a school in the Village of Buxton.

_ Lr. ling was the l.inister of this Church until 1880, when he
resigned. Il was born in Londondsrry, Ireland, Nov. 11, 1812, and died in
chathem, Ontario, Jen. 5, 1895, azed 82 years. He was buried in Maple Leaf
Cemetery, Chathem, 4

12

Government.

On 24th July, 1788, the Covernor General, Sir Guy Carleton,
divided Upper Canuda into four Districts - Rastern, Midland, Home and
western,

In 1791 the lLientenant Covernor was authorized to divide each
Province into Districts and Cocunties and determine théir limits for the
purpose of cnoosing representatives for the Legzislature. Accordingly,
Governor Simcoe issued his proclamation dividing Upper Canada into nineteen
Counties; el hteen along the water front from the St. Lawrence to the west
end of Luke .rie, 211 the rest of Upper Canada being included in the
nineteenth County called Kent. It included Detroit and other parts of
Michigen at that time. As the population in the northern parts increased,
other counties were made from the original territory of Kent.

-

The western District included the Counties of Essex, Kent and
Laxbton. The first Council of this Distriet in 1841, had twenty-six members,
and the Chairman, John Dolsen, was appointed by the Government. The first

Clerk was John Cowan.

In 1847, Kent was formed into & separate District or County
and & rrovisional Cdunecil met at Chatham in August, its special purpose
being the erection of our present gaol and court house, completed in 1850.

By speciel Act in 1849 Districts were abolished and Counties
substituted ard in 1850 the proclamation of the Governor General declared the

Separation of Kent from Essex.

Powers of self government were conferred on all MNunieipal
Corporations lergely as those powers exist today. The inhabitants of each
County became a body corporete whose Council consisted of Reeves and Deputy
Reeves or the Townships, Towns and Villages in the County. The County
Council was to meet at the shire hall on the Lth londay in January to choose
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‘from themselves a Warden who should preside et their meetings.

The first Council for Xent as a separate County met at the
Court House in Chatham in 1850 and consisted of ten members, of which

George Duck, the Reeve of How-rd, was elected Werden. Williem Cosgrove
wes the first Clerk. ; R

Kent hes hed three County Towns, Detroit from 1792 to 1796;
Sendwich from 1796 to 1847, end, from that year when separated municipally
from Essex, Chutham.
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CITY OF CH.THAM
—_———— e e ——

The present City of Chathem owes its first impetus to John
Craves Simcoe, first Governor of Upper Canada. Simcoe was an old
British army Officer, and, when he came to Upper Canada as Governor in
1792, he saw that a renewal of hostilities between the United States and
the lother Country was inevitable.

_ Detroit was still held by the British though handed over to the
smericans a few years later. Simcoe's ambitious plans were all framed
in contemplation of war which, however, was not to come for twenty years.

In 1792 the first Parliament of Upper Cunada met at Newark on
the Niagara frontier. Simcoe, however, wished to establish his permanent
capitel &t & point less exposed to attack.

The year previous, at Montreal, en route to assume his new
duties, Simcoe had taken the trouble to carefully examine all the avail-
able maps of Upper Canada. These maps were necessarily very inaccurate,
perticularly those of the western part of the Province. They showed,
however, the River La Tranche &s a deep and navigable stream extending
far inlend and constituting a vital factor in communication.

Simcoe visited Detroit and ascended the Thames in 1795. He kad
already, it seems, selected the point at the junction of La Tranche and
what was then known as Clarike's Creek as the site for his capital. The
military branch, however, preferred Kingston. Simcoe, with & clearer
vision of the possibilities of the practiceally unpeopied western portion
of Upper Cansda, held out for a capital in the western peninsula, London
being his second choice, Ultimately York - later Toronto - was selected.

Hzd Simcoe carrisd his point, Chatham might today be the capital
of Ontaric., In the intervening 150 years, the growth of Western Ontario
in population, weealth and politicel influence has fully vindicated the

prescient Governor. '

Though forced to abandon his plan to establish his capital here,
Simcoe k25t in mind the military importance of the river, which he re-
christensd the Thames, and of the strategic point which later became the

City of Chatham.

The Governor decided to establish here & fortified stronghold on
the line of 2 colonizatién and military road that was to run from Burling-
ton Heights to Sandwich. The establishment of a dry dock was contemplated
end the reasibility of navigetion between this point and London was in-
vestigated, Lis early as liay, 1793, Deputy Surveyor Patrick McNiff had
mede the necessary survey of the river and reported the navigation scheme
"practicalle with the erection of one or two locks".

Tr= proposed military road from Burlington Helghts to Sandwich
wes to join & lateral line of road at Chathem. This lateral road Deputy
Surveyor ‘braham Iredell was directed to run "as straight as possible to
Point aux ~ins on Leke Erie, to be hereafter called the 'lLand Guard',

where a position for & tovn is to be reserved". This lateral road wes
later knowrn as the Communication Road.
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Simcoe personally visited the site of the future City of Chatham
about 1795. Already considerable ectivity was menifest there. The Jili-
tary Reserve (now Tecumseh Park) had been practically shorn of its hardwood
timber, a stockaded block-house erected, a shipyard established, and a
number of gunboats were under construction.

Simecoe planned to improve transportation facilities from this point
by means of artificial waterways. He seems to have been the first to vision
thie hardy perennial project of a canal from the Thames to Rondeau. An
altsrnative line of water communicetion with the east, which would be
relatively safe from attack in the event of hostilities, was by way of the
. Georglan Bay, Lake Simcoe and artificial waterways then determined upon for
consuruection, to Lake Ontario.

Simcoe clearly contemplated the construction of these two canal
gystems within a few years of his visit. The American War scare, however,
passed off - for the time being. Years later, both canal projects were
discussed but neither came necrer realization.

Covernor Simcoe on his western tour ascended the Thames to Chatham '
end London. The guns of his blockhouse on the high ground of the Military
Reserve saluted as his vessel came into view on the up trip. The shipyard
on the flats east of Tecumseh Park was a scene of busy activity; all of
which the Covernor warmly approved. His Province was moving ahead pretty
fast, Within a few years, however, all this busy activity fell silent.

2.

The shipyard established by Governor Simcoe at Chatham in 1794 was
in charge of William Bzker. It represented the first industrial activity
within the present city limits of Chatham.

The position chosen for the shipyard was the river flat on the
Militery Reserve, at a point just east of the present Tecumseh Park, and
nesrly oprosite the foot of what is now Victoria Avenue. The blockhouse
stocod on the high bank immedietely above the flats; about midway between
the present band stand and the river. The structure was of logs, furnish-
ing a store room and sleeping apartments, and available as a fort if occasiax
demended. Two small cannon were mounted at the blockhouse, commanding the

river.

The saw pits were erected on the flats, apparently to facillitate
the skiddinc of the timber, which was all hand-sawed, from the level.
In 1795, some 23 workmen were employed in this shipyard. A payroll of
the guarter from December 24, 1794, to March 24, 1795, shows the names of
Williem Baker, builder; John Goudie, foreman, and 21 workmen, carpenters,
blacirsmiths, sawyers and laborers. Meny of these were French Canadians,
presuwrcbly recruited from the French settlers along the river or at Detroit,.
Baker received 5s.6%d. a day; Goudie 4s, the rate for carpenters and other
skilled workers was 5s. and for the two laborers 2s. 6d. Such was Chathem's

first industry. .

In tre year or two following 1794, several gunboats were built in
this shipyerd but it is a gquestion if even one of them ever left the stocks,

much less th2 river.

In 1812, the late John Tecll of Troy, with some companions, berry
picking &t or near this point, came upon the decaying timbers o{ several
vessels amid the brush and rank weeds on the river flats., Troy's compan-
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‘ioag told him that these were "Beker's boats", The late Daniel Fields of
Heewich, a coldier of the War of 1812, (who lived to be paE% 90} ,told long
afterwerd that the early settlers burned the timbers for the purpose of
seeuring the iron - then an extremely scarce ahd costly commodity - used in
the construction of the gunboats, ¥

X 42 an inducement to come to Chatham, Baker, in addition to his
58.674. a day also received a land grant from the Government of the property
in Chetlam Township, just east of the present city, which was later knovn as *
the Iberts farm. Biker was & man of considerable standing in the ship-
building trade, heving held a responsible position in the British Navy Yard
at Brooklyn before the American Revolutionary War. He appears to have spent
.some years here, and in 1810 his daughter Ann married Joseph Eberts, From
gai:hunion sprang the Eberts family, long prominent in the affairs of

athem,

Paker's grandson, William D. Eberts, was a conspicuous figure in
the pioneer settlement at Chetham, engaged in the shipping and ship-building
trede, end one of the builders of the Eberts Block which still stands.

-3-

The original Chetham Town Site was surveyed in 1795 by Abraham
Iredell, Deputy Surveyor. Early in that yeer an area of 600 acres at this
point wes set aside by the Governor-in~Council as a town plot and military

reserve.

The original site comprised Lots 1 and 2 in Harwich Township and
Lot 24 in Raleigh. A portion of this area was surveyed by Iredell in the
game year, the survey covering 113 lots of one acre each. The ground cover-
ed by Iredell's survey is the double tier of lots commencing at the eastern
boundary of the present city and extending between Water Street &and the
present Stanley Avenue to William Street; then the double tier of lots be-
tween Murray and Colbourne Streets to the eastern boundary; then, south of
the creek, the double tier of lots between Wellington and King Streets from
the eastern city limits as far s the present Lacroix Street.

Thus, Iredell's original survey pretty well followed the naturel
line of the river and the creek; the property holders in this area - the
"0ld survey" - having the distinction of owning territory within the limits

of the orig.nal townsite.
T e map covering this survey which bears date November 1, 1795,

shows ths ‘ail and market blocks reserved a&s such. It also shows a block
bounded hetween King, Third, Wellington and Forsyth Streets reserved for
caurch purpsses. This latter church reserve was later exchanged for the
unsurveyed “lock bounded by Adelaide, Murray and Prince Streets and Stanley

Avenue, whicn is still known as the "Glebe Lands", and which passed out of
church posscssion more than 35 years ago.

Tre Militery Ressrve, now Tecumseh Park, wes thus the centre of
the community as originally planned, and Iredell's map shows Beker's block-
house on this reserve. = The map also shows on Lot 50, at the eastern boundary
of the survey, a small hut built by Meldrum & Park of Sandwich for the pur-
pose of traeding with the Indians. This log shack seems to have been the
first trading post in Chatham. In line with this trading post & primitive

bridge spanned the creek, then knovn as Clarke's Creek.

The higher lands surrounding these outposts of civilization were
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covered with heavy timber, elm, walnut, black ash and sugar maple, while
much of 'the present South Chatham was swele and SWampPe.

Within a few years of the survey, some 30 of the lots were sold
or grented by the Crown. In 1798, Lot 17 was granted to Surveyor Iredell;
in 1801, Tots 87 and 88 were granted to Alexander end Charles Askin. Most
of the other patents bear date 1802, With the exception of a few lots
grented to l.. Burwell, surveyor, in 1824, probably in payment for his
services, no further grants seem to have been made until about 1830.

Iredell's own lot, No. 17, doubtless selected for its clear view
of the river, was the southeast corner lot at the junction of William and
Water Ctreets, a little east of Buker's shipyard. Here, about 1800,
Iredell planted the first orchard in Chatham, and built a log house.
Ninety years later, a few ancient &pple trees ten feet in circumference
still survived. On this historic spot in that same year 1800, Iredell, as
returning officer, proclaimed &s "Knight of Kent, with sword, etc." - or,
in modern parlance, &as liember for Kent.

Iredell spent here the last years of his life, The father of '
Chatham, as Iredell may Jjustly be called -was a popular figure among the
sccttiered settlers. He pessed cway eerly in 1812, a few weeks before the
outbrezk of the war with the United States.

-l-

, On the night of October 3, 1813, Tecumseh and his Indian Warriors
camped under the shade of Iredell's apple trees, and on the Military
Reserve beyond. Barclay's little fleet on Lzke Erie had been captured by
Commodore Perry; the British and Indians had abandoned Detroit; and a
disastrous retreat, culmineting a few days later in the catastrophe of
lloraviantown, was in progress. The same night the British vanguard camped
on the Ebertc ferm, on the north bank of the river; the British rearguard
was at Cosgrave's.

Tne British General, Froctor, reluctantly yielding to Tecumseh's
Insiatence, promised his Indian ally to make a stand. The spot selected
for defence was the militery reserve. Here a bridge spanned the creek.
"Here," said Proctor, "we will either defeat Harrison or leave our bones".
Tecunseh viewed the scene with mournful satisfaction. "This is a good
place," he remarked. "It reminds me of my village at the junction of the

Webash end the Tippecanoce."

Next morning before dawn, however, Proctor went ahead with the
bagzeze; andl by mid-day of October 4Lth the British were in full retreat.
Tecumseh, vith several hundred Indians, stood his ground, disputing the
passage of the bridge with Hurrison's Kentuckians. The Indians opened a
heavy fire from the bridge end from the north bank of the river upon the
American advence guard. Harrison, believing that the entire British force
was opposing him, halted and formed his forces in battle line, and brought
up two sir-pounders to cover the party sent forward to repair the bridge.
The fire of the guns forced the Indians to withdraw, after first firing the

bridie and setting fire also to Baker's blockhouse.

Tn this, Chatham's first and last battle, two Americans were killed

and four wounded in the early fighting near the present Bank of liontreal
site. The Indiens left two dead, one a chief, on the point, who were <4
buried at the time by sympathetic settlers and later re-interred with Indian

l
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»itee on the north bank of the river nesr the corner of what is now Grand andl
Vaoillen Avenues, et

A 1little further up stream, near the present C.P.R. bridge at
Fikeville, the British bateaux, wiich had accompanied the forces in their
retreat, were fired and abondoned, with most of Proctor's ammunition. A few
days later Tecumseh, abandoned by his British ally, fell fighting at Moravian-
tovme :

There seems to have been fighting also on that memorable Fourth ||
cff Octoper, 1813, further up the creek at lMcCGregor's lills, east of the town |
iimits. Here at the mill dam was a bridge which the Indians destroyed.
Colonel Johnson's mounted Kentuckians, however, forded the shallow stream,
several .imer.cans and some horses being killed in the attempt. A year later,
John Tcll and enother boy from Raleigh who were hunting squirrels found the [
body of one of the fallen men under some brush.

+

The mill at this point, like the blockhouse, was fired by the X
Indisns in thelr retreat, but &t .irnold's Mills, further up the river,s..-4 4%~
Tecumseh himself lingered behind to save the mill from his followers, knowing
its importance to the scattered settlers.

-5~

n 1792 one Thomes Clerie, rreviously resident in Dover Township,
undertook the erection of a grist mill on the stream later knovmn as McGregor's
Creek. The frame of this mill scems to have been erected in 1795, as Governor
Simeoe, who saw it, refers to it in sore of his letters as a peculiar and
unigue affair. Square in form it was built of logs, which, though rough-hewn,
were left in their original lengths.

' At the erection, which was effected by the usual "bee" stimulated
by a great deal of whiskey, the settlers commenced to trim off the ends of the
logs to the proper length; whereupon Clarke said, "Never mind, boys.. Let them
hang over at the rear corners."” In the end, the tail butts of the logs were
left hanging over on all sides, and the completed mill was little better than a
shell compcsed of these logs, & roof thatched with bark laid on poles, and a
floor on which rested the mill stones and other machinery. Grain snd meal lay
in dirty heaps, through which scuirrels and other srcll animals scampered.

Tom Clarke was as unique 2s his mill., His huge ungainly figure,
218 No.1l2 hob-nuziled boots and his five foot cane were well known throughout
t“he country. Clarke nad a weekness for calling on the women at the widely
Jcattered farw houses and indulging in afterncon tea, accompanied by much small
talk, As tee was scarce and expensive, these requisitions were hardly popular.

Clarke's mill wes actually running in 1797, preceding by a few years
the operution of Christopher Arnold's famous mill further up the Thames.
Clarke, however, fell into debt, was ultimately thrown into Sandwich Jail, and
bis mill was tiken over by his creditor, John lcGregor of Sandwich, a shrewd ¢

‘oreceful Scot.

licGregor wes for severzl decades the dominant figure of the little
settlenaent. In 1808 he erected z new mill further up the creek. This he
Sberated uatil in 1813 it was burned by the Indians in their retreat. After
the Peace of Ghent, the undaunted l.cCregor rebuilt his mill - in 1818 - and
Sround it grecduazlly clustered o small settlement; while the isolated pioneers,
clearing their holdings in the bush, came meny weary miles to grind their
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grist end to trade at the store erected later at "lcGregor's"™ or "Chatham -
14115" as the locality came to be known. - P TR o

In those days there were settlements further down the river, notably
st MoCrue's and Dolsen's, snd near St. Peter's Church, where a small chapel
end mission had been established in 1803, the first church in the County of
Kent. <There were a few settlers, also along Lake Erie; and in 1804 lord
Selkirk hed established his famous settlement at Baldoon, which in 1812 was
reided by predatory Americans under General lcArthur.

John McCregor and his son Duncan carried on the milling business for
many years, and later Duncen licGregor erected the first steam saw mill in
the flnts. Those were the days when elm, black ash, oak and walnut that
had been growing for centuries fell before the axes of the pioneers; when
the finest hardwood timber ever cut in Canade sold for 50 cents a log; and
wheglthe lumbering business momentarily stimulated the growth of the new
Settlement.

]

John leCregor, the father of industrial Chatham, and the dominant
figure in the community, thrice represented Kent in the Parliement of Upper
Canada. The dirty, unprepossessing tributary of the Thames, which, first \
known a&s Clesrke's Creek, came to bear McCGregor's name, is hardly the most
ritziigimenarial to the canny Scotsmen's strenuous, hard-fisted but useful
aetivities.

o =

Following the War of 1812, the Chathem Townsite seems to have been
completely asbandoned. Baker's bloekhouse had been burned in the retreat
Lo Moravienvown, as hed MeCGregor's Mill; the creek bridges had been fired,
but repaired by Harrison's men. Iredell's log shack still stood among the

old surveyor's apple trees.

MeGregor's return in 1818 was the first step toward permanent
settleront; but MeGregor's activities were all beyond the eastern limit of
the townsite. The first permenent settler within the present city limips

was Will Chrysler.

In 1820 Chrysler, who had been living at Dolsen's, some miles
further down the Thames, moved to Chatham and built a log house on the spot
now occupied by the Jehnke & Greenwood Funeral Home. Chrysler cleared the
ground abcve and below this site and farmed successfully, in 1822 raising

1o less thcen 2000 pounds of tobacco from an acre.

New settlers ceme in. That same year, 1822, besides Chrysler's
Phencmenal tobacco erop, saw the building of Chatham's first church. That
was St. Peul's (Anglicen). It stood near the eastern end of Stanley Avenue
between what is now Victoria Park and the river., Here Lr. Morley, the
snglican )Missionary at Sandwich, held occasional services. Later he became
the first rector, and took up his residence in the settlement.

The log huts of the early settlers were erected chiefly along the
soutli bank of the river or elong lLcGregor's Creek.

Oprcsite the militery reserve,an historic spot in those days, wes
the grove o suzar maples necr where the Fifth Street Bridge now stands.
Here, prior to the erection of St. Paul's Church, missionaries occasionally
held divine service for the benefit of the hard-drinking and horse-racing
Pioneers; here they christened the "olive branches" of the new settlement
end edminictorcd the sacrements. Here Indians resorted to trade, and, on
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some occasions at least, to receive their annual presents from the Govern=-
ment; end here took place under a thorn tree the six days' polling of that
early election which sent Joshua Cornwall, the celebrated "silent member”,
to the Legislative Assembly. Later the miller, John McGregor, was returned
at & similer poll. Election trials end disqualifications were then unknown;
and the free and independent electors declared their choice by word of

mouth and recompensed themselves by getting drunk at the expense of their
favorite candidate.

Cn this site amid the sugar maples, there was erected in 1830 the
plonesr store. Stephen Brock, & grain buyer, previously in business at
MeCrce's, built this store and for years carried on the business. It was,
according to tradition, the first frame building in Chatham and was deemed
a most pretentious structure.

A little later, in a log house at the corner of King and Fourth X
Streets, Claude Cartier started the first tavern, a hostelry famous in even
loter days for its 3-cent drinks of corn whiskey and its 12 cent meals.

By the middle thirties the settlement had grown. The first census
taken by Henry Verrall at the request of the principal men of the village,
showed & population of about 300.

The Chathem of that day was hardly prepossessing. King Street,
forming part of the Lorndon or Tecumseh Road, was little better than a decent
trail, full of holes and stumps, following the winding course of the river,
and barely passable for wheeled veshicles.

Within the town plot little of the land had been even cleared.
alongz the river as far east as Tourth Street, the land was under cultivation;
thence on the river side to Pifth Street was largely a suger bush; and the
square between King, Wellington, Fifth and Pourth Streets, now solidly
built up, was an open common., The "kilitary Ground", now Tecumseh Park,
was under crop; a few other spots neer the present market were cleared and

producing.

Beyond Sixth Street, the winding road trailed along the creek to
MeGregor's 1.i11ls end then plunged into the "bush". The school lands were
mere forest; = large swamp lay along Wellington Street over which the
children goingz to the little frame school on the site of the present
Centrel, picked their way in wet weather on logs and rails. Toward the
South the l.nd was nothing but black ash swale. Except for "Brock's
Corner" at ?irth Street, the creelr bank between Fifth and Sixth Streets was
+8til1l & sugor maple bush. The present North Chatham, cut off from the
settlement 5 the unbridged Themes, hed one inhabitant, a colored man

named Croucher.
Ve

In 1824, Chathem relied almost entirely on the river for commun-
ication with the outside world.

Tn 1828 the first stzamboet to ascend the Themes, the "Argo™, of

Windsor, Caent. Burtis, arrived &t the settlement on August l. Within a
couple of veurs, however, the “.estern", a Chathem-built craft, was con-
structed on -he flats east of the present Pere llarguette Bridge by Duncan
McGregor, =nd put on the route between Chatham and /Amherstburg. The
MYegstera™ wms a vessel of about 50 tons and 25 h.p. In 1832 or 1833 weas
built in t!.c =zame shipyard the steamer "Thames" of 200 tons and 25 ‘h.Dp.

The "T! mes" .s u popular lake boat, running between Port Stanley and
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trusting not & few of them for their fares until at some date more or less

Puffelo, until burned by the rebels at Windsor in 1838.
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: The "Cynthia lLicCregor" of 100 tons and 40 h.p., also built here
ian og the Chatham-Amherstburg route for several yearspbdt was ultimatoly’
urnad.

Of the numerous steamboats built at Chatham in those early days,
the finest was the "Brothers™ of 150 tons and 45 h.p., completed in 1839,
by W. & . Eberts, their shipyard being on the creek at about the foot of
the present Sixth Street. Tie "Brothers" ran for many years on the Chat-

ham and Detrolt route. On this populer steamer many hundreds of the pion-

eer settlers of the community first arrived here, Cept. Walter Eberts
vaguely Tixed, they might be able to recoup him.

The first wharf was built by Stephen Brock near the creek mouth,
immediately in the rear of the old lierchant's Bank.

Meanwhile, the stage coach had come. In 1827, one Chauncey Beadle
obtained from Parliament & charter giving him the sole right for 21 years
to run coversd stages between ‘ueenston and Sandwich, the fare not to excee:
three-pence a mile. Anpong other Chatham men, William McCrae, M.P., and
his son, Thomas, later police magistrate, were financially interested. It
was not until 1828, however, that the stage carrying His Majesty's Royal
E?ii eand heralded long in advance by the resonant posthorn, tore into the

age,

With the advent of the stage, the post office for the settlement,
proviously located at McCreae's, was transferred to McGregor's Mills, or
the Chatham 1:ills &s they had come to be known. The post office with
Duncan leGregor, the miller, as post master, was known as Raleigh P.O.

It was not until 1843, long after the community itself had definitely
assumed the name, that the post &ffice at this point was officlally known

as Chatham.

Ship building, the first of Chatham's industries, continued
throughout the first of the Nineteenth Century to be one of the most
important. 721l local industries gradually sprang up adding to the
importance of the community. These included a couple of primitive canner-
ies, & steam saw mill, and in 1836 a distillery erected on what 1is now

Colbourne Street by one Roger ZSwith.

In 1854, with the opening of the Great Western Railway between
Suspension Pridge and Windsor, & new und rapid form of communication with
the outside world was established. The railroad put a more or less defin-

ite pericd to the romantic days of weter transportetion and the stage
coach, ard in course of time completely changed the character of the young
settlenent, In 1873 the Cunzdian Southern Railroad was completed and
ran its first train; in 1883 the Erie & Huron; in 1889 the Caradian
Pacific; in 1894 the Leke Erie & Detroit, later the Pere Marguette, as far

a@s Ridgetovm; anrd in 1905 was the start of the Chatham, Wallaceburg &
Leke Erie Railway which operated for 20 years.

e

Pravious to 1840 what is now Chathem formed portions of the
ediacent townships. The Municipal Act of 1841 widened the powers of the
township euthorities and resulted in the commencement of such municipal

services in the village as ditching end drainage, until then unheard of.
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g%i'bgmn measure led to the formation of the first hook and ladder com
‘ndggg;nizatinn which enjoyed high repute even outside the county. pioin

The Municipal Act of 1849, however, marked the beginning of a new
and larger evoch. Under that act the first Village Council was elected in
1850 with George Witherspoon as reeve; and Chatham Fire Company No. 1 was
recrgenized out of the Chatham Fire Brigade formed in 1848.

Chatham had by that time grown in population to 2000; and this
srowth coupled with the new powers conferred by the Munieipal Act, resulted
ia the launching of larger municipal enterprises. The new Central School
was built in 1854, The new Jail and Court House were constructed and com-
pleted in 1350, About the same time the first bridge across the Thames at
Fifth Street was taken over from the Government. In 1853 the new public
market was instituted. :

WWith the Great VWestern Reilroad in 1854 came a period of expansior
Big ideas were in the air. Unlike most new communities, Chatham never
suffered the rapid inflation and painful collepse characteristic of a "boom",
but in a lesser way the era of expansion, with its many new activities that
have since been auply Jjustified, brought its minor drawbacks.

Cne of the costly mistckes of that era was the backing by the
municipality and the citizens of z number of plank roed ventures, which made
large »romises of revolutionizing this part of Cabada. The Chatham, Rondeau
end St. Cleir Plank Company and the Chatham and Cemden Plank Road Company
net merely got the ear of the individuel speculator but dug substantially

into the corporation treasury.

L}

The too generous grants made to these wildcet ventures left
Chatham subsequently with & debt of more than $100,000 to the Municipal Loan
Fund in return for which the people were mulcted in heavy tolls and recelved

practically no benefits.

The year 1855 saw the incorporation of Chatham as a town., The
first town councillors were 1.D.l.clean, ..rchie lMcKeller, Thomas A. Ireland, |
Josepa Northwood, John Smith, John Waddell, John 3. Vosburg, R.S.Woods and
John %inter. A. D. licLean was the first mayor of Chatham., Coincident with
the incorporetion of the town, Chatham wcs extended to practicelly its

present municipal limits.

Ir 1865 the population having meanwhile increased to between
9000 and 10,000, Chathem was constituted & ecity. The formal inauguration
of the comnunity cityhood was followed by a period of marked expansion and
improvement, the most noteworthy feetures of vhich were industrial develop-
ment on an unprecedented scele, & marked growth in population, and the

completion ¢f a system of permenent pavements.

Tn 1889-90 Harrison Hull was erected jolntly by the County of
Kent and the City of Chathem to house &ll County and City offices, including
the Judicisl Offices, at a total cost of $38,203.09, with the land costing
'5,500,00, C? the 5$38,203.C9, the County peid $28,652.32 and the City
.9,550.77. The City elso contributed the price of the land on which the
buildin- stends, Herrison liull was of sufficient cepacity to accommodate
-both County snd City for guite ¢ number of years. Recently, owing to the
growth of both municipalities, the building becams too small and in 1947
arrangements were made for the County to sell its share to the City.

_9_.
Ir. the two decades immediately preceding the American Civil war,

ey
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ctivities of Northern abolitionists in assisting the southern slaves

o freedon nade this part of Southwestern Onterio in effect the Northern
,erminus of the famous "underground railroad".

This organization provided help and shelter for the fugitive
sleves on tnelir way to Canada; and its asctivities resulted in the consider-
abls irflux of colored people, many of whom settled in Chatham.

4t one time, probebly one third of the population was colored.
Since the risks involved in escaping from slavery were considerable, the
gdventure wos one which appealed only to the more daring and high spirited
of the slaves; so that the colored people who made their homes here were
distinctly of the better and more intelligent class, many of them being

. g@cgagingly well educated,

The colored people in Chatham were for the most part industrious
and prosperous and rendered material assistance to other slaves in escaping
%0 the north.

arong the historical landmerks of Chetham is the red painted
brick house just south and east of the C.P.R. crossing at Adelaide Street.
originelly a four-tenement structure, known as the "Holton House", it was
| in this building that John Brown, the ferous abolitionist, conferred with
the lecders of the colored settlement in the fall of 1858 in regard to his
plans for a rising of the southern slaves.

Here were particlly mcotured the plans for the subsequent raid
on fierpsr's Ferry, which historic fiesco resulted in the capture and exe-
eution of John Brown and his ascociates, and which, later, did much to pre-

eipitate the Civil war.

Another familiar figure of slavery and later days wes Rev. Josiah
denson, who made his home at Dresden, but was well known in the Chatham
colored settlement. Henson wss in some respects the original of Uncle Tom
in Harriet Beecher Stowe's famous book "Uncle Tom's Cabin", Mrs. Stowe
visited Chatham and vicinity while writing the book to secure first hend
information from some of the escaped slaves and several chapters of the book

were writter in Kent County.

The Civil War and Lincoln's Emancipation Proclamation had a marked
effect on the colored population of Canada. The Northern victory left them
free to return to the United States without fear of molestation; and, while
many of the clder people clung to the community which had given them shelter,
the younpger seneration largely gravitated to Detroit and other American
Cities wher: they found ready employment and made new homes.

T:.e result has besn a shrinkage of the colored population in
Chathar, A% one time the colored people numbered probably 2000 or more out
of 2 populetion of about 6000. n 1881, some 16 years after the conclusion
of the Civil War, this colored population had dwindled to 781 out of the

total of 7873.

10
In the latter 80's the famous horse cer system was in full oper-
Efion. 4 few vears earlier the Erie and Huron Railway, now operated by the
Pere Mercuetts, hed been built as a loczal north and south line. The old
Zrie and Huron Depot was loctted at the eastern end of King Street.

T:e foet that the Crund Trunk Depot was considerably distant seems
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heve inspired a number of citizens with the belief that a street car line,
traversing the rain streets of the town and connecting the two railroads
would prove & paying propesition. .

., Aywey, the Chatham Street Railway, Limited, was organized in 1885,
yith $25,000 capital, in shares of J100 each. J. R. Reid was President and
3, H. Weat was Secretary-Treasurer.

The street car traecks extended from the G. T. R. Depot along
Jugen Street to Fourth, along Fourth to Xing and along King eastward to the
Zrie end Huron Station. Part of the distance was cobblestone pavement, part
ves cedar block, and part was just plain mud road. Over this Troute four
sorse drawn cars made their trips, coming and going at more or less regular
intervals, the fare being five cents for the trip.

Whatever the little horse-cars may have been for older people to
. ride on them, it was always a delightful adventure for the youngsters of that
| day and generation. However, poplerity among children who pay half fare -
. or gquite often no fare at all - is not sufficient to put even a horse car

iine on & remunerative besis. Owing to lack of patronage and consequent

| Jlack or funds, the system got in bed shape in the course of a few years. It
vas not an uncommon thing, according to tradition, for the cars to jump the
tracks at the post office corner, when the passengers would get out and assist
in prying them back upon the rails. I

Eventually the C.P.R. came through and the Erie and Huron moved
down town, taking on its passengers at the new C.P.R. Depot. Even without
this drustic change in conditions, the Chathem Street Railway seems to have
got into a bad way financially. Finally, a stage was reached where the
Council refused to countenance the enterprise any longer. There seems to
lave been a number of acrimonious discussions in which eritics-of the system
declared thet it fulfilled only the first part of the slogan "Slow but sure"
énd thet 2 passenger who ventured on one of the little yellow cars could be
sure of cnly one eventuality - that he would not reach his destination on

tine,

J. R. Reid fought to the last for his enterprise and at the last
velemently declared that if the Town Courcil ordered the tracks up, they
night as well put a high board fence around Chatham and call it a cemetery.

Despite which, the tracks came up.

Fcr several years - until the laying of the vitrified brick pave-
ment in 190C - a nerrow cobble-stone pathway down the middle of the cedar
block on Xinz Street remained as a monument to the horse-car line. Even that

vanished,

The little yellow cars themselves found & temporary refuge at the
corner of Xirz and Third Streets on a vacant, weed-grown lot and must have

femained there for several weather-beaten years.

Then some enterprising individusl with an eye to undiscerned
rossibilities pot possession of them and moved them out to EZrieau, in those
d2ys at the heyday of its ropularity as a summer resort., There, the old
horse cars, refinished and furnished, were miraculously transformed into

“0re or less convenient summer cottages.

Such, as far as history records, was the end of Ch?tham's famous
Street car line, When & good many years later the Chatham, Wallaceburg &

Like Erie Line was built, the project of a local street car service in
addition to t.c interurben line was mooted. The advent of the motor car
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gd tréffic conditions so materielly that the bygone enterprise of
feid represents Chatham's ore and only local street car s:nture.
S In 1947 an attempt was made to establish a bus line throughout
Chathem. This enterprise, however, is yet in its 1nrancsuragnd
will 5o doubt be continued successfully us the City continues to grow,
According to the 1948 census the population of the City of Chatham is

19,315,

11. |

~_ Though the first permenent settlement in Chathem did not take
plece until 1820, educetion early received the attention of the pioneer
setilenent. Some time between the years 1820 and 1826 a private school was
cerpied on Iin Abraham Iredell's deserted log shack "over the creek" at the
corier of Water and William Streets. In 1826 a later school of the same f
tyye wus conducted in Will Chrysler's house; here Jemes Chrysler taught the |
"young idea"™ to shoot, one of his nupils being Israel Evans. |

Chatham's first public school, a frame building, was erected on
the site of the present Central School in 1831. E=ducation, it will thus be
seen, antedated other municipal activities by nearly ten years. Norman L. .
Freeman, & very able teacher, had charge of this school. )

In the latter 4O's a primitive sort of public school seems to
have been opened in North Chethem in charge of John Etches. The public |
schools of that day were only partly free; and there were at that time three |
‘private schools as well as "Wilmotte's Crammar School, Miss Nelson's Junior |
School, and Lrs. Barclay's Girls' School. The total salaries paid the three
publie school teachers in 1845 amount to 2108, 9s., 73d. a year, this being !
supplemented by certain fees from the pupils.

“With the growth of the municipality, the original Central School
proved inadequate and in 1854 the frame building on this historic site was 1
emoved, making way for & square brick building which survived until 1895. i
It 1s interesting to note that this "old Central School" as it came to be
fnowz in its dingy latter days, was in its inception vigorously opposed by
one of the town newspupers end a good many citizens on the ground that it
vas far beyond not merely the needs of the community but its needs for years
%0 come, wnd far too expensive. The sctual cost of the entire building in

1854 was 34,2001

In March, 1855, the nucleus of the later Chatham High School
2nd Collesicte Institute was formed when Prineipal Jemieson began to hold
cramer schocl classes in the old Durracks with & limited roll of secondary
Pupils, The Chatham Cremmar School on Prince Street was opened with consid-
érable ceremony on August 10, 1855, n 1885 it was superseded by the
“ollegiate Institute waich some 25 years later was largely extended. Until
tie construction of the Collegiate iddition, however, the old Grammar School
Mlﬁng remzined, first as the principal 's residence and leter as the home

of th_e colle-iate careteker.

S The original North Chatham Public School, & freme building,
2L00d on whi: is now Grand Averue a short distance east of Victoria Avenue.
1t was succecded in 1861 by the "ocld Heed Street School™ which continued in
%88 until the construction of the Forest Street School in 1882, was then
used for son: vears as a liodel School, and still later was converted into a

revery, Ultimately the historie structure was pulled down to meke way for
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 Leanvhile in 1882, the Forest Street School, later oa ' |
choo: - in honor of the late Williem lcKeough, for ma:’xy years ciiggnﬁxggugtge
chathem Public School Board, had been constructed. The original building
cost some §12,000. In the war years the larger part of the old building

was torn down to make way for a thoroughly modern structure. McKeough
Sehool early attalned high rank under the principalship of the late James
2peckin; then the late Miss Abram.

- In the years between 1867 and 1895, Chatham possessed a fairly
comprehensive system of what were then known as "ward schools™, small
neighborinood schools which took the junior pupils, the more advanced classes
attending the two larger public schools. The ward school system in South
chathem, included the Queen Street 3chool erected in 1870 at a cost of
$8,000; cthe Princess Street (or old King Street) School built in 1872 at a
cost of 98,000, and the Payne Scrhool at the corner of Murray and Prince
Streets, a two-room structure erected in 1868. At one time a class was
also accommodated in the "0ld Free" Church on Adelaide Street near Welling-
ton, which was leased by the Board for school purposes. )

The Princess Street School was the third on that site. A log school
had been erected there in 1840 to accommodate the colored children of the
community. This was succeeded by a frame building, and later the brick
schocl which still survives, was erected.

By 1895, when the reluctant community at last conceded that the
"0ld Central School" owed the City of Chathem nothing of the original $4800
it had cost the town LO years before, marked changes had taken place in the
community. Chatham had grown south and west so that the so-called "ward
schools"™ were convenient to only & small portion of the community. With the
decline of the colored population, the ancient policy of segregating the
colored pupils had been abandoned. Finally, the "ward schools" like the
"old Central™ had become out of date in the light of modern ideas in regard
to school buildings. .

Whether to rebuild on the origiral site or to seek a new site in
énother part of the city was for long a vexed question. The ex-pupils of
"0ld Central” who for sentimental reasons advoceted the original site,
carried the day. A new Central School was rlanned to accommodate all the
public school children of South Chatham; and with its completion the classes
were centralized there and the older ward schools were sold.

This arrengement, helped out by one or two additions to the Centrel
roved fairly s-tisfactory until 1910 when the overcrowded state of the
school led to the buildinz of the present Queen lary 3chool. So rapid was
the growth or the city end of the school population that in a few years
ueen Mery School had to be extended.

' While the Chatham Collegizte Institute attained high standing
throughout the province and gave adnittedly excellent preparation for the
rrofessionsand excellent cultural trairning for all pupils, the fact came to
be recognized by the public generally that the great mass of public school
graduates destined to enter tradss or business were entitled to practical
‘raining. Qut of this conviztion ccme the esteblishment of a commercial
department at the Collegiate Tnstitute whose popularity was attested by a
continuously largze attendance.

Still leter, a beginning wes mede in the line of vocational train-
ing, a rey rooms &t the Central School then not reguired for public school

e
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| being mtilized for this purpose. In addition to the day vocetional
plasses, special night classes in verious lines were conducted for some
ysars with a steadily increasing petronage while the public school classes
were supplemented along practical lines by the introduction of menual
training end domestic science.

f|" '

' This finally proved inadequate and it was decided to establish

a vocational schocl. 1In the year 1929 the building formerly occupied by
the Senitea Hotel wes remodelled and fitted for such. In that same year an
gadition was completed to serve as an auditorium.

The Chathem High School also proved inadequate to take care of the
large number of pupils and in 1940 a new high school was completed.

St. Joseph's Separate School on Cross Street was erected in 1873
and was after meny years of service succeeded by the present structure.
With the establishment of the Blessed Sacrement Church in North Chatham,
& second Separate School was built on Victoris Avenue.

The Pines, another Separate School, was established in 1890, and
two additions have been added since that time,

12.

Tiere are two Hospitals in Chatham. 3t. Joseph's Hospital was
established and opened on October 15, 1890, with a capecity at that time
for from 16 to 20 beds. It has been increased until now in 1948 it has a

capacity for from 140 to 150 patients.

The Public Generasl Hospitel was opened in 1893 with about a twenty
bed capacity. The size of the Hospital hes been increased several times

until now it has a capacity for 150 beds.

13.

On Saturday, July 3, 1841, the first issue of the pioneer paper
of Kent appeared - The Cheatham Journal. It was a four page sheet present-
ing on appearance thet would be quite creditable even in this age. The

publishers were Charles Dolsen end William Fulford. Two or three columns

of this initisl number were taken up with a sketeh of the County of Xent,

which ¢t that time comprised twenty townships, ten of which now form the
County of Lambton and one (Tilbury North) since trensferred to the County
of Essex. Drainace was earnestly urged in this and subsequent numbers of
the paper, and the seed then sown has borne good fruit as is evidenced by
the meny magnificent drainece schemes which have been constructed in all
Darts of the County at a cost of meny hundreds of thousands of dollars. The

Journal also had a page of advertisements.

in Chathem was "The Gleaner" started
oy Mr. Georze Gould in July, 1845. He continued the publication for severeal

¥84ars but eventually transferred the business to Noeh L. Freemen who was
appointed Tostmaster some time in the fifties and the Gleaner passed out.

Tre second paper to appear

- The Kent Advertiser appears to have been the successor.of The
Gleaner, its rirst appearance being in March, 1848, MNr. Thomas ... Ireland
being the publisher. He continued the business until 1853 or 54 when the

Office cnd plent were destroyed by fire. After the fire John S. Vosburg

-1,

LT
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‘who published a paper at ¥ingston moved his plant to Chathem and continued
the publicction of The advertiser. ., station a few miles east of Chatham
wes net2d in his honor.

T:e Chatham Flanet which seems to have been the successor of
The Journel entered the rleld in april, 1851, the publishers being liles
Liller and Matthew Dolsen. Durirg their regime a young printer, Rufus
Stevenson, who had learned the art preservative in St. Catherines. found his
wey to Chutham in search of fame and fortune and he was not long in the
Plinet Office until he and a fellow printer took over the business. BRoth
were expert printers and the Plenet soon became one of the leading peapers
in the Province.

I 1854 Jesse V. Roce bought out The Kent Advertiser and greatly
improved t.es mechanical outfit of the puper, the office being recognized
in other towus in the neighborinz counties as one of the best equipped in
the country.

Tie Western argus succeeded the Advertiser in March, 1860, William
de Thoupson being the publisher, When Mr. Thompson decided to leave
chathem, FRev. I. B. Richerdson became the owner of the Argus Plant and
changed the name of the paper to The VWestern Union and continued the publi-

cation for two years.

. Richardson in 1863 and again changed

Cameron Bros. succeeded .r
tern Reformer" being the title adopted.

the name of the paper, "The \lcs

In 1864 J. R. Germill hecame the owner of the plant. Purchasing
new material and removing it to new premises, he succeeded in getting out
the initial number of The Chatham Benner on the 12th of January, 1865, and
the paper continued under one prorrietor for twenty years. In 1885 a stock
company wes formed and the naper greatly improved, salthough still under the
same management. In 1894 the Comnany disnosed of its interests to Jumes S.
rierly of <t. Thomas and & daily issnue of The Banner was inaugurated.

In 1900 kr. A. C. Woodward beczame the provrietor of the establish-
msnt and aguin chunged the name, "The Daily News™ bheing now the representa-
tive of the line of Liberzl papers that have come and gone during the years.
The present printing establishment is a mammoth affair compared with the
modest outrits of earlier days und & credit to the business tact and energy

with whieh the paper is conducted.

1L

ey Milner, of Denver, Colorado, offered to the
City of Chitham,. the former residence of his father, the late Robert liilner,
for a Nuseun and Art Callery. 4 primury purpose of the gift was to preserve
POr posterity the art works of his mether, the late Emma Milner. The city
accepted t.. .3 offer and the coumndious &nd substantial brick residence on
Willier Street opposite historic Tecurceh Park was remodeled and redecor-
ated, The C-hatham-Kent lusewu, opened October 4, 1945, 1s able to present
to its public many items of local historic interest and three exhibits
which are uninus, These are the rictures by Lrs. lilner, the Sandys
Collection of Netive Birds, and the Sulman Room which conteins the most
striking of a host of curios gathered by Mr. and Lrs. George V. Sulmen in
world trevels vhieh took them, durinz a long period of years, to the far
corners of the earth, It also includes Indian relies, a collection of ore

minerals end mineral bearing rocks, neny works of art, and a goodly

eollection of articles used by the eerly settlers of Kent Countye.

In July, 1943, Auvbr
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The Bezinning of Church lLife.

(Coupiled from papers on the Romen

Catholie Church, by lrs. J.P.Dunn; the
Church of Tnglend in Chatham, by Rev.
Canon R.S.VW. Howard; the Lethodist Church,
by the late n.h.hcﬁeouﬂh and Dr.n.a.Hicks,
ard the Presbytericn Ckurch in Chathem,

by the late P,D. LcKellar.)

To give, even irn outline, the story of the various individual
clurches and congregations in Xent County, would recuire a volume nruch
Jurger than thls one« From pioneer days, religion hes had a potent influence
or. cormunity life; end the spiritual aspirations of the men who cleared the
wilderness £nd the women who made hormes ror them 1s indicated by the eager-
ness with which they welcomed the early itinerant messengers of the gospel
wnd the seerifices they made to secure ministers and congregations of their

G¥Tle

1t seens probable thet the Tirst religious services in the
presant Yent County werse conducted by the Jesuit lissionaries who visited
the leutral Tndians in the first hzlf of the seventeenth century. The
pioneer white settlements alon: the River Thames were visited from time to
tiwe by micsionaries from Detroit, and the first religious edifice in Eent
Connty was 2 small Roman Catholic chapel, built on the site of the present
3t. Peter's Church by Rev. Futher Jean detiste Y.archand of Sandwich, who
held services there once & month. The church records date back to this
chapel's dedication on July 8, 1802, on which day the first baptism, that
of Mlchael Deloge, aged 10 rontu-, wes recorded. .

wther Muarchand wes succeeded in 1819 by Rev. Father Crevier,

s I"Cla

during whose _dtorcﬁn the firav oonanCatholic Church in Kent was erected
on thiz site 3in 1823. TLis whize frume church was for many yeurs & landmark

on the lower TLhaFS til) ite destruction by fire on October 28, 1895, when
the present I"'ine brick stricture wis erected.

.J.}:‘. e«

nc
g2
'S}
2

l.eanwhile ir the ye

g3¢ Rizht Rev. alexander licDonell, Bishop
of Kingcton - in whose diocese \

rt wos then situated ~ received from the
vaerhu,nt g grant of land for = church &t Chathan, Pending the building
of & church, services were held in pri v;te homes by missionaries froum
St. Peter's and Scndwich. In 18,5, with the advent of Rev. Father Jcseph
»1uceqt Jaffre, the bulldins ol o cburch was definitely undertuken, ard on
ey 30, 1847, the ecorner stone of the first 3t. Joseph's Church was laid.
IW whe ;,tcrdup of Rev. Fetaer ”.,li*“, between 1878 und 1£89, the present
chureh wus erected, though nmany irrrovements have since been nade to the
retively recent times the Church of the

4
ak

OTifl“. pdiries. Within conprure t t.
Blessed Saeranent nus been eractad in lorth Chuthex,

To Fev. Father Lorin, cstor of St. Peter's Church in 1845, wes
due tioe Lu::_;p- of & smull chapel to ssrve the growing Catholic pepulation
ir T«'; cou in 1854 the f£irst Church of the Inuaaculate Conceptlon was
begun, and, “: jtc destruction by fire tuenty years later, a brick church
Was Cﬁxntrvﬂt_ﬂ, beinz replaced in 1912 in the rastorate of the gifted

Father Emery by a mug niricent Cotaic structure.

~ile the Tirst reli~ious edifice in Kent wcs bullt outside
Chatham, most of the Protestunt denominatlons had their beginnings in that
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| The first church in Chethum was built in 1819. Prior to that
,=ﬂev. Richard Pollard, stetioned at Sundwich, was the first missionary
ghe Church of England to Kent County, cnd it was apparently due to his

'é; artsi'backed by the loyal support of his Chatham purishioners, that
s Pau

g Church was erected., It oncuﬁied & site on the north side of
the oresent Stanley Avenue, ulmost orposite Victoria Park, with the
rectory on one side and thé buryins -round on the other. Rev. Thomas
worlesy, about 1827, was the £irst resident clergymean.

Of the ministers who succeeded him, the one who made the
most lasting impression on the community was the Rev. Frencis William
gandys, the first to bezr the title of rector, who took charge in 1848
¢nd whose diligent pastoral jourrneys took him to communities throughout
a lurge erea. It was during his rectorship, continuing till 1894, that
the “rcsent Christ Church was built, being opened for divine service on
August 26, 1861. The olad St. Puul's Church continued in use as & mortuary
chapel t1l11 its destruction by fire in 1869. 1In 1875 the present Holy
Trinity Churech in North Chatham was erected.

The settlers of the !lethodist faith were, in the pioneer days,
ministered to by the circuit riders who, traversing the blazed treils on
horseback, held their services in school houses and farm homes. Of these
circuit riders, Rev. Nathen Bungs was en outstanding example.

In 1809, Williem Cuse was appointed missionery to the "Detroit
eircuit" - a mission 240 miles long with 12 regular appointments, the
greater part being in Canada. Though the work was interrupted by the Va
of 1812 (most of the lethodist missionaries beinz American citizens) the
records show continuous growth in the "Thames c¢ircuit™, from which the
"london circuit" was detached in 1823. In 1832 the ) ethodist Episcopal
body of Canada united with the British Conference to form the esleyan
Ilethodist Church, and thenceforth Chuthem and the Themes circult were
supplied from the Ves leyen Church.

Previous to 1841 services in Chuatham were held in either the
log school house on the prasent Centrel School site or in privocte homes.
In 1€.) or 1842 the Vesleven l.ethodists erected a church on King Street
whers the C.P.R. station now stunds, Rev. Thomas Flumerfelt belng the
first nastor. This buildingz, secting sbout LOO, continued in use until
the er~ction of the Park Strset lethodist Church, the founduticn of whieh
wag Ynfa in 1871, ths tnilding being con.pleted and opened in 1874 with
BRRL V. C.0»iffin as paustor,

T tho late 50's the Primnitive l.ethodists formed 2 Soclety

in Cia<i.., reetin - first on the north side of the river and later on

Ming Strect .2t. .bout 1867 they erected & little brick chureh at the

gorner of .»iiineton cnd Centre Streets, with Rev. laniley Benson &s

Binister, ™13 edifjce, now relesuted to worldly uses, is still standing.
in 1877 tre Cenciicn lethodist Episcopal denorination built

W8 Vigtoria Avenue j.ethodist Ci urcL, Rev. Tn. Codwin being the first

pasver, little leter tre letrodist Church of Cunado (in which the

wEslevan lethodists ard the L;:.niist iew Connection hzd been merced in

1894 epacted & snnll frume chu=ch on Dlizubeth Street, After the union

of ell the ..ethodist C‘urﬂhﬂa ir Cantda in 1884, the Park Street and

storie Avenue Churches batween then cerried on the work of the l.ethodist
desoninetion in Chathan, the otherelifices being cbandoned.

han, in 1&"’ .lexunder l.eIntosh, P.L.5., surveyed part of

o
ble town o Chuthum, supplerenting Iredell's originul survey, a lO-azcre
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_mgf%’?}’ailzia%:.nellin;Eon, Prinee and Tark 3treets was reserved

SELLY ¢:_tve'4“arch of Scotl_ond. The first visit of & Presbyter- |

BT Yinhs 11 1641 when Rev. Will3um Tinl.y cane to orgenize & Presby=

SEIC Lnd urge the Ddeople to cract . nlace of worshipn. But the ”

_ an . L8 parent Chureh of Scotlund Lbout that tire, and the difficulty ?

.J__:;;nding tne_huixding enterprise, celaved conpletion of the new church H

'__f;;ﬁhz} Hav. Johin Robb, who cure in 1853 being, appurently,the first

SSRTET Wirister. The church wes rebuilt in 1E£69.
’ !

) S : L.“nwhi}e, wgherents to ths Tnited Fresbyterian Church had pur-
i on Wellington Street, tie building of a brick edirfice belng
342 und completed in 1844 wien Rev. Jumes l.cFayden became the

5 ™y Rev. Angus licColl came to Chutham in Januery, 1848, <s minister
- of the ¥ree Church of Scotland. A4s they had no church, und the 0ld Xirk
gongresstion hud one but no minister, union services were held in the same
edifice, v!th Rev. Lr. 1.eColl ministerins to both congregations, until the
arrivul of Rev. Jc%% Robb in 1853, The congregutions then parted company,
and tie Free Churchcdrefted un edifice of their own on the northeust
gorner of Wellingtoh and idelaide Streets. Rev. iir. EcColl's winistry was
| a strcauous one; after servinz his own congregation in the morning, he

| woule ride into cne of the cdjscert townships and hold ufternoon services

‘ here, returnin: ts Chatham for the evening service in his own church.
This he did for vears, till the outlying congregations beccme strong enough

Lale

to encapge mninisters of their own.

“he Free and United Presbyterian Churches, which in 1875 had
hacome corrzated with the Presuyterian Church in Canadu, four ye=rs luter
united in Chotham under the ncme of the First Presbyterian Chureh, with
Rev. Ancus -oColl znd Rev. Willism Vilker as jolnt pustors. In 1889, when
Rev. 7. L. L.rgin -ucceeded to the pastorate, initiul steps were taken
fhose outcore was “he opening in llay, 1893, of the preseat Pirst Precbyter=

&N Chureh.

ve-ent vhich resulted in the formation of
the Unitec .rurch nf Conads, the Uurk Ctreet, St. indrew's ené Viectoris
Avenue "hurches entsred the United Church, while the »irst “rasbytericn
Chursy followed tre continuing I -ssbyterians.

Tn tlLe subsequent mo

while the Buntist corgregations in Chathzm dete farther back,

the present .illiwm Street Buptist Church wes erectad in 1&74, the first

minister beils Rev. arclibuld Cuwnpbell.

Tn wadition to the wforementioned Crurches, there are the
following: Foly Trinity, the Regular Buptist, alliunce Tubernacle, Tirst
Tuther n. Shureh of Lotter Doy Seints, Sclvation Arny, end the First

)
Il . F " .
Church of Curist, Scientist.

Trow berinninzs lergely in the City of Chathum, the religious
and srivitual 1ife of the various denominctions of the =zntire county hus |
teer .veloped tarouch the devotad winistrations of ¢ succession of uble |

Jagtor
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the comuercicl centre of & lurgze urea of

The City of Chutham 1s
s is a result, e number of its meny indus-

Aodw -

fertile e -iculturcl territory.

at




_ucturges nanniuctnrun: nroducis of the farms such as refining
g by the T S as suzar beets; and eatsup, sauer kraut, etoc., w
Roratoes, oaoaa*as ete,. ‘

: 'In goent years there have been a great many new industries '

in Chc,hun _nd also many outside manufacturers have established
fam broscios here. Canada is a rasidly srowing country and manufactur- |
mave found it nro *itable to =stablish branches "o serve this growing :
vapaiation in the most convenient way. .

. The City is well equipned with playsrounds and pariks, namely,
Tgoumseln, ‘V;ctovia, .atirlinD an’ llelleoush, and just recently a Comcmnity
Czonire and Ye s Co As have been staolished. -dso within easy distance
of Chatham 2rc the suumer resorts of Lrie Beach, Zr ~{ecau and Coveranneat

?axk.

T KENT HISTORIGAL SOCIETY,

o« F, Fletcher,
President.

Chathan, Ontaxlo. X

Hareh 13, 1048,
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- The Township cnd Core of Chutlom form ¢ Lazgest texr!tr—ial

ir ion under one m:isipe’ gover - o~ within . e County of .. S

.inal Township of C" “hi ex . “rom tho ‘hames on the S.uth
dine which bounded !y - Lg. . - 'Z-n Grant om tho horth, tLhe

» Ainho now forming the JU. i. ag " 2 ..t :cen tho Township proper and
26e The side boundarics £ t.. “ounsiip run at substantially

angles wi i the Thanes. Te ter. "o L'ne separates it from
s and the v.ster. "o 7 - in, T Lu.een t.o .18 and the base line
0. e Gore at tho Wes. sl : oI the “ownship o i¢ .ot distance 18 about

sixteen and a half rmiles, Lu., owing to the cori.._cnee of t.570 lines
toward the Tust, the distunce betwecn tho polits nuwed at th. (istern
fown Line ' less than six miles. The Gore of Chathem (8o cui..d probably
bscanse, 2 the Goro of Cemden, it 1s less siniler in shapec Lo a "gore®
thon any ir geouetricul rigure) ccnsists ol four concessicus of

sever eiy s of a mdlo each, lying !ctween L e base lime rerurred to

&l @ . .auton County boundary, «r . stretechi. rom the GCore of Cemden
0. - ¢ to Kake Ste Cleir on t..j w338

The arca of Chatham Town: ip cnd Coro 1 84,1, & .cs, of
, 4 1880, 31,955 acres were iv uricl 23 ¥*ele =d%, .o srease from
re

0, .Gt 23 in 1871. The peculie.i.i.: nobiceabl. . & ~Jece of

al {¢ ashipa in thi. unty ape ¢ onsvally opservze.c .. € .tham, one
Q! nsa3t merked being sv. 00 Of o0 XYiviig svro @ ithin ite
: S3. The Thamas on the Sovth _'4 tho goher Lruve.sing the Core

«s0i Bast to Teat are the only bod’ 3 of wuler approaching the diznity

of iving 7. . bat the Towashiy .2 lutersectcd in different localities
“F unpresy’ . ubout six foet bolow tho general level and appearing
o g » 4 out by ecrly freshets. 7These gullics pursueo a
X ' a1l o, substantially from EBast to UWest, are dignified by
A TG reeks _nd by sor alled cunals. Rkost of these creeks dry

Ay 4L swe L goassn won tl24ir Lottoms (usually averaging forty
B e sen) Y1 lur . ".at cre; o of wild hay whioh the cultivation
b a et suttiy  olev » %0 & good grade.

.o principal o:..13 of Chaiham Township aro Arnc ('s (tho
-1, ong rl.nked by banks ¢. 7. .poctable helght), emptying & .. ut two’
milss above Chathem; Pain Co.c rizing near Louisville end druining
the Third end Pourth Conocessic.., thence to the Dover Tosn Line; Big
Craek, rising near ithe Thsmes cLove Loulsville, und coursing thence
throuzh the Third, Fourt' ni ’ifth Concessions into Dover; and little

2enr Creek, the most o . .1e of then ell, which drains ths territory
1 *en th~ o : before - . the Cydcnham, The quulity of the soil

»irn- .53 cresl: uc- . a few localities on the 1littlo EBeer) is

o b % oluss, #i1 * & generally heavy, durgble and productive

wial. < drougl.. . «¢ of surmer trunsfozm into flint, malking
¢li. 3 © 71 r.ich impos.. < uctil the visitation of after-harvest ruins.
A3 L 0 1 . o -udes fronm these orcoks, its consistency becomes more
Plic)e 2 L -tile loam, overlaid by a rich vegetable mould,’ succeeds
the . =~ - uur .. :rades pearer the oreck banks. Another peculiar
feature . he o, s-raphy of this rorion is the sloping of the surface
@raduall ..ay frc. tho beanks ¢ r. r3 or oreeks until tle slopcs neot
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m ¢ red-avanpy lend whose surfece ' © talow the level of creck bottoms.
s dow-d L sections are in tuls druined by municipal druins, come
a waleh La .¢ be extended nuny niles to secure eligible outlets.

“ais Uovaship 18 no- traversed by a perfect metwork of those
drains, ccnstructod under aut ity of the Drainege ‘ct. so that little
pow remains to bo done to sccu.e its surface fror ..Lr .. ects of floods
urd froshets. The most extensive of these works i, Lie Dover Townline
. T, running nearly & dozem miles along that L' . wy vod discharging
‘e the Sydenhame. D2 It yun parsl)ins) wish thas *t ua one weuld rind
d.ioulty In deterciiiog from & 6 or’icial .. .o wolich wa2 tLo river
«.dci the drain 2o lurge is th¢ volume of o Lor dlscherged .y the
&% e At periods of high water, i .uct, it i¢ no unusual oOcoUrTORCE
oo wall steamdoats to ascond this r:in comni :rable distences and
lvad with wood, logs, timber, stave 'aits, &o., lLizense ian.‘tics of
whiich ax= anmuclly floated do.n its surfece te its Juuccion with the
yoshan. The FPrince Albert Drain, frox tho Vesterm centre of the Town=-
. orthweard to the Sydenham, 138 ¢iso u si:vondous affair while the
M1l ¢ Draln, traversing the torritcry lyin: so.ween Pain Court and Big
Crec..s,and many others of lesser magnitude, cu:iribute to make Chatham
onoe of the best drained Townships within tbc ar+. of the lev:sl lands -

of tha Yodte :

i Comperatively little of this Townahip is imcapuble of Leing
brousht under cultivation as little ¢ it lies too low to aduit of
dra'' 3¢, Theore are, however, soic\ .:t extensive stretches of " _  .in"
der. 01 iguous to the Westorn border und MNorth of t:o gentre om «i:ich
the ¢¢ ' 1lies during the greater '-:iL of tho y .r, Lhe surfuce icval
£20. .ug o3 1t epproachos the Syden ¢ 1. This st .. ., towards its final
tnd, fur. betwoen banks scarcely kI nLer than ite > m water level which
iv oorf we in unusually wet seasc s, thus inunduting large arecs of
the _al.) referred to. Tho river Las evon beon known to ettaln a
greucor lheight of water thas tho druins emptving into it when tho tactics
of Hlollanders have been resortod to and dykes constructed, over w ch
the water from the drains hes been purmped by “rninill pover,

The Township of Chatham rooelved ice risot set®lers when iie
ori~inal influx of pioneers to the ounty o ..t took plaee in the lust
¢ "o authentic record exist: of any

ve
okt

de. 3 0" ¢ LSightecnth Centurye.
£ Josent naving beén made within the bounds of the Townuhi™ »rior to
A 11 |r. Deker (reforred to. in cur skeich of Chathum} was awarded

a gru & of sgveral hundrod acres on the River 7roant, appuronily as one
of tic cunditions of his locating r-re to su;.r. tend the ccrstruotion
ol Coverment ships at tho shipyard “hen estut 1 hed on the ~ore recent
"D 3x. Cround®, mow ci.led Tocumscl Perke 1° '. related b, “he

ese. Jont of a ploneer, however, that the laend s iuded to hud Leen

v yusiy drawvn by the brothers Jacob und Valen® - u2 1ler who su.-rendered

¢claim to Government when the latter found i 2xpedient to <=uublish
anry Tute, the Ilers did not &galn chocse

-

-+ 2RKor in that location. .
2 ) tion in this or any o.lhor Tov. 2.ip of the County where thelr numes

huyv . some under tho notice ~f tius v iter. This farm remained the property
o’ ', paker for many years and £i1.1ly pessed into the hands of Henry
= .3 whose fat.cr, Josep! Iborts, mairied Mr. Baker's eldest daughter.

Yuch uncertaint exists co.cernly: vie detes at which those
uhose early location in CL.them denoninates o..© the pioneers of the
Township, took up their residence here, neitic: the presence of memoranda
or the apparcont accuracy of tradition serving <o locate dates during that
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* susly period with siy ‘asree ol precision. It would appear, houever,

Lt aron. Lo Firat to follow Duker into this Township was George
Slekloatesls who settled on Lot Nine, River Front, probably not later
than 1794, .le was a Hessian by birth and hed been & member of (e

Hessien C itingent of troops whom the British Govermment hired tv assist

in the fo0 tless task of subduing the jmeriocans during the Revolution.

A son of L.t pioneer, David Sicklesteele, who so long kept a hotel on
ghe 1.0 moooic o0 formsing one of the prominent landmarks of the Township,
ws &n ag{; *‘jrru: /¢ ¢hlldren born here, the date of that event . .ing
aran a4 1ife. i

« iner prominent fanilios in the early history of’ this Tovnsidip

. &nd Lot 103 prominent at the prosent day, were the Arnolds, Everstts,

Plackburn: und Frenches. Represcnt:tives of the three first named of
the ¢ am lles arrived in or about 1796. Thoy were all United Expire

. 1oy 1i'Gs [ron Pennsylvania who had remained in »!ochigan some time after

sam i de-i,; but, when the surrender of that territory to the Americans
tec v ¢ a regone conclusion, they removed up t.« Tha es, impelled by a
sert meat: . preference for the PBritish Flag. 7h:re were two brothers
Aric.d wbo settled in this Township, sons of Frederiock Arnold who, with
the L. anceo of his family, ohose & location on the River Front of

i3 a1.d. The brothers who rerained in Chathem were lewis &nd Joha, the
"9 .o» of whom sattled upon Lot Thirteen and the latter on lot Fourteen,
naxt edjlc ,n%ggd:n the East, building his house near where G. B. Crover's
houSe now 8 . :

The Bveritt family then consisted of ¥William Alexander, the
"o, end his sona Adam, Willlem, David and John. Ire. Everitt loocuted
Iat 7, tegn whars louisvills ia now built,end continued there during the
Diiises of his life. Not all his descendants remained in the Township;
*L.41 there hes evor since bscn a respectable and influential ropresenta-
sion of the fanily here, saveral of its members becoming prominent in
zunieipal ~Zfuirs, as notubly Wiilliem A, RBverett, J.P., grandson of the

- original ttler of that name, now living near Louisville. The Blackbura

fanily we© “hen éven more numorous than the Everetts end consisted of
John, thec ..ner, and his sons Anthony, Joseph, Robert, James, Leonard,
Issac, Ui . «m, another son who died in youth, and one doughter. ¥With
this 2¢  1s atarf of assistants, lr. Blackburn located East !ic1lf of

Iot "' o, Ccunsession Two, now occudice bty his grandson, Abraham Dlackburn.

He . . drow severul other lots in tre econd and Third Consessions, some
of w. n wore ult ~wards settled oy his sona, nearly all of whonm raised
dagow ramilies o .o, and, with & continued increase tiroush succeeding

Loworution . tne nowe of Blackburn has become one of the most cormon
in a Towns.ip noted for the nu-crical extent of several of its funilies,.

The fountain head of the French fumily in this “ownship was
feter Prench who come here with the picneers while r0t in oarly btoyhood.

-He. subsequently took up Int ELleven, Concession Thr=es, whoro his con John

8til) resides. The oldur lre. Trench distinguisr<l nimself in the jiar

of I ., s did several of his sons *‘n the quellirz of the lackonzie

Inse roLtion. He raised a largo farily of sons and daughters, several

of % , 48 well us a host of more r ~olz descendunts, continuo to reside
10 the louality of the Third and Fouri. (cncessions from the Prince
;lbert fe.d Rastward, in consequence ¢ :Liech this part of the Towmmship

+3 loug veuen known @s French's setilc .cite

Another of the piloncers of the Ionisville section was Richard
vackmer | o came in and agttled about the sz cime as tho other families
“amed, or ut any rate prior to the dawn of tuc rresent contury, but this
Lame has Lucome extinot in the Towmship of Clutl m. The ctove numed
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{o f1ies constituted tho bull of the settlement in the Tovmship for a
JB0 L SWl) years during tlilzl tue eurront of progross wes hot dirccted
0L aris JE9 Interior. ot vus the 'iver Pront brought to a very
Sloanisling condition ol inrrovement until the first quorter of ths
seesent ccntury had sped by. It was but shortly before that poriod
that Lot “icht was ocoupiod by the Knapp family, in whose possesaion
1t stlll rocdiz, dbut ut o soiowhat earlier por{od than that John
Pesamore _oo uod Io% deven, Lholding his rosidence about whore the

- Jeseras. Ui lillicon's Lowse now groces the sceno.

: Thin Tisher family arrived in the Towmship 1€27. It conprised
the Tutlor, John, and the sons Peter, John, Robert S. and Jesee, the
two Taat nincd of whom are still numbered among the highly respected
ros! ats of tho Diver Front. They settled Lot Eleven aslong the river,
on «' leh o Trenelran numod Fortler had kept store berfore their location
thexe, Thio oald storo, tho firsté in the Township, having been situated
on toe f.to Low cceuplod Ly Lire Junes Fisher's houso. One of the sons,
Johr, sulsequonlly sotlled on 1ot Ninme, Concession Three, where one
Poe had located o a “squatter” vory early, and, it is relatsd, hed
cloared forty ccros when he was obliged to surrender his posscssion end
oprovements to Iishexr.

i “ith the exccption ol Noo and Peter French, therso weroc no
‘setilers ! .ok of the Second Coucession of this Township up to 1830

but whout the dato mentioned c bachelor marmed Scott had t:ken up a

rec donce In a mud-wulled shanty on the banks of Pein Court Creck, Lot
Jevun, Cencossion FPour. Ilo rasained at leust long enough to raise a
Gy of Lont, a portion of which, instoud of sustaining, deprived him
of U3 1'7Ve in this monner: He was following up along the creek,
surrying a bag partielly rillod with wheet, end, coming to a fence on
ioe's pluge, ¢uinrd hir back to trausfer his burden (carried partially
across his ghoulder ol breast), whon it fell across the torp rall,
satebing his torout in Lts enl.ace, and therc Lo died of oti.: julation.

rbout 1833 Petor lclsachy located on the lot rende..  vacant
by Scott's death, beconing practically the pioneer of a consid. . uble
ezpa.sa of territory therocbout; but throe yoers later, in 1836, there
Seti.cd lurther down the croek,on Lot Six, Fobort kcCubbin und his sons.
Robe *% 221 villiam, since quitc proxinent in this pari of the Townshipe
They had socs from the Township of Nelsom, in ilalton County. Turing
the »orioc’ between 1830 and tihe Robellion, the nuoclous of th= _.stel
Setllilomer e was formed by the location of John MeVicar and sev.rul sons
on 1ot Lloven, Concession Four (Norih part), Malcolm McKerrall ocn the
let . "Joi inz on tho West, and Donald and John fcKerrall in the immede-
-1az: w9l lorhood on the I'ann::n of Big Creek. }'r. lgVicar's sons wers
Dunesr, °. i1, ¥Yelcolm and Donald, the former of whomr, still residing
on JL..i; siginal location, has .‘[ong besn & gentleman of much influe-
21cs In L o Tounship, and one of tho younger Loothers 1o now a widely
a5t 2d doctor of divinity connected with the I~osbyteriexn College of
Meioroad, Prominent among others who contributed to the composition
0" “he fiotch Settlement woroe Duncan Melluughton, now residing in
Clechm. who locsted Lots Nine znd Ten, Concession Five, in conjeay
w1l 115 brother Ducald end their father's family, at the deic prior .
- To Lic Tebellion; Henry Robortson end %Willienm wallace in Concesslon
£°2 rnd Jemes Simpson in Concession Zighte Of these lossrs. Simpson
s wlerly identified with the progress of the Township, both hol
L¢3 on the Cormission of the Peace und contributing lergely. to the
4 .le status to which the Scotch Settlement has attained.

Highany facilities were nelther numerous nor elaborate in
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“Jeuoqe sarly days and this rcur's dn wcurd to tho comforts of trave

Jelis good with respaect to tiu camfort of living. The River Road had
tee: wut out alons the devious «inu a~s of the river bank but nothing
Zave the moat prisdlive kind of cart Lrucks pierced the interior of the
f00uSadp up to the pericd of the Rouellion. The settlers along Pain
tost and Bilg Creeks follcuc: tnose Lrails along the banks of the streaxs
f . Lo & polint nearly in rear of lLoulsville vi.encs they tocik a orosse
out route to the River Road and thence to Chetham, the centre of their
widevelops | couserce. iith the closer attention to internal luprove-
zents whic. followed as a comsoquence of the Rebellion, however, Chatham
received i Leriul benefit in the opening of the Prince Albert, Caledonia
and Iindec Hoads and an increase »f ssttlers in the interior. It was
well ‘ntc the present century dbefore sven a name was destowed uson this
Terni Lpy, Lhe style of ita denomination having proviously deen "the

Thiy. Jowisadp Borlb of the Themes™; Lover Zast end West havin:; then been
3a ;:;;:f, aumbsred to correspond withi tiaes nunbers of thosa along the
South it e

The date is cuiparatively reucont at whica the tide of progress
¢iliried Inland from the .ootch Seltlement whose Northern limit may be
Lised as ths Elglith Conces:iicu. Tae incorvouing poriod wase devoted to
fuliiing oto demsely the territory already circumseribed by the slight
eorion of nisncers named above. 1o the section in rear of loulaville
cid Taatvurd to the Cumdon boundary, tio Arnold, Everett and Bluckburn
Lanilies Tudaeie weuy numerous; tie Merritt,thon the others named, also
foge Luto Luserical prominenco, und grasped large tracts ln that part
OF Wle To "onlp, wnile tho Shawe and Traxlers alonz the Eiver Front
Lhave loulsviile, anc several of the second genoration of Frenches along

A Cour s Greek, aciet densaity to Lie population of the Southera half ,

P
a?‘: b;hi... e

wferring, after this lengthy allusion to “Soutliern affairs®
Lo 1) setticuent of the Gore of Chatham (wuich, prior to 1€50, belonged
to tue Township of Sombra), it should be stated that the ploncera of

tils sectlon were principuily tho desceondants of the euigrants brought

out 'y lord Selkirk and scttilad &t Buldoon im august, 1804. That venture
of ' ¢ Segitish farl will be nore lengthily referred to inm our sketoh of

0 .r, to which the Liciury of Lhe enterprise largely appertains, Suffice .
it Lo say ir this placs thol of one hundred end eleven porsons sO0 located |
dn a 1itel. colony on ‘e Duldcon Yerm, many, and eventually all, rexoved
L0 the ac, cont lands bLorderip: the Sydenhem, Chenal Loarte and other
portfons - Cl.thea Townsllp £n’l Gore, Dover and Sowbra, Amosg the most
proclosnt af tiose who locatea clong the Chenel Ecarte (a French tern

8l vir *loct channel®™, upplied to the most Easterly channel of the

Obe Coudy JLlte Lut which has been corrupted into "Sur Carty" through
Bisplonan. lation) was James Jounson, father of Licmel H. Joknson of
Selliocbu . lie hed accompanied his father o Bsldocn where tho latter

Wap emplc. «d by lord Selkirk in the cepaclity of oversecr of stock. The

[

location « wsen by ir. Joanson .28 Lot Three, Consesaion one, of the Gore,
Just et t!  Lecad of _l. sone's islund, the date of his settlc-ent there
about 18CT. rarther up the "_uy® Chtrles Fisher, & blackiiith, wes one

of the £i: to setile while .n Lot Tvwo Jexes Stewart, anciher of Selkirk's
settliors ated ebont the o'o0 time as Johnson. Others of thece

’ = : '
Pioncers took up loceLi-no ciur; the Sydenham, then called Beur Creek,
&mon: ‘ho carliest to soills in the vieinity of Wallacebur; bteing a_

Dum. ous . _ily of Lelowiaulls, scveral of whom, including John &nd James,
B2 o4 in the First Concession of Lhe Gore, whers traversed by the
FIVET, quits early in the conturye

ibove the village r.med the settlement is only about firfvy
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jeirs old, the first ©o peustrute thut loeslity in the capacity of
ge.tlers being Cecorge Little on the lorth and nilliam .Tm.;{:: o:yt.hc
fouth 8lda, the former on Lot ZFighteen; and about the same -ira along
the paxe strocm between Walloceburg and the Cuniden GCore border, Paul
pustan .cocuted on the Korth bank of the river end adjucent torritory,
lying perelally within the present lirits of Wullaceburgj Cuptain

John Melrcgor drew & grant of eight hundred and fifty aores of consid-
srution of services rendered during the %er of 1212, in which he lost
s oTm. This troot he divided emong his eloven children, only two of
@, ¢"0 son and one daughter, arc now living,.

One of the curliest locutces within the preszent linits of
fullaceburg was Lachlin MoeDousall who took up & rosidence on the
South hank Just East of vwhere the llorth branch entors the rain stream.
Thera lie oponed a store wud hotel, the [irst of each in the village. -
Crposite Linm, in the anglo formed by the mula river and brunch and
L.st ol tie lattor, his brother ,rchibald located also very early im
Lie history of the place and just ast of him wus another bLrother,
fector. 1ot Trelve, Concession Two, on which the major portion of
the village now stonds, received a settler about 1830 in the person of
Heclor Icleun vio resided on the North part of the lot, leaving the
g\. Jern portion, whore tie village has since been bu.lit, still a

anse forcste

The Western nurpin of Chutham Towmnship is not so highly de-
veloped as othor portions to wihlelh we bave alluded. Tie Pover Townline,
foring the great highway by whleh this seoction 1s reaciad, was not
oponed for years long ufter Clourishing settlements hud becn planted
becide the wuters of the <ydenhax, The first settler on the Chatham
gide of that road was Jteshen XKinney who located soon aftor the
revellion in the Ninth Cunceosion. Here he opened a tavern and enter-
teined those who were o unfertunate as to be forced by the pressuro
of eircumstances to truvel tlo Towm lLine inm thoso early days, a task
borderin: on tiie inmocsible even &t this late poriod when the putty-
1ike =0l 15 overcLurred with moisture. The tavern estublished by the
futior 1o s5til) kept Ly & sou and tacro is also locatsd a poat office
Beuringz tho upusuelly euphonicus nane of "Oungah®,

The history of :unicipal govermmont in Chatham Township dates
buck to 1832,0n the first day of which year a mootling convened in the
8.hool Louce standing on the river bank, Lot Twelve (now owned by Adam
Ar0ld), viuen the follow!ng nuned recidents were pluced upon the official
118t fo- the Township: David Bverctt and Banjenin Knapp, Assessors;
louis 7. ..ruold, Collector: Duvid Sicklesteele and John Traxler, Road=-

‘masters; John ?Iaher, Sr., und John Arnold, Town Wardens; Joseph Black=-

burn, found-keoper; Seruel Arnold, Tosn Clerk. No meeling was held in
1833 but cortaln Mapistrates -;.ppo{ntad Sazuel Arnold, Cleork, and

other ;. nilemen to tuc minor offices, For 1834 the hst. included the
nunes of umuel Arnold, Clerk; David Everett and Traxler and Pector

Ficueh, issessors; Jeacob Arnold

The above ia infor:..tion compiled Ly the
late Rev. luh Cowan about the year 1926
and extructed by tic Kent Historiocal
Society, 1947 i
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DOVLR

There are nominally two Townships of Dover in this County =
Jover ast and Dover Westy, but tihe existence of the lattsr is discern=
dble coly during perlods of low water, when Luike St. Clair has tempor=
arily v.thorasa 1te floods from the reglon wiich the exuberant imagine
aticn ol early surveyors colued into a townsuip, under the name .
mentiocieds lover, by which name wo shall hereaflter refer to Loth -
~ Townsllips, ic the most Westerly of the Northern tier of Townships in
- this Counuy, atretching fram Lake St. Clair on the West to the Chatham
“ Tovaship line on the East, end from the Core of Chatham base line on
the Neoth to the Thamos on tho South, a portion of its South-ecastern
Eﬁf{:ﬁf‘y being included witiin the corporate limits of the City of

The tecpogruphical features here displayed are similar to
those ravalling elsewnore tLroughout the level arsas of the VWest,
excapt t.at im this Towuship a greater percontage of low lying lands
is met w.cth than in nelj uboring Townships, a large area of its extent
borderin; the 8ydenhax, Cuheuul scurte, Lake St. Clair, and the Lower
Thames L2ing sulmerged o counsiderubls portion of the year. In the
interior too there occur considerable areas of semi-sweapy lands
distributced in many loculitics, but the excellent character of the
8011 in wore favored scections efriciently neutralizes these disadvan-
tuges, and sccures to Lover the reputation of possessing as ligh an
avorage of aradble land as eny of tho Townships adjoining. This average
i5 being constantly elevuted too through the medium of an extensive
&i1 extending system of drains, some of which assuxe inmense propor-
tions, as uocubly the PBeour Line Drein emptylng into the Th...cs, which
at its  cuth prescoente nugh of the appearance of & trench cul through
high bouis for a nurrow gausoe railway. Tae natural drains traversing
Dover ars Iuln Court, Little Bear and Big Creeks, euch of w..ich enters
ite tervitory frou the adjoining Township of Chathanm. ILittle Bear
talcs « tortuous course tirough an excellent agricultural sectlion
about tie centre of the Township, and discharges into the Chcnal Ecarte
after fiowins scne distance towards its mouth through low plains.

Bi, Cicuox ulso traverses a very fertile tract to within a slort

i Sance of its point of discharging inio kitchell's Bay, ard rain
Court Cocuis is flanked by soue as fair and fertile fields as ever lay
exposel to the sunshine, producing the bost .barley grown in liestern .
Cauada, Bosides excellent orops and grades of all other cereals.

The pioneers of Dover were the Dolsen family, the Canadian
Urauch < which svrang from & United Empire Loyallst who left the
valloy o the Susquebamnna in Pennsylvenia soou ufter tue cloue of the
Sirigle for American Independenco. Mr. Dolooa was then far advanced
ir [ se s, and beyond the age of active particlpation in the toils of
plonge life, but his two sons, latthew anc lszac, were in the vigor
of man.cod. The formor chose & location on the Dover side of the ‘
ziver, though the nane of Dover was not then tuought of in connection ‘
woll this Township, which, after survoy, was referred to &s the -
"2ccond Township North of the Thames," Dover West of the proseont
Buing then the “first Township.® Isaac Dolsen, the other brother,

F
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located on the RNulelph slde of the rivor, in conneotion with which
fownship he will be at grector length referred to.

The location selected Ly Mutthow Lolsen was Lot Nineteen where
4s settled probably us eurly as 1792, for it is related that when his
finily, including his two sons, John und Iseas M., arrived in 1794
he had a.iready made considerable improvements upon the lot. Next iot
Bast of olsen and of the present Bear Line Road, was eurly occupied
by Thor.s Clark, who removed thence to the oreck banks above Chatham,
very toon after his first arrival on the Theai.es and there Lc estab-
li-ted Lhe ploneer mill of the County, &8 related in our sikctch of
flathes. On tho noxt lot East, onec uLilmore located also very early,
LUt the removal of Loth of those ploneors left the river front between
e Beur Line aud Cuathwm without a setuler for nany years thereafter.

The centre of altruclion alonz tue river {iroant for & long

povioc was the Dolsen farm (now owned by Williew Cray, 18€2), where
L © proprietor's enterprise hud estallished several manufacturers of
conglderable mopnitude, which he countinued to operate until the
ssvond decucs of this century was pust, One of his first ventures
bhere wis o pe.oral trading wmart, viich he supplied with goods brought
from Dullfulo und Detroit in & vessel of his own construction, said to
have boin Lhe first vessel bulilt on the Thames, it having Leen launched

Uiin u fow yeara of Lis gsettleuent there. Later, he opened a dis-
Blodery cud grisc mill, tue Jormer fitted with four "worma™, and the
Susbin ol ostablishuenus euploying elght horses to furnish motive
PorLr tor grinding. TLe lusonse quautities of vhiskey thus manufaotur-
el wer: disposed of cideflly to tho lorth-iest Company, but as Mr.
Enlien's possessious atl tiat point included a tavern ani tle red
rilbon pledge had not yet bocome popular awuong the settlers, it is
it reasonuable to suppose that & goodly share of the “ardent"™ went
%o supply the locul demand. A tannery, blacksuith shop, and cooper=
&0, in which quito a luirge starfl of men were euployed added to the
vulume of trade and height ol the dignity centering at this place;
Jut with the incroase of scl.lement throughout the country, the
collapos of the North~i.est Coupaay, the division of trade in general
awong oller marts wiiclh an ilncruased population called into existence,
and ths wny other indefinable reuascns which attended tihe decline of
®01)l trade centres in tLo ecrly days, the spirit of coumerce desert-
«d this poiut, and the "Lux of industry", which here established its

criginal dwsliling place in Canada, left for parts uniknown.

leither was the settlement of the river below the Lolsen
contre cliker rapid or dense for meuy years afler the pioneer locations
were . .. Yeatthew Dolsen's two sons grew to manhood here, when John
(famili=riy koown us "Squire Joan") rotained his residence on the old
homest: ¢ and Isevc ¥. toox up & home on the lot adjoining cn tie
West, tlclr father Laeving dravn @ four hundred acre gruut herc orig-
inally, 26111 fertuer 4own surean the settlement was formed curing
the present century Ly Jola imilton, tlhe Poquettes, and Bubys. The
banks ¢ pain Courc Creck, below the village of that naue, were rirst
settleu Ly J. Bte. Losoa, wio was followedby Gabriel Primesu, in
ordir nired. All these partics took possession of the lend as
".qiattorsT, but at their roquest Surveyor-Goneral Rankin was sent
Uun 10 survey & truct Lercavout (to wiilch i1s now accorded granted

patonts lor their holdiiys.)
The interior of tio Towuship wus not settled until about the
tix: o the Rebellion and tne yeurs succeeding that evont. The van-
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. guard of setllersnt along the Fest centre was formed by Thomes Smith,
40 40cilod on tlie Chetlom Town Line in the Tenth Concessior. e was
fol.owed dcmewhat later by the MoPhersons, Rankins and Ashers in the
vicinit; of Ealdoon Street end Little Bear 1ine, whileo in cornection
with the cettlement of the re;ion intervening between their locations
Wd the orth end of the Township the names of Bishop, Owen and Hyatt

peor fuenily eppear,

~ursuing the course of our narrative llorthwest necccsitates
mome ol dates Lo the year 1E04 when the Selkirk Irmigrents arrived at
tie Dlicon Ferm lying within the angle forwead by the Core of Chathem
Duse Liue on the North, the Chenal Ecarte on thie West, and the Sydenhen
0L tLe Coutlicast. Those ploneers came to the llow WQrid under the A
Poironage of the Earl of Selkirk, at that time 2 nobleman of consider-
8013 wealth, vast enterprise and greut philenthropic ettributea, the
letter of which he dexomstrated by his endeuavors t6 better the condition
ef nuay of his countrymen by transplenting them froxm the sterile High=-
l..63 of Scotland to the fertile pleins of Canada and the North-West.
240 tirst shipload of his ifrmmigrants left Creenook in the ship Oughton,
liiiing et Montreal in July, 1€0L. They were conveyed thence to Lachine
:n French certe, themce up the St. lawrence to Xingston in batteaux,
ishso to Niagara by salling vessel, thence eacross country cn foot and
44 veldoles to Fort Irie, and from that point to Amfierstburg erd up the
betroit River and Cheual Zeerte to their lending place, which they
reached during tioe month of August.

’ To this place the neme of Bizldcon had already been given, in
honor of « parish in the Perl's Iighland estate. The nunmber of arrivals
6t that viwe and place was one hundred and eloven, bub another larce
party wic came across in the seme ship coutinued their course to the

ol Lhe Red QNiver of tho l'orth where they founded the Selkirk
cettlcrent which now forus 8o important e factor in tke campssition of
Menitobee Durl Selkirk had reccived from Government a grent of ell the
dend lyins Lelvocn the Chathem Tovn 1ine and Little Bear line of the
Prescat, ond extonding fromw the Northcrn limit of the Township to within
onc comceocion  of the Tuames; wrong other conditions of the grant being
Cns Icy colonize'ion of the torritory by & certain nuxber of settlers,
wiili the cbject and expectation of accomplishing this purrose and fule
Lilling thcge conditions, be brought out a great quentity of very cholce
furm stock, including horses, ocattle, sheep and swine, the sheep so
brought bcing sald tc have been the first introduced into the County of

Xent,

The coleny of Highlanders viio first arrived inecluded numerous
fa lles bearing the ncmes of McPhorcon, MeCallw:, MeDonald, eDougall,
~olocn and Stewart, but the McCallums and McPherspns of this party have
£irce become extinet, waille the otlcr familes huve vastly increased in
BUusr8, The entire comnnity rencezvoused on the Baldoon Furm of
&bout 1,000 acres, for some time druving thelr means of suprort from a
comzon fund provided by the I=rl when thelr individual efforts were not
Suceesaful in gleaning & sufficiency from the soil. The triangle
referred to was considerably inproved by Lord Selkirk at great personal
€Xpense, erecting suiteble buildings, constructing drains, etc., but the
€atire gront subsequently passed out of his honds, through his beconing

- Tlnenoielly involved and being unable to carry out his grand schere in
detall., wWhile the partial failure of his large enterprise is to te
Tegretted, the noble Earl is deservinz of high encomiums for the liberal
and cour: cous spirit displayed in bringing to our shores so large end




| einemtly useful & class of citizens as has been developed from the
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eiiudod to, only five ol whom mow live to relate the trials, - -
yations and vicissitulos attendant upon their early experiences {
in the vioinity of the (ydconhom end Chenal Ecarte. Lord Selkirk paid
gaveral visits to his colony after first planting it here, He used
on such occacions to come in by way of the settlements on the Thanes,
wicnce Les vould traverse the woods and plains to Buldoon, employing as
& wody~- uard a brawny lighlander, a portion of whose duty it was to
guzry t.c Barl across the orecks and swails upon his back,

Within a few yoors of their settlement at Baldoon, objections
to the loculity besan to precent themselves in the increasins number
of iphabltants without a corresponding inoresse in the faoilitics of !
ining a livelihood on tlat ploce of territory, though it has moanwhile
ta divided up between tho settlers in small farms, while some of them |
reaovec to tho South bank of the river, or to the bank of tho neighbore |
ir3 Chenal Ecarte, and a generul disinﬁegration of the community
suocoededs Some of the sottlors located in what is now the Gore of
Chathon, while others penetrutad beyond into the Township of Sombra,
80%t1ling along the Noris Lrunch of the Sydenham and the River St.Clair,
others (gcain removing to adjacent localities in Dover. There wero
£cne who remained on the original farm, however, but these were ulti-
rately driven off by the rise in the water level of the neighboring
dowwori of streans and channels. This rise commenced about 1£25, and
10 resict threetencd inundation, dykes and levees of sufficient height
vera eonatructed where the variations of surface rendered them necossarys
Despite their efforts, the water level continued its upward tendency
and atories are told of harvest fleclds on which the shocks of ripened
grain otood in luxuriant beauiy, being flooded to the depth of soveral
feet by & broak In the levees. Dy 1830, the water had reachod its
utmoat heipht, aud in that your, it is relaeted, the former wheat fields
wore pnovigated by roderately doep draught vessels, During that period

‘also, s is statod by some gentlemen still living in this region,

eancos wexre uced us vohieles to carry children to school across what
aad formerly been crable lend, and the practice of thus riding on the
tide tc a sout of leurning and mooring their oraft to the school house

door 12 esuld to have been not infrequent.

This state of affuirs of course necessitated a retreat of
the set.lers from the inundated localities and now the once fair scene
of prospcorous agriculiure is o desolato waste, over which the floods

Byeop durlng several monthe of the year.

After the release by lLord Selkirk cf his olaim to the
tract gronted him, it wes settled by femilles coming prineipally fronm

ths Noxi: of end without any concerted plan of imnigration, amorz
Whon were aqmgrg% tlose rererreg to as locating the Baldoon Street and
Bear Liro, A8 snotlcr prominent pionser of the Tovmship should be
Bencionou Robert Ilitcuell, one of the earliest settlers, and the most
influenitial resiccut in the locality of kitchell's Bay, so called in

his honc:,
The history of Municipal affairs in this Township has not

been whelly nreserved on record, but from the book of earliest minutes
extunt, ;tygﬁpears thet in 18&8’the 1ist of Township Officers contained

the follouing nemeos:

Dobert Mitochell, Distriot Councillorj Thomas W. S:mith,
Clez; v .1llam A. Crowe, ASsessor; Thomas Crowe, Sre, Collector; John
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Pa %011, Ieesc D. Dolsen and John lawless, Tovn WardenS, On the intro-
fuotion of the Municipal Act in 1850, Robert Litchell, St. Luke

Epery, Adolphus Reaume, Andre Poltier and Alexis Urquhart were

eleoted the first Council, end the followinz appointments to MNunici-

pal Offices were made: T. W, Smith, Clerk; williem Cordon, Collector;

- Wm. A. John and Robert Crowe,' Assossors; and Thomas Crowe, Treasurer,
' The 11c% of Townshlp Officers for the precent year stands thus, viz;

John “right, Reeve; Cornmelius Purser, Deputy-Reeve; Philip Blair,

Honr! Thibodeau and Thomas Bordeau, Councillors; J. W. Welsh (Dover

fouth P.0.), Clerk; Jos. Bechard, Troasurer.

»

Thero are but few post villeres in Dover and none of
sonsiderable importrnce. The list includes Paldoon, about the centre;
¢iuficld, on the Chatham Towmn Line; Mitchell's Bay, near the shore
ol thut inlet; and Puin Court, on the banks of the oreek of that
L9, about seven milesz from Chathem. The villace is almost cxclusive-
17 French and contdins o very fine Catholie Church and Presbytery,
fiore, hotel, steam sow nill, eand a population of about 100. Its
reculier neme (signifying "chort breuad") was bostowed under the
following eciroumstances: Before the ercction of a Catholioc Church
tcarer than Scndwich, the settlers elong this creek were annually
visited by & Priest Trom thet point on a tour of inspection and
tollection of contributions to the Church. The settlers were then
Vory poor and often lacked the essontials of comfortable diet. One
ol them, with whom the Priest used to stop over night on such visits
choe exprossed his wonder at the ccincidence of these visits alvays
fullir ; upon & dete when he was without bread in the house., The
eirounstances,; thus brought to the notice of tha reverend gentleman,
resulted in hin bestowing the above nome upon the settlemont, &s a .

~ remin’ior to the residents of their rorma:aiovorty and to iis successors
of the rough experiences attending clerl duties among the French
gettlers of Dover in the early days or its history. ;

he above is information compiled by the
lata ésv. iugh Cowen about the year 1926 and
extracted by the Eent Historical Soclety 1947«
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HARWICH

The Townchip of Harwich occupies a place of geographical advane
te=s in the centre of the Southorn tier of Xent County Townships, ex-
- iing Trom the "Luzes on the North to Lake Erie on the South, A

¥idon of 1%s Nortuwesterly cormer has been inoluded within the towm
imits or Chathem, It 1s bordered on the Bust by Howard and on the
West by Rilelgh. Of en averaogoe depth of sixteen and width of ten
miles, this Township enbraces about one hundred and sixty square miles
of territory, or ninety-six thousand acres. Its surface partakes of
the fams uniforuly level nature which distinguishes this entire County,
ti° only relleving feature being the "Ridge"™ which traverses the Tovm=
£iip from Buckhorn in the lortlhieasterly direction to the lloward Town
Line. 7his natural elevation is quite narrow in extent along the VWest-
erly helf of its course through Herwich but Bast of Blenheim it broad-
ens somewhat and expands in places into the form of a plateau of con-:
sidoradble width.

The principal strean by which Harwich is traversed is McCregor't
Creek, which, crossing the Fovard Townline about 8ix wiles from the
Thames, rlows in u generally Vesterly direction to within a few miles
of Chatl.up,when 1t divergos tovard the lorthwest and discharges into
the Thetes within the tovm lirits. Other streems of less considerable
volune traverse different sections of the Township but MeCrecorts is the
only weil cdofined water-course crossing its entire width. The current
of ell tiic streems not only in this Township but throughout the County
is exceciingly sluggish, end, except during freshets, almost impercep-
tible, owizg to the intonse level muture of the surface. This latter
featrre, of oourse, preveuts asny great facility of drainsge but not to
s:hh an cxtent as % preclude the highest agricultural excellence being
attiined.

The soll of Narwich is falrly representative of hard, stubbornm, .
teniclous but exceedingly productive and durable clay for which the - .
County of Xent is noted. Its fertility i1s evinced by the enormous cropa
of oereals, hay and roots uliich here roward the labor of the husbandman
&ud the ef'fccts of its high culture reflected in tlhe comfortable and
wellto~do anpearance which characterizes the farmsteads throughout the
Tovmshin. In some localities, however, the campact character of the
80il rel xes into a decided loam und even into an approach to sandiness
85 is tlo case along rortions of the Thames River Front and at places
along the Ridge. Ti.coe displays of lighter soll do not impair the

€8l .ral Certility of tis Township in the least, however, the prominent
fertire of those loc.lities being of greater adaptétion to fruit and
oot erc o gnd a greater fucility of culture.

The history of pioneer effort in Harwich dated back to 1792
when Theros Clark located Lot Two on the River Front, on what is now
knovn es the leGregor farm, at Chathem, but our remarks on this subject
in connection with the skotch of Chatham render further reference
Unnecessozy, TFarther East, elong the river bank, the ploneer settlements
Wwerc made in the year 1796, if the stutaments zade by descendants of the
original settlers are accurate as to dates. The pioneers of that section
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were the Truxlers, a family consisting of father (Peter) and several
sons = rsoler, llicieel and John =~ who located clout three miles above
Chathw; John Shepley, who took up & farm & short distance down stream
fror thony Adenm Everctt, above the Traxlers; and one or two represent-
atives of the Arnold fanily whose descendants are still 30 nwaerous
along Lie river fronts of [iarwieh, Howard and Chathum. These parties
wero all United Empire Loyulists, end, though arriving here at so late
& wule ¢ltor the Revolutionary war, many of them bhad resided in British
Torritory during the interval end now claimed their "United Empire .

ri nts”, in the shape of land grants waich had boen here surveyed for
Litie  zn 1790 Nuch Holmes settled Lot Twenty-threo, River Front, near
leve Bridges He was of Irish birth but coming to America in childhood,
e yenclicd a tino in Montreal, then took a course in Dartmouth (How
Lenpshire) Crllegge. Ile afterwvards removed West and taught school in
Dotrodit, wiaere he navried, reunoving thence to the location named in

Lie your rentioned. liere his son Abraham, still living in Chathanm,

vas vorw in 1797, this being the first birth in Harwich so far as we
Quve be:l uble to learn. The elder Holmes, being liberally educated,
hoi1 his corvices in a olerical capacity widely sought by his less-
fuvorvad fellows for whom he ccted as notary in the preperation of all
le: 2l writings and was in fuct for many years the scribe for the entire
corssunity of the river front. He subsequently removed to Sandwich
where he taught school in the old stone school house which then con-
stituted a prominent landmarik of the frontier, his family remaining on
the farm mcanwhile and retaining its ownership even to the present day.

- In 1795 the Tovnship of Harwich was partially surveyed by
Abraham Irodell whose instructions included an order to lay ocut a
"rond of commnicuticn belweon the Chatham Settlement and Rond E=u or
tile luke and vo lay cut two hundred acre lots on either side thereof
for settlcuent by United Zapire Loyalists". This was accordingly done,
s some purties clainm, es late as 1797, but the road was not established
to the lake $ill 1844 though that portion between Chatham and where
I lenhels now stands had been long previously cul out and named the
*1 511 Ro2d" or "Comrunication Roud". By the peouliarities of the
curvey, .‘arwich has been favured with four "first"™ concessions, one
£t whe miver Thamea (R.7.), one at lake Erie (L.E.), one East and VWest
ol Coaruniecation Noad (E.C.R. and W.C.R.), the concessicins numbering
back fIcm each of tLese fronts.
Although reserved for settlement by United Empire Loyalisis,
the land along the highway mentioned was not so taken excopt a few lots
in the vicinity of Blenheim which, although drawn from Covernmeni by
renveacntutives of that slass, were not settled by them but subsequently
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tronsferred to other pertics. In the nearer vicinity of Chatham, howevely

seitlen»nts were pade elong the Cormunication Road at an early period of
the prooent conturye. As eurly as 18604 Phillip Toll bud located Lot Six,
Qoneession Six, River Thames Survey, haviag removed thither from the
Raleigh Diver Front, of which locclity he was a pioneer,but he subse-

guontly renoved farther South in jiarwich and became one of the first
rcsidents in the vieinity of the Ridge.

River T:...es Curvey, but did not teke up his residence there till four
years lutzr, he having meantire lived in the neighborhood of louisville,
Chatham Tovnsiip. Nearer Chatham, on the site of the present cemetery
but on tae opposite side of the croek traversing that lot, Solomon
Leszrore wnd Peter Smith had elso located at that early date. The re-
moval ol soro of these settlers and the acoidental death of two others
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same year Patrick McCarvin drew lot Five, Concession Four, -
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left t.is locality almost tenantless about 1811, in which condition
it re.cined & considerable time. The accidents referred to were the
drowvnlng of MeGarvin in the Thumes above Louisville in 1811, and
YMes more's death by a falling tree the spring following, when only
Toll was left upon the creek and his removal sometime after left a
desorted locality hereabouts.

The lot formerly occupied and abandoned by Toll was taken up
by Daxiol Fleld in 1816, ho beconing thereby the pioneer of the second
settlcront in this'vicinity, beins rfollowed sometime later by liichazel
VeGarvin, son of the original locatee of lot Five, Concession Four, who
had now attained an age warranting his assumption of backwoods labor
ard resjonsibilities. The settlcuent of this portion of the Township
w48 by no means rapid for some years thereafter. Among the next to
lugate along the creek (licCregor's) was John Searnes who located his
vife's United Impire rights about 1820, and was followed in 1822 by
Nelil McQuarrie.

The sparseness of the population and their pecuniary inability
to provide the facilities for education, public worship, social enjoy-
ment, eto., - not to mention many of the more necessary elements of
life in the shape of food, ruiment end household furnishings - rendered
the eurly existence of Harwich pioncers the reverse of luxurious,
while in material status subsided several degrees below ordinary com=-
fort; but the will-povwer end courugze which had guided them to the
solzetion of this region as thelr future homes, sustained them in
urccompleining patience during the reign of want and poverty, tiding
ti.2 eventually in sarfety through those narrow straits and securing
to them a degree of comfort and independence highly complimentary to
ti:lr energy and application. Longfollow has described the Furitan
Pilerims as having "short allowance of vietual, and plenty of nothing
“but gospel,™ which degreo ol plenteousness was denied to Harwieh
. pPloneers; but undor the order of things long since insugurated, through
tiie medium of their muscles they and their descendants now enjoy plenty
ol either commodlity. 3 :

The above 13 information compiled
by the late Rev. Hugh Cowan about the year
1925 end extracted by the Kent liistorical
Society 1947. -
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HOVARD |

The Townshlp of Howvard occupies a position between Orford on
the Easl and Harwleh omn the Vest, the River Thames on the North and
lalc Brie on tlhe South. It contains an area of about one hundred and
five 8 ere miles and ranks second to no Township in the County in
polnt of zgricultural excellence. It 1s quite densely settled by a
pec.iiariy thrifty and enterprising class of farmers whose labor has
vendered Iloward one of the most attractive Townships in appearance to
be found cn the map of Vestern Ontario. Especially has the feature of
attractivciness, both natural and artificial, been highly developed
in the viecinity of Talbot Street and Lake Shore, where a succession of
handsom= and even elegant farmsteads form a picture of rural beauty
rarely surpassed in any of the other agricultural sections of Canada.

The topographlcal characteristics of Howard are somewhat more
veried tlian those of the Townships farther West. The Township is
truversed by a gravelly ridge running at a distance of about five
milcs fom the shore of Lake Zrie, toward which sheet of water the
suriace gently slopes on the South while to the North of the elevation
alluded to e gradual decline toward the Northwest is observable. The
"Ridge™ forms the only "water shed™ in the Township, numerous small
8trecms Ilowing thence into the lake on the one hand and toward the
Thewcs on the othere A network of rivulets combine to form the volume
of  cGregor's Crecek in this Township and to the North of that system
several others of local importance. Fleld, McGorgan and Arnold'’s
Crecks offord convenient drainage. - The soil of Howard is of a generally

1lig.Ger und more porous consistency than is found in the West riding of

the County, the vicinity of the "Ridge" being especially devoid of the
stulborn clay features which characterize other Townships:of Kent.
Thezo & rravelly loam of great fertility and pliability predominates
@nd, theugh in other parts of the Township a somewhat heavier grade

0L 50il ias found, it in no locality assumes a nature too compact to
£5151d .ts classification a&s a rich loam with alternate inclinations to
clay, £und and gravel. By nature Howard hes been more favored than :
‘any ¢f her adjacent sister Townships in being provided with a soil
quite &s productive as 1s elsewhere found while being more convenient
o tillage and drained by natural water courses,

The Township of Howard remained uninhabited, representatives
of tle Anglo-Saxon rare, until the " American Revolution had been

brought to a succesdful issue and the contemplated early cession of the

territory of lMichigan had suggested to the numerous adherents of the
Eritish Crown who had removed thither after the close of hostilities,
the sentimental desirability of transferring their residence once again
to Eritish territory. Accordingly, when the surrender of British
tutlority in Michigan became a foregone conclusion, a considerable
¢Xouus of residents of Detroit and vicinity to the Western Counties

¢f Cimel’l took place. - Among the devotees of British institutions who
thel 11:d up the Thames, sseking a new home under the flag that many
of them -zd fought for during the then recent struggle, were the
Dioneers of Howard. ,

‘mong those was Isaac French, who located Lot Three on the



on the River I'ront probably as early as 1794 but removed thence about
two yoars Jlater after disposing of his interest therein to Frederick
Aruold who was & pative of Berlin whence he emigrated to Pennsylvania.
Zanousing the Royallst cause, he bore arms against the Continentals
during the Revolution and wus obliged to quit the country or take the
path of alleglance after the termination of thut struggle. Coming West
to Datrolt, he resided there a short period then removed to Petite Cote
bolow Sandwich, remaining a couple of years and removing thence to the
Thanes about 1796 as above outlined. His sons, four in number, were
reopectively named Louis, John, Christopher and Frederick, the first
1w named of whom located on the river front in Chatham Towvnship, the
yourger ones remaining in Howard where their posterity to a large
nwaber still reside.

Previous to the location of the Arnolds, Lots One and Two
adjoining the Harwich Town Linoe had been taken up by J. G. Ribley and
1ot Four Ly one Mlller who was subsequently drowned while fishing in
lake SU, Clair, Lot Tive was settled by William Howard about the same

criod and Iot Six next adjoining on the East was patented to Willlam
FeCull vho was soon after succceded in its possesiion by Johm Carpenter,
¢nd beyond hlnm to the East were John Cordon on lot Eight, Nicholas and
Llitua Corawall. on Lot Nine and Jacob Quant, who had borme the chain for -
Patizick Lcliff in the survey of this traot along the Thames, on Lot
Trelve. One McDonald settled on Lot Thirteen at quite an early date
tiough not as early as the others named who were United Eapire Loyalists,
aad beyoad the location occupled by him the settlement of the Howard -
River ¥Front did not extend for several years. The canmunity did not
expand in any direction with great rapidity for a considerable time
aiter 1ts first settlement though new accessions to its population
arrived rrom time to time, the progress of the entire County during -
the first two decades of its sottlement being of a very moderate order.
Quite eurly in the present century, however, Joseph Johnson settled on
Iot One, and, with the location of others, the population of this
locality became gradually guite dense. ;

Soon after his advent upon this scene the elder Arnold erected
2 spnll saw mill on Lot Throe on the banks of a small creek, since
called Arnold's Creek. To these facilities were soonadded gristi
arparavus, both of which branches of industry were extensively utilized
by settlers from long distanccs for many years.

There was no rapid development cbservable in tiais Townshlp
pricr to the Ver of 1812 except such as took place within the limits of
the locality outlined in the foregoing paregraphs. The entire Southern
rer. of the Township was still an unbroken forest without a white
resident save John Crawford and famlily who took up a residence on the
Lake ghore adjoining the Harwich Town Line in 1809 and there continued
to reside o.id the solitude of the mighty forest and the murmurs of the
lake urtil thelr isolation wus broken in upon by the influx of other :
gsettlers, Eoonbefore the outbreak of the Anglo-American Var of 1812,
he removed to Lot Eighty-eight, Howard lake Shore, where the latter
built the first mill South of the Thames in Kent County. The Hackneys
wWerc I . lishmen, remained in single blessedness during the greater
portion of their natural lives and exhibited other peculiarities which
distingvished them from the "common herd" and gained a considerable
degree of prominence along the shore. It is related of "Ned", as one
of ihe Lrothers was invariably called, that chancing to visit a house
in the neiglivorhood where an infant girl was asleep in a oradle and
Vlic mother cxpressing a decire for a mew splint broom, he offered to

=
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*swap™ such a broom for the child when it should have grown to woman=
hood. The offer belng Jokingly accepted, as is stated, "Ned™ performed
his pari of the contract and in after years successfully solioited

the fulfilment of the other part. .r

| In 1€17 the first general influx of settlement along Talbot
2treet occurred in furtherance of the govermmental plans which Colonel
Telbot as general land agent was sent out to superintend. Here, as
clsevhers along the shore of Lake Erie, free grants were made to
seltvler: on condltion of the rot very onerous "settlement duties"”
presceribed at the time, which have been repeatedly described in this
work. The previous fall of 1816, however, had marked the arrival of
ploneers upon the site of Lorpeth in the persons of three Nova Scotians,
the brothers Joseph and Robert Woods, and the former's son James,who
cut the first tree on the site of that village, has ever since resided
in the vicinity and is now spending his deolining years at Troy. The
trio named returned Tast with the approach of winter and the following
spring returned to their Vesterm location and formed the vanguard of

& nunerous colony who in 1817 and the years immediately following
setlled along Talbot Street in this Township. -

Early in the year 1817 the Cull family moved into the neighbor-
hood of which Morpeth now forms the centre, coming from the River Front,
Tlere were six in number, named respectiieiy John, William, Samuel .
Jecse, James and Thomas. Jamnes Cull settled on Lot Ninety-~two Nor%h {
of Talbot Street; his brother Samuel opened a blacksmith shop in the i
vielnity; Lots lNine-one and Ninety-two South were taken up by Woods
brothers mentioned; and the arrival of others in the same locality
speedll; transformed the recent forest into a scene of pioneer develop-
nent, TLoso whose location here came next in order were John Desmond,.
ajtorwards one of the most prominent men in the Township, and Nicholes
Cornwall Trom the River Front who built a mill on his new location.

1.¢ settlement along this street became quite dense withinm a .
year afier the arrival of those named, the locatees on the South side,
commencing at the Orford Town Line in addition to those already
mentioned, being Freeman Guen, William Browa, David Palmer, M ’
Walter Galbraith, MeCill, John Armstrong, Jos. Lyons, John sShippy, -
Peler Slover, James Clarle, James Leonard, Jucob Zmith, James Brown,
Villiap Fisher, Iseac Bell, Thomas Lambert and Samuel Crawford. On
tiis [‘orth side of the stireet at the same time were located one Tipp,

o the “ast and thence toward the Vest (besides those before mentioned)
the 1list included Semuel Brundage, - Stewart, Isaac Swartz, Edward -
“eavleti, Ceorge Howitt, Alexander Goff, William Desmond, John Bell,
Zurus Hubbell, Lovell Harrison, Israel Smith, Thomas Brown, Joseph
Moliurdson, Joseph Oakley, Joscph ‘theatley, lMark Chase, Benjamin Bell
end Adaws Richards. The only survivors of those named above who then
invaded the wilderness armed with the implements of husbandry and the
courage anl patience so characteristic of the pioneer, are John Desmond
aud Janecs Yoods, both of whom have considerably exceeded the age
prescribed by the Psalmist. ¢

The first store in Yorpeth was opened by Edward Lee who had
cctablished a similar institution on the Howard and Harwich Tovmn Line
abtout 1822 and removed to Liorpeth about 1826, It was about the latter
iute that the name now borne by the village was conferred upon it by
choice of the people, that of "Jamesville™ having been diligently urged
Ly James Cull who owned the lot forming the North West part of the
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7illege. In 1828, or soon thefeafter, George Duck came to the ‘
Townsh’p, Settling on Talbot Strect about midway between Morpeth end
the Herwich border, where he opencd a store and continued its manage-
pment Zor a long period. 1r. Duck was one of the most active and
influential public men of the Township up to a comparatively recent
dute, corving the peopls repeatedly in a representative capacity in
Township, Digtriet and County Councils, and contiibuting in numerous
ways to the material interests of the community.

The loecality of the "Ridge" in this Township was included in
tha traet under the managemont of Colonel Talbot but continued in its
primeval state until 1823. The first stage of its development was
marked by the location of settlers upon the site of the present Town

" of Rid_etown. The distinction of cutting the first brush heap here in

1882 is acccorded to Edmund Palmer, who still resides in town, a son of

. David Palmer mentioncd among the early residents of Talbot Street. The

occaslion of that incident was a trip to this place by the gentleman
rered in company with Alexander Marsh, their object being to clear a
epuce and erect a log habitation for the reception of the family of
Villien Marsh, father of Alexander, who had drawn Lot Nine, Concesaion
Teu, uron which he took his residence early in 1824, becoming the
pionecr of the Ridge Road, The same year Edmund Mitton located Lot
Ten, Conczssion Nine, and built a house opposite whore the towvn hall now
gtonds, Soveral other families settled here about the same time,
ineluding John Wilson, John Scane, James Watson, Richard Tyhurst and
Ebenezer Colby. Among others whose connection with the early settle-
rent and subsequent developments of the Ridge rendered them conspicuous
were Thomas French, Ceorge, John and Henry Reeder, Levi Cornwall

Jemes tcaife, John Palmer, David McKinley, Thomas Dickson, Samnoi
Kitchen, John Bryhurst and Richard Rushton, the last named of whom
scttled &t the Harwich border and gave to that point the name of
Rushton's Corners, which it still bears. /

The development of this section was not particularly rapid
for sows years though the gradual cxpansion of the clearings and
aprecronce of well cultivated farms proclaimed that industry and
energy were the order’' of the period ecmong the pioneers. The settlement
progres-ed es is usual with rural localities. With the production of
grain waich followed the clearing of the forest came the establishment
of numercus distilleries whose product was liberally partaken of by
those vlose inclinations took that bent., It is related that, for want
of rorc convenient wvessels in which to carry this fluid, metallic bells.
wero uscd, being carried by the "clapper™ - these articles having been
quitie v.oentifully menufactured by an Orford blacksmith who used to
seil tlhica to the local centres for sale by such of the neighbors as
ch need to be thither bound; hence the wutilization of them for the
vurpot: named.

The styles of wearing apparel, both in texture and design,
were then of a very primitive order, the fabries being spun at the
domcstilc wheels, woven in the home looms, and dyed in lye to impart a
"fact” color of butternut brown for Sunday wear. Churches and schools
were Tew and far between until the settlement advanced in ags consider-
ablr; but, previous to thelr establishment, itinerant preachers ex-
rounded holy writ in different houses throughout the Township. A log
cohool house, the first South of the Thames Settlement, was built on
Lovell Harrison's farm, Talbot Street, where one Eastman first pre-

© slded as pedagogue, being followed in that capacity by a gentleman

nomed Boyd. The first school house on the site of Ridgetown was
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g ~ ersctod sbout 1830 by Williem Nash on James Watson's farm, being first
- tzusht by one Gowdy; and to John loody is escribed the credit of :
having built the first mill in this flourishing town,

e The above is information compiled
by the late Rev. liugh Cowan about the year
1926 and extracted by the Kent Historical
Society 1947 3
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CRFORD

This 1s the most Easterly Tevnship of Kent County lying South
o the Themese Fronm that river it oxtonds a neun édistance of about
ticive 1iloa to Luke Erie, its respectivs Zesternm and Western boundaries
belog Lomed Uy the Townskhips of dl;Lorouhu in E¥lgin County, &nd !loward.
Pelng wiout scven mlles in width, Orford contains a superficial arca
tordering upon 54,000 acres, about 4,000 acres of which bordering the
Thenes uidway batween its Zustern arnd Vestern limits are reserved for
tio recidence of the Horavian Indlans, of whou more will De said &auone
ciusive of this Indian Resorve, 48,973 acres of the Township are
occupicd by actual residents, leu?lhﬁ only nipe Lundred and one &cred
ol non-rgaident land. Tho assossed valuetion of this area, 1noludin5
the percomal property thercon, is {1,018,511.

Orford prosents more varied topograpinical features than eny
othor Township in the County. Entoring its Eastern border along Talbot
Jtreel, one mocts & succession of quite sharply defined hills which
ertend Vestiurd sabout to Cleurville wvhere tiie surface sudbsides into a
guntlio roll wilech it yotaina thence to its Woestern border. Rexote
f3oa the ;ke chore, a ridge of silght elevation traverses the Tounship
in satbhoer irregular order fron Zast to West and along the crest of that
outlips the "kiddle Road™ has been surveyed, with & range cf lots
extonding on olther slde out of uniformity with the later surveys.
Korth of this ridge the surfuce is a gouerally level expansc with
sligit xXmolls in some localitles, succecded by correapondin; dopressions
Lbelow Lhe gcncral daevel but neitlier so strongly marked as to merit the
gpplicuiion of the Sernm “unduluting®s Tho soil of Orford is also
varied in churactor and cona*stcncy, that lying to the South of Talbot
Stroet bolug considercd the most produsiive. It 1s ol clay composition,.
inclipning to loan at sona poinis; while Hortl of that thorouzhfare a
Lo loney to scnd is iu somo piuces observables Fartier North tiwe
g.oon {features which wark the lLake Shope relax iato a decided lournl
wh;u. is in tarn succecdsd by a light sandy scoil eround Highprate and
the lorthern centre of tie Township, tae vicinity of the Thames partak-
*ng 3¢ nuch tio sane foutures.

A large arce in the Northorn part of Orford was carly grented
by Covermnent to the Moravian Indiuns together with a cousiderable traot
¢ the ¥Yorth bank of the Thcoxes in Conden und Zonee. Those Indiuns were
the principal reanant of the once flourishing congregsiions of the
IUTWVAo,. or United Drothren Church in the United States who vere come
vio.ad in the yeor 1792 to seck an asylum in Canaeda om ucocuut of thelr
hootility o the American Govermments Py an Order in Counclil dated
Tty 10th, 1793, @ tract of about 50,000 sores flunking the river in
Lhio ?_,ﬁaitj was granted to them &nd there they procecded to bulld a

.reh, nabitations and other premises. This village, which was located
on ihe .orth bank of tie river, was burned by iho victorious lfunericuns
under General Haerrison October hth 1€13, when 1its defenders, including
the notoricus Tecumsch, wore 80 digastrausly defeated und tud cbiefl
mentioned kiiled. AfLuer thal catustropbe the band rewmoved to tho
Soutliora bank aund buili unoller village, now oalled Moraviuntown, dbut
which vas forzerly cullud Iicw ~a_:ric-d. In writliang of thsse Indians
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in 1851, the author of "Suith's Cansda® says that sbout three hundred

and fiTLr uores of the rivor flats nad been ocultivated by then and
© thut s lote us 1817 ths cornanity numbered one hundred and sizty-

gseven Inilans ol the Deluwure and Iroquois Tribes. Up to thut date mo
notural ineresse of tho munber had ocourred but it hud received '
acuosslony through conversions from other bands, A Cermen Hissionary
vas suprorted by then; tho Lubit of drinking bad been conquered to a
groot sxtont, and, as siuted, they "had kept themselves more sober

Gaa tho white peoplo." By a sccond Order in Council, dated Febdbruary
20th, 1795, a survey of thut part was made about 1816 or 1€17, a double
tier of lots belng luid out, one on either side of what is now called
Talbot “treet whioh 1o locuted one and & quarter miles from tho shore,

Q) g

- tho Southern tier of lots extending to the latter point,the lorthern

tior on cquel dlistince in en opposite direction. 7The tier of settle-
rent roachod this Tovnship from the Zast in 1616 but ploneer locations
vera nol et first o nunerous throuch the extent as slong this same

gt oot In lloward, next &dloining on the ¥West. The rirst actusl settler
w.tlin the Tovnship was John Zury who lccated at the mouth of Clear
C.ock on the Lake Shore in the spring of 1816, being followed about a
yoor lator Uy Duvid 8. Buldwin, Johmn Kitchen end Sumuel Burns. Accom=
pRiyins Jre Iury was his son Fhilip, ther grovn to munhood, who settled
upon tle Morthern part of the lot occupied by his father, tlhe one next
Zast of the coreok end Scuth of Tolbot Street (110.58) beinz teken by

‘¥r. Delowin referred to; Purns located opposite Baldwin and Xitchen on

Iot T ty-four, liorth niﬂe, now the Aldborouch Town line. Imt a short
intorv.l paossed between the looution of the first und the lzst of the
throo 195t nened. There Tollowed soon ufter them several familias who
rerwincd but a brief purled, teing frightened out of their locations
by the v-uy hardshipys and privetions wlilch charmoterized the life of
the plencer, unattonded by ocomforts of & correaponding dezreec to
noulra’lzg the former.e Of these farilies little can be said that
vould Interest the reador &t the present day, thelxr stay in Crford
having been about equelly bLrief end uneventiul ond their numés in most
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-Jasuances forgotton Ly those who remuined belind end reapsd the fruilt

¢l Chslir sovere exertions in the Ytipes tlhat tried men's souls.”

smons the next prominent srrivals whose posaterity still 1
mo3re55 the lund of thelr fathers, was Eliekin Hewcomb who settled on
5t Jlxtye-two in the fall of 1520, Hs brought with him 2 numerous
fomily, dnecluding his cons Timothy, Dan Yebster, Elizeh and Jemes, the
sucond of wiom 8tlll resides, at on edvanged age, on the old homcstead.
Mrther to ths Yest, the prominent pioneers wsre Jucob Street end John
Iterle, who secttled, each with a funily of sons, on lot Sseveniy=-two
wiwgre Palizyra 1s now located, the former on the North ené thez latter
on L6 South side of Tulbot Strect. Among lire. Streetts sons, some of
v on wore then but boys, wore Joseph L., ,Charles und Scmson, the hone-
staud U111l remaining in the possession of the former. The sons of
!I'Te Zbevle, some of whom 8till reside in the vicinity, were Lbram,
sniioar, ~ohkn, Joseph, Jucob and Willlam. Teothunilel ¥ills was another
ol {".oLe to whom the e«rly progress and pioneer of this locality is
ar o 3ly duoe. He locuted on Lot Sirxty-nine, North side of Tslbot Street,
orn the eariiest residents, and for many years held a ypluce of
in"inence snd enteen in the community. Soveral of his sons zurs atill
mz the nost populsr and useful members of soclety horeatouis, ons
ol ther., the llon. David }5lls, havipg long since acquired a mational
reputat.on in tuo political arena.

£

On Lot Sixty-thrse Scuth, David E. Cesnor located at an
early dute, though not until that lot hod besn already drawn and occupied
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ﬁ a short pcriod by apother party who removed from the Townshipe Lire GCosner

took @ very eclive and lesading part in the manegement of public arfairs

* for 4 lon: tlie alter the introduction of a very crude form of Nunicipal
Govoanment; Lo wasd a man of more than ordinary ability wnd as popular
ue Do vas useful to the interests of the Township im general and the
Polroad” in parilculare. Other pioneer nunos which figure In the history
of progreas along tLis thoroughfare are thoss of William Ridley who
JGrited on Lol Jlaly-cne lorth, and Alexander koeTavieh who settled farther
fest 4t & zomowlut later dotes .

suotiier of tie influential xon of his day wus Qeorge Henry

(viose sons now conduct graein merchandising in Chatham), & gentlexman of
conel wrubly enterprise, who came to the Township about 1830 eand duilt

a4 ¢1 0L 1131 on the Lukes Sliere on Lot @ixty-one, this being the first
211l in Orford. Prior to the cdute of completion tie settlars were
oulired to go to the neighboring Tounsiips of Aldborough end Howard for
rilling conveniences. About the tise of Honry's building his mill,
saoan keluren estublishicd & sow mill on the creek traversing Lot Pifty-
1w0 adjoining the Aldborcugh Touu Iine. One of the moct noted institutions
then poscesced by the TownnsbLip was the tzvern opened at Clear Creek (now -
Cleaxville), by David S. Bsldwin soon after his location there. At that
Lostolry & good shure of the public interest centred and there were all
Poloras end Luprovements, either proposoed, impending or sccomplished,
discussed cround the cheery log fire that blazed on tho spacious hearth
of "mire Loct®. That, too, was the ¥Yseat of government™ after the
privilege ot »artial gelf-yovernnent wus oxtonded to the people; there

" the viown moeilings® were Lheld for puny yeurs and the political features
of tho tirus were discussed with sll tho profundiiy of rurel statesman-
ghlr. A :chocl house, erected on tac oreek bank touth of the road, was
&df2. o the attrections of the locality and "there in his noisy mansion,
skilled to rule”, David Eerrln: taught the young idea how to shoot, he
baing the [irst or woong tie irst to wield the tawse in Orford.

0.0 vieinity or tlo ;licCle fond was settled about eisht years i
uter taun velbot Strust, whe survey of this loculity heving bson deferred
untll avous 1820 The Zirsu Louse in tuis portion of the tovnsilp was 4
Sulls Ly Jola Blue on Lot Jeven porth where ho still lives, tuough now
in the decline o life. He wrrived in February, 1626, and the spring
following lot Tour, both lorth wnd South of the roud, wes tuken by the
brothers, Puncea und Daniel jLclityre. The pioneer locution on the sita
of Luart vw.s wado mbout two yeurs luter by John Hatoh; Timotuy MNewconb
s0cutac 1 o236 of that point; 4nd one S:ith, who assiected in the survey of
this traclh, took up a farm soucwhat nearer the setting sun, as did also
volhii Jincl olr wlo bad Ueen sinilarly connected with that work. As the
Sevtluoent of this section progressed, the need of milling facilities
Wos wet Ly 7. A. LicLlean, son of the then Chiel Justice of that neme. He
2olublichcld 2L Duart an oxtensivo gteun saw mill und other branches of
inlie ry coniected with the tinmber trude and for a long tino wielded a
vaut locul influense through this medium and froa him did the villege
recoive tic ouphonious name it Learse The first store in the village
Fuf cponed by Juces Tait who was also the first, &s he is the present,
sosuiLiiter, the 0ot office baving been opened in 1857.

] Yozth of Duart, 1n the vicinlity of Muirkirk of the present, the
Settlezent lagred conciderably btohind thet of the Middle Road, and not
until about 1U40 did thut scction receive its pioneer settlers, among
Eham may Lo rocsouned John and Duncan Gillis, Thomas Simpson, David Ford,
Thomey In:_ ish wna willlem Curtis. Still farther towurd the river, the

)
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lopd wor held by the Moravian Indians until 1858 when they surrendered
all exccpt the block above referred to as being now held by taem,
whereupon tho portlion so released was thrown upon the market and soon
therga’tor sold among numerous settlers, the list of names ideontified
with the history of this scction including those of Larcus, Sussex,
Poneld, Grent und Purker on the Eaut, and Brovm, Horton, MoFerlane &nd
Richuzxdson on tho Vesat of tho present Reserve.

The locality of Highpate was first settled by several brothers
of Lhe Gosnell farxily who arrived there some time prior to the survey |
end settlement of tio Iiiddle Roed. lNost prominent among the early
residents of that nune were Joseph, John and James, whose posterity
Luve pnow becoms very nucerous in that section. The penbers of this
fuiily early exerclised a leading influence in Tomnship affueirs and bave
in later duys been closely identified with tho progress of this commun=
ity and the ‘unieipelity at lurge. Others who bore the burdens of
pioneer 1life in and adjoining the Gosnell Settloment, 8s that locality
was then called, weore John lLee, since vardenm of ¥Kent, Finlay MHcKerricher
end his son William, now one of tho leading citizens thereabouts, and
Thoras Tape, which letter name is now borne by a large number of the
cutorprising residents of the meiilitorhood.

Thoso were indeed times of wild and rough experiences when
toe une oothed surface of trying circumstunces presented alternate
espocts of distress end danger, jowelled bLy the occasionel visitation
of conforts which, though of s0 abstractly indifferent a4 grade as would
now give them a pluce among the so-considersd hardships of life, yet
then, by the very force of their contraat to the previiling monctony
of 1oll and privation, became decided luxuries. True, game was plenti-
ful in the donse forost which thon stretched almost from limit to
1imit of the Township but its vdry plenitude robbed it of -pecuniery
value beyond such as ettached to it as an article of food for the
Setilerzs not elways provided with the means of purchasing supplies.
In fact, the nunber of beasts and Lirds then haunting the forests was |
often productive of annoyanoe &nd danger rather than sport; wheat '
fields required watching to repsl the foragiung expeditions of deer and |
turkeys while the sheepfold wus in constant dunger of receiving wolfish
alientions, Steries are told by the pioncors of remarkable achieve-
soets In punning during that period, one disclple of Nimrod having,as
is zoluted, brought down an even dozen wild turkeys &t one shot. The
absenes of streams probably edone acccunts Jfor the npon-recital of ecually
rocooneble fish stories. It not ianfYequeonily happened that settlers
woull ¢ ot benlghted in their Journoys to or from other settlezents or
villeges, end, while awaiting the dawn, bo cuietvtulned by the cheering
refralin of & wolfish chorus reciting thelr dosire for more intimate
Iolaticns with the settler's ox team. (o cone occasion a deer was
chaced Ly those denizcns to the door of a settler in tho night whereupon
he wont out sud caught the hunted and exhausted oreature as easlly as
thougzh it had been domccticated. ‘

Put the exercise of those habits of industry &nd perseverence

minently characteristic of the average picncer soon transformed the
: wrzess of Orford into u sories of progressivo settliements; and, with
tic additions to the populution wnd increuse in the wealth of the psople,
tle pace of progress guicicned, the forest became diminished, the clear-
ins expanded, and this Township wus soon accorded & place anong the
203 promising in the West.e AL no tine has a helt in the onward march
oL lmprovezent and development besn here observable. The industry of
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the =2ircs, inheritod end exercised by the sons and aided by the spirit
of ente. . 120 wiich hus charucterized the people of this Township
throu_lcil 1ts entire Liztory, is now refleotsd in the handsome villages
avcd fuccoasion of sullings farnsteads throughout its limits whore tidy
preciscs, olegant buildin: s, blooming orchards and other equally
attroetive features denoto the fertility of the soil and thrift of the

P -
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- The Inception of lunicipral Covermment in Orford took pluce in ‘
182C on the 7th day of Junuary, of which yeur a "Town Xectinz™ was held
ab David S. Paldwin®s taverny Cleur Croek, at whioch the following
nedsed purtlens wore clected to official positions: pavid H. Cesner,

Clork; Jwues oorclhousa, John Xitchen, Assessors; John Stewart, John
fury, Jr., Joseopl Coonell, Diunlel lcIntyre, Roudmasters; ¥Williem Bury,
Conntable; Uilllam Ridley, Collector; Alexander licTavish, Eliaiinm
iowveomb, Poundkaopers; Fred Lanpman, Jaies llclareon, Town Wardons.

. r. Geu.ar was continued in the Clerkship until the close of 1841 when
e wng clected District Councillor end succeeded in the Clerksiip by
Arel Ldald Uidlzer who wus in turn followed by Peter lLampman in 1843, ke
giviong place to Dunicl Moorehouse the year following. In 1845 Mr.
Gesner wun oguin instulled in the Clerk's office and held that position
thencelorward till 1853 when he was succeeded by his son,John H., who
continusi in the incumbency of the position till 1£65. In the latter
your Je. .3 Ce MeDonald recoived theeppointicent, holding 1t ten years,
and ‘n 1575 the present efficlent and courteous officer, Henry Waetson,
of Cloorville, was entrusted with the dutics of the office. The
guccest_on in the District Councillor's chalr was divided about equal=-
iy bLatuown lessrse Cesner, Morehouse and George Hanry up to 1850 when
our pro-cnd Municipal systen vas inaugurated. In the year last nemed,
ti.a Coutcll elected was conposed of Lessrs, Daniel lorehouse (subse-
queitly cleocted first Reove of tho Township), Iinean Xcelaremr, Archidald
Valltor, John Stewart end Francls Johnston. The name of Orford's

Reevons ond Deputies since that date muy Le found in our lunieipal -
H.o.ory end for the present year wo append the names of local magnates i
as follows: Joun Mason, Reeve; M. C. Gilrmore, Deputy Recove; Robert
Henderuon, Joseph Le 3treot and Andrew larcus, Councillors; EHenry ,
notson {Clearville P.0.), Clerk; Jobhn De. Cillis (Cuart P.0.), Treasurer.

The list of Orford'z villuzes is btut moderately extensive,
vli’ch remark will also apply to the villeges themselves.

Ducrt L3 the Township "Cuapital” &s there the Town Hall is loe-

cubecde Its other attractions embrace & brewery, stean rills, three

£ tores, severzl shops, end ¢ population of alout ons hundred, including
one or oore practitioners of tho healing arte Clearville, cituated éa
Tillot  creet at the crosz=ing of Clear Crock, contulns two atorcs,

el chaeo, hotels, shops, and & emall rural population. Pauluyra, also

on " :1i.. Street near the Western border of the Townshlp, boasts
atizeetions sinilar to those of Cleurvillo. Highpate 18 a stution of
scrs 4 ortonco on the Cansda Southern Rullway which traverses the
Tow shiys from luoat to West near the centre. It is twenty-six miles
fro.. Chathily, contains a poruluticn about three hundred, stecm caw,
et end flowin: nills, two churches and the conveniences in mail,
ol a¢ vunpress matters incident to rallwey villoges. :

“urin, a post village Lcutwoen the Tenth und Zleventh Concessions
near Lo IHoward Town Line, and containing church, school and shop,
corpleios the list of trade ccontrec within a Townshlp whose chief
att ' .c.ions comsist in its highly wrought fertility and the intelligence,
ind Ltry and shrift for which its people &re noted.
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late Rev. Hugh Cowan about th“ru- 1926
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RALTIGH TOWHSEIP
S————— O

Lalelgh lles to the South of the Thauwes, bordering lake Erie
n the Zouth, with the Towvamships of Harwich and Zast Tilbury forming
to ras cotive Fastern and Western boundaries. Lying immediately to
I Jou.'west of Chatham, & portion of its original territory is includ~
d atlii. Lhe corporate embrace of that town. The area thus included
iv 7.4,0.3 acres, of which, in 1880, 33,238 acres were .roturncd as
clonrou and 66,589 acres us owned by actual residents of the Tovnshipe

o
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i
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Ralelgh displays topograrhical characteristics similer to
nose vw.lch distingulsh the surrounding Townships, being a generally
vel rloin which in no place arises to any cousiderable elovation,
t a4 .1 some localities it sinks to a level too low to admit of
sucoess ) tillages In the vieinity of the Thames, there are quite large
&reas o’ these plains or low prairies which become flooded in periods
of high water, and, as is the case in some locallities, remain in a
seni~-submerged oonaition a good portion of the ycar. These low expanses
strotch consideruble distances into the interior, in pluces forxing a
contrast to the socarcely more elevuted but densely wooded areas border-
ing end, in some instences, surrocunding them. The characteristics of
surfuce prevailing throughout the balance of the Township are decldedly
mouotoncus, the face of the country being generally quite low and
thilcelly covered with a fino growth of elm, among which is intermixed
& econsllicrable proportion of oxeellent ouk and black ash of goodly
glze, these forming the principal though mot the only grades of wood
produced in Raleipgh. The neighborihood of the Léke Shore is marked by i
the "dge", s9 olteon before referred to ac skirting the banka of Lake
Erie, Its average leijht does not vary far from forty fecet nor does
t3 distonce from the shore vary nuterially from half a 1:ile throughout
- this Touvnship. The soil along the Ridge is of a2 light gravelly con-
sistency, ocasy of tillasa and very productive of hay, grain, root and
frult crops, the lutter flourisiing better in this than any other
Townchip of the County epparencly. Between the Ridge and the Thames
tha ooil is genmerally a heavy, adheclive character of olay, almost utterly
isc.ug in nocrous qualities cnd so compact that horse tracks on the
hig wvay often . retuin the water es would a cup until it evaporates.

Underlying this surface soil is usually a very heavy grade of
Live clay intermixed with giavel which contains but few and unsatisfaot-
ory springs of water, the difficulty of obtaining which fluid in suffioc-
jes: quantities forms one of the xost serious disadvantages of the '
Conwral oo lldddle Road sectione Farther Horth, exong the lower wood
Jovels, tils. difficulty is not so observable. . The clay subsoll is
genorally overlald with doep mould of vegetable accumulation and great
ferui1it, though not very durable. The soil of the plains is much :
tic sam: 08 that last referred to, differing in no essential features.'
Ju e sive drainage system has now redeemod nearly all the rodeenable
laxic o. the Townshlp and greatly improved the agricultural value of
Canciiar Townships Iin so far as concerns agricultural capabilities.
The plain lands thus far brought under culture yleld the finest crops
of corn to be found in this eninently corn-growing County, the lower
arecs furnish a good quality and Limmmense quantity of wild hay as well



as luuoient pasturage, while the more elevated localities produce
in grec. abundunce tho many other crops for which this region is
notaed, us well as those specifically named.

Raleigh received its first settlors from emong the vanguard
of civillzation which moved up the Thames in 1792. Unfortunately for
the proclse accuracy of dates, no memoranda touching the events of
4o earliest history appears to have been preserved and some confusion
of opinion consequently prevails as to the exact dates of certain
ocourrences, .There appear to have been three separate periods of
sotilement here during the last century - the first in 1792, the
gecond In 1794, and the third extending over the interval totween
1576 and 18CC. The population of the Raleigh River Bank had assumed
quite & nunerical importance; but at this distance of time from the
dates naned, it is well nigh impossible to determine to whom is due
tie distinetion of bhaving becn its pioneer or the reapective years '
in which subsequent settlers locuted. Among the first, however, were
tliec Dolsen, leCruae, Reuume, Peck, Jacobs, Drake, Parsons and To
famildes. it is related that Edward, a son of the plonecer Parsons,
wis born in this Towmship in 1790,but other circumstances fall to
cons iy ULuds early date, though he was evidently the first white -
ehlld Lorn in the Countye. -

The Dolsen family, now so numerous along the lower Thames,
aprang froa Joln Ven Dolzen and his two sons, Latthew and Isacac, who
socated cloug vhe bank in 1792 and whose surname has since been alter-
ed 10 the more .nglo-faxon style of Lolsen. The elder gentleman was
theu for past his prime but his sons wore ih the summer of life, each.
baving a family at that date. lMatihew settled on the Dover side '
vihile Iscac end his father chose a location on the South bank about
five miles below the present Tovn of Chatham where thelr descendant,
¥illism Dolsen,now resides (1l€S0). Isauc's fenily then or subsequently
conulsted of seven sons and threo daughters, the names of the former
belus Tosaae, Denlel, Cilbert, Matthew, Peter, Jecob and John, several
of whon sftermurds removed to the States, but at least three of them
mado this tuhelir perucnent ebiding pluce.

Thoe Y¥eCrao feamily conslisted of Thomas, the father, and
ceveral sonz, including Thomes, Alexander and Villiam. The parent is
creodited with having bully the first briek house in the County of
Kent. He was emong the oerly Parliicicntary reprosentatives of the
County, the influence which he asscrtied in the ploneer history of the
corrmunity belng perpetuated to & considerable extent ii his sons, one
of vher (Willicm) was l.P. for the County from 1834 to the union of
tie Prcvinces. The brick house rofcrred to &3 having been built by
Lire Mc.2ao was erected soon after the preeent century opened, ono
Lciover being the artizen employed in the undertakinge Ceorge Jacobs
vl anciher of the pioncers, Soon after his Sgttlement he opencd &
£r:211l trading post on the river bank and con®inued in that line of
business Jor & number of years, raising a fawily whose posterity are
8till rcckoned among the highly respected residents of the locelity.

Oon Lot Eleven, Philip Toll settled in 1796, being then
little udvanced past the ege of boyhood. Hs, in common with several
of the other scttlers of that date, had removed hither from the
village or vicinity of Detrolt when the cession of llichigan to the
Americane waeg formally declded upon and announced., iHe lived & long
Period in the Township though not in this vieinity es he subsequently
became & ploneer of Talbot Street wlhere his life was closed many years
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gince. On the West of his location on the river bank were the houses -
of John Williems, Joln Peck, Andrew'namilton (with his son John),and
Rotort Drake and his son Francis the latter afterwards gaining a

locul colebrity as a Colonel of uilitia.

In 1817 the Thauecs Settlement in Raleigh had increased to no
voer formidable or proidsing proportions considering the length of time
clive 1t foundation. It then containmed but twenty-eight inhebited
Louses tenanted by one hundred and ninety-eight residents; while the

luke Shors or Talbot Street Sottlement, thouglhh started only the previous .

yoar, thean contained twenty-five nouaea and seventy-five inhabitants,
There was then po church in the Township but one lethodist preacher
clolved residence here. One achool, two horse mills and brick-yard
ware 4159 duong the attractions.

Tho sottlement of Talbot Street in this, as in neighboring

C ;dcs, was Tormed under the supervision of Colonel Talbot Who allottod
. 12 lccations to tho settlors and exercised a general superintendence
ouea tloolr performance of 'settlement duties', consisting of cuttiing
out the road fronting thelr property and mzking certain stipuleted
improverents thereon, these duties constituting the purchase price of
tiely Uorws which were deeded to them on payment of mnotarial expenses
conncetod with drafting and registering the necessary documents then
ar.ouonting to nearly thirty dellars, liany of the locatees in this, as
in cther SBOtiono of the Township, came to thelr new homes in abject
poverty of worldly goods, some of them having but an axe, an industrious
disposition and indonitable energy &s & capital stock on whioh to bezin
thie conguest of the forest, But their poverty did not deter then from
the effcctive exercise of the advantages which nature had furnished
thc", ard the result of tholir couruge and perseverance in coping with -

f*icuiLJ cannot but challenge the reapect and admiration of all who
coizaend those sturdy qualities.

Tha pioneors of the I:lke Shore located quite numerously in

1216 and the following year, ZSome of thow came direct from the British
Islco but many canme from other parts of Canada and the Karitime Provinces,
the Tow 13L1p of HLarwich contrihutinD & few who had been ousted from
their locations there on finding the land already deeded, and the
Scuthorn Tovnships of Essex County furnishing likowise & reW'who have
since ranked anong the most influential citizens or that loculity.
Prominent smwong those tc whcn beleony the distinction of identification
1ith pioncer ¢ifort alon; this strect was Join Sovereign who "squatted™
¢ 3t Cne Hundred end Thirty-three, afterwards disposing of his interest
to ~lohard De Clute, from whcose hands the farm passed into those of its
p:."ﬂt owuer, (1 “80), liagnus Crawford, in 1831. Samuel Yatson, on Lot
Qac Hundred and Thirty-rive, achieved a local prouinence by building
ticve the first mill in Southern Ruleigh where he charged one shilling
pei bushel for grinding. ILocated at intervals along the front were
gls~ Nathan Slater, William ¥Wedge, the twin brothors - John and Solamon
Sheloy, Dovid Quick, Nathan end Willium Harvey, Flater, -- Yilcox,
-=- _walet, and Thomas and Samuel Pardo, the two last named of whom

cvrived in 1617. On the border of Hurwiech, South of Talbot Straot,
u;cra e Je Stripp's store and a portion of the Village of Duckhorn
now stund, James Dolsen was the first to settle, his clainm bcing subse=-
gues Lly 'rzansferred, end, passing through tho hands of several owvners,
wee rurc'osed by Ere Stripp at a comparatively recent daeto.

Flater's location was chosen near the Yest bdfder ol the
Yo . shis and wos transferred about 1820 to James W. Little, zfterwards



gotinandey of vhe locel militla during the Mackenzie Insurrcction. Mre
Iiille ovonel a store soon after acquiring that property and that
€ t'*p“*ﬂe was continued in operation for many years, being co-existent
ac diflforent poriods with othcrs of less pretentious magnitudo, one of
ilch vas conducted at the house of Thomss Pardo by another party who
“~~q-~ntly sold out to Pardo, by whom the store was carried on
sovc:;; years. ' The highway at thut dete ran in close proximity to the
lake bank, being flanked by but one tier of lots; but convenlence
afturwards suggested its location in its present position. A3 early
as 1026 a school housc wus erected where the cemetery on Samuel
Crowford's place is now located, the road not having been removed at’
tl.al date from the place of its originul survey.

In 1825, or thereabout, 0010nal Burwell contracted with
Covermneont to finish the survcey of Townships in this region, left un-
corpleted by Abrahanm Iredell and Patrick MeNiff who had concducted all
surveys up to that date. By the terms of the contract referred to,
the interior portion of Raleigh was prepared for occupation by settlerl
in 1828 or before, the vicinity of the liddle Road, traversing the
Townshin from Charina Cross to the Tilbury border, being the first
seitled. The ploneor of the "iiddle noad" wus William White who took
up iot Tionty-four, in Concessions Ileven and Twelve, duringz the fall
of 1220, Ere. White was of Kontshire nativity, removing thence to
Yearsylvania, from which State he removed to Canada in 1825. Locating
L W:lootville, in Blgin County, he conducted a farm for Colonel Talbot
ustil 1228, when, as before stated, he came to the forecsts of Raleigh
aud lai! the foundation of his subsequent prosperity at a time when
his sons were in their boyhood. Iie was acconpunied also by a son-in-
low, Tucmas Williams, and George Harvie, making the trip hither through
tiie bush with ox teams and .wagons brought from Pennsylvania, and was
oLllized o cut out a road from thelr point of leaving the Talbot Road,
wiere Dlenheim now stands, to their destination inm Raleigh. The stock
then brouzht in by that party consisted of fourteen cattle and one
“horse, which were compelled to aubsist on browse in the absence of
more pelatable rodder. '

5
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Mr. White and his companions had effected a clearing of

considerable size before the arrival of any other settlers clonz the

Middle Noad which was then merked only by a line of ®blazed™ trees,
T;: next or auong the next to settle after the White family was John
i -u.ull on Lot Two, ’outhg just zast of the present Villeze of Yerlin.
.2 isected in the fall of 1830 end wus followsd by his family the
Su c.,hinp year; while ct 1ntervnls between there and the Ezustern Town
Line quite & nmusber of locutions wore nmade, including the families of
voconh Ake, Lot Four South, John Pardo, Lot Thirteen North, and his
brother Villiam, a shori distance to the Ednt on the South side of the
rocde. One Creen was an early settler on Lot Eight North but within a
. 8hert time of his location there ho nysteriously disappeared, failing
to return home after starting to vislt Talbot Street Settlement. The
circumstances of the cuse guve rise to a susplcion of his murder but
no tangible clue to such & desed was ever discovered. Samuel Hall end
hin son Samuel, who had preceded him on Lot Four liorth, and an Enzlish-
. noned Cook on the Vorta side of iiddle Road flanking the Harwich
Torm Line, wore also amon; the pioneers; the Village of Cook's Corners
(.ow known us Charing Cross) bavins received 1ts name from the last
tumed gentleman, the original locatca upon its site.

The vastness of the forest and secarcity of *landmurks®
cor (titut=d a source of combined annoyance and danger in those early

—
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days. It 'as not an unusual occurrence for sottlers to lose their

vy emid the wilderness while it long remained positively dangerocus

{0 ellow children to travorge the primitive trauils lest a like fate

- ould befall them. On one ocoudlon & little daughter of John Powell,
i Jrae Sumuel Hell of lerlin, strayed from the path she was attempte-
n; to pursue, wundering for rivo days and sleeping for five nights
anid the wild and awe-inspiring surroundings of the forest fastnesses
before being found by the 'Vigilence Cormittoe', into which the entire
corzunity formed itsolf to secarch for her. Durina that period she
curried Lior father's gun and sustained life by feasting off the brade
of plgeceo which he had shot and given her to carry home while he pure
gurd his way to the lake Shoro.

Lo

.~

Teles of privation and distress prevailing during that
Feriod Jorm & more interesting tham edifying link in the chain of
eorly roniniscences. Some of these who have since risen to affluence
in tlhe community arrived in the country with only the proverbial
‘sLilling' in the form of ocash assets, and one gentleman, now resident
ascyr tils street, deolures kic cush capital on arriving in Canada to
huave boen but six cento. So rare was the '"purchasing power' in those
days that many of the settlers heroubout, as stated by some of them,
were for years unable to provide tea for their tables and for a like
reason woers they unable to purchasc the thread necessary for ordinary
use and vere obliged to unravel strands from such cotton garments as‘
they wore so fortunate as to posscss, To us of the present day
it ¢pprars alvost  incredible +hut women should then have been driven
to such shilfts to procure wuread for patohing purposes. -

The first preachor to visit thic part of the Township was
a lethodist Mindlster naved Jelfrey who used to hold service in the
differcut houses alouy the street. Tho first Sabbath School was
or calzcd about 1836 on 1ot Four North by Samual Hall and his mother.
There had been previously builé a Catholie Church at the Thames on the
boundary betwecn Raleigh and Tilbury, this being the first ccolesiasti-
cul edifice in the Tovnship. A mill was opened by Joseph Ake ( who was |
en aAmerican) on this lot some time previous to 1840, prior to which
ti.c the sottlers werc supplied by the mills at Chathanl on the lake
8hore, Until inmproved by artificial neasns, thie drainage of this part
of Raleirh was very delcotive, the surface being submerged at scasons
o & depth of nearly two feet, and one year this state of affairs cone
tinued wo lute as July, thus preventing egricultural operations that,
veirs cSoorelty of food and roney of cource resulted, and, during a
fonine of rore palatable and nourishing viands, it is related that
plg~wecl was exteonsively resorted to &s an erticle of diet.

It wus many years subsequent to the location of the

piiieers elong this thoroughfare that highway communication with the
ben inoipgnificsnt Villags of Chatham was opened, and, until the
estiblicoent of such facilities, tho settlors were obliged to traverse
the intosvening woods and pleins on fool or in ox carts when dry

vice ey or winter’s frosts permitted the latter condition of things.
Lt e rclated by onc ledy how she pnce made that trip on foot, wading
shrough vater two feot deep on portions of the plains and carrying
210 & bushel of salt on her honeward route. Nor were thesc the only
L' Jicultlies and privations presenting themsolves. 8Shoes could
solrealy we purchased by those with money while those lacking that
pot_ ot conmedlty wore compelled for several years to swuddle their
ol ¢olremities in cloth, this being the prevailing style of winter
i00% drerse Their crops were sown upon the rough and only particlly
eleared land end hoes substlituted for harrows in covering the seed.
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Yany of the women, fired by a commendable zeal for forest conquests,
ware aono too delicate to shoulder the axe when hLousehold duties

por Lted, und chop aide by side with the sterner sex of the fumily,
gfblon dioplaying a degroe of sixill in the use of that implement which
vould shone a youthful farmer of the present dey. The nmusic of axe
vas accompenied by psalm-singing in the cases of several of the ladies
rentioned by the ploneers, this combination of industry with plety
uisplaying a degree of musculer Christianity highly commendable.

The settlement along the road alluded to d4id not beccome very
dence for a score of yeara aftor the first locations were made, and,
when the attention of philanthropists wes drava to the project of pro-
viding In Cenada asylums for colored refugees and liberated slaves
fro. the United States, a traot of eighteen thousand ecres of Government
ivpd, locuted in the interior of Raleigh on either side of the Middle
sead, weo et aside for that purpose, under the ownership of the
Llgln Acvoeietion. The prime mover in this humane enterprise was Rev.
Williem “ing who had emigrated from his native home in the North of
Irelond to Loulsiana at en early ege. He there cultivated the anti-
elavery centiments natural to his huuene disposition, and, when by
Proccss of law he found himself the possessor of severad slaves, he
Bottled them on a plantation in that State whore he gave them the
pecuniery benerfit of their labor until he completed preparations for
their removel to Canada, :

“hen the rumor spread over this region that the planting of
& negro colony in this section wus desipgned, the most violent opposition
was manifoslied in pass meetings and petitions to Covernment to prevent
a gront of lend being made for thet jpurpose. Through the persistence
of | o, llnz, however, and the co-operation of lord Elgin, then Covernor-
Conoval, all obstacles to the project were surmounted and in April,
16,7 1're King arrived with his fifteen slaves whom ho emancipated and
witlh thoezm formed lLe wuclous of the ZElgin or Buxton Settlement, called
by tle latter nwuo in Lonor of 8ir F. T. Duxton who interested himself i
lergedy In the rormation of the Elgin Association, of which corporation
ir. ¥ing was eppointed the agent., Other eccessions to the population
of tle settlerent followed, lard being sold to the settlers at (.0
dollars and fifty cents per aore on easy terns of payment and the
colored population of the Tovnahip Lecame &n increasingly important
fuector, the success of the colored peoplie in wringing from the Northern
focects a falr livelihood with growing prospects of ultimate independence,
cufla Justifyinz the estimate of their capabilitics formed by the
1 slanthropic founders of the colony. As time progressed, educational
t.d commerciel institutions were establiched; the latter became self=-
suetaining es eurly es 1€66; churches were added and the Puxton Settle-
rent strolz2 forwerd to & position of very considerable importance, em=-
erecing oo ut ore thousand' two hundred inhebitents in 1666, since which
cctec the »uuber hes increesed naterielly, though at this writing no
auntiientic “igures of its resources huve been published.

The Tovnship records of Raleigh contuin no infornution of
mricips) affeirs prior to 1850 when our present munieipal code was
iafroduc . des In that year & Courncil was elected consisting or !.essrs.

o lel., Thomas Jenner, Alexander Pock, Nathanlel Hughson «nd Thomas
L. The first naved of these gentlemon was eleoted Reeve; Walter
(*en of the unincorporated Village of Chatham, vho was subse-
g7 1y ‘lected to tho Legislutive Council and is now (1E80) Judge of
Adgcoa) vocelived the appointment to the Clerkships wWilliam West was
appointeu Treusurer; John Smith, Asscssor; and lartin Drew, Collector.

e
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The villeges of Raleigh are not very numerous nor i1s their
gor nerelil eonzequence highly developede Probubly the most important
of L 2m "0 Churlng Cress, situated partially on either side of
the lluT _oh Town Line about seven miles South of Chatham, It contains
u stutliou on the Canada Southorn Railway at which all trains stop,
coureatiig with 2 line of stuges for Chuthem, steam saw mill, two
hoetela, cnurch, store, post office and several shops. This Village
is coutiectod with Chatham and Dienhelm by what i3 alleged to be a
Lrevel road thcugh that feature was nct apparent to the writer when
e loot narrovly escaped foundering in its bogs. Some dignity is im-
purted to the hishway by toll gates at frequont intorvals whose rates
of Loll supgest the excellenco which 18 not observable in thoe road,

Herlin is a village of about one hundred and fifty inhabitants,
gituntod on thoe Tilbury Town Line uwhere orossed by the }liddle Road
sixt:en niles from Chathane I% conteins a few stores, shops, steam saw
and grist mille, several churches and a good teuperance hotoi. It is
located wbout three and & half miles South of Fletcher Etation on the
Canada Oouthern Rallway and has risen to its present status since
1277 whon the leassars, Marshall established their extensive mills at
= :

LN -l =
UL;U }'f.‘-.snu.

Ruckliorn 4s built prinoipally on the Harwlioh side of the
To m Line bLetween that Townsinip and Raleigh, where interscoted by
Teluot Gtreote About 1855 thio little centre wus rounded by WHoloon
Charpan who cponed a bhotel on the Raleigh wvide, ucing 88 a sign a palr
of buck®a horns plieced on top of a hLipgh pole, Irom whioh incident the
pluce toox i%s nuwe. RBuockhorm now contuins a population of about one.
aundred und fifty und the ususl concomitants in the way of atores,
ehnp, % cetera, including a mill und two churchos. .

Tloteher, on the Tilbury Town line where orossed Ly the Canada
fSovthern Ballwey, 45 a pluce of fow attractions and only such «s ure
ircldens to & country post villuage of asaventy-five inhabltauts, possess-
ivy rullway faollditien, .

I

Surton, on the Middle Nond, berfore alluded td. is but e cmall
piluce v 1055 rosidents ere prineipally colored., It lics about two
108 Scubth of tho Cansda SBouthern Rellway or North Buxton Station.

The high dovelopment of hor agricultural intarests aud pros-
vority of hor people rather than Lor possession of numerous inportant
trade marts, form the chief attruction of this cwushipe Its publiec
affalrs are well adnipistered, its schools are noutl, numerous &nd
¢ffioient; its residences uniformly indicative of tuste, comfort,
and in r .y coses, weelth. The nioption and eunforoewent of the lunkin
AdL & o a desidedly mora) inolination on tiue purt of Lo people
vhileo on alr-ost total absence of corime amouy the resldents furnlicies
an spgumant in favor of locel Option u@ euforced in tihis Lunioclpality.

The above is information complled
by the late Rev. Hugh Cowan about the yezr
1926 and extracted by the Kent Historical
Society 19.7.
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ZOoTE. TOMNSEIP
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‘ The Township of Zone forms the Northeustern corner of tho
County of Kent, boing bounded on the North by the Township of Buphenia

~in Lampton County; on the Bust by losa, in liiddlesex County; on the

South by the Thures River and a portion of Camden; and on the Wost
by the Gore of Cunden., With the exception of a srmall gore extending
South of its gonerzl boundary, it lies entirely to the lorth of the

-1ine reasonins from Iuke 3t. C to the River Thames between the Cores

of Chathem and Canden and the old time Townships of these numes, a
liue whioch bounded on the North the original Indian eession granted to

-tho Governnent in 1790.

The outline boundaries above given inolude the Tovm of Bot.mn

Ihioh i5 situuted neoar the NHorthwest cormer of the Township, and, though

its ehlef attractions are confined to a comparatively ssall area, its

+ gorporats lluzits extond to tho Thumes on the South and the liddlesex

line on the Southeast; and we rfind the town possessing the anomunlous
features of a population numboring about one thousand two hundred and
extent of nearly two thousand four hundred aores, or about tuc acres
per oeapita for its population.

The Township of ZOnn. does not rnnk'hieheat arong those of Kent
County in point of either agricultural excellence or advunced develop=

. ment. Lits 8pll is of a gonerally loamy consistency inelining to sand
. and in some localities the sandy feature predoninates to such a degree

t0 render the surface alrnost sterile; neverthelesa the Township generally

‘48 fairly fertile and woll sdapted to the culture of such cerecls and

root orops as fiund wurm, lignt soils congenial. The surfuce 1s very

" Jevel with only sufficient full towards tho Thames end Sydenhan to admit

of moderate conveniences of dralnoge. Fo etroums of considorable
dinensions traverse its area, the only ones of even slight ixportance
being those flowing tarough ravines to Lhe Tlumos South of Bothwell.

The area of Zone is loss than any of its slster Townohips in the County,
being but twenty-four thousand nine hundred und forty-eight a@ores, and,
added to the area of PBothwell, xtckes up & total original area for what
is now the Township of Zoao of about twenty-seven thousand, threo
hundred end fifty sores. v

The 'hutory of Zone is alike brief and without incidents of
thrilling intercst. In dete of settlement it lagged bokind the entire

p- bulance of the County but its developmuent since the plonocor's axo lirst

avoke the echoos of its forests has been of an order to pluce the
Township in a very favorable condition, whether viewed in tho abotiruct
or in comparison with surrounding Townships, The first ren to invaode
the woods of Zone in the capacity of settlers appusr to huve beon tho
brothers, Richard and John Stephenson, who locuted Lot Fleven, Concessio:
™o in 15&2 where they remained soveral yesar+ Hithout whito neipnbors

ot £zt iud BHE West 1nlf of
gn signer Sldo;’ n 1849 Williem Corlegs ip: ..l e ot 11t of 1ot

“ﬂ Bdkwal m
153 Ly Sumuel Hnrrfl. presont Township Clerk, (1cl0), who tool up a
d¢ ;ation immediately adjoining on the South, Iot lllue, Concossion Two.
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~ 1849, which erected the County of Lumbton, the Towuship ol Zore included

: m, the adventages of a railway traversing 1t in a convenient lo
.4nd & large degree of intelligent industry auong its inhubitants, tg:lity

i
4

L a4

'- vicini or Florcnce thero wore fow sottlers on the Zone side at
3 -?ﬁ%u;mgmmi a tepent to another purty, Loing the only onse

in that immediate 1 ty, and he occupylng the corner lot of the

Aloag tho !.'imtorn border of 7Zone, Henry Ruchu«nan, STe., &nd

‘ peteor MYoAmnnally wore prominent amon;: those to wlon the dovelorent of
_ that section is attributable while the nmres of Ferguson, Show, Brooks

and ¥iller appeur in connection with the scttlement of the more Soutli=

. wostarly portioh. The viecinity of Fupheumla Town Line is of quite reccnt
' gettlezent oomparatively, as is also the cuse with a lerge area of tha
. more central portion of the Township. A considerable tract fronting the

River Thanes continued up to 1858 to be held &« a reserve by the

loravien Indians, but, they surrendering it in tL.t yoar, it was throwmn
open for sule and settioment. The first to poruanientl focete within

tie precinots of the forner reserve was Joseph Swalwell who still resides
oa bis location, mow inciuded within the corporate limits of Cothwell.

. The ploneers of Zone exyerlenced comparatively few of the
hardships which usually .-fall to the lot of the pioneer, as, owing to
the establisiment of prosporous settlements on all sides of them and the
reasonable gminity of milla, stores, markets und other conveniences,

pany of the privations endured by tiwse who foundod the

sattlements from whioh Zone's settlers now drow many of the convenlences
of life. ¥e would not, however, dotruct fran tho credit due to those
wio braved the solitude and uoriﬁ.m insepurabtly comneoted with a
location in the nidst of a foroat of such area as the Township under
review por from.the toil and sufforing, never slight, nocessary to
the translorzation of the pathless voods into so attractive a scene
of agricultural development as today ucete tho eye of the visitor of
m?

Prior to the coming into offeot of the lunieipal /ot of

@ territory now embracod within the Zuphemius Townahdp limdts, but, by
ue ol the Act reforred to, the line now dividing the two Townships

‘wos drewn, and Zone, beins 8lnost uninhebited, was attached to Camden

for nunioi purposes, Ja 1057 it succeeded to its muniocl independ=- -
encoe and elected a cou;mil conposed as Tollows, vize Henry ge:l lm:':o,
Williem Carson, John Timney, Peter kcinnally, Jr., and Williem Corlett.
At ics first weeting Kr. Moproe was elocted Reave, G. A. Smith appointed

Clerk, und Bugh llolachlin, Treasurer.

With a goodly supply of schools and churches of a crodlt;xble |
o

. Townshlp of Zone seams destined to tuke & hich and enviable place among

the Rural runiocipaiities &f tho West.

ok The cbove is information compiled

*« by the late Rev. i'ugh Cowan about the year

.+ 1926 and extractod by the Xent Historical
Soclety 1947.



ROMNEY TOTISLIP "
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is tho sxmnllest in tcgitorml cxtost of axilysﬁ:mahip

in Tent Countye It is of peurly triangular shope cnd occuplce

posstion in the Southwostera extrenily of the County, boing bounded

jorth and East by Tilbury Eust, South by Lake Erie and West by the

cownship of Mersea, in tho County of Essex. Its superficicl crea ca=

Lrocos twenty-six thousand four hundred and fifty-two acres, of which

©  eaxtent eighteen thousand und nipeteen ecres are owned by actual resi-

" geuts, emong whom are itvo hundred und forty-five ratepsyors. Tho sure

. fuce of Fomney is goncrally very level and too low to oliit of the

. highest convenlence in agriculturel affairs. The shorc of Lake Erie

43 horo sikirted by the "Ricge" which Coruws the only relief to the

" ponotonous lovels of tlho cntire County, the elevated ouilinc referred

PR 0 rumning in close yroxinity to the throughout the greuter part

" of this Township toward its “wstern boundary forming a bank or blulf

" Qlreotly overlooking the waves aund from which tho surface slopes avay

| poarly twenty miles to the Biver Thumes, fulling only twenty=-six feot

in shat distance, The charactoristics of soil in this as in other

Tosnahiys hereabout include a tendency to gravelly loan along the

F Ridge; «nd in its rear a general inclination to clay loom, underlaid

- by & heavy clay subsoll und cupped in mauy localities by rli-h deposits
of vegetuble matter, conctituto the lewding topographical fcatures.

The leke Front ol Romhoy was first sottled in 1817 by

'~ parties from the liorth of Ireland, England, the pLaritimo Provinces, and

| the United States. Tho tuo rirst to locute within tho limits of this

* Township ware llathan Laldwin end Jameds Jtewurt who were setilcd Lul a
guort tine when tho Jeckson family took up six hundred ecrec nc.r the

- Eastern Town Line. The brotheors C:umuel wnd Jorathan Wilckwllo woro

©  aoong those who locutcd heore the susme year, and in 1818 olort Coutse

~ worth from Durham, England, took up Lot Two ['undred where hlis sou
Calob now resaides. Petor and Joseph lleatherington, Join Robinson,
Tho.as Renwick, Robert Shanks, Joun Dawscn and John Edwurds followed
Boon aftor and took locations further Zast anloang the shore. The
8ctilament of the Ridgo was for many years conlfined to these families
who exporicuced their full sharo of the difficulties and hardshiras
attondant upen pioncer life 1a the woods in being so f.r remcved from
& source of supplies. Their neoarest trading post was tuen lclden
{Azherstburg), wlich offered but indifforent attractions, they being ofte
obliged to go clear to Dotroit to obtuin the necessurics of lifec. The
nearest ©ill was on MeGregor's Creck at Chathas, forty niles distant,
and cecessible only on sleis:s in winter; but at a scncwuhat later dste
& 2dl1] vas erscted 4n the Tounship of Cosfield in Essex County which
roduced the Inconvenicnce incllent to & trip through tho woods to
Chathan, They node tueir Jouineys to the mills of Cosfiald and lalden
dn canocs, cocating elong tic ~hore in their freighted orafts with
comparative cusQ.

That portlon of l=imey remote from the Ridce did not
ditraot settlers for many yours after the forests had disay oared from
the shorc and thelr former sites had long since bloamed with the fruits
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- of successful sgriculture. In foot, the dute when settlors begcun to
soloet houes in the sccilc. r fextod to s still so recent us to
titute no text for an Lisloricul reminiscence, and tho reccrd of
r mroas in the fight with the forost has beon so upeventiul

; for no cumment unl.as cxpressions of respect and admiration
for the zeal, indusiry and putlenco displaycd Ly those wuo braved the
hapdships whioh prescitod thenselves to the soiilers und by thoir

porsevering energy have wrought such subastanticl improvexents in this

, uninviting portion of the Township cs toduy moet the eye
of the visitor. X 4 4 y

Prior to the inauguration of our present municipel system,

the Townships of Romney and Tilbury rast were united for yo resentation
in the Distriot Council, the honor uttaohing to thut office Lelng
shured in about equal degrees by Thomus Heathorington of this Township
and Peter Simpson of Tilbury. Im 1850 a sepurate Council wus elocted
for Romney, consiatiling of Thomas Jackeon, Joserh Hoatherington, John
Nhite, John Robinson end Robert Shanks, Lr. Juokson weos eluctod Reeve
and the minor officss were filled as follows, namely: Ralnh Bt.obb:%h

L

- Qlerk, Joun Dawson, Trc.surcr; Jocob Hyutt, assescor; Joun Joatswo

Collectior.

. Rouney contuins no villages of importunce nor any in faot
desarviys 4 wore digniried appellation than rural post villages, On the
Zssex Couuty Line, whero crossed by Tulbot Strect, the village of
Wheatlay stunds, principally in Dssex, liowever, ut a distance of forty
siles from Chuthame Its attruotions ure uot cxtonsive, consisting of
such evilences of Industry whd CCw.LOXCe @8 usually accoLpany a popu=
dation of three Lundred peoylc.

}‘wmnoz 48 a post office on Lot Two jlundred vhiere are also a
office, a fow suull mecLunios' shops end docks, over which

g_ﬂ:hnbh quantities of forest products are annually shipped.

ha ebove ig "ﬁtomaggo: ghompglcd

the late Love Husli Cowan abou 0 your
326 and exsractod by tihe ment Historical

Society 1947« et
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- The Townsllp o TIlLugy last is Lounded on the North by the
Siver Yhumes, on the Joutll Uy Lule Eris «nd ile Township of Roxney,
on tho lortheast by the Jovnobi) of Raleligh wad on tho fest by tho
Lounty of Issox, .

The Townshlp therciore partakes, roughly, the Zoxx of a right

sagled trianzlo of which tlo boundary line runcirg Nor.h .nd South

sotween the Countlies of font and Hssex and the boundary line running
Tast and Vest botuocn Tlllury Euat and Romhoy Townshir: fora the two
aidss cond the boun .ry 1lno rum ing Northwest and Sou..cust bLetwosen
e Touwnchips of Tiilury ao% aud Raleigh the hypoteonuis.

_ Tig eoncesasions, v thedr flanking roads, are 1un at right
gnsles €0, and the pide 1inca and youds are yun parallel with the | :
el ol Tilbury Zool Loundary line, thus producing a Iringe of gore
10%8 <iczs Coth the Esscex County lLine and the Roxney Toun Line.

ca yrofersznce o tio map It will Bo seen that dlago 4eross
a0 piddls of tho Tounship, s originally surveyed, wis run (with a
concesalion of lot: on ouclk 2%de) a roud, knowm as “The Middle Roud™.
Besiprncd, origin ily, for = _litary purposes, the road waz run in a
27 = couwrge, Jomming witlin tho Tounship two or thres cngles of
V. . ¥i 7 cbtusenecs obvicizly designed for the protaction of roops
& aluit cxposure Lo & Louillo enfilading fire. 7ais intes orcico with
tle ex’zinal plan sud survey of the Tommahip bocuis in after jears,
o0 or less of an inconvonlence although, by way of compens...lon, its
ey o was of groct Lozelld to the settlers at tho tiss uxnd in
gifor yours decamo tlc monsu of uhartening the distanco Uy L1 Ly
bDatweont tho Northuwost wund Scuthezut parts of the Townoudp.

The Towmakin, as curvoyed, boundod as It wos, on the North by

@ navicable river, and accooclblo from the Couth by Lake Irie, would,
&% Livzt olght, soes to have procented to the prospacting lrmlisruit a
r03% Douhitable aspecte 4~0 a motior of faot, on closcyr exuwiniiion suc
oot vas found fallacicouse £&n early osttlexens, it is v, took
plage cionx the narrow alluvial bank of the Tammes, ville & Z.2..5

tor, celtlement commenced on t o Talbot Road Lotc {roating on jok
Erie. 4lLoa cxtcnsion, bowey:.r, ¢ clther of thesc scltliemenls to.uurds

- the frtorior of the Towmshi - wau, ab the time and in view of tho

peenlisricics of the terral.. an! the limited rouculccs of the setilers,
&n imporcitilitye. :

The L:uk of the T . -5 <n which tho esrliest settlazent took
ploge, itscl? an ideal f£icll for agriculture, slopss * Jron the
FAvey souihorly towards ani coon roachkes a sulmels. ., L6828 area
of absut eions Licusend acri., Luown s "The Flains“ which uwus tho
hota of the Lull-frog end tojustlo fovwls and plants. Theoe Pluing
exientad s Ieke Ste Cloi . on ilie West, Bsstorly through the Tovn-
sllp of Tiibury Wost (or Iuoin), throwgh Tilbury Fust, aud torminated
i e "owaship of duloipgh w0 or thres milcs Eost of the Tiloury Zust
1' "R L .lle : "
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- South of ths Plulns, wiloch, Iin eurlicr seological tinmss, had
 probably boen & continuution of tho Flats of L:.Eo ,:t':icmr. l.nj" the
iy gus tulk of the Townshin &g en excecedingzly flut nlane with an
aclination Northerly oo tho bank of the Iake to th.o Plulns average
a8 ;wa';z ihiroe feot lo the mile. That inclinutica turned the druinsge
e ol the Towmahdp Nortluards Qlugonully ccross the Towmship lots

&8 puwrveyed, and these waters, ccc.lnz, in their Northverd courze the

~ Mpe of least resistanco, Iomed Jor tocnsclves five princlral chunnols
‘OF oreoks with mumercus tributurlicse %Shoco pain chanicls oo o L2
Enowm rospectively ex The lilckey Creok, $ho Ton, Or Sxith's Crock; The
EeDougell Crock, Yihs Twonly, or ullson's Creciz, tad Tho Burpess Crecke

in pursulng ticlr Northerly course, Loth the Eickey and the
S=ith's Creeka {(at sop.raic placcd) crozscd the Township l.mits into
the Townshlp of Ralelgh, findinz therp, within and near ths Busterly
end of "head”™ of the FPlaims «n outlet in Jeunnetto's Creck. Alonz.the
capaciouns channel of that slusgich stream thelr liquid Lurden wus tlence
borne Westwurd, alons wiil o .o sccwmleted drafnage of, practicully,
- the whiole Tovm.hlp of Dolaiph, to re-orocs (ko Townalil) ts iato the

" . fomnship of Tillury oot noor tho Southesst wnsle of the Fourth Cone

cession of the TovnsLip lusi ouamced, DMuzning therce wWesterly, the
Jeammetto®s Creek 18 socn Jjolned Ly the wuters of The licDoupsll and
ultimatoly Iinds an outlet for its turden in the Hivor Thuxes at lob
Fosber Iing in tho First Concossion.

A "ho Wilson Crocok bad Ats source in the Townshlp of Romney and
in 4te Northerly vassuge, togothor with 1¢s tributories, provided
craineso for the testorly kalf of tho Towuskip of Tilbury luat, with
tho e ception of a sr-all territory nouy its Southwosterliy cugle whieh
w.2 du.ined by tho Purgess Crock cbove nuucd into the Cournty of Essex.

The ¥ilson Crook orossos the Niddle Noad at Lot Kulor Tvwenty
end thonco procecds Korthorly to tho River 7T.lzes, providin; 1ln its
passese an outlet for tho oupopresurfuce wators of tlie Vestcrly sscijon
of The Fludns, 3

T3 will thus bo scen that, for ths tise at least, tho extension
Southorly of tie Rivor Sottlement was an utter inpossibility.

Scrreoly lecs difficult siculd have thon booa the oxfension
Forthruzrd of tus settlancnt ¢ tic lots frentin; on Ielo Eries It will
bo rercubered thet the lots Jroniting on the lake ore & =ilc in length
and th:t the full lNorthurly from tho luke JFront is aboudb $hreo fect to
the nmilc. Aganirst that full hu dralinage, Couthorly, of the lands still
further Jiorth wus, then at lcast, imprecticable. Northwards thore wus
N0 natu-ul oreek or chuinel of cupaelty culliecicut Jor use am @3 cutlet,
the fectlio trickling of tha 1mecl-ituted watera co neur tho head having
yroved inadequateo €0 the Joiiutlica of such a channel. To consiruct
Jrafinago works Northward wau, fur lack of means, out of tho quostion.

The only Lope of scitlin; the interior of the Tonosllp was
theroforo the advent ¢ & suLtler or community brave cnuu;l to dare,
ca the murcin of one o~ other of thoe creoks asbove npamed, tho solituds,
the kardahips and tho &ro Lo, Lnown and unknsun, that luriked in tho
dopths of tie primeval [uri. e Zhore the night ws ro.’o hldeous Uy the
ecrie Hooting of the o). U am 1ts unsunned recesses (i tinzo would
e o thc settles o © w3 Lie baying of tho welfl and ilelce, &t any
tiis piaLt coergo thc dlsure of tho Indicn Savagos Added to tho terrors
that wore roud as woll wo those - the ercatures of the frvisinction =
dora An L. 2leocm of tic Jorost, ware the praoctical diffic lties never
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o Mnood or therctafore inagined Ly the new sottlor; In 2pring
 tz2 wkals tegrizgr;" Y28 &n unbrolon suamp, its watory contents ooz{ns
. fowarcs the uufurel eresls wilch, ab that season, ovorflowed

0 doepe> eenlroul channel £o wiich their waters wore coulined
£i1250g to repleticn the slallcuer rewches of the doopml'cu '.-.-!;101:
~extanded sono distance lutorally on eitler side, As the sccuon td=-
o+ wenced, the couniry ganerally dried out, and uy Lid -gwamer, In ordinary
‘Beusons at least, the wholo land bocame so dry that novlere = uob even
. dn tho ercek bolben or its nmargin could bo scourcd, Ly dioslos or
nlicrwise, & drcp of walor {or men or beoote LLth Lo ¢xcupticn of &
© Biping on North Iell Iot Numbor our, Concession Ilnc,wiici wuS evente
toily ouged and occupled by Lire Jizied Cempbeil, wilch caxe to b2 knowa
£5 "Ibe Deor Luko®, apd tud othors in the covo lcoczlity of less repule,
thera 513 not a living water sprirs {n the wlole Tounsiiipe. The culy
posaible methsd then knowm, of cocurin: @ wetir supply avallabls ot
- 2ll tizes for man and beost wud o Lolo an excavation in thes.soil of
 -sufficlent atorego capacity for wll roquircients.

B R BARLY SRITLLINST.
%0 the oye of the iew cotor, Lhe rrospoet was indeed @rcazy in
tho exirexe. Almost everytidng in Nature sccicd hostilee RNight on

duy turough the gleoom of the woods his boly wes tormented by risaguitees

i eveny tree &7 the Jorest, In form houcver nagnificent or in Louuty
JGowover dressed, for him bPod little attructicon, for inm cach he sew a
Sarrier to his progr-ro apnd ent cncuy to Lo overcases Around -him stocd
- reprecentulives of lorest develorzocnt from the {irst feeblo sprout to
.- the graceful olm, the gorgzeous nurle or tlie glant cake Thero ctood
2180 tho skeleton roralns of the iiing of the forecst, gount anrd rrim,
s tendins to heaven his whitened tiunceted linmbs gruliting dunbiy the .
+ - 5348 of lho stom tbat sbould, with thundering crech, loy bim low with
. Bis wouldering ancostors wiicl, Lure énd there, oround his lay prone
‘o2 the Cfloor of tho forost. {000 wWoss fall had been reeent, 1oy
8triprod and nuked. Othsrs, encoocd in Nuture's green wincing shoet,
of living moss, hed alrcady begun to yield tholr cubstunce for the
Sustonancs of plents wnd infunt trees shich, finding rooteso in his
= decaying surfuce; Jleuntingly, in the fuce of death, uprecrcd the fleg
“of sriumpbapt life. [ut ulothor deud or clive, erect or prone, rigid
i2 dectd or decampasced £9 &8 to collupue unier the passing foot, to
Lil, every tree wes wi cacuy that stood or luy in the wny of his
#+ 2 Xe58e .

"~ Intc such a possezzicn lod the early cottler coxes A Surtile

8081 Indecod awnited his skill end fndustyy end guve promiso of future
reward, dus wlat of tho prescnb? Pofore tlio soll could become Losplte

- @bloe to plant or secd, ile original orop must Lirst be cut dova and

 burned off, root and bLiotcl. To nost of tie frnfsrents tho work was
Rew and arducus, the clinclc, in its extrous of Lhoat and cold, wus
trylfc, and few indeed wore fortunuto encuch to escape tho cuills ana
fovers sroduced by tho mularial exhwlaticns from the lindtless fleld of
dacompos” ng tindber and vegototlon or by tlhe poiconed bites of the
L8 ol mosquitoes from: wlilich thero wil O eICLQC.

The £irst to dzre the sollitude ol the foresd scems 1o hevo beeon
Joln Neuume, who with his wife son Tou2ull, abead 1784, sctiled on the
Binkk ol the Thames and proceaded Lo prejure for aimsell end fuzily &
koie Sn 4o forest. Thaoy were rijIidly Tellowol by others, cnd s0on,
& prosporous corunliy wus formode  Mre Heow oz, 40 would ¢ vim, wWas
tie first white man 10 dlo in the Towuship, tucialng in lo-, the first

i o S w
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N ' jn of an epldcaio of mallypox which 4n that your 213 sald to have
borne o tholr last rost c3 & lar
: th.o 1ittlo colony. i pla. C? e e i

2 Ty 180), tho pottlement had progressed pufficlontly o culroag
- tha neod of @ cormon ploco of woraship, und, cceordinzly, in thas year,
.8 erootod on tho rivoer bunk, thrce rdlos bolcw the site of the
) 4% Ote Petor's, the firat Nonan Catholic Church in tho Townohipe
S ¢ R:i& according vo the luts Judge vioods, in his *Herriscn Holl",
| . that old church was ebandoned end, in {ts placo, ecrected a mew church
. . on tho olte now occupled Ly the prosont siructurcs That church cone
« « tinued to be a land-nari over tho troeless plaing for niles arcund,
. " @s well &3 a place of wornhip until 1890 wicn 4t wus wosidently burned,
. Sioon afterwurda wug erocted, on tho swie oito, tha Chusch now exlsting.

' Tho Ieke Irie Scttlement.

The I-ke Erie Sottlerent originated inm 1819 with the arrival,
U7 say of tlLa Talbot Roud, of Poter Oimpson, Thomso Askow end Robors
S fhonks driving en ox coart wilich 48 zald to lLuvo been tho £irst vwheeled
. tonwveyange to hLave reachied tho Townchip. lire (hunks tock up land
»  &nd settled in tho Towushl) of Nouney, them united sunicipully, with
Yilbury Past, to boccmo tho fcunder of the Chonks Punlly in that Towme
nh&cg, still 80 wall i fuvorably known. MNosorse Askow and Simpson
DOt cattled on tho Tulbot Moad in the Township of Tiltuyy Icste Up
%W 1025 they hed shured together ia brotherly fashion, tho Jjoys end
¢« % Soils, the hopaz und discourupencots of pionecr life, btut, in that
v - Jeur, they becuno brothors in a npore real scnge by murrying, cach a
0 Sougnter of INMre Thoman Willon, who, by that time had bocoze thelr
- dolpghlore !'re Simpson's bride wus liiss Ann, tgod 18, vihile Lre. Ackew's
slolce was 1ica Yary, azed 16, Arrapgenonts for a Qouble woddirg
aeving deen conploted, thoe two ocuples ot out togethor &n (uoct of &
ot rato to porform tho double corexorye On thelr way ithey chocunte
ored ¢ Lridgoleno stroom, 11t Iovo, = &8 ever, undauntcd by a pud-lock
or flvod, overcame tho d.{_‘-:':.culty Uy becring safely to tho otbosr elde
the ialr brides in tho amo of thoir reoapectivo grocma,

It wis not tlll seven yours ufter tho deto of the celobration
of this doudlo marrinzne that tho sleopins echoos of tic interior of
- Sho Townphlp were L. .Ut awakexed by tho stroke of a pettlirts ax, In
1532, tvo brothers, Tucmas end Robert Smith - both widowers - hailing
‘. fion Dumfrias-shire, Scotland, acocmpanied by tholir respective fumllies
* Bet thely fuces towurds Cunada and &b last lunded at Moaltreol during
o tlo tize of a cholera opidenios, Thers thoy wore detained for two -
= weoks waltin: for a Durbianm boat to carry them vostward to wlint wug
= then Imown &0 "Canade Weot", Unable to obtainm o zir o eloeciliorg,
« . they were compellod to cump in tents on the coorons cod o cupply thoe
Bolves with tho nocessarica of life, Including woteo el tlicy pure
€ sed at tho prico of ton cents a pudde AL looo tho ecgirly annlicd
' A boat errived and Srmodiotely thoy struci camp and ook pasunlo
20 t'o Weate Those frelplt-cars;ln rurhem Loutd sgex to havs been
corst -ucted with flat bottoms e 12 have beoa otherwlsoo speclally
‘edanted for use in shullow water, tl.clir usucl motive power bolns poles
operated by tho hunds end musolcs ol tlo Boalnitde Fcoidldes tho crew, ‘

!

this particular boat, &t least, i: suld to buve carri.od ¢a tourd five
Yok of oxon viich ware kXopt in resorve for trustica urioses In
pel ling the boat ageinst the current in ¢t »aplds epcountercd fn
ester . passages, . In this way tlcy wero corried Lo Xingston, w..noo N

S



E fom,

L4

Jolm, i3 fuifiluont ol his en;
&8 s00n © found advicablo.

they yroceaded ?o Teronlo, Wlon !mown bY the less euphonicus nome
Yoike rmn“ -E)_::*:: Loy wons to liaguera by bout end ibeiacs, by wegon
S Chipruia, wherae thoy Socured puvsuge on & sehoonsr fro: whish

P werg landed at Mort Ctanloy. In o ssarel of @ desiratlc situation
'_L . I

elity In which to ©ottlo, thuy made @ viusit to Ste Thonmas, but
fatiln: to find o sultalle location, they retistad to I’Srt Sttmioy.

L2
ASterd thoy found pwalting thes au Lovitullon fius Colonel Talbot to
TWASSS Bl 0% lle youldoncos  Ab Tho mooliag thenco rosulting Cole

gdvisod tlhew o vicit the Tovnclip of TilLury 5%, giving then

pparmdasion to ook throu h the To.anbhip and 2o scleols rfor eaoh OF
v En:na

LVes end for cach of tholr Loys over tuenij-onae years of age,

~ & 100=soue dote The Liotlior Iobuit Led, lowever, Losh nountime
Toffarcd o position oo forenan ip & sow=rill b london (then known &8

*The Forike") sidch It was deomed wivisablo tuos he should aceopte

+% was Cherefore resdlved thut Slwias «od bis fumily, eonsisting of -
Robort, Jumes, Duvld and 3Lliza, togethor with Nobert's sons Rdward
and m&n ehould praccod 1t ’:Ilz;ur;( a3 instructod by Colcnecl Telbot
and that Robert, the oldor, should go to london with hiso ycungest son
agesent end reojoin the cothiera in Tilbury

The party thus desl;nated for Tilbury Bast thcruforo took
pasoage in a littic sloop, 2roa wilch they ware in due Lino landed

&% Ceod.r Tprinyia, whonce thoy found thelr way (probably along tho

blazed tiuil of the Liddle Lcad Survey) twolve miles into the dush
Junidn: et Jot nuwdbor ten, at which 18 situated the proseht Btouurﬂ
Pe0s 1lesc lilza, the ouly wonan of the party, when leaving Cedar

Springa, ported with womunkind, novermoro for the spuce of elighteon

BOLLLE, U pee tho faco of a manbsr of ber cwWn BSeXe :

The lots ware Tull bafore them which to chocso™, und they
LInuddy sllected Touth Fulf Lot Number 10 i's Re He 68 tho cito of
Shely Juture residaicue %Lmsugh it woandsrs tho channel ol what
bocuze thonoefortl: luiwova au 7.9 Ten, or Sudth's Crooke Their neareat
goccasible nelightour toin: thon on the Taldbot Roud, about £lx miics

Cdlotant, they wore oconolotely throva upon thelr owi resourcscse %The

tine o thelr cotilemens was tho mouth of August and the. erecis wea
dry = s5 dry that, in tholr i:norance of its hablis, they hod bo o un .
to Lulld thelr shanty 4u iis Clato, whieh, in 8prins und ollar ilco

4 tiuos wure oomplotoly ovurilovode T-‘ortunutelylc' a visitor frou tuo

Lulo Sobtlement had Lven wasalng of their mistuke und tho sirucsture

: wus roved to higher gruuude For tuo present, howevaer, tholr troulle
Wu2 not tho over abunci.ico bub the fauine scarcity of vaters Hono was

t2 Lo had short of the Iulc, distunt as already siated, about alx
rilcde It wus, thorefors, nocossary to detuil two of thelir sirungust
young pon for the purpose of Loarin; through the woods in pails,

‘Bonetdiave susypended fro:m @ pole rooting on the shoulders of LU

bearera, the procicus liquide For the first scason, ut leust, supplies

- of wheul or rlour must have buen Lorno in, in 1o oo fagi._on.

Indood 1. 18 ou record thut suppllos of flour wsro, {or yeurs uftore

Cwards corrtod 11 the way froi: Alwratburg in £IfTy pound scckxa on
“the shoullors ¢f nowsconsrs, eu tloy succeasiully arrivods Soon,

‘Bowever, tic o 0. fanilies would lave wheat of tholr oum producticn
Sand thon, 17 00% Loloro, Mre (aith's eldest son Robeld ocomuiiucted &
“Band g lot-221) or rachine, 2214 to have boen his oim inverllon by
“mhich Lo loused 4 (visto ! thozo of noighbours were for acne
Sing ground, ais £o.Ulo ¢ut.oo, with 1ts door-silin bolt, nunctured

and Piiod for seavios Uy thoe use of @ redebol wiro wus socu pup. .-

- g/
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. by an oz-driven »!1' Gich in tur. gave place to stearm driven
-."\!';‘;w:? equal to the orcinary stendurd of its duy,

s ol Tho Eniths were not long left in tholr condition of icnslinoss
- and solitude, eliliongh @8 to uwho wore theiyr first puccozaors in the
~ proocession in whileh they were, thonvelvos, the locdors, thore 1 some
" umeurtainty. Xt i3 cortain, howuvor, that emon:, il not tho first, 0

Baco o Chelr noighbours ware Matthow artin und Afs wifo wiilh thelr

- fanlly, then consisting only of girise Iumnediatcly roliowing Nre Yartin
gt Adoxander Stewvenoon end his wife with thelr Jofly consisting of
POth Lovs and girls. Ure liartin cottled on South Pelf? Lot Junber Tour,
Cone usion lidne, and kre Stevenson cu Morth Null Yot Hunbur our, Cone
cousion Toit, Juost acrous the Roud . lowedcoe IHire Mertin hed hod
cxpurionce as grievo or fern nmunager on o lurzs furm or estauts in the

‘ South of Jcotland and frnediatoly oot to wori to clear & ficld con

- waleh he succosdod in sowing full vhout the same youre From tho time
- that the produce of that sowing was roaped, he nover left his kc.o in

'J:’] - scarch of work, purchaucd a pound of rlour, or, othor tlan for chunjo

of sued, doucht a bushel of whoate That wus porbans an achievemsnt

~ uwparallielled im the community. In «ll his uork ho was meat, forcoful

end cfusocssful, beccuing eventuully ono of tho woulthiest furmers in

' ¥r. Steveonson, who aluo come from the South of Scotland, had
in My native land been a bluckaniih. In disposition, he wes kind cnd -
sRerous = cver Ioudy to hel) a ncislibour by serviecs at thae forzo or en
0 fuarm, widlo in sicknoos (no docuior being avaliluble) ke wenld sivs
wWigost J.oy preseription for zen or Loust end would, £a case of aecidont,
with tendoricss end wondorful oidlil, zet = bone o dress & woulde NO
wes, howavoer, less forceful and inlustrious thanm wus his neishtour
across the roud and cousaguently rouwd 1t hooessary to uuka rrequent

‘withdrawals to tho Unitcd Stutes to earn tha means of supplying the
~ Beeds of his Louschold.. '

Soon ufter the advent of the Stewunsons thu 1ittle colony on'
the onith's Creok was clLoerod by the arrival from the Forth of Ireland
of Cli.rles Canpbell and Lis feully, econcisting of s wife end 3ix boys
and Lireo giris. Hr. Canpuell subiled on Morth Half Lot Nine L.R.H. .
Four, at leust, of hio six sons boowte each the owner of Lalfl a l¢% of
d00 Lores, but Jumes ulore toitled poreanexntly in tho Townalkip. His
docation wus Forth Half Tot law ber “cur in the Ninth Conccuaslon. iiis
. Saroecr was honourable w:d prosjerous bubt only ons of his four sons has
8een £it to sottle down porusnently in his nutivo Township.

: ‘Pron that tine on, the diferent setiloronts wero ycar by year
© Poinforeed by frosh arrivals to cach of whom was piven hospitable and
eulimsinctio wolcone withoul questini as to country, clan or croed.
Uitlout ¢z hour?s unnecassary delay, o raising beo would be called and
20 la poralng of the rfirst availadblo duy, would assonble on tho dosise
Litold lot, every ablo-bodled ran, aute in huand, to clear a sit: for, and
CUt of the standing timber in the surrounding woods, bofore o sotiing
. ©f the gon, to construot for the sccxwisdution of thelr now v ichbours a

Prinitive shantye. Such structures, rough and ruds as thoy worg, arforded |

8ho. . .r and a degree ol coxfort coarmensurate, at least, with iho rmodest
' @Xpeclation of thelyr prospeoctive ocoupants wiio Jiod cono doetoliined to
do #1d endure vhat might Le necesvary to wrovido for thenseltes end
falilies a homo that thoy might yel bo eblo to c2ll their ovle.

2lirnt 62 was the obostruciion whioh tho creoctidn ¢ a structure




so uds couwld possibly ;ut In tho wuy of Hynon's activities, a atill
gasler pulltwny waug aflorded hla in the case of & youwi.: couple, cne of

O wtiom belonged 40 the Culpbell fexidy wlhio ars sald o Lava commenced

houtekoosing and to Luve nude tholir home for & yo&r Iin tieo nollow
dntozicr of a ronstLor Luttuomod, or sycors trea whiose open door
and coyuolcus interlioz, as 1t lay prome on their farm on Jorth Half
Tot Muiber Jix (or scven) Fllllille O 1ant froe torms involving no
fac.oase ila tho usaszssuent valuo of tholr ectate.

In 1833 arrived in the Towuship John Coutts, o a yeor
earileor hund loft his fam in tho purich of Clengzirm, Scotlind, bearing
the lzpesing nane of Tullochxcolisyrick to make for h{:'.sclf, uLs wifle
sad four stolvard sons and two doughters who acetcmpanied hic a hoze
in theo vI1ldl woodls of Canada Tests landing Lirst at Ancuster la tho
Gounty ol Luntooltil, dire Coutis tock & yoeur to Jlook mround for a -
suitable leocation und, b lust, attuzcted by the wide runge of traeless
pasture lands on the margin of tho Thenes , thon 1osa flooded thian

" thoy sulssquently became, be setiled on tho lNorih liclf lob I'uslor

Tine in Lhe Pifth Concessiun,. Thal lot, adlucent to the Wil:ton Creek,

~ o osueded on o level sulficlently high for druinage purposes, was ia the

iicodlate vieindty of tho coveted pasturcgo, and, 1o contrusi witlh the

‘Lend €oarth wd dearness prevalling in Scotiand whioh hod rade hin
- bopelens of being able to provida there at any possibdble rental, farcs

for idz Loys, Lhero, all around strectchod thousands of acres of fertile
lails eugerly faviting occupation by the stout heart and the willing
b

It is interssting to oota thul krs. Coultts was a cousin of
¥ury Robertson, Lie poet Lyroa's boyhood love. ;

; Threg yours later, JoLn Tlstcher, wio, in early boriwod, had
through accidont or other o2ude, loat antirely the ude of cie of lis
lower limbs, bad Deoon educated for a Bohiool toachere 10 taut capucity
Lo had found Tor sowa years emplovient In ths furleh of Glensalrn, near
Y.l had boon hls oyhood hcme. Influgnosd o7 tue exarple of Llis '
fricnds, tho Coutts Lfolly, he razolved to follow thax to Ciouda and
«scodiingly, in 1036, with his young wifo, set ssll for Quebco, and
Iound blis way to Port Stanley. There hs obtained cupleyamert in his |
closen profcession for one jour, recelvics 4t tie ond of tic period
ol Lis cngugenent, a8 ockponsation TOr Lis scrvicod & yolio i’ Oozony
vartially tralned, &nd @ hoize. Wil these and & rmude curt to wliilch
tha oxoi were hitohed and bohing whiclk the Lorse wus lod, he —udo his
vwiy vhrouzh woods aud partial clespances to Chuthus, then cn izsionifie
c.al v . lage or humlete THO or thrve niles down tho River Thames, in
tlie Tc nship of Lover, he tus fortunate encupgh to obtainm cmploymernt
&e school teachicre In 1840, Lc purchescd frox: lioberté Sodth ( wio,
liler, Lociis o successful furmer in the Township of flerwich) tho South
Hdl of Tob liczler Two, Cohiccoalon Eigit, Tilbury East, sgrocing to
Py Whozolor . CeC0 inm cuchi end to dellver to the vendor, & yeur later,
el Lt tlree=-your-old stecrz cid one helilere On the propertiy, of which
«cre8 lhad been cleared of Linler, was a log lLouse und Larne Thore,
41L wx Interzueptica of Tud yours during wiich ho tsught school in the
o Ship of Roaaiey, ko pade his Lone $i1) the tine of his deutk in
“Je NIb curesr as a foyner, potuwitbstonding his phiysicul hondicap,
Tus olt progperous. FOor sovirul yeers he tuught school within ths
To.aship neer hia Love, resmuneration for his services Lelng chiclly,
47 net entirely conlined to school fois. Loney beling in those duya
X ilinely scureoc, cusl poynsnts encupl Tor taxos wire celdon rade or
~,0%cde For that reason tie collicctlion of even Lcolfling suwis cuch as

|Ds'!ﬂs‘\
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pahool foos should dave boen thun p-ob..bly Sopructiosblo.  IXre
Tictc:. 3P Wi, :._..cvo... aluays willing Lo soeccpt and Lis p.lrons were
& waly ;.-,-. s o nmoke sottlérent of cuch accounts in tie shope

Co %ok ditour elther in Joand closring or cn the form in licu of
Sadlle - Ly cuch reina, to_,o...‘ 2 '1:‘. 1..".:: oA Sraro timo industry, a
conaidor: :,_ rilon of hia Tar: scon beocine £1% for cultlvation
- mewoniice i.'.., GLoon of C.o8o, Logs and Zozces bozin to escuzo
golsldoralle Pro orsiosla Jar coventosu yoars prior to his death
{1856~4C73) be Lold this paositlion of TO .:.'_:;J.p Cluri, coupled for
Sovar.l yoors witl thint of Trecvurer o welle I tic tine of his
doath lic had scquired and, with 1ho excoptions of yortions theretoe
fO 9 GO ‘ACd O'F'ul‘ EO BG:Q b o7 31" 04 Ild-w ¢«--J-1¢.. uv.ll moa nbout

€00 wcics of land.

Leantize, the ad’:c:‘“ of fresh settlars was belrz raintained
with iporeusing rupiditye. ou the $iiddle Doad, .in the vicinity of
the ¥Wilson Creck, soon after the arrival of o .dths. cricinated
@ prospsrous seltlencni of wilch ono of the first menbors wus Jobn
®ilscn, & nutive of the Jorih of Ireland who was dostix:od to tulkc an
actdve pert in the "“"1.-.;.‘..;.:.'..3. locally, of Municiral Covernueonte.

I a sectlon of tiic Soutlicasterly part of the Tounship wiieh
iz druired by tho Hickey Cresk a sottloront was coomeuncod in conparage
t;’.‘:&l}; c~ d <7 tizese The coltlers wero 205tly all of =nglich desconte
o coe of theso, numed Dudder, the ssttlesent eurly derived and
sLill ..,,‘._a thie nu.o of Daddertowdle Puing for the nost purt adliere
€08 of tlio Methodlst Church, the settlers wero at &a early dericd
in theo history ol the Tounsh ;p tble tO crect for theouselves a pluco
o0 worcidp, widcl, to their crodit, has been ever since muintained.

The ecairs of the Townuship was settled largely Uy peoplo
of et ,.m; doz.;;:. L0 with o conoidoreble mixturo of irnigrunts froa
the Yozih of Ireliids loot of these wuro soxbders or acherents of
tho e .-byt.or.....a c“umh, though, for soo tine unr;ani..c.. end
destitute of religious ordlnunces of any kind. In 2846, tixov h the
Sootrentality of Yeve Lire Duthorlend of Eokfrid, a congre_-ilion
vis orjanized, and in o o.:: ¢t tine thorcafter a J.o.,; chureh w.o
oruotod Tor thalir mociiiodutlion on Scutheast part of lot ."_-;_;,-.:.'
Six8077, NHeReMe That structure wus preplaced in 1262 by a szubstintial
Lrune Lullding on tue sune gite, wlich £ittingly served iis purpose .
uitil superseded iIn 1904 Tty the p.osunt handgone strusturo.

The Couthwust pere of the Towmship wus, ab first, setilcd

. dx -3 population, of .oz wore & large proportion of poonlic
Ir- it desceute Those cihering to tho Iicman Catholie falth 10l

c IC8BG 20 & plnco of wcroLip on the Nlddle Noud in Lhe Townsliip of
Ledbury Weg %, but no Protesiunt church wes for some yours coiublished.
Help co J, however, atout or pousibly @ year or t‘“‘ atter luao. by
the arvivel of tho Reve Vm. "ur, CCo Wl cems @S &k :,..mm.ry ov tho
Enr,li sh Congresational Churcie lire Durgess was & zc-lous end errc...?.-
dve Einlstor uud the bteneficunt oflcots of his lulours soon becums,
end still ure nonifest in o localitye

.

Dlscoure tnouts,

n gplite of tho inistry of the early settlers cnd the
cuflv ol Loprovencuio thence seculting, conditions continucd to be
g I v teylng ol comsenucntiy many became discourasoed and somo
208 .. country iu .lsgucie lideod many that rexalpod readlly cone




fansed thut they mainod only becounae or hmb*lity to leave, Ona
gotiler o & 10T an the MIdAlC Road poar Merdin Jo said to have oold
tiw hls ferm, with all dmprovenonts, for a vulr of boots. In theseo

¢ was able et cut wit.u dry festé tnd utlorly vanish fron t.ho

scone ©f Lis trituletion, Anolller name-Corpoottca ran who sat

on liorth hnlr\ro.. Bubon > Thirtean, ZeReSey 10 suld to beove _.:.q.d. cut
his provc *-w for & tosrol of wiigkey and preferring apporently, & sxald
ganplo ol goods that weTe ot ta a hundred corcs of land in L0o Suso

- eomditicn, pnsnad, otlermice fron sicht. and LCnolve

Sawn,
Over the sceno of < scouragenent, Lowever, in a few ycurs
vz on to aliow on the horizon the Iirst strecks of dawme %he trcm
8% a Lot for joars iy tho tollzome rooval of the standing tiuber
inpuded sarely the - progwees of the plovzh beosan at lust to yield o

decay inm the carlier clouru .cus, and @8 tho caucipated srea increused
fron yeur to year, & corresconding insreaso 13.; t:;o goroazo devotod to

¢ slieat production took placee. -In thoog eurly duys tlhe orors wore

gm...-‘,' abundent and in consoguoence a mdcr.,‘..o nrasperlty gson begun
r throw 19¢s radisnice over tho cozunltly.

3" ¥ith inwovcd conditions, Lowover, the compellin: hard of
rocesoit- which had therotofore stirrcd <o ultxost ca“ac:.t.y viic physieal
end 1ept il energies of the settlers wes withdramm and a chiort period of
reduced cotivity spncers to have ot in. . Durins that period, th
@orly sciilers, 11, iing from thelr fouitful flelds produce sulficient
Tor wue uaJ.y of thoir frugal ncuds, councl to oxert themsclvis aB
romul for tho oxto 'aion of thelr cleurunccoe <%ho result Las that,
ror e ..@, only £1ig.t fmercuse In t-ho oriblo arca of their lfurms
. plucos  Jiature, Lowaver, haz hor onn wny of correctir: hep
c,... cren cnd her co'*:oc“ 23 hund sun soon rc-, Yy the youthml aot.tlo-
Boite Cirs tine in tho ﬁ.tt...ca of the contury uppcarad the uiica
Si00 Or weevll und the whcat erop wud by 1fs roviges S9 rodtced rm
y- L 20 yoso wWint atb dast encuch vwicat wis not prgiduced withia the
X *..1 to “'le its oun maessitiuc. In 1800, tho year in sliich
SOzt o tm., o3 Q youns man exrrived with Dis fatler and fumily,
i .-J‘ 1y of flour ves purchiicad £0 the rato of ton dollarn a barrele.
o ek of it wne uscd L7 our .ou*;...a_... a gleapur substitute boling
found in corn meal ...ca., as rush and Jolrny euks, becozs our ataplo
diet in cciuon with t.ost ol cur Rel Liorde

{Adout, or porhapc a little ‘.,...ora the tinge of the arzival
of tho nilge post, saveral e siios Prom tha nolgicorhood of Montreal
made thelr home in Tiibury Zucl, tringing with thea a knowlelze of the
..mufaot:.re of potashe Amonpus those were the Elclardson, Htcwart,

Ining and Ainslie fanilios. rhaps the most entorprising o ::;at
ticso wag John Richardson, 1.5 cane with his ovn Tauily and &
&CoC -1an1ed by his own parcuic and the othor mexbors of n:.ﬂ -¢ther'a
ficil7e Ilire RBichardson purcshacad fron fessrs. Joun &nd Imnloel Kerr
the Jouth =1l lot Wumber .'.- s L....I.., & lot well wocdod with
el timlor vhich, though tio: oOf o merchantable valuo, w:as the king
of rotasli rroduceys.s Comrcicing wlsth his usual onersy, . Te aichardson
o8 unly .2 his fam gpocd iy oleared, dut dorxonstrated to 1id3 neighbors
that Lo couldl, during tho clicaring procecs, nuke wug c.,, at louste The
Fasu . s that soon the woods ‘.11 ground ware resocunding arsw the
8Lr. .2 of the weodinan®s uxse, wilch soon produced & lurge increase of

whg wres ol deforeatsd lc.::d.

"t': LA
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: In 1066 thelozes ol ¢' 2 co runliy wore revived Ly roports
thal e o Lo be circulated Liot o vaslely of wheut had Deon rroduced
o |lscovered tist wus proof agoinast the ruvases of the »1dz0. That
L Bame foll, & nucler of the Tiibury farters Lid boom zupplied with

$he scoc~uhwat of tho now varlety, and io tho fall of the nox
SUCCeC.Laf Yool wCll wig Zold &b soventy-live ¢onts por tushel

BINGE Lol LLLO WLl Boous L0 have Leed no return of tuat particulay
8idze end thwe Llolds euqlonlcld in aerca, a3 thoy wore by the cloarance
ELQS LOF POLaid Procuciool, weew s availcblo for mors extensive sCu-

dng an. more abundent Lirveoioce
anleivel Covornxmende

Frior to the year 1070, vlich caxo into force an Act &4f tho
Provinee of Canzda for the craction of the lunicipul Corporations,
0% celii, Lho Province of Cupads was, for lunfcipal jurposes, divided
into goveral large districis, es the divisions were culled, each come
prising more thon one County. - One of theas, Encwn oo the Vestern
- Blatrict conpricsed tiv Counties of Lent, Bussex and lo-bion, The
Coungil for cocli Lisiziet vas eopposed of Conisclonocrs or Counclllors
-~ electod cnmnnlly Uy the lerclly queliflied elootors resident within
the diotrice, cucl Tounship Loling cntitled to roturn ennually cno such
PEIrOLCLLLLiVo aud no Rorse The Veoctern District hold thclr roetings
iz the Town of Bandwlch, to resch wliich, over tho rouds or tralls then
exioting ruct have bLecn, indeod, for the moru dlstant mozlory, & zoat

scrious undcrtukins.

frior Vo tho flrst Towunshi) mecting bhold in Tiltury Z.ot (dileh
w3 neld in Juntury, 4836) it would appoar that statutory provision
hud beoen zude, not only for the election of Distriot Councillors, but
also for tho election in éach Tounsiip of certain officers for the
soanugoi.ont of yurely leoccl affairse Such peoctings were kolld on the
firat londsy of Janunary in cuch yesr under the Stutute, provicion
baing modc for bolding ipterin or oxirs mectings under o Juicrial
werrant. 411 swppoinionts swoxm to bavo Leed formally mude (after
bolng roved cad seconded) by o show of hends. '%he local bunajgemont
Doard c-asisted of tirve non wio Sco to bave beon Mnown &svCorrissione
ers’ orviardens®. OGhor locil officars so appointed were (lorik,
Treagurer, Patlmastor, Poumi-locper, Auditor, I'tnec-vicuor end several
OLLoXrs, ail cppointuonts Lelng for one Jeur only. .

Judsinzs from thio records otllil extant, these clections wouid
appear to have Loon tukem rathor Guricusly. In 1842, for lastsnco,

Lor Simpson, elready namod, wes duly cleuotod &8s repressututive in the
Labrict Councils. Tor somo rouscn ot discloosd, he haed bocen found
=Lolicidle for the offico ani, therofore, by virtus of & worpant under

1¢ hand of J. We Littlo, D8teye JfePsy & Brocial moetins of tho Zleators
- Souvenod on tho 27tk day of Jenucry of the cizs yeur for the electicn

Oof a it and proper person to telio his plucee Tie Cepdldstes at thls -
Leoting were lire Francis Trudsll from the river and Lre Luncan lelonald
 &vem the loke distrlicte AL tlio close of thwe Iirst duy, tho zajority of
ti2 wwies polled wero in fovour of Mre Trudeoll. At the roguest of
besor., Jumes Zmith, John wWillan and Thos, Suith, the poll was continued
oozt &0, &b tha close of which Ere Trudell was stlll dicnds Still

14 Liv. iad, Messro. Thoz. S.“.lth, Vie Pa Zobertoon end Joezes Smlih
Uil oo azd oblalnocd en axtonsion of the poll for paxt follcuirs daye
LS Lhe cloza of that duy, Kre iiclonuld was declarced Culy elccico.
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- T&e elorald, houover. 214 not tuke his scst ot the Council
‘ t..‘muat: Lo explunation ol Lo Calluro 5o to 4o is moracd.c fron the
Fecord io appears that o Uilrxd neeting wes held oa the 18th duy of
S00Ad ©F the Zune yesr, in pursuunco ©f & warrant under the hand of
John Loioen, Esquire, Uarden of tho District *ror Lio parpose of
cloosl 1] énd pominuiling one fit and proper perccn to Cervo as a
. Coumcliilor od tic lulleipality of tho Western Iistrioi®. Tho Candicates
T wers ‘!?.‘E.. ;.gc;‘:: i1, R . inated LUy Kre Rolert Syers, Ere. Jimes Smith and
kr. 5o HLS LRALf “la LBe Trunode Trudell,od moticn of Lire Tie Houton,
© Beconcd Ly Ire Joia »dloen cnd 're AloXe LoGregore The result was
the elici on of lire Kellodl Ly a pujority of soven votes.

Pecord d minates - » 83 EpposTs froa tho followlng

, iocount of the Towmship of Zest Tilbury for the your 1839 =
Cuiig o Lue diclurbaucss in the Provines last wisSer and cll the
Solilers Lolngz out in the militia scrvice, thore was no Tounoil)
Posting hold, and of course tho officora for the precedins yeur woro
Lound o serve as if they bad Lacn elocied in January meetiug past.w

. 3In 184 a 1ike fallure of the Tosn esting had ocourrcd oo showa
o by the Iollouwing mimute under the hand of Johm Coutts, Town Clorke

»riibvury I:ant; il January, 1841.

“Zhoere bas boon mo Town lseting held in this Township this yeor
c.ing .o tho jeglistrates wot issulng a warrant for tle purpose, and,
0 couras, the olTicurs of the preceding year have to continuoc.*

Cn Xounday the 7th day of Jumiury, 1850, wia bheld the first ncete
dng under The lunicipal Act, Twelfih victoria, Chaptor €1, under wlich,
for tis firgt tice, tho businesa of the nooting way restricted to the
elogtion of five Counoillors for service in tho Townoshin as a lLocal
llunleipality. 7hs Cocunclllors to clecled wors Joln Suith, Jolin Coutts,

- «eha ¥ilson, Franels fhurms and Jobn Fletclor for wben wora polled,
- Tospectivoly, 81, 76, 72, 70 und 59 wtos.

‘ This Council, et their first noeting on l'onday, 2lst Jupuvary,
1850, by unaninous vote,. appeiated as thecir sresldend, Lre Jolin Uilaon,
un.ey the old Saxon Titlo of Neovey &8 Ly luw provided. Tie cnly other
reoowls | transestion boing @ resolution dasoripiive of the share, oize
und de.cs chosan for thelr corporato ceul wilch Zs thus dozscriboedse
ngue @0 ahelfl incles long Ly ouo &nd @ quarter inelics wide, of C.
¢iiipl.col shape, thoe deviso to Lo en acorn in the eouilre, citulnid by
thie rosa, thistlo and ghumrociiy on the upper side the word *luniciralisyt
on the lower, "Tilbury Bsst'e AL the poxt pesesicn, held on tho 1lth
¢f Tabruary of the sune year, the sccl was proiuced by the Rceve for
iransellcn and epproveds That scosion rust have been an erducus clo.
I% vas continu-d by adjourmmeout, from duy to dey, for four succsssive

Sy ¢orins w.lch, clong wiih other Luslness, Bix Ly=luws wero pussed,
vi¢l s foxr Lhe appointoent of officors snd other purjosule ICTO
L2 Curing tho fourlh duy, 1 re Suith waas, Uy resoluticn, aliowed €9
wit drow, for mmend:cnd, & L -luw by him introduced and Lumediatoly
follows on the record a ressiutlom passed for adjourmieat until ten
eiclock PJi. when (&5 the rocord shows) Councll resw:ied and passod as
duser six, Ure Suith's Ly-luw. .

At this meoting wore appointed unier by-law, tho follosing



gr. =gt other crnce*n-- Jos 1th, Clexrk; rokert Slcam, Aszossorg
Andicw Tilcon, cOn\.ctor. ‘ ,;' Crunt, Troaturer; opd Riehos *q cu:r exd
1T "nit..\, Autitors,

tz.e Tirst du T s 1853, 1.2 Towship of F@@ wh.lch
‘ up to tho end of the noxe p:cﬂm o eb.r'.“ - "-'"“‘inucd to bLe unizcd
ey z;“uézclr-_.l..y E;.:h Tilbury zaat, 0.0 ...iraa tihe il status of an indepond-
by 1olnlity. _

biga). ..e.:ty yoars no ° *ﬁrc:’.nic:zf.l Lund purvoor was esployede
P“obc'bl" zone such was aveiluble. ©o long ss tle “.i,:;i.z:.sl ..a.:‘u‘o,o"a'
gtalva rcnelinsd, 14ittle ur doulty ia cocertalning the truc Loundories
of 1% und highwuys vould be c:r:..;i noed, but as thessc btogzen to yileld

Lo tie toth of titn, 1t Desune aboelutcly noccosury that eune one
euyitle of runnin: lines should be o "loyed efrielally. ;or‘umstcly
- wme found at hand, e run for the purjose, boik wl;ablo and capubloy

«i e peracn of !‘obht nith, who was orliclally appolinted to the

» po.':.'.:.ic.. of Township Curveyor, his feo Tor so “.a.cua bolns Tisad at -

© Sen opiilings {presumadbly ;c.r.h] por diene Dnuizped with a prixitive
cor 8s ‘now in the possesslion o‘.‘ <o prasent \.ritorl he diu his work,
ruroipo iines for the munleipulity uné for fndividuals s vell, to t.he
catire guticlzcilon of all concericde

- Dradniive
- Teesuze of the citreme flutness of TIllury Tast, artificlal
arafutee tug Indisyoneshloe %Bithout 30 mot only vas road construction
supoasicle, but no crops cculd Be roiced. Tus Sirse .....mlers, Yeing

3 costed ci the dands Joodiately uf",;n.d!i"', tue ercoiss found 1% posaitle,
ividn, Jiy, to effect the arcinszso of tielir small nicsrencces, btud if
t.’us resc of the Toanship wes €2 bacole Nu Tor sotilcncut, drafna{;o
would noce .murily have to ba acsecrinlishad by the united olforts of all
the conzundtys Tho :ln:;o:@i‘:c i‘ ::ucc..,i‘_,' for such w-sporaticn.
' t.aero.o-o, scon laid 1ts huad upon the growing cettlermcnts cnd the come
Y powers, firat of the Loowel Toun Kesting and aub.wq cntly of
Le funicipal Councll, b7 e r...d.t-i-crity cont orn.d, Tvere cagerly
::..‘.' led and un‘o“aed for Ampr.onains upca every soltler tho norformeaiice
f Stututc Iabour am. the em 1l$.cﬁu.:.an of every spare c‘.o...lnr of muniocipal
I‘:.: s for !*;r!’r * Iruinaco ol eonstruction. Tortunaicly ditohea mude
Qs »oud oo, .....n...:.ian were uunlly availeble as cutlols JoX tho druinage
L o the wdjacond lands, and w this feet Io lurgely duve Lhe cagerasss,
&g shevn ¢y tho rocords fom 1836 to reoent times, with which uppucauom
S50 hag Decn polc to Torm Mectlng &nd Council Lo louve to couute for
nt wite labour l..:.bilit,,r ior o pusber of yours for the lumcllate con=
.. 8timoticn ol yosd ditckes stema_'.uy for roud construcilionl ©r 1LDrove=
<4, peats solicly, but in roulit:.r to oltein &rulnago for thelr o m('ua. '

Prom the tins of the curliest ccttle.mnt, it sgexms Lo huvo been
well uniorstood that under the proviuions of Carzon, 4&f not Iunfeiral
or, ks ogouplier of J..n:r:s on = hlsher lavel wzs restralzed oz cone

cemiztins dralinsze woo ich s‘u uld have the offwet of caucing injury
3 famds oa @ level 1ooom i tu thut of bis ova, out for yoors tlero |

get3 o have Baon no redtlizu ion of rcu“owih.dﬁt., la,_nl or otlorulse,
Loy g 09 sth..';slr.w 4o louer lsnds throupgh fleoding "of tho r. m:d.

T8 Lo 1_,1; the artificlicl drainuce of lunds on a highor 137 Iin
the 3'* g of time, however, <5 dralparo 1:*37"0\':.:-:,: L8 wanb on o .i co

- - < e

Lhe =+ ...‘.’.c::!lly drafned @rca 1ncrm.aed. it oventuilly besans eul L
thet tho oreogks thoo-ivza vuro beooring inadogquatle to beayr thely ine
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zromgo | huvden without ercroachings moro and ore upon the londs
Losilately wdjoining that had, in 4 stale of Huture, boun free fraoa
frundacion end that somathiing should be dono for tie rellel of ghae
~omls oo inJurede. This conviotica feound first expresalon practlenlly
11 cormaction w e the Yehourall Creak whioh about 18686 wus doel nod
and enlorged unler thoe provisions of The Munielpal Act on ths patition
of *he cuners of lands 1o be therouy benofittod or which should use
8a3 1 ureoek us un outlet, : :

“oon, after, follawed the deocponing unud eulasrsir: of the
ceithve gud 14lsen Creeks, under the provisionsz of The Onisrio Dralnage
oL, wnd under Covernment suservision, on the potition of ths Council
1i0.0ub reference to the lund-owners L:umediately intersated..

In 1873 wis pussed a bye-low, under which was afterwards
Leenensd and enlurred tho Pursess Creok, and in 1E74L wus passed &
=i wnder which waa slzilerly enlsrged tho lilckey Crocke

. Soon followed the oonatruction of the King and Thittlo Drain
wiich wag tho lust of thc more fncortant works for drainage Ly gravie
fasione Thore followed, however, Jrous yeur t0 your, numorous drains
of leos poomitude, neardly «ll of which forsmed tributarles of cuec or
ouler of tio lurger works above rolerred to. : :

. Tor come tins 1t ecemed thut ull the drainsyo difficultles
kad wvunished gnd that tho time hud come to rest end Lo thunziule
Sush & timo naver conegs, however, to & community (hul 13 wilve.

- Agsin trouble vore serious thun ever zrose snd this tine

sorz & new end unoxpected guartere In 3IS7C, I'r. Horry Forbes landed
o Coondae end in the followin: your took up lLils roszidence on South
L2 1ot Bunber Four, Concegsion Heven in Tiliury Psate TFor scue

o8 e quieily pursuad Wis ealllins s agricviturist, living in
sriendly scclal reolatlons with wll Lis peighboura, pany ol .uds he had
Linvn - sone of then 68 rolatives, end all) ol them es {rienus, oo the
upper reachem of tlhe Don ond the Ice in sberdoonshizo, Scotiuxd, of
wnich Lo wus o nativoe Py sore senns he hzd bocome posdgessor L o
undred aoras of land within the southerly zursie of tis mparsly rlains
& chort disteancs Trom hiie original farm tie Scutherly part ol w.oiic

od lisPed to Lo alble to cultivato und fron vhe rest of 16 to Tiod
rough pasturugo for his cattle, 18 not to cut from its plains, Loy for
Liisy as un additionsl, or enmcrgency ration in tize of ncode %o his
disappointnont, he found that no purt wus gulriciently dry in Spring
Tor cultivaltion end that if 4t wus to bs of any use, it wouid b2
Laaes8ury 10 euclogse a4 suctlon of it for protectlon fronm tilo surscunde
ing warters and %o 'install a pusping outfit for discharping Ircic whe |
€nclovuro ouch waters as 2ight tlicrein accunuleto. Accordingly Lo set
to wori and carried out his soheio, which proved, in sozo conres
Jurcesaiuls 118 boxnk, howsver, buing composed, ostly, os Tho ,
Llriteo poaty mould, nroved tho 1ight to makeo sulriclent comprecsion
o the surface #0il to provent lesikugo, and it bocemne appurend thed
to e susccossful, tho redenption o' such lands vould reguire to to
“undertuken on & nore vxiensive ccolee In tho course of his investie
gaetion of the murrounding plalins, he satisfiod himself thel the 2igh .«
water in tho Sprin-, wiilch bud Loon his chlef olstacle, wos coused,
in part ot lesst, by tie Incrasuced »apidity with whieh the dralnuge
voters of mostly ths wnliolc o tha Townahip of tuleigh und “illury Zast
wore boing discharged irio tlio Plains area tizoush tho operatica of

t M ey
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artificliul drulnange works. Polioving mlso that the reclumation

cf ko vhole area of the Plalus lying South of Jcannatte's Croslk
vould 0o acgoaplished by the ode-grnerution and to the mutunl advantage
oo botl the internsied lond-ounors and the Munloipality, he made
ropealod appeals Lo tho Councli but without effect.

At lest, on July 1Gth, 1EC4, he presented to them a patition
Loned LY @ maforily of Lbg Jatorested land-owmers, praying Ifor the
duiinino, by busking and rurping, of certain Plains lLands lying South
o Jelnnette's Crock, eanituining 5,000 ucrea.

The Councll of tl:ul year cocnsisted of Col. Martin, Lecvos
v okn A. MeOrogor, Do uly-rocve; end ¥We Co Fletohepr, Heary Coalco und *
Veonry Cllison, Counsl loru. DLeputy-rosve lcocOregor and Councillc:
cintelor and Seles wore (isyoadcd 1o regard the potition fuvoruily,
LUt tho Neeve snd Cowscillor Uilecon wore both oppossd to iis reception.:

As a prelimdnary Trecaution, it was rezolved that tho wlicle
Ltter, caroanlally us to (Lo Council's respronsibility for proteetion
of the lunds An mesatlon »oainst increase (over what hod oxisted in
& sthklo ol mature) of the centh or nrea of sutmiergence thercof, vz a
conse uance o0 the construction of artificiel drains unider the control
o the junZelpnlity, should Lo sulmilttead to ¥Mr. Pegley, tleir Soliclitor,
Zor his orinion and advice.

Uubseguentl ™, tho iceve adnitted the recelipyt of lire Pegley's
advice, btug, for vhnut he doviod prudential recsons, doeslinsd to sutmis
it to Lz Couneil. %hat rorusal was paturally taken by ths meaabers

-favorclle to the Aetition, to inlleate that the lewvu's ovn position

had not becn o wll Tours vivh that tuken by the Solicitor.

; fowover that may Lave bogn, the matter, for that your, was
aLlowed Lo Iecte ;

In the followins voayr {1805) the exbership of the Councll was
changed, oncept Lhut for e lanry Seles, who was Yretircd and sube
catuved uy Renry Powell, wio,likewise, wns favorable to thse petition.

o

on the second day of Harch, lEB5, a frosh petiticn baving beca
prenantad to the Council, Mr. Augustine lclonell, C.Z., wad instructed
to make a survey ol Lie territory described in tho potition eénd to make
report, with plans ond speeifications of and asgesecoil for such wourls
end moeo otfend means v ho night desy ns=ecessury {or the curryiug out of
the pri v r of She vouitionerse Having bassn avle to nuke his survey on
the ic. “olore the c¢and of tio same montly, Mr. JMolonuld'a report wes in
the hau o of the Council reudy for their neoting on the tenth of April |

et fulilowing, but was, at that moeling, laicd over till ticlr nexty

mocting on the rifth day of tho following luay, when the Clorik was ine
struct. | to proparo & by-lew for its adoption. n0n luy 28th that by-law
wes provisinnally edopted, and on August 1l2th, 4t wes Timpily pusscde

Tosh within and without the Councill, however, tho rc . Jure wus
ol wit). zo2t violont oppesition, and was finally gquashod on the appeul
to Qe Couris on u technicallity, the growmd belns o clerical orror, the
coats, mounting to £4,000.C0, being peid by the uniocipality.

lire Torbos thon beocums to bo regarded, and for a ti:z 20
remaine. , the most unpopuler pan In tho Yovnollpe. Jo wus (o0 the sean,
hovavor, to bo put down permanently by ono deleute
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fn Jamanyy 2Wth, 1087, a fresh pstitlon, but im terms sl:xilar
to thous contalned In the fommaer, was prescnted o the Couucll wilch,
LAl Junr, Yub couposed of Taln Le HGGrogor, Hoevej We C. Tlelclier,
;u:gt,-ar;v;; &nd Devid 8L son, Ceoe Iops, and Henury Powcll, Coun=
CaddGlGe T g

7 the Council uhct oetlllon wag agaeln roferrsd to the zene
SaTe Whoy ©n Jamel JLUlL presouted bis report, ullioh, in Bome
deteils wariod slighily Cfrus Bis forcer Taport 1o tho sare R&LTEY.

_ Ou Loy A0Lh cn adopling Ly=2aw was provisicaclly pussed, end
an gus timo v SARRCLT Dun004.

On July 8L oY lle Sume your tho contract for the construction
ol $9 wWOrks was les to Lo Clatiam Drsdging and Coatyvectiaz Coe. for
SL3 wun 92 $45,500.00, beln, @ sus considoradly under the sstizate of
9 cLpinoer 10 that bahull. ;

.0 worka oonlcuplaled by the Ly-luw consisted of:

{1} & beawy cabanicient alonsz the boundary of the drainage area
&L fur a8 was nooessnly o protecetion Irom tiae luflow of exterior
Lalerde This wolazizoub wasd forzmed of matorials sicavated Ly & dredge
ia tae cunsirusilion of & larzs draln, contiguous to Tut outside the
eudanciont, ol i cud, prowadly, about eighs iles in leugthe

_ {2} Mn intorpal dralu, also gonstructed LY a droec s, for
Tooaiving end couducting ito tle puuplig station the dreli . e waters
G tic whode drainuge arcie. o

(3) A puwaping stasion at tio lower or woaterly en’ s the
~nvertal, droln, in whichh was a stets oporatbed “flush®™ wlcel rovolving
f: @ Licvoa coornel by whioh tle wators wore lifted five oo 2ix foet
zoove LYio cotuon level of the futernmal drein and discharged into the
Lo.talnig outlet of Wi Wilson Creoit. :

Tho dedentures lssucd £OT consirection were sold at - premium,
and tho work was ot and conploted at a cout considerully wiler that
&3 @3 nited by tho engineor, end the surplus tius arvisin. «ws used
fowar(s the redamption of tiod dobanturss, cowerlnz, &b leust tho smount
of tic dobeature and the intorest coupons rirst falling dud.

To most of the &scoosed ownorg, ospeclally such of thez &s wore

podc-sed of no resorve flnuacisul regources, Lhlis provided o wolcozo
e Gubstansicld zollof.e Thelir positlicon was neveriioeloss pracariocud.
‘Lo lend, after. tio first labdboriocus ploushing, hud to 1lle fellow for
L oyuar, end in the folliouing Spring bad Lo Lo sudjected to furtlcr
voileoze preparction btafore becominz it to rocelvo tho scoed for a
Crcpe Under theso cirsuastances, the mulntuliancs of thelr T 1llco

4nd the payzent of taxes, auzzented as thsy were by the ye 2Ly
- debanture levies, becoue, s the ysars weud on, & burdon wviich the
1:38 afflusat axops; thex wore uzadbls o Laure Affor ziae {ive yours
¢. hordic, thouph geoningly unevuliling effurl, 4 nuwsbor of then wore
cornstreined to apply to tho Couwnedl for uu _:tonslion o thoe rerlod
dizitsd for débenturs redomptici. Unable to comply »i.l {hat requoat
tie Council applied to the Quterio Laplslaiive Asdenbly for a special
A.% to unpouwsys the Council to cueund thelir Ly-low 80 43 (0 add twenty
Feury Lo tao time thereby limitcd for tho payment of tus aiount of
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A S '“‘obt.ﬂdne'ss still ontotending, The prayer of thiz petition

B ranted and @ special Leob peozed uacordinglye Under itie suthority
a2 $50% A0, GR enUidiTE ar-lew was pasgsed, untor the reovisions of
pdell che time 23104 r tae royesnt of fu2 rereinde™ of tho indobbe

' edness represented Ly tha Qe _:.»r eres Stlll oututand..x:':, vias extended

| Peenly yoars end the swounts Jevititle yuarl,r arainnt <aal: 2ot end

: ~B ol 1ot wesessable therolor, proportionateldy relucud, provicion 4

n cade for tho redenrsicn of the oripinul dskenturcs sifll oute

T
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; o lip, as they sewverally fell dus by noans of the reduced yoorly
R lowles, gupplazented hy wlie iscus of & uebenture in eceh your to

f W ¢l of the currency period of the origlnul dcher.tures, equivaient
) o o rzount of e awld reductiod in each yeaxr, of the seid lovice
E POSFUU LIVelTe

. Ry e 1,;";1:‘:1,-; of the intercsted land=cwuners, the rellef

‘ accorded under tie rrovislons of the arcc...:l Act mnd the wuonding bty-la
woo soocepted wWith ,;;-_'....1'..:. lo, widls such of thex: as preferred to noet
tii=1r aspercronts in terzs c" the original by-law and duly guve noticae
o et elfect, booanme legally entitlsd to exenption from tho oreration
o’ the spescial Act and tho t'"cmd..ng, by=law thercely authorizcd.

In aetual operution, the fiech wicel with 4ts connocted
whinery was found poat rifestive for the dimchaype of the watcers

foom the internal drein, ‘.r,t ﬂfficult;r rus expericpeced frerm tho
f£ira%, in persunding the witers tn proceed alon;{ the drain at
gursiclont srecd eliher to give =it cnd efficient \.“uina.,,e > :.m:
L0 tho rore clstens londs or to brinr to the };xm,ir{, station, c.cepd
ie tdrce of floot, wuter cul7iciently fust to give atrad:f enplo; ‘ont'.,
et fll punmplug espacity, to the yumplng ruchinery.

In o fow yoora thet {cfeet wao cured by tho inctallation
¢ & second ;:-“' ng staticn scmo wwo or threo =ilen buck from the

Sirat ~cquirpad with twn steen=driven eentrifucel purvz, The cost of
that cecond instadlaticn wos relscsd by tiw lasue of dolanturcs rvlelde
Ing intcrssv at four pur cont woich were eold et o SLIGhTLY chove Pule

Cutaids 'ﬂ‘.‘i‘.i"""‘ﬁ m..rrit;ory, the druin uron the general
fupde o Lhe Tornankin ccused i};' roed and urldee con.sun.cfinn within
the Cr hnes 0 e:h,.., cruzod o3 nutterings of discontent for & tiue
but 4% scon hocsre Bypi Gt ‘.:r ell thel en rddition of 5,000 acres

to the Lllla Lle area ol tho townolip could mob full to becoma an *
cegno. Lo edvantage os wel 1 ¢z en inporteut gontribution to the

culhb:.‘w o' the SUIIOUNAir CRULLIYe

Soop aftor tip ecspletior of Tho Forbes Yorks, a ilke
areinc so scheme, knovh &5 "The Duuphin Urelinsge :‘:or;:s" was sst afcot

S i raclemution of ebsut 2,5(‘0 acres of muysh 1.&&.5 cn tlo Xoxth
‘318 ¢ Jesnnotte's reek, along the Coutherly bunk of tde ".tvﬂr
Lozes and & 14ttts L-obes was leunched "The b ¢Cregor Drelr e Gal -'.'.::."

for the drzipage “20 by & .ban zing und pusping) of 500 o £720 e
ef plaivs or flocced lands atjacent to the Xent and Zesex tounty una.

These three oolo .03, Liezefora, topether u-’;mc:d &baut-

€,C00 ¢ res of lznd whiok vere, previous to Lr«in" thurcby recleimed,
valuel -3 for eny purpocto czce;;t the rulsing of rmuck ruis cnd tull-Iroga

Ta the late Jehn A. JicGrezor, tho lete ¥z, C. [T Lar, tieo
3 a3, m late Gede [opo, the lete Henry Fowell Lad :
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RS mmc’ w oruocy. the last nuned of o w.one survives, bolores the
cidef ¢ 3ttt Tor sexvico withia the Counocil in m,wa.unu wind fo0=
WAPIAR :.- intereats of The Porbes Lriuinege Schemo, in thu face of
ok © J\....tc.x and 6lusee Outsids tho Councll, nmmvar. AL 4y had -
S v ableo supposr. of @ larso muaber of inlluential nen viithout
wiooa SUuppord and infivence <ie peiuciio couli uot have besn cirried
WLICUE e
7r view of the succcsaful oparation ol all thezo works for
& APy | .' & cantury or more, wuld of the liiuense beuelit tichce ro-
ul A Lot only Lo the interestesd lundeowuurs but also to ;-.o Towunship

e Lry 1L 13 1ot easy to undorsiand or sympathlzo with tho atromuous
yalsion with wideh 7%The Torbes Drolmago tohome wad, ab 1is first

o€ :10%1on aisalledes I6 zust not Lo for.,_,au..en. howover, tlizt the
il of such & schezo _'. pot unattonded by serious risiks, nor

Cat In Atn oonu..;- L4 gperatica (To wiich the Council, as trusiceo,

: ld Us eaamitiod unler the u-.,"?.“-} '-T" uld oxposo the i g nmiclp.:.lity to
za2it o 1iability in ;.;.hxgaa ericin: Crom possible z.x.;,;ig;onco on the
st oF s Council 111 discharzings e z._.,ius @sowed Uy thom on

velds of the Bunicipralitye.

90 such rigks tho frionds of the uclero wero not blind. They
had, howevor, falth in tlo p:u..t.'.“.bilit_r ¢f tic ochezs and in the
aucceasm end profitellc crematica of the proposed works. Thoy
furthor belleved thut oo <ur gor of beling subjected to payent of
denagsea urising, froa Dature nozlience on tho pare of the couneil
WEO excoolinsdy rea.;w. in ...;'-:,‘ Cuatid thay wore nregpared o accspt of
SO B pousibility yather thun r ck the probability of «n wotion at
d%% to cauncl the '::;..\.....‘ o3 of low lying Junds in and on the margin
OF *he pilaling eonplalned ol, nhich could beo, in tholr opinion, effecte
vuliy cooouplisked omly by tho euastruction 01' works coodisng iitua.
il any lass than that (as ectimaccd) of The Forbes Worlz.

'

T

Biucatl Ofie

\ At the tins of Confucaeration, the Township had progressed
z .L..lc‘ ntly %o Lo uble to establich énd mulntain within its limits
sus Puoldie School.. noce thiam, tholr nusbor has boen, at least,
n.m..c,, glving w.;lo opportunity to every ciild within the Tounship
Tor the att...in..e..., o sue s.,m,.cut.ion as ths prinary sclcol i celculuted

L -
o Lok s O -

¥rom thece Selicdls m:cl theo rude clture of bush and foma,

Lut o gone forth froz the Tovnclilp & nunber O non who have tilicl &
vierul and honerable plecc in tho world, thoush none of thil -:;rl.upa,
cuve bocomo known to foun. ¢ thoso pay be zentioned the 1.‘\.4 I Ye AlaXe
Coltis, one of the sarlicili cottlors who had t.m aonor Lo reg m-..,.u,

13 e interests of the Conzcrvative ﬁur‘:*.;', he ri_.m,,, oOf %eat Lankh !

14 the 2ntario Lcuislatu-“, apd : e ATniic ;.c,o-b, wliogo mutelnd

ald

af Jhcr, the lato iire I “\,.,, AL mt’-n. STey wuu O Of t..c firss

cttlens 4 the Towsolipe e 2iclolg wio is, himcelfl, o native c‘.
5 owuniiy vad & p“c..uct ol ita .;c.;oole Taprotentad for Bany yours

Eent .’.-; the Doexinion irlisment, and mm.;r kolds tle posiuun of
LaboT,.

C.‘I“ thosae of tho rativas of tho Tovamshin wh
riobhara of ove or other of tho z:--c 1lled dosrned rro: S le 5 r Ay to
nontionsd o following:e O tho fanily of the late ! o, -B.ll.Waddol,
G euriy sotiler, one soni of tic i‘ar.ily of the lute . e Androw Llison,

1«




~ on. 2ou end one grandson; of the funily of tho late Lr, Duvid

'wiguson, an ourdy settler, ong prandnong of the fcadly of the
+-»8 lre Joln Coutis, wio, with his late fuiher of the sate nane,
wud ono of thoe firct sottlerc ia the Towmiship, four sons, (tosides
grandsons exumoeratol under a Aifferent surncre); of the I‘amuy of
¢ho J.Lo Ere John Ilutoher, (Tre Clerk), four grandsonsg of the
folly of tho late Reve Vime Durpgess, one con and one grandsong of
thu Sunally of the late Joln Xexr, oneo sonj of the funily of tho
loig Jobhn Iaing, ono son; of tho fadly of Jemes W, Sith (vhose
fither, David onith, was ¢ nomber of, and cccompenied on their
‘rat errivid 4dn tho Townchip, the {iret faxily to settle on tho

5

1%h Creek), ong son; T theo fooilly of the lute Churles Fuorguhare

son, two song und Jour grandscons; of the fumily of the late Lz,
ILiZy Torles, ono scn; ond of tho fuxmily of John Fletcher, (norhow
‘of Jo'an Fletcher above pamed), one con; of the funily of Tinothy
: Feonll., ong 50N :

Cold Funtors.

Some time in the oarly cizilien, a mber of the youns men
» Tornahlp lelt for tho gold wincs In Pricish Columblia, !one

AR
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Ason, oro of the earlicct settlora, alrendy rontioned, 19

“

an foc.e Jomon Ntownyt, ulso nuood alove, with @ number of oulcrs,
angng wionm ware flenry Riel:ardaan, ¢obu jleld, cwmos Plelcher, cod

pradbobly Willicn nickoy and others, wels Uy Loa € from lew York ¢
and by tho usual mouns of trunsrort at tlho tine avellable, crcocad
tha Istimus of Junaza, Lre Stevurt hed tiho nisfortuns to lose Lis

't were overstocksd with ex;itel and zone of then wers ccoupolled
a1l thelr Ingenuity to enztle thom to reach thelyr dostination,

suid .2 have coversd the intervening distunce over tis Rocky ! suntulns

rurse 4in Jiow Yori: and had to uso his wito (o oole hils waye. DIy scue

neand, ho had becn allowed to gut exployucnt as shipts curponter,
on the bout on whiich his more fortunate fellows hud tekel pascuga
VEOW Lo Petlly poscessed Lo knoulelge of slhlp coastruction o ©

the ¢utl.s whiech ho had undortek:-n to dischisrge. Tortunatlely Jor

Ling ol possilly for others ag woll, no pecetsliy arose for tle
exorc.so of £kill above what ho jpooscused, and la RBonded with iis

ccnmnions at tho Jotizus with fuu’s sufficicut o enible hin to
reuah, with the othiors, bis destinitlon.

in Politics the populstion woas divided, with proondurance
of votes uauelly in fuvor of tho Reforn Condildalo.’ For evoral yoiars,

$Ire Archidald Ho¥lellar bdod Loon the populay Doprosentative Tor the
County of Kent, bub in tha {irst cleotion fur e Doniuici Turliam
in 1857, bo was defeated Ly !re Dulfus Ste lcuson, then Zditor ol
Tuo Chathum Plupet. .

In one of Ir. & lcllaxrts provicic politicsl compalrus ha

Leld a neoting in the olild Towm Hull of the Township of Tilbury Zucte

% the time, tho Nove ¥Hue Eing wus erranciny; for tie catillishuen
2 6 rafvge in the Township of D lcighfor cicves escaping Iras tLo

tnlte. “tatose Mowover oympathet.c they o Love been with tho

gleves 3 long &g they wore in the Unitad 5ultes, tho puople of

' Ralei s und T41lbury Zust &1d not like thie I L o having them &8

necyr i..lgzhbors, and tho oppositicy to tho ¢ .. .Glishrent of such a

redusz was boirg met with wiolen’ oppelitiocn inm both Town.1il;3e Kre
EeRKellur was known to bo syspathcllce wiil Ere King's plans zud to hove



. *

L

';:icgn tikins an active part in alding their accomplishment. Thinking

thet tlis gueation, if brou ¢ Lo to Mr. JoKellar, night be the

" peans of ::udng a split in tlio ranks of the local Reformers, }re. John

¥iloon who was in-politica, sirongly Conservative, asked how the
gduc.ilon of the colored peconle waus %o be carried on &nd what Lr.
Lerellor would think of havinry tham attend the Public Schools along
wish tie wiite pupils. To tiLls lirelicKellur replied that the guestion
agkod vias rothor o difficult onc, but it must bo remembered thut tho
Pri Lo Conctituticn took no notice of color arnd that it wus probalbly

S Just o we Tl that 1t did not. If notico were taken of color, 1%

wor ) Jelloy thut notice should be taken of grades of color £ll the
yay £frca vhite Lo black and if that ashould be done, he was afraid
Bat nelthor U» Wilsonm nor hincolf vould pass as of first grades

Tor Nr. VWilson, lir, cXellur and all their generation,
lile's battles are post and goac, lout of the questions that then
divided politiclons Into hostilc varties have ceascd to divide the
community. Dut Lthe Question aericcs, "Are we any better or any wiser
that were cur fauthors?® Jlavs vio, th our added experience, boon
able to frue curcelves {ron the nrejudioces which wo have inhorited
or acqu.rcd, or have ve bLecoue Lolter able then were they to regard
patters of jublic conecern vithout rezurd to our own personal intarests
end 1o roc oL our vote in accoxdinee with our own convietions of
right aud duiy without fear, Javor or affectlion of, for or by any

2oon or persons whomaoevers 1L, in this direction, we have
{ndividualliy and es a poople made progress, there is hope for the
futurc¢s I we have failed 80 to advince, we have morally and polit-
deally lived in vain.

The sbove history was written about the year 1926
b7 .o lete Conald Re Jurquharson &t the suggestion of
t.c late hiev. Hugh Covcon, & formor linister of 3t. Puul's
Cuureia, Herwich Townshlp, who was collectling material for
& book he intended publishirg on the early history of
j.ont County. This book was never printed but pciulssicn
.5 ¢iven the Kent jldsterical Society in the year 1944 o
usy ouy part of it for its reocords,

Donald R. Farquharsen was born in Aberdeecnshire,
crotland, in 1846, and caue to Tilbury Dast Towanship in
1.56, where he was @ler’: of the Township from 1873 to

90l. Ke was then appointed head of the Customs Departricut
&, ratham, Ont., from which positioa he retired in 1921
- He died in Chatham in 1936,

KENT HISTORICAL SOCIITY

J. P. Flotohsr,
President.

June 10, 1947.
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1921 e vopulation of six hundred and thirty-three inhabitants. It
48 sitr ted in & favorable location in the Township of Zone, cnjoying

- pood tronsportation facilities from the main lines of both the Canadian
~ Horthe:n and Canadien Pacific Rallweys and the longwoods Rozd, a

PO

The Tovn of Pothwell, according to the last coneus,hed in

Provincial Highway and paved, connecting Toronto with %Windsor. It is
aice surrounded by an improving agricultural community on which it at
rrcoent depends for whatever of business and trade is transucted in :
1o tovn, ond to which source it must lock for whatever progress ewaits

L% in its proapsciive Tuturoe. : . y A

Pothwell oves its status as a town to the develomment of the
oil interests in its meighborhood, or rather to the 'oil boom' incident
to thut -cvoloment. Its incorporation took place in 1867 by a -
specle’ ot of Purliement, having never enjoyed munioipal existence -
a5 & villuge, though its present population would not justify a stand-
ing any ctlier tkhan that of a village.

The settlement of the vieinity comuaenced in the year 1852 by
tho ourchase of a truct of four thousand aores lying to the North of
“he Jovavion Indian Reserve end including the entire site of the
yroony towm, by the icnorable George Brown, founder of the Toronto
ilc 'ce In that year the line of tho Grect vWestern Rallway had been
located throush this distrlet and Mre. Brown saw in this ean opportunity
foir o aplendid business propocition selling the hardwood timber off
tiic trect for lumber, and in cordwood to the railway when it wus put
i operation, and in utilizing the olearcd land aftervards for farm-
iz, purposes. lie also wes tho founder of the town. IFrom the remote-
noio of competing points and the future promise of the surrounding
conniry &8 a farnipg dictrict, he conceived that point to be a desir-
aile place for establishing & truding centre. After it had been
¢loored, he had that part North of the railroad surveyed into town
loon, euteblished saw-nills to manufacture the marketable timber of
pio land s into lumber, and built a furniture fuctory enploying about
LeiTiy bondse. In these days he had the nuclcus of a cconsiderable
touwn esiolliashed when the oil boom blew dow: upon it in 1863. In
his sur.oy, lire Brown made provision for the two streets which still
repuin “'c principal thoroushifares of the town, the one, iiain Street,
wiiich ccingets it with the Lambton County Line, end the other, Peter
Strect ,connecting with the london Road.

r£ter these initial undertakings of Lr. Brovm, others caze in

]
|
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end ber n to sssist in buillding up the wown. A grog shop was one of

trie iy . of these additional=institutions to be established, cn cighteen
ty teeniy-four foot structure naned "The Sebastopol”, enjoylng it vwas
void a patronuge so great that crowds wore oftegn unable to gain ed-
micolon, end hud, therefore, to be served out of doors. Others in

. sane omslinese followed in rapld succession until no less than
five he'ole vere Lirmly established hers before 1857, an unmistekable
cvilency of tle sociel conditions of the times. The first store wa




S astabl il

-'l !’c‘v‘lb ..
'-ov~“*d s; willice Tausht

hed in 1256 under the proprietorship of Nessrs. canpball and
no cubaaﬂucntly resioved to Chathom. In 1858 a second store was
ton who becare a psrmunent resident of the place

ontinued Yo proajcr during 211 the changing vieissitudes in this
hist :' of the toim. ©On the South side of the railroad & third store
Lol Doon bullt by a man nomed Crawford which was burned down some time
1ot s During these yeurs end before the oil boon, the sreuter pro-
portion of tha vor csen In the village and vicinity were under the emplo
ol U're Drown. Money was a cormodity almost unseen, the eirculating
m being Lhih4y orders on !.r. Brovn in payment of wages which were
rendily acecented by the f~:c;; ts in cxchangze for goods or in raynent
fou debts, @ conditdon vhilon tinucd until and for some time after
boca days in the oll- Indu try.
7he oil Leom which luszted several years wes occasioned by
thie discovery of a well in 1863 on the Colville farm near the Rosa
wrlins cnd cloase to the Iondon Road by one John Lick, a Fonnsylvania
woter. irollowed by & cocond on the Chambers farm South of the towm,
. a thovd on thoe Cordon farm which ylelded ono hundred barrels a
iinfe In cddition to theso Gaiscoveries the price of crude oil itself
went up “rom $l.00 a barrel for the first sh 1puent of one thousand
barrsls “o the fubulous price of §10,00 & buarrel in 1864, which reached
the ma’ wm of 12,00 a barrel in 1866. The opening up of the industry
in thic distriet with thls cnhanced prica in the valus of crude oil
brouzht a lagion of ..urican operutors into the town with linitless
wealil 00 began to fmveast tlicir moneys bLoth in prospecting end boring
Tor oll), and also establizhing hotels and business houses and dwellings
in 9 t“own. DBusiness blocks rose up rapidly, some of them brick and
thres ctoreys high, including hotola, anks, Billierd halls cnd the
mumerous other institutions required for a tovn wita a popu14t102 of
six or thousand. .~£'3d¢11001t rublic kull called Catling Hall
\ B2 brother of tie inventor of the famous Catlirg gun.
Hotcls D _lla mushroor:s in the night, some of them of imzense
8ize, n v within the linits of the town bat throughout the wiiole
of tue L Lyou. Jor these building ope rutiOJﬂ alone, an ey of
worizian was - required, Lu% when the bottom fell ouv of the boom, a
bu ot given to the progress of the placo fromn which it has never
si: T varod,
In 1355 jlonorable Ceorge Erowvn sold out his interssts to
otlhwell land and Petrolcoun g-pany who allowed the land whlch
been devoted by him to agricsulture to turn into conmons winile they
seatrated thelr enerrics in extonsive opcrations for the discovery
01l on their escquired londs. With the colluapse of tho oil industry,
, ook somo consideruble t:;u to bripg avout a steble rc;dju"*mcnu of
: alfedrs of the towa ond vieinity. The numerous hotels bLecario do=-
Gerted,businoss L;n::; wore blo,cl end an utter abandenument of all
tlie int ¢ thet gave lifc and “‘JuyHTLU to 1t tool »lace. This was
follonmt disastrous £irc which swapt avey the grocicr part of the
Tinest ngs In the toui, inecluding C_ulth tull, Tollowlng this,
the Toc gave place to a cc;“:;ﬂl_c- and unuttractive villege
without hing now to eahance itz growth save tle trads that could be
otl: ined I om the surrounding far;;r; district.
The spsoc ial Aot of Purlivnent of 18565 whieh incorporated
b SC ook elfect in Juruary ol ihe followving year with lir. John
)8 g.c;ctu:y aar Honorulle G- .00 Brown, its first Luoyor, and
Ce iller, ove, with ten othors as Counclllors, two from each
che ive wvards iato whilich the tovm limits bad been divided.

e _ .
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Thie history of the tovm since the firo has been onc of slow
steudy progress. Joveral handsome birick blocks have boen

» on 1ts two princinal stroets, scuc oreditable residences,

‘ins tovm hall of rod trirmed with white brick, whici has a

b cnpaeity of about four hundred, contuins stores and offices

on Lo zround floor and yresents very good appearance, Its churches,
pelools end other institutions ure sufficient for 1ts presont nesds.

In iio oleetric light plont, wascrworks system, telephone system and

-

b1l i, 1t has kXent poce with reccont discoveries in supplying

e

rodern convenleneces and couforts to its citizens.

“: [}

]

industrles ineclude a saw-nill, a sash and door factory

vi e celoter 311, vhich find in the surrounding agricultural districts
onoano.e rooist for their productions. In Pothwell, Zone Township has
oo atirictive centre for 1ts industrial, Lusiness, educational and

zoeisl rocuivaments, while the.town on the other hand has in the

Tovnel 2 ¢ wependable source for its future progress and prosperity.

: “%n aslove is information compiled
ggzgnfné;.u ;ava gugh Cowan about the year

o a extrecte thoe Kent ilistor
Scciety 19.7. ' Teane
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fmong the earliest ploneers of Blenhein wes the owner of &
gropcery, Ceorge llughson. The other two who shured with him the
hopor woro Thomas Lynch, a tailor, and Berley Halotead, & farmer and
ecnty uOLDr- Iin 1844, Lx. Hnlstea& completed the conatruotion of the
Coo-unieation Road from Talbot Street to the Rondsuu and thus zeve the
newly aurvuyed town plot transportation faelilities to Chathan on the
ore side und leke Irle on the other, an important zid to the future
settlesent of the town.

Post 0frfice at first naced Rondes&u.

‘the firat store wua eatablished in 1845, bty two brothers of
the nane of Pass. Theso continued in business but & few years when
it passed over into the hunds of two other brothers long identified
witih the subscqueat history of Blenlheim, Orrin snd Roduan Geos The
Geea, in addition to their store, ast&blisned a bricl yard end were
the 7lxst to ercot & birick buildinc in the town. A pest office was

estailiched in this store in 1EL9 end one of the broVﬁora orrin,
becre itz first poatnastor. ‘e poat olffico was nuned nonuudu though
the villoge ituell had previoucly been named Blenhelm. Thie vas done

to uvolid confusion &s the L‘“s Tlenheim had elready been upplied to a
pozt office and town in oxrlord TownsLip.

Up to this tino all that section of the towushlp Eust of the
village to tzhe townline cu btoth sides of the Talbot Ncud was unsettled
and wag known a&s the "Ten llilo Bush". It wus, therefore, situated in

thie nidet of a splendldly timbered rogion. Thn land ndich hitherto had
beor held in the hands of speoulators, was being opened up for ssttle-
men. wnd consequontly there was a bocn 'in the activities of the district.
Wil Zncicosing industries, uan incrcesing nuxber of men were belng

eurLo o4 ¢ ud houces began to be ercoted for thelr accornmodaticn. Timber,
unlilc vkt 4t was in the days of the first pleonecrs, had now bocone

of nurket 31 value. This was espescinlly true of three of the varieties

vildely di-tributed in the Southern scetion of the Township of “a*ﬁich.
ozk, elm * walunuite Ock was exported &z squure tivber and us staves
for barrc.s, Ilm wes menufactured into staves and walnut into lunber,
toth for uxport. For the first vhirty or rore years of lts history,
Blenhsinc was a lumberin; centre and owed its p¢ou:cgs to this indusirye.
It vus ¢ e of the runy luxberin: villages tuaen so thickly distributed
throucho. L the County but one of the few also to survivo and continue
en uriun sentro after the supply of timber had bean exhausted, I3

fuvooople poeltion surrounded by an excellent farcling district sccurcd
Tor it e 1Lr 3> volume of a"ricu.tur&l troede which it still coutinucs to

nold and inors.ses

Foom this 1t will be seen thet Plenhelnm is one of the newer
jerrorats towas of .o County,., This yeaur, 1925, is the seni-contennial §




ennivoersuxy of its incorporution intio a villaege. For tho first thirty=-
£ive yeooo of 1ts historr 1t was a part of the !unieipality of Harwich,
s cuntre of its muniecirsl business and the truade of the Southorm half
of the Townshlipe Its incorperution es & villuso took effect on the
11rot eny of Jenuary, 1075, theo personnel of its first Counoil consist-
irs of A. L. Disnett, Reeve, and T, R, Jackson, John kelilchael, George
Yallory wnd Lewis Kinne, Councillors.

A. L. Bisnett was well worthy of the honor of being elected
the Tirst Reove of tihwe newly incorporatod village 2s he was also the
Tirst Joyor when 14 Leoume a town. ilis life 15 a splendid example of

tho succoon whlel under favorable circumstances attends consecrated
gin and effort, Iis fether died when he was a youth, leaving his .
pother vI1th her Tour children, of which Alfred was the oldest, unprovided
for. I conseqguonce ha was cumpolled to forego further cducation, a

aanciocun which retarded the progress of all his future enterprises,

fe engoersod himself while a Loy to & lumber firm where undor these
necesalious elrcumstances ho loarned to practise the saving virtues of
gell rcliovce end industry. He steudily advanced his position until

he beoerrs JIret the proprietor of a lumbor mill at Blenheinm, then a
carrlage bonu oods factory, a grist mill and a store, finally rounding
up the o of his aectivities by purchesing eight hundred acres of
unfroreovod lend which he converted into a first class ferme During sll
thece yoors he wus a leadlng spirit in the lMunicipal Governuent of the
viliage ond town and was s zoalous and successful in adninistering its
aff{.irs -2 he wus looking after tho intorest of his ovn private business,
To ilm > pightly given the crodit of being the nost prominent figure
in the /lrst Tfifty years® history of Blenhecium,

T. R. Jackson was a native of the villagoee. Ho was the eldest
gcn of Joha Jackson, one of the esurly ploneers of the County, who
seltled in Rompey in 1815 but moved t0 Blenhoim ufter it waus sot apart
for a tovnaslite end bocaue & plonecr of the East end of tho villege,
¢ aing both lots on elthsr sido of Talbot Street. His son was bor
here in 1E4) and spent his early life upon the furm. Later he entered
‘Lo @ Danking business in Blenheim and became senlor rartner of the
firs of Jackson, Fuller & Coupany, having elso a brunch in Leamington,
7o oeeditably filled & number of reaponsible public positions, served
four consecutive years &s Reova of Elenhelim and was VWerden of the
County in 1E79,. -

John }clichael wes also cne of the early settlers in the

County. AL Tirst he lived in Toronto but about 1648 rexoved to Blenheim

id there he node his horme, beooning a man of substance in tho ccruunity.
ile vwae Tustioce of the Peaco, a member of the County Council, County
Varden .:d Reeve of the Towmnship, and School pirector, acting in the
iatter coepaclty for forty years, whilo for many years he was Capiain of
the (4.7¢in0, Kis death ococurrod Locembor 2, 1896, vhen he was eighty-
“wo ye.rs of aze,

-

The other two menbers of this first Courcil held similar
ercdituble records in the future history of the toun.

Tlhe towm is indebted also to Stoddard wiose totivities are
doseribed in wuother chapter, to lorris & Ash, whose factory was burned
in 2373, and to others who heclped in that busy ora conncotod with the
tinlzr days in the history of the County., But with the disappearance
ol the wood lends, the town ccttled down to what it has since beccuec, a
rou o1l centre depending for trade and commerce upon the growth and pros-
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perity of the furning district surrounding it.

The town was o busy, industrial centre during the lumber era
but the jussing away ol the industries conneceted with the manufacture
off woodel produots lefl the town practically an agzricultural centre.
Althoush the towm has increuscd in population from 1212 in 18861 to 1565
geccrding to the last census, thoro hus not been a cormensurato advance
0 1is coocwerelnl and industriel activities in that periods In 1864,

e town conselinod two steam saw nllls, one grist mill, two gonercl
stores, Tirvce grocerles, four blacksmith shops, one saddle and harnoss

ahop, throo hotels, two turning factories. Today the town contains but
Lo Anduotries, o griat nill and a cenning factory, but the number of
gerrorelcl houses hus inerocsed. It now contains two drug stores, oue
hardvare, o gencrul atorcs, five gareges, two bakeries, seven groceries,
cile “loe wlore, and coverul other smaller shops. One of the hotels has
been rep uced by & business house, leaving only two, the Idle Hour Inn
anld the Cudlillac, :

The town presents conuidorable attractions as a place of '
resfioncoe for retired famers wnd others. The houses are neatly built
¢ud surrounded with pleasant rsordens, briek structures predoninating.
1t hes esnple transportation facilitios. A provinciael highimy, the

uthern, which pluces the town on the tourist route between Dotroit,
TLironto, and other Zastern pléces, passes directly throush the towvm.
TLie Ridgo Nowd, on whidch 1t is built, 18 woll gravelled and conneots
with Ridgctown. The kRiglhway to Chathem is paved more than half its
distanee, a »romise of fulure pavemwents in the near future on all the
leading nishvays of the district. A1l other highways aro well Kept up
end cupply convenient routes of traffic to famers sceking to do business
in the toun., In addition to 45 highways, the tovn is served by two
rajlvayse, the Pore Marquette, running Fast and VWest from Dotroit to
gt. Toman, and the Wallacoburg and lLeke Erie line running from Sarnia
to Erioau. The Michigun Centrul is but five niles distant (o Charing
Croee, to whioh there is reguler connection by bus line,

Dlenliedn has a peculiar feuture of being bullt away from the
cornvonler-ns of lake, river or strecn of any kind, Consequently the
waLoy supnly is by deep welle whioh are controlled for househiold purroses
by privetc eaterprise.s Tho [ire depurtmoent of the corporation has its
ot syosten of wells and raiico provision- for siergencies by tlic erection
of tenlss locatod at differont places but sufficiontly nunmorous to cover
the requirorments of every lccality. These arc clvays kept full in
reudinosz to gerve their rurrosc for every cuorgoncy, The town is
lighted, us are all the other towns of the County, with hydro-electrio,
Chatheoy toing the distributing centres, In addition, the town is served

by naturc. gas from the Tilluly oll fields and from surrounding private

L

" wellz. 7Tlooce also are devoloped end controlled by private enterpriso,

The interests of tho tovu are kept before the public by a
very roadola and well conducticd weeldly journal elited by J. M. Denholn
1110 sucecciod his father, Andrew Denholnm, in its ovnership. Thls news-
poper wao cotedblished in 1873 by Samson & Ash under the title, the Rond

& -

Juw Tows, oince changed to the Dlenhein Nows, and, after pussing through
cevernl eonerchips, was purchascd by the late lir. Denholm in 1880, I¢
Ca w¥3 @ Lor,e eirculution und has o wide influence because of its
adveocusy of hish morals end the ability displayeod in its local and edi-

torial dejpurlnonis.

plemicin i6 well scrved by all the religious denominations.
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il has one Rowan Catholic Church, one Buptist Church, one Anglicen,

o United Churches, one Latter Day Suints Church, and there has recente
1y been forimed a small congregation of continuing Presbyterizns. The
first denoninztion to eroct a church building wes the Methodist, in
1856. It waa called a Union Church where both Methodists and Presby-
teriuns preoaclied for a time. DBefore this, all the denominations used

. Lho selool house for thelr services and here eclso Mrs. Stoddard and
krs. 3ioldon established the first Sunday School of the villase. The
Methodlich Church was served in those deys by itinerant preuchers, both
lay and ordained men, of whom Mr. Jeffrey of Raleich scems to have been
the firvcie The Anglicuns were sorved occasionally by Reve F.We.Sandys,
& travoiling missionery whose parish covered the whole of the Southern
part of the luko Zrie District. This denomination built their first
church in 1861 with the Rev. Lr, lLampman, the father of the well known
Ganadian poet, as its first rector. This was a frame building with a
Jeating capacity for two hundred, which is still in use, having been
rawoved out of the town four miles East for the Ridge Coxmunity Church,
e Prosbyterians ercoted their first church in 1866 during the pastore

¢te of Iove Alexunder Waddell, tho first ninister of the United Presby-

teriun Church, on the Ridge, IHarwlioeh, inducted there in 1854, and for
thirty-clix yoars alterwards leboring in Blerheim and vicinity.

These original wooden buildings have all boen replaced by
brick egtructures, - The first brick building ercoted waas that of the
Baptiste in 18%¢, The snglicans bullt their prosent building in 1891,
8 solid brick structure with a tower &nd steeple with a seating capio=
ity for two hundred end Tifty. The Methodist Chureh erected their
procent bullding, now culled Chatham Street United Church, in 1lE81, e
golid brick bullding with a secating ocapacity for four hundred and fifty.
The Presbyterians bullt wlat 1s perhaps the best appearing and largest
of ¢l)l tne churoches of tho town. The corner stone was leid on September
1lth, 1695, and is now known a3 the EBrskine United Church of Blenheimn.

A8 with its religions so also is it with 1ts educational
Inatitutions. The town is woll equippsd with scheols. TFrom the very
first 1ts pconlo gave attention to the need of educating their children
and the establisiment of good buildinga. In fact, for & tinmo, it
crcelled all othor plaeces in the County in the provision whichh was made
far zehool Luildlings., A writer of forty yeers ego, visiting the County,
wrete of Blenhein Public 8School, "0f the Public School bulldings in the
“ounty ocutilside of Chatham, that at Dlenheim becurs the palm for hoauty
ol dosirn, clogunce of Tinish, extent, and proeriecct adeptation to the
Jurroses ror whilch intendod. ot only does this buildir; eclipse any
in the rCounty but compares favorably with tho best in any village ol
ontario. Itc eost vas $13,000; it has six departments, controlled by
@s muny teechers, end enjoys en enviableo roputation es an institution
of leerning." Unfortunately tiiis building was burned dovn in 1899 but

- 4% has Leen replaced by a very crceditable structure in 1900 containing
elght rooms and larze enough to accormodate over three hundred pupils,
Tor Lirler education & Continuntion School has been built containing
four school rooms and an assenbly hall besides teachers?! epariuonis.
This seloel iz now in charge of four teachers with an enrolment of three
hundred rox this year, 1925.

The above is information compiled
Ly the late Rove llugh Cowan about the year
1926 end exitracted by the Kent Historical
Soclety 1947. '
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' The Town of Presden 1s built up on both sides of the Sydenhan
rivor ot the head of navigation, occupying am area of about s£ix hundred
i twenty-three acres, the greater part of which 13 on the South side
of the rivers It is situstod about twelve miles from Chathan to the
touull of it and the same distance from Wallaceburg to the West of it.
Tho houor of being the {lrst resident here belongs to Cerard Lindsley
of the Thaues River Settlerent who settled onm lot Four, Ccncession
Five, as eurly as 1825, bLut the honor of founding the Town 1s concecded
to Daniel Ross Van Allen, a ?ruminent lurlber merchant in the early deys
ol Chathoize He bocuze 4 resident there in 1845 when eall the surrcund-
ins diciriet was an elrost unbroken forest, es maraging clexk in a
fmall slore earried on ot the point where Dresden is now situated.
Tkirking this locality, with the Sydenban navipable to this point and
¢ll the distriot arcund e rich and fertile lond heavily tinmbored with
t.2 best of uarketable hardwoode and clm, & good situation for a
toinsito, he purchased seventy acres from Corard lindsley aénd in 1852
hod teenty acres of hies murchese rurveyed into gixty tovn lots. In
1€54 & roat office wes establinhed to wvhich the naro of Dreuden was
given by the postal zuthorities and with John Blackwood as the first
postnaster. South of I'r. Tan Allon's towm plot, Williaw wWright, wbo
setiled in Dresden in 1240, lLizd about the sano time an area surveyed
into lots which he naned *Fulrport' and whioh continued t& bLe tho

nenc of the pleco for scre considercble tine. :

. In cxder to get the place eutabliched as u centre of trade,
Te Vom zllen Duill thexe an hotel, & graln warehouse and o merchunt's
elion An whichn he carried on dusiness for & time. kr. ¥rizht also

In the irmediate noiphborhood, beyond the tovm limits, the
Britisl .and Americon Instituic bhod in 1€L0 begus the estublishnient of
tholr seitlenont of refugo colorod people &nd guite & colony of fbem
soon grew up about the town. A store, a mill, a house of refuge, and
& cluster of cabins were croctod and with theze for a beginning the
setilenent soon boecormn & prosinent feature in the developent of
Dresden and continued &5 sucl for tho next thirty years cof its history
untlil the abandemment of tho Institute work im 187C.

: The growth of tho village at the Lirst was very slow. TwoO
stores, ex botel und a school house were all that existed in 1850 upon
%o Luce the oxpectation of ar inmportant urben ceutrs to be established
in the Zuture &t this point. !

ectabliclicd on his location & store and tuvern, €0 which ke later added
& rrist-uill, tho Tirat to be erscted in tho villege, '

j!

(3
So0n, howaver, the prospects of the villege Lrightened

rotariclily. The nunbder of settlers locating on the surrounding lends
wers increcsing reapidly, especially thut part liorth of the river. The
mvicull o vaters of the Sydenham viere extonsively used for iLheir con-
vonience Loth in bringing them end their poods into the seitlemeont and
tr.nsporiing out whatever of products they had avuilable for an export
rariet. Zspecially wes this tUruc of the tixzbor products of the district
of whicl, like «ll cther tinmbored purts of the country, there was no
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lacke.

Addition after addition both in the puzber of its houses,
in‘ustries and population continued until in 162 thore viere threo
milla, ona grist and two suw-nills, end Tour stores erected, their
sustonence made possible by the growing requiresents of the increesing
sunber of new settlers locating on the faxm lends of the surrsunding
district and toe trode in lwber and cordwood whioh was now at its
Lelght. From a gopulallon of threo hundrsd and fifty at tuis dete,
it incrcased to nearly a tiousend in the next decade, at waich time
1% wns inoccrroruted a villego, while in 1682, when it bocame a town,
its inhobitants numborod ovoer two thousand people (2082). Unfortinzte=-

. 1y the census of 1921 shows & population of only one thousand three

huidred ond thirtye-nine so that while the town ftself had bLeen increus-
ing In roterisl weslth, there hes not been & prorortionate inerease in
the puslsr of its inhabitants, .

Dresden was elso fortunate in tho quality of the nen who
located here and the success which ettended ti:elir exterprise and thrift,
Ore of these, Alexaunder Trerice, deserves spocial mention. He wus
born ir ¥lzin Gounty in 1835 of Scotch deasceont. lis grandpsrants were
eerly ploncers of Kova Scotle where his rfather was born. lie recoved
£0 Dreasden when he was twonly years of age end reomained there until
hls retirecant o Northwestera Caontda in 1891, his persoral history
boirn: = rart and a conspicuous »urt of the zunicipal and conmerciel
aletory of Drecden 05 it expanded first into an incorporated villagoe
S thon into & towne Adthough he bad the sivantages of nolhlng rore
theay & »ublie school eduecation, yet Le developed in ebility - toth @s
& busirvess and public man - a8 Le selzod new opportunities for advancing
tis own 2l tho fnteresto of Dresden. AL first he employed himsell a
& curpcenbers and joliner, & vocalion which he gave up to bacons a carriage
ranufecturer thouph oo & Snalil scaloe Aoving st onwurd, ho crocted

. @ ecu=xill which e operated sucoocssfully [for muny years. rinally,he

. one of itheformer, the "Byron Trerice", named after his son, did duty

rounded off his achievaments by establishing a ship-building plant,
where Lo vreotud five voosels, three steam-Loats and two sailingwssels,

for many vears as a transport vessel on the Sydenham, a valuable zsset
in iLe Luiling up of the town at a time. whea it lecked tho rallway
Tuellities now enjoyed by it inm the services rendored to thuis section
of the County by the Pero Lurqueils Reilway.

Lie Trerice wis tlhe {irel Reeve whon it wus lucgrporuted
a ¥illare in 1072 and the Lfirst Feyor vien it was incorporuted a Towa
in i8E2, end YVarden of the County in 187€. e wes e strong supporier
ol the Suplist Cuaurch end &n urdent Conservative in politics. ’

Asscclated with the activities of 2re Trcrice in building up
tlic town have been the industries operuted by tlo lleVeun Pamily, &mith's
Voolen ! i11l, and Eudd's Carriage Fuctory. Aftcr the lumber and cord-
n2od business hod ceased when the supply of tirmber was oxhausted, 1t
108 necsseary, if the Towm nhould give employment Lo its two thousand
inhiuitiuts, to have some stable industrlies estubllished. This need
wis met in respect to two suclh, catablished in the early history of
tioc Toun, & grist-mill end u wood-vorking factory, both of ihich coue
later into the possession of Jlexander LcVeau.

The l¢cYeuns cume from Scolland in the beginning doys of
cataric's settlomont, im fact, thcir family were the first wliite settlers
in the Gore of Toromnto. Alexander MoVoan vies born im Weston, 1829, and
after learning the milling trade, settled end oporuted a grist-pdill at
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Yuriier, Dnturlio. o married Sarah Honnery of Kingston and to them
wora born six ohildren, five sons und a daughter. Yooking out for
an opcaing whleh might offor an expunsion of business which would
provide occupaticn for kis sons, he cune to Ironden snd purchased,
first, the grist-mill in 1872, und two yours luter the wood-working
fuctory, manufacturing hudbs, spokes and benl goods for whecls.

The grist-mill was teken over by his son, Sondy, in 1878,
who operated 1t untll 1€87, when he built an additionsl ill, a large
roller flour=xill, with its attaclhed elevator, but still using the
foruiar stons-nill for cormueal and buckwheazt flour, of which he did an
extensive business.

‘ ' Tho wood working fectory wus operated by his two sons,
Oogoode and wWillianm, who cane into solo posuession in 1850, on the
rotiresont of their fether from active business., To provide for his
othicr {wo sons, John and Jemes, lr. Alexander lMeVean purchased & hard=-
ware dbusiness ecight yearsa previously, 1882. -

In these three spheres of activity, tho five sons continued
groxgetie, industrious and rospected citizens of the tovn during the
wiola period of thelir business cureors, achioviug e woll-morited
cuccess which pave to thelr family nwie a place of proxinence sccond o
no othor in the past Lifty yeursthistory of the town. The grist-mill
and the hub, apcke and wheol factory aro still the main industries
of the town,.

: Owing to its situation, Dresden is ausurced of a good
corzioreial trado fronr the surroundins rural districta. Paved roads
cornact Lt with Wallacedurg, to the West of 1t, Themesvillie to the
Huslt, und Chatlhium Yo the Southe. Thosc wlith its rallway facilities
and nuvizueblo stroanm ought $o assure it a 8tability end progress
couconsurate with the incrcuse of growth in wealth of the farm lands
surrounting 1% and cugur for it an increasing developszent both in the
guantity and guality of itns mamufecturing industriea,

Finelly, if one warc to single outv the chief attraction of

rezden, wa tiink this would te found in the quality of Its privute
residences. ¥Few contres of 1ts size in Ontario, and nmone in tho
County, can survass it in this respsct. It has sgood public buildings
n 1ts town hall and schools and churches, but in these it is zs In
otiicr towns of its size. But in beautitul residences, beautliful both
in architootural desigsn and in their surroundings, asd in tic size
znd punber of them, the towm has a feature of attraction thut would
bring yrestice to & much larger centre and gives to the placoe an air
of prosperity, and comfort, which a passing traveller cunnot fail to

epprecicte.

CEEONOIOCY OF FViiiTS.

1E25. Gerard Lindsley located con Lot Four, Concsssion Five, of
Dawn, ncw Canden TownaollDe :

183%. Josiah Fenson, sottled on lot Two, Concecssion Pives

1840, British and incrican Inatitute estublished at Dresden on

Lot Three, Concessiocn Iour, o Lewn Township, leter Camden
Townshipe.
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Naniel Re Van Allen having rurchased seventy acres from 1T
Lindzsley, bad twenty acres of it in this year survoyed luto
sizuy-thirea tovn lots.

iy Shortly after William Wright to tho South of it on lot Three,
B - Concession ¥ive, Cunden Coro, hud a plot surveyed irto lots
wideh he namod 'Fairportfts : )

1E50. Canden Gore taken off Duwn Towvnship and added to Cenden
TGWMMP.

B F1854. Pout OfTice establislhied here and nomod Drosden by the F.0.
o authorities with Joln Bluckwood the first rostmuster.

1855_. Alexsndor Trorice locsted at Dresden.
1862, Population 350, of whoz majority were colored people.

- 18€L. ' irst bridge ercoted across the river.
1271, Ths firat Newspapor astablisked by Alex Rigge, The Dresden
Crretta, ¢ : .
*1871. Institute lands sold (13 acros raserved ror market) and a

totud of £40,000 roalized.

1672, Institute merged into the Wilberforce Zducationsl Instituto
of Chothan. ;

i s 1672, Dresdon insorporated a villiego with alexander Trerice, Reeve,
and Aloxander Wetson, C. lie Cluncy, We G. Huffd end Koratlo
tfughea, Councillorae. <

1872,  The steamboat “City of Dresden™ built by Capiain Join Keston.

~

lggez, Tncorporabed a toum.

ohe sbove is information complled
by the late Rev, Hugh Cowen about the ycar
1926 ené extrocted by the Kent Historiool
Sooloty 1947.
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RIDCETOWN

The Southeastern secfion of the County of Kent has in Ridge-
town itc own centre or trade, a flourishing town which beurs the same
relation to Howard Township which its sister town of Blenheim does to
Harwich. ¥hen a post office wus established at this plzce, it wus
gilven its present nome from its situation on the watershed running
from Zast to Vest across the County midway between like Erie and
KcGregor's Creok or the River Thames, locally known &s the Ridge. The
seloection of the swmit of this plateau for the townsite gives it a
bich end dry location, in contrast to tho low lying lunds, so character-
istic of much of the naighboring distrioct to the South and Northwest of
1%, and lends added attraction to it as & clean, healthy and plecsant
pluce in whioh to live. The town is situated twenty miles from Chathanm,
the near city, eighty-rive miles from Vilndsor, and about seventy from
London, leaving for it a lurge territory of excellent and fertile lands
with which to estublish a trade, & circuwstance that ought to promise it
a bright and progressive future.

: The Ridgotown distriet was opened up for settlcment in the
year 1822, Some years before this there was laild out across the bush
& road - from the Talbot liighway to the Tiwuuwes River,which vus used for
nilitary purposes during the war of 1812, but no settlement- was made
oaliong this road until William lLarsh settled on Lot Iiine om the Tenth
Concession of lloward Tovuship in 1823. lo wus followed lnmediately
after Ly Jemes Watson who locuted on the opposite lot from him, with
Sdound Mitton and EFlenezer Colby setiling on the two adjucent faims on
Iots Ten on the Hinth and Tonth Concessions respectively.  On these
four lots tue town 1s now situated.

On thelr errival, this quartette of ploneers found the whole
surrounding district & forest in whioh ouk, walnut, beech, hickory and
maple, wers the chief timber trees. Wild fruits, such as berry bushes,

rab apple and wild cherry trees were also found distributed here and
ticre tliioughout these woods. Here these four, with V/ilson, Scane
guc, others added to thelr numbers built for themselves homes, very
pricitive in character and without too much surplus of rcom for their
accoimedation. The Mitton femily, comprising ten members, were housed
in a log dwelling, fourteen by eigihteen feet in dimensions, ons storey
high, and the others had similar dwellings. The growtih of the sctitle-
mont was very repid from the very first. The laund was high «nd 4dry;
the soil, one of the wmost fertile in the proviiace; and camxunicatlon
fron cutcide points to the place was easily made by wey of the Tulbot
Road and by way wlso of boats on lake Erie. It thus became a place of
popular location unutil all the luands of the neighborhood were takon upe
Cleerances came into existence rupidly both &s to their number and size.
Yet notvilthstunding the ropid growth of the settlement, nothing to
Justify the name of & villepge was established before the middle of the
ceriury on the laands where is now situated Ridgotown. In 1851, the
survey into town lots was first begum. At that time & blacksmith shop
estciliched by Jemes C. iitton, a store carried on by kalcolm iclean,
und « sciool house erected in 1830, were all that existed of a nucleus
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~ from which has since been built up the prescnt business centre, ‘now
- motcd for its protty homes, wide streets and progressive Lusiness
i ROUICB. '

From the date of 1ts survey progress towards a village of some

conseguence waa commsonoced. In that year the first church was built
by tiho rresbyterians on the site where later has been erected their
present cormodious structure at a cost of £20,000. 00, snd other
institutions were added to the place &s the needs of tho surrounding
corz:unity seemed to require it. But at no tinme for the next twenty

. yeurs dld the place show any inclination to & progress which would 1ift
.ig ﬁioge thg status of a spall rural centre for the supply of a limited

c griande -

In the meantime an event took plece in the history of the
distriot which entirely changed the future prospects of this heretofore
country hamlet. This wus the consiruotion of the Canade Southern, now
the lichigan Central Railway, running from liiagara Falls to '/indsor,
and passing Just one short mile North of Ridgetown. Before this it was
Morpeth which gave promise of bocouing the commercial metropolis of
Howard Township and the surrounding district and its steady progress
belfore and up to this time supplied Just grounds for this expectation.

This flourishing village was situated four miles South of
Ridgetown, one und a quarter miles North of Lake BErie. It had good
- 8caport facilities at Antrim and later at Port Hill's landing with its
. wareliouse and pier erected (by Wiliiam %ilson) there in the eacrly
history of the County. In 1830 & post office was established there
with Captaln Wheutley, & disbanded British Soldier, as the first post-
mester und 1t had besides at that time a store, & tannery, a shoe chop,
and a blacksmith's shop, all doing a flourishing businesa with a rapidly
inereasing farming settlement surrounding it. In 1841, William Sheldon
recled a taverm and lald out the Eastern ond into a village site. At
the end of five furtiier years, it contained three stores, two hotels,
two blackenmith shops, & distillery, a cabinet and tailor shop, with a
¥2pulutian whiclh increased to five hundred before the end of the next
V& Yyears, ;

Sonatines the growth of one populated centre is oblained by
tiie doeline of ahother. Such was the case &s between Ridgetown and .
#orpeth Ly the coming in to the District of the Canade Southern Railwaye.
Hed this railway chosen a route proximate to Lake RErie, as some of the
origiual promoters sought to have it do, thea the story of the rise and
Progross of Ridgetown would never have becn written. DBul the cvent
decrced otherwise. The inhabitunts and business men of lorpecth lost
faith in the future prospects of their town end they moved out and took
up their residence at Ridgetown, pow made the more favored place bscause
of the transportation facilities supplied by the incoumin; railway. At
thut time Yorpeth contained four general stores, three groceries, one
Saddle and harness shop, five shoe shops, two tallor shops, threce hotels,
ole carriage factory, two cabinet shops, one cooperage, one bukery,
three blucksmith shops, one carding and fulling nill, & foundry, towvm
hall, Mesoniec and Orange lodges, two churches, four physicians, a good
schiool. There were two mills within a mile and a half of tho wvillege,
Campbell's Grist 1'111, situuted on Blg Creek, and Simon's Grist and Saw
11111 (steam and water power), and much business was done at both of
then. Put all this has now become non-existent. A sleepy country
villoge only remains were once was situuted this flourishing business
4nd industrial centre. The railroad built up the one place but at the,
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- expense of the othore

From this time the growth of Ridgetown was phenomenal. Five
yoars ufler the coning of the railway, the increase of population
warranted the establishuent of an independent runieipal existence -
bitherto i¢ vas & part of the Munioipality of Howard - and accordingly
i§ vii8 iuncorporated a villuge which took effect on January the first,
1697« Thet year the [irst Viliege Council was elected, composed of
Jecob Suith, M.D., @8 Reeve; Zenis Viutzon, David Watterworth, Chearles E.
Scune und ils W. Westlund, &s Councillors. -

The growth of the populution continued until in 1882 it
reached in the immediate neighborhood of two thousand oane hundred.
Tiis increase above its former figures led to its incorporation as a
towvn which took effect that yecar with il. D. Cunningham accorded the
honor of being its first lLayor. Oince that time, although there has
been ap increase in the nuulber and guality of its houses and institutions
ths populaticn has pot advanced. The last vensus, 1921, gives the popu-
lation at that time as nuubering one thousand eighkt hundred and fifty-
five, a descrease of over two hundred since tiie date of its incorporation,
& depopulation of the rural tovm corresponding with the depopulation of
the rural district lumediately surrounding it. :

fidventages for education are liberally bestowed upon Ridgetowvm.
It has an excellent public school, & Collegiete Institute, and there is
now beling added a Vocational Cchool in whieh agriculture, both its
sciontilic knowledge and its pructice, is to be the muin subject of
S‘auu;;‘.

The rirst sclioocl in the district was built in 1828 at the Fast
gorner ¢f Lot Seven, on the Ninth Concecsion of loward Towvnship. The
toucler was supported, &s wus the custoxm of those days, by monthly fees
fron the parents of children witending and by boarding round at their
homes, a practice which often times placed the burden heaviest on those
icéast &bls Lo carry it. The ncxt. school was built by Joseph Fush in
1830 on ihe ¥West cormer of l.sin and Erie 3trosts. Tnis location on the
main busliness thoroughfare cf the town becoming undersirable, the school
house vwus woved to another and a wing added in 1872, the increased
population due to the comlng of the rallway to the town demanding it.
In 1875 a stlll larger school was required, follcowed in 1832 by the
building of the present large brick structure on the South sids of
i?ne Jtreet which has remained since the only public schuol bullding in

03] tov;n - A

Ridgetown's supply of water is obtuinod from arteslian wells.
The water is druwn from tiese wells by means of conmpressed air and then
diverted iunto & reservoir or tank erected one hundred &nd twenty-seven
feet high. Tihe pover house is equipped with the letest engines end
punping rachinery with a capucity of about fifty-rive thousand gallons
&n hour. Tha system is considcred to be one of the best possible, cost-
ing the towm in the ncighboriood of forty thousand dollars to establish
and capable of supplying a sulficlency of wuter not only for its domestic
use but an auple provision is rade also in case of fire, which can be
greutly cupgrented in case of such un ewergency.

“3dgetown is essentielly & ceutre of acriculturel trade and
from that source it must look for whatever of Iuture progress awaits
it. It Leos soveral thriving indusiries but oll of them are in keeping
with this circumstance. Thesc consist of a lurgo cancing factory, a
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- grist-nill, 2 sush end door factory, & basket factory and & machine
shop. /= & shipping polint for agricultural produce, in some respects
it stands second to no other in the County. It hus three large cleaning
glevatcrs and more beans arc scld to be shipped from this place than
from any other Canadien centre, arising from the fact that the soil of
the surrmunding farm lands 1s speclully adupted for bean-growing, while
its Soutlern latitude supplies it with the suituble clinate. Tobaceco,
potutoes and corn are also grown in large quantities on thesde lands es
well 2z the market garden produce and frults which supply the canning
‘factory with the needed material for its continued operztlion.

The above is information compiled
by the late Rev. Ilugh Cowan about the year
1926 and extracted by the Kent Historiocal
Society 1947. .
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THAMESVILLE

In the middle forties of the last century Sir Richard Bonnycastle
Military Tngineer, "a chief takin' notes", as he travelled Westward
towerds Detroit spent a night in Thamesville - 2 name which excited his
ire s an unwarrantable liberty with the name of old Father Thames.

He put up at Treeman's tavern which stood West of the present limits
of the village about where lir. Taylor Vence's residence now stands.

He does not give the number of houses in Thamesville, but at that time
thore were not many familieas in the vicinity - to say a dozen would be
to overstate it. Sir Richard found a black substance on the stoop
benecl outslide the tavern which he was told had been brought by the
Inclans from a dozen miles beyond Cornwall's Creek, It was crude
petroleun. He was informed that salt was procured by evaporating briny .
pools in the neighborhood., He noted the irmense white wood and elder
trees and also the large welnuts, which he complained the settlers were
wasting by using for fence’ rails. Of birds he mentions the mourning
dove, a new variety to him, whippoorwills and the quail.

Soon after Sir Richard's visit Froeman's tavorn was bought by
wtllium.L‘yhew lately out from England. His young wife agreed to
performm the duties of ; postmmster gratuitously for the convenience of
gotting her own mail. ‘The mail was carried on horse back from London
and when the rcads were bad - which was often = its time of arrival was
uncertaln., lirs. Mayhew sometimes left her bed in the middle of the
night to charnge mail. Besldes I'reecnans and Yayhews, there would be
Shercaneg, Cornwalls, Jackmans, Sanfords, Hubbells, Wallaces and Ingalls
getting occasional letters.

In the early fifties wlen the Great Western Riilway was surveyed
two bids were nmade for the honor of having the postoffice. Mr. Erastus
Vallace subdivided for what he hoped woult be the future village on the
South sidc of the river near the present Rallway Bridge, and called it
Thamesville; and }Mr. David Sherman subdivided part of his patrimony
which won the honor of being the third and last corpus to carry the
name Theiesville.  Mre. Sherman did not first choose that name, calling
his sublivision Tecumseh aftor the hero he remembered speaking to in 5
1813 Just as he was going to his death in battle with Harrison's troops.
But that name had already been given to a postoffice in Essex, and
Thearcsvillic was his second choice.

He night have oalled his villege Shermanville, His father, whose
original location he was subdividing, was the first white man to settle
within wkot is now Thamesville. He was a United Empire Loyalist from
Pennsylvania and came here in the late days of the Eighteenth Century,
building uis ocabin on the banks of the river, where the Sherman Cemetery
now is. He had few neighbors when the battle of the Thames was fought.
His wife 3renared a breakfast for Proctor's men but they did not stop to
eat it.,. The Americans being so oclose, they had to press on to the spot
chosen by Proctor to make his stand. David Sheiman was about nine years
0ld when ne spoke with the great chief and afterwards helped bury the
dead. !’r. Sherman's barn was used by Harrison for a military hospital
efter the battle, some 6f the wounded men spending months there, and one
Jures Dunckoy electing to make his permanent home with the Shermans. He
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is buricd in their plot. The o0ld barn still stands, having been
noved o a slte adjoining Tocumsech Hell, liies Pergucsn's residence.
I'7e Duvid Shenm:an suffered imprisonment as an adherent of YeXenzie
during the *'37-'3€ troudbles. The fourth generution of Zhermans still
lolds purt of the orizinal grant of land with a fifth generation grow-

ing up around thexn,

When the Rallroad was bullt Mr. YMeyhew moved near 1t and
built @ hotel which was the priancipal hostelry of the village for
forty yoearse Ie his doscendunts of the third and fourth generation
still acong our cltizens. ‘ ;

' The Great Western station wus bullt in 1654 and Thumosvillo
Instoffice moved noar it. The Postzwmsters since that timo cre: H.F.
(ualngs, Ur. Collior, Junes Duncung John Duncan and Catherine puncan
:Lulmﬂy .

ure. 'Robert Duffus coming here from Scotland in 1854 built a
nill on the creek which enters the rivor ncur the prosent bridge and
conducicd a ferry belore any bridge wus built, .

In 1857 Jumes Ferguson moved hithor fronm Ridgetown having
erderated from Stirlingshire, Scotland, o few years eurlicr. With his
8ous Jo'ar and Robert he carried on an extensive lunber tusiness for
Loly yourse A ill wvas bullt on the property now occupied by Dre
Clowari's residencoe Later thoy bought the rHorthuwood rill con the
South olde of the river near the Rullway bridge, wmhiich the sons o
ated €111 the lete elighties, lir. Jamoes FPerguson having died in 1866.
A luan businoss founded by Joun wnd Robert Terguson stlll subsists,
duc grandelilédren and great grandehildren of I'r. James Parcuson are
stlll auwong our ocitizens, :

Uith tho coming of the Railroad, Thomesville tooXkx the position

surrowiicing her, one store after another opening with a display of the

- varlious merchandise nevessary for the loscal trade. The Canadian

Pacific Ballway station Luilt in 16889 & nmile and & helf North of the
village pade 1t a 2till more desirable shipping ceutre. Houses have
always tcen in damand althoush fow years pass without some new oncs
geing up. Yo place took greater advantuge of the Invention of cczent
bilcecks o besutify end recder substantial fts dwellings. Cood found-
wtions, Lundsome verandahs, woll kept luwms, with good cernent walks and
elequate strect lighting mako the villuege a desirable residence.

At lelf 4 dozen stores one mag buy 4dry goods of liuited or
geueral varicty. Neorly a dozon sell groceries, and thers are four
ico craanm parlors. Thero ars three hardware stores, one drug store,
three vhore farm Inpleronts nay bo dbought, one flour and feed, and one
Lurness shop, two blackipith sbhopa, thrce burber shops, two shoe repair
2h2ps, ono furniture unud undortoiing estublishment, onv sewlng machine
s:‘.g{i two =111inexy sbops und two parcges. Tho are two Panks and two
el £7d TOoomS,.

Tiunesville began its corporste existence in Jenuary, 187L.
The Tirs{ Council consisted of: Robort Ferguson, Resve, and G. A. Tyo,
G. ¥, Opuckzan, P, J. Yayhew and Leuuel Sherman, Couxncillors. They
cesenblsd in Xayhow's Hall, now the property of the Canning Factory, and
torointsd Wme McKinley, Clerk, D. MeFarlane, Treasuror, RX.C.Dacow,
ACGe3sor, and K. Beutzon, Coliactor.

ghu a};ove is infornation compiled by the late
Ve iugh Cowan abm e G
S fonp Soin abaut, the Yoqr, 1026 end extracted by
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 WALLACTTURG

Wallaceburg is the aeeond largest urban centre in the County.
Thia is, no doubt, due to its advantageous position oi the sjdenham
a des) and easily navigable river which branched at this point,
en idcal spot for a townsite from the point of view of boat tra;rio.
£ltuated but a short distance inland from lake St. Clair, it has
therelfore, fecilities for transportation by water second "to no other
town or village in the County.

Wallaooburs was rounded by Selkirk
- aettlers.

=~ ' The inception of the town may be sald to be a by-product of the
Selkirk Socttlement. Its history cannot be diseassociated from that well-
reant bul unfortunate venture. It was a Baldoon settler who bullt the
first log house and started the first clcarance in its neighborhood.
The flrst store and hotel were opened out by lLaughlin McPougall, one of
the original 'one hundred and eleven', where soon after him vere locuted
ids Lwo brothers, Archibald and Hector. It was & Bsldoon 8chool teacher,
f'ugh YaeCs~llum, that became its first postmastor end gave to the town
its name, which he called after Scotland's patriot and soldicr, Sir
Williem 1 allace. It was a Baldoon settlor, Hector licLean, who settled
on the lot where now stands the major pertion of the town and it wes a
Daldoon settler, Lionel H. Johnson, who opened out the first blacksmith
ggop and store in the Horthwest angle formed by the Jjunction of the two

Vers.

. Pioneer stores established on the
South sido of the river.

The South bank of the river was the first to take upon itself
the aspect of & village. On four adjacent lots, Twelve and Thirtcen in
the Tirst Concesnion, and Twelve and Thirteen in the Second Concession
of the Township, then called Sombra but now Chatham Gore, four femilies
hid gottled and establishied on their fams, three of them, stores, and

ne fourth a post office end school. These were the lcCregors, a family
of gruowm up sons of Joun licCregor who distinguished himself in the Var
of 1812 and to whom was given by the Govermment eight hundred and fifty
acres of land for the services ho then rendercd; Jemes Baby wio was a
descendant of that honorable and prdminent French family of Detroit, one
of whom was appointed by Covernor Simcoe an Executive Councillor for the
Yostern District in the first parlierent of Upper Canada; and Laughlin
MeDougall and Hugh leCallum, the above mentioned pioneers from the
Baldoon Settlement. On the lcrth bank of the river, there was erected
in 1833 a frome building by one James Henderson in which he too kept a
gcooole This building passed into the hands of Hector licDonuld which he
turned into a tevern or boarding house and kept there & place of enter-
talm.ent for many years. Tpls place, called then the 'Core', has since
beccme the principal business section of Vallaceburg and that which was
lust chosen as & business site has now become the first 1n importance

znd t.e cuisf centre for trade in the towm,
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Noticeable developmont did not
begin until 1850.

Although the Post 0ffice was establislhed as early as 1834 and
the Tirat survey of town lots made in 1837, it wes not until sbout 1850
tiuct the place gave any indications of developing into & centre of trade
and indusiry such as it has since becoms. Like all other centres within
the bounds of the County, the irst and most inmportant influence impelling
a noticectly forward movement in its progress was that of the lumbering
industry. The distriot round cbout was covered with the best of timber,
. especially oak and elm, and its good locution as a vessel port gave to
it an opportunity for advance whenm the timber became marketable, which
ita enterprising inhabitants werse not slow to seize. TFor the next ten
years the lumbering industry was at its height, and, save for the lull
in the year 1657, when, owing to the financial hard times then existing,
there was considerable unemployment emong its inhabitants, Wellaceburg
wont forvard with rapid strides. The lumber industry in this decade
brouvzht ruch business-and scttlers to the towvn. As it wvas with the
Theries River, so also with the 3Jydenham, its banks were lined every winter
with timber sticks and staves and in the spring of the year its wvaters
were nade hardly discernible beczuse of the numerous quantities of these
floating down on its surface to find a market at Detroit ard olsewhere.
But the prosperitiy attendant upon this industry was merely temporary.
Stable preoopsrity camo through the develomment of the surrounding farm
lands and the establishment of industries. The next decadeo, 1860 to
1870, was & period of transition, As & source of employment every year
in this pcriod the timber business was gettinz nore precurious.. Every
inereuse in the production and eoxportation of square timber, staves,
lunber and cordwood, lessened the quantity of timber available and
brought the end of the lumber industry that much nearer. The opposite
was tiue of the farming industry. As the farning distriet round about
becaze developed and the quantity of its agricultural productions in-
erespad, the village grow proportionately. It was not 5o rapid a
progress o3 the lurber industry brought to it but it was permanent.
Vallacebur;; wes saved {rom the fate of many other equally thriving
lumber cenires by its position on a nuvigable river and the rapid increase
of settleresnut on the surrounding lands of the district. In Ghe trans-
ition from cue source of dependence to the other, progress lagged but
did nct entirely cease. .

Boat traffic on the Sydenham vas
one of its Iirst entorprises.

When the country all around was @& forest and the roads impasaable
owin: to the low mature of the- surrounding district, the Sydenham River
beeane in the early history of the County the highway for lake sailing
vessels and lumber barges. The first of thesc was built by Laughlin
¥eDougall. To men accustomed to fishing and Tishing boats, &s were the
Highlenders who composcd the Baldoon Settlcment, it could not be supposed
that they would leave so naviguble a stremn as this unutilized. Eardly
had Mebourull-settled in the neighborhood of 'The Forks'when he began to
use the binks of the river for boat building purposes. It was perhaps
the rcrmembrances and cxperiences which he and his forebears went through
on hic native Island of }ull that su;gested to hinm the sailirg schooner
as tho means of obteining the goods wherewith to start a trading post
at thls looality. At any rate, two vessels,which he numed resjectively
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Wallace and Selkirk wero constructed and setafloat as early as to do
duty for the conveyance of the products of the hunter and trapper of
his store to Dotroit and the bringing back with then the necessaries
required for the hunting and trapping trade, the household needs of
incomin; settlers, and, leter, the requirements for the carips of
lusboricii. This first attempt at navigation was soon followed by the
coning “ud golng of many vessels as soon as the lumber industry created
a dapand, with the bullding of necessary docks and warehouses, until
the village bocame such en important point of navigation that it was
made a port of entryr and honored with a customs officlal, an event
wiich is dated in tue calendar of the village as having taken place
in the early fifties. _

Captain Stelnhoff, a noted shipbuilder
and prominent industrialist. :

Next to lMeDougall, the name which standa out most conspicuously
in the shipbuilding enterprises of the past history of the town, is
without doubt that of Captain James W. Steinhoff. He was borm in
1634 of Pennaylvania Dutch ancestry, a class of settlers prominently
asgociated with the early history of this County. His father moved
frén Ste Thomas where his son James was born, and settled in Howard
Township in 1838. Thore he remaimed until 1848, whenm, moving to
Wicllaceburr, he took up a szall farm ané¢ followed this vocation for
the rest of his life time. At ten years of age, the boy, who was
destined to become so noted a citizen of industrial Wallaceburg,
besan his life's undertakings employed in carrying the mail between
Chether. »nd Stony Polnt, a distance of twenty-five miles between them,
and driving both ways the same day. This was followed by his becoming
in turne o stage driver, a cook on a lake vessel, a teamster in the
lunber woods, finclly ending his career as & laborer, &8 sawyer in a
lurler 1:1111. At twonty, with what money he had up to this time saved,
he began business for himself, a purchaser of cordwecod, vwhich he
fronsportod with his own scow to Detroit. This he found a nost profit-
alLl< undertsking., Els Luslness rapidly expanded and his increasing
capital enaklied hin 8¢ add other barges whlch he had constructsed at
Wallacseburg until he had 8 fleet of half a dozen errloyed steudily at
this work durins the navigation scasoh. To these he added & sailing
vessel, the Annz Steinhoff, In which he carried barley between Chaihanm
and Toledo. Tor a time, he wus the master of a steamioat, The Islander,
which ecrned for him the title of "Captaim™. At Walleceburg he built
four stcomecrs, one of whieh was the J. W. Steinhoff on which he had
the honor of being host to Lord end Ledy Dufferin, the Governor Cecneral,
when on o truvelling expedition through the distriet, he visited Detroit,
Saynia, “oderioch, and other lake ports. After long service, it was
soll to the "cKenzie end i'ann' interestis at Toronto and plied as a
pessenger vessel between thot port and Port Dalhousle under the ncze
of Garden City, an old bottor under & new titley whers 1t rocked the
pacsengers to siclkmess in every little gule untfl it was finally
reroved off the route for safety's sake. In 1887, Captuin Steinhoff
resired from busineas thourh it was not until 1902 that he £old his
last vesselea In the meantine ke had beca &2 promoter and a large con=-
tributor to the establisluent of the town's best and lurgest industries,
ties Toninion Glass Yorks, the Suger Beet Industry, the Flax 21ll, and
the Cooperage business., In addition, he was Interested in a priwvate
bancing buciness and in fexming, owning and operating not less than two
thousand Tive hundred and sixty acres of farm lands in the Counties of
Kent and Tanbton. He left as a mwonument to his enterprise and ability
not only thes2 industries which he helped to call into existence but a
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‘prophet of tomorrow doubtless sees & boat trarffic, with VWallaceburg as
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beautiful park or play ground, hiz gift to the town, and now comprising,
with Covernment and Library Park, an outstanding feature in the scenio
attractions of the place.

Future enterprises nmust not overlook
the capabilities of the Sydenham. -

In forecasting the future development and- industrial enter-
prises of the town, the capabilities of the Sydenham to supply facil-
iiies Tor transportation, should not be overlooked. This same river
which wus used as the highway for passenger and freight traffic in
the doys o the incoming of the first setilers to the district, and
the capnbilities which leDougall and Steinhoff saw in it for the
bullding un of trade, is still looked upon by the present day citizens
of tle town @8 one of the rcsources upon which they build their
expoctutions for additional progress and development in its future
hictory. There 18 nothing to prevent Wallaceburg from being a port of
entry for all vessels which have to make use of our inland lakes and
canals for the river can supply a channel of water eighteen feet in
depth and wide enough to provide a turning basin for vesselec three

- hundred and rifty feet long. It but requires the enterprises of

trade and industry to develop these capabilities which Nature has
surplied the towvn through the medium of this river. Nor hes the towm
becn unmindful of its heritage. Although today no local Navigation
Corpany exists to take tho place sufcessiully held by lehougall end
Stolnhoff, yet &s a navigation centre it still holds an important place.
te sugar rofinery is wvisited bi-weekly during its seoason by vessels
coning in from the tropical South with their freizghtaze of raw sugar
and going out with the rofined procduct to its vurious destined markets.
Pasgenger vessaels look after the tourist trude in the summer months
and supply fucilitics for pleasurc seekers to pass to and fro between
Wellaceturg and Detrolt, Buffalo, Sernia und other luke ports. The

its centre, worthy of the river snd the fertility of the district of
which 1t i3 the mediun for drainage.

Activities of D.A.Gordon -add new
industries to Vallaccburg.

Associated with Captuin Steinhoff in some of his industrial
enterprises and surpessing him in the benefits conferred through him to
tho town was his nephew, David Alexander Cordon. He was bora in
Wallaceburg in 1858 and since 1883 until the timeo of his death in 1919,
one of the most prominent industrialists in the County of Kent. His
first venture wus in the Cooperage business which he established in
partnersiip with his uncle, beccning its president anu gencral manager.
Ythen the Sydenham Glass Works were established, he became maraging
director in 1897 and under his guidance it enjoyed from the sturt a
constantly inereasing business until it becurmo .the largest and most

mportant enterprise of its kind in the Province. Through his efforts,
the Beet Sugar Compeny also was located at Wullaceburg and he was made
its president asund general nmanager. Yiithout doubt tiic progress of the
town during the last forty years of its history, the years in which it ha
nads the largest strlides forward in 1ts prosperity aud size, was due in
lerse measure to the industrial enterprises which his activities and
lnfiuvence wore instrumcntul in establishing. Ie took an active part

ir the municipal affairs of the town eénd was layor for three consecutive
terns. e also represented West Kent in the House of Commons for
fourteen yeers, being elected as a Liberal, holding the seat continuously



from the time of his first election until his death.

The above is information coupiled
by the late Rev. lugh Cowan about tho year
1926 and extracted by the Kent listorical
Society 1947.
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WIIRATLEY VIIIAGE

vheatley is situated on the County Line between the
Counties of Essex end Koent but wholly in Kent County for lMuniocipal,
Provinelal end Pederal purposes. It was celled Pegtovn when the rlrat
few seltlers congregated in this territory on Tulbot Road & couple of
milas Tfrom the shores of Luake Trie. One story has it that there were
seven cobblera there, another was tiat houses were built on posts or
pees without foundations, thus giving rise to tle name ‘'Fegtown'.

There was & ran nemed vheatley, & farmer, who was very highly
respected in the pettlemaent. 1lie died and it wus suggested that the
nuizo Pegtown (which did not meet with favor) be changed to mheutlay in
honer of the fine déitizen by this naxe.

The nearest trading post was Amherstburg. Sometives the men
had to cross tho river to get supplies from Detroit. The ncarest mill
~was 1n ChatLam. The date of the first sottlement wus around 1€00.

Tho follewing is a copy of a lettor written by Culeb Coatsworth
whick 1c on file in iho Archives East Bloek, Purliument Buildings,
Toxronto:

"Io the Honorable
The Cormissioner of Crown Lands,
Province of Cntario.

Yon. 8ir:

The undorsigncd potitioner humbly ropreaunus that
he intends bdbuilding & dock on tho shoro of luke Erie in front
ol Lot 200 Tulbot Roud &3 there is no dock for shipping timber,
lumber, staves, cordwood or produce within seven miles to the
Juut of this locallly nor to the East for a distance of twenty
miles.

That the estimated cost of tliec dock 1s five thousand
dollers, and your pnotitioner now prays that you will grant him
un oxolusivn olain as applied for by C. Vi, lotcukiss, that

your petitioner may heve some protectlion to guasrantee such
thlay of money on this open coast, his privilege to the
exolusion of all others, and your peti ioner will forever pray.

- signed
ated Dec. 19, 1817. Cualch Coutsworth"

From Wheatley Eust there was u dense forest called tho "Five
‘ile Woocds"™, Muny years of work were spent oa clearing this territory.
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Weliut wnd chestaut und oak troes wore abundant. Vhite wood, or the
'tullp tree' s it is now cclled, was also plentiful., In those eurly
Cays the white wood wus used for making furniture for the pioneer
bomes, uxe handles and wagona. It was very durable and would not
srlit. The tulip tree had blossoms in June resembling eclusters of
derge, bsautiful yellow and orange und green tulips. Thera is one
tree neur Wheatley ncw, @ very old tree about sixty fest highe When
the treco is in bloom visitors come to see it from miles arcund, Trees
that wore very valuable were cut down for firewood and riany of then
were burned after they were ‘dired because of the difficulty of selling
the wood and the need of clearing the land.

There were wild anlmals in this woods, deor and wolves aplenty
end wild turkey for a meal whenever deaired. : -

Talbot Road rambled alors the lake front, a crooked road
little better then a trail. It vus moved back in places some distance
a8 the lake encroached year after yecar.

In 1857 there was a fishory oporated at the leke by the .
l‘olean family. This wus said to be the first industry. It continues
to be un important business and is still operated by licLeans, There
are six or pore other large fisheries and fish is shipped to American
and Cencdian Citiea, the sales of which are up over a million dollars'
worth a year, Omstead's filleting establishrent is the lergeat in
C&nh duo

Alemandexr Wilkinson built the first post office and W.Buchanan
was the {irst postmaster. Thomas Dcles had the first store.

The Baptist Church dates back to 1850 and i1s linked with the
nemes of Elder Wilkinson, Elder Corlett and Elder Fitehe They held
‘meetings for a tirme in a lethodist Church West of Yhoulley end in the
publiec schocl. Jater, Goorge Viddleton, hotel keepor, gave the Baptists
the use o his bar room on Sundays which they gratefully accepted.

Jacob Julien, another hotel keeper, gave them & lot and a little white
chureh wus bullt in 1866, the first church in vheatley. Lutor, they
bought tlelr brick building and 1t has been used ever since. 1t
beloenged to thas Fpiscopal Methodiasts and was bullit in 187%4.

The Methodist Church in the village dates back to 187L. This
brick church was bought by the Anglicans about 1918 and servicos were
held ia 1t for a few yecura. About 1935 it was sold, to bo rexodolled
for an apurtment house, but this did not materlalize. It was used for
& jcnticostal Church. In 1914 & new Methodist Church wus built on
Talbot Streot at a cost of ©20,000,00. This is now a United Chureh.

: n the Baptist Church & nminister named Dodds became dissatisfied
with his work end he, together with a number of his membors, started the
Irmanuel Baptist organization, later buying a church building. After a
fow years it was closed. '

: Before there was a lethodist Church in Wheatley, there wus a
litile meeting house ebout a mile West of Wheatley. Rov. Thomas Culbert
had churge of thirteon appointuments in this territory and this wus one
o them. He had a young minister and & number of laymen in the district
to assist with the preaching services each weck. Rev. George Clurke
wus one of his essistants in 1865 and he was only 20 years old when
1n this lit$le church he preached his first sernon. He haed 1t well
preparcs but did not preuch on thetext he had chosen, Lr. Culbert
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hea told him the members had e way of staying around outside visliting
witl euch other before coming into the meeting. GCeorge Clarke docided
he would try to teach them to be on time. There was only one man in
the church when the service began. The minister end his listener sang
the fir:% hymn, then ocame the prayer and Soripture reading and another
hymne 7ue sermon followed. Instead of the text preparsd, he switched
to a more suitable one - 'Thou art the man'., A48 the lest hymn was being
surj, t.e members who had becn outside, strolled in. At tlhe close of
the hyin, he pronounced the bonediction. The next sSunday there was

no one laite. Dr. George Clurke died in Thorold &t the age of 97. He
preached in 5t. Paul St. Church in St, Catharines when Le was 93.

The firat school seotion wus organized in 1871 with ). L., Shaw,
Wiiliem MeLean and H. Blekford as trustees. The site of tho one roon
gchool was on the lake road noar V. Derbyshire's home. Janmes lleil was
the first teacher., In 1€84 a new freme school was bullt nearby. UD
until 1894 one teacher handled all elasses. In 1902 the brick pudblis
school was built at a cost of §5000.00., 4. C. Dainty was principal
and three other teachers were euployede. A $30,000.00 continuation school
‘was built in 1922, The public school wus burned in 1943, and, until
auilding materials are available, oclasses will be held in the continuatic
sohool. e

‘The Pereo Marquette Reilroad was constructed in 1890 and brought
wueh delight to the villagers.

The Wheatley Journal wus printed first in 1895 by Dan Kenyon.
Iater, (lé99), it was taken over by Epplett Bros. and 1s owned now by
Zpplett and Sone

Pr. J. A. Campbell had the first automobile. -

Azlo Wilson, @ pupil of the Continuation School, won the gold
radal in the W.0.35.3.A. 8pecking contest one yearT.

The Greyhourd Bus lLine runs e bus through the villege on
il hway No.3 from Windsor to Kiagara Falls.

rxcitement ran high when 1t was learned that gas wolls were
beirz hored in Romney und that there was an abundant supply. Formers, oI
whose ferms the wells were pared, received $200.00 a year and were given
eaoh free gua for heating and lighting. \Wheatley streets wore lighted
with gas and everyone used it for all domeatlisc purposes when it was
pivud through the willage elout 1907. Thore were seven wells bored in
the village. These gus wells eventually pleyed out but even yet at
tires they are active. It was gas seeping from one of them that caused
“ha explosion of the I.0.0.F. Block in 1935.

vheutley beocame an incorporated village in 1914, Previous to
this the village, wiich was partly in Essex and Kent, waua controlled by
the Councils of Romncy and Mersea. lajor T. M. Fox vus the first reeve.

: A franchise was given to Marvin white to use the streets for an
electric lightiing system to replace the old gas lights. In 1922 Hydro
wae installed.

The. Provincial Highway lo.3 through the village was puved in
1927 ana village streets were also paved about that time. :




for a quarter, beef and pork 3-6¢ a pound. Chickens were 20¢ ready for
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An excellent water supply from the lake wus seoured in 1929, This
is extendin; each year. In 1946 & $90,000.00 filtration plant was
begun and will soon be inoreration. This yoar (1947) the P, li., Rullway
will be supplied with water.

~An cutstanding event that brought publicity from coast to coasat
wus the orgenizution of @ Cormunity Club in 1935. There are open air
gonouTls every Outurday night from May until the end of September. The
¥Wiheatloy Duand of thirty-threo or more pembera with Ivan Coulter, &
local nusiclan, as leader, assistas on the programs, and musicians,
voculists, dancers, masioians end other performers provide susappy eater-
talnzent for the erowds that attend. Some of the bost spoakers in
Onterio, including Premier Drow and Members of Purlicment, Doctors,
Leviyers, Judges, and many others have given outstanding addreases,
There are up to date novies and pet shows and various other forzs of

- entoertainment during the sunmer. Maclean's Magazine sent a represent=

ativa to write it up and a glowing account of this orgunizetion and
its activities was given. Seldom less than two thousand people attend
and Lhere are often nany more. The village in 1947 has a population
of alout nine hundred. -

During the winter when snow stoms often tie up Ontario in many
towns, cities and villages, wWheatley residents cit back conteatedly
and szile for seldom, very seldom, does tho weatherman inflict severe
weather and heavy drifts on the little Lake Erie Village, During the |
winter of 1946-1947 when neurly all of Onturio was covered with snow '
drifts, in some places aa high as telephone poles, therec wus at ro time
a drift to be seen in VWheatley. Two or three inches of snow and of
short duration made the winter of 1947 a plcasant cne.

\bout 1910 an English Syndicate bought up 2000 acres of land
alon; tho lake front. It was to be divided into 25 acre farms and sold
to Zngllichmen, ' Before the plans were completed, World Ver jioc.l prevent=
ed tiws scleme from materializing, The depression which followed was
the cauce of further frustration. In 1940 this valuable land was sold
to a Eingsville Company and they plan to develop it for summer Lomes
and recroution parks and sell land farther back from the luke to Tarmers.

Durinsz the swmer montha the breezes are usually from the South
end South Weet. Wheatley, being on the liorth shore, gets tha cool
breczes from the lake in the suumor and the Forth and lNorth jjest winter
winds are not so cold as on the other eide of the lake. It is saild
that Clevelund, Ohic, Jjust ecross the leke, 19 much wurmer in the summer

_and ¢colder in the winter.:

Theres are & few homes in Wheatley that were built about 1867,
Enoech Shaw, Charles jotts, Ralph Liddle, Thomas Dales, lone of the
buildoras are now living. ¥ras. Oscar Lounsbury, Mrs. Arthur Wilson,
Jolur 4318, Mrs. Churles Brown, Melvin Batchélder are the only ones now
living whose parents wore Wheatley plonoers. \

1ife in the ploncer days was hard for womun as woll as for the
men. Thore was little tixe for pleasure and driving in homeuade wugons
over rough trails was far frcnm enjoyable. DBuckboards, horsecback, were
used by many. Women worked from dawn till dark making by hand all
elothing wora by the family. lLong distances were driven to get materials
for all needs., Food was cloup, 80 was labor. Vomen worked for a dollar
a woek and less., Butter wes 10¢ a pound, egss 10¢ a dozen, three dozen
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the oven. Tacre were no paclkuzed foods, Supgar, molasses, oatmoal

end zo3% other [oods were in open berrels., Thore were no soreens in the
olden days, TFllas cwarmed all summer and in the evenings the ceilings
were black with thenm, Thoss were the days when dlurrhea was killing

off sgores of ehildrea ouch swmnoer., ¥Flios wero responsible for this

and mony olher diseasen. If ona had tuberculosis thore was no-Lope.
Potleuts were pade as confortulle &s possible but no one ever expected a
patient to rocover. If & number in one fanlly took the discase, it was
thought to be 'in the family' cnd no precautions were taken, Thero was
no insulin, no imnunization ageinst infoctioun diseases, no X-ray, and
t?oro wore none of the wothods that in later days seem 80 essential to
aickness, ) . :

The folleowing are in business in Wheatley in 1947:
Canning Pactory - Sinnott Co, . JeY1OT's Luuber.
Coe '.-'l;itsell. Choppin{; ¥ill.
lurray MoLean, Chrysler Engines.
!le Nelscn, Box Faotory.
C. Jateer, Saw }iill. -
e ¥eClellan, Rlovator and Cosl.
General Store = I, Hanson.
Claudia Dress thiop. ’i :
Children's Dresses - )Mra, Jullen,
Groceries, Talt's, Elsley, Lounsbury, Sekery = Tait's, Stein's.
lestaurant - Hyatt, Sovie, Tait.
ilardware, Lynn, Nicoll, Coleman,
tleotric Shops = Dean, Pinch,.
Tostnaster - N, Hyatt. .
Undertaker & Furniture = Den Gillies. :
Jewelry - K, Vizzard. =
¥ive & Ten Cent Store - K. Vizzard. ,
Darbers - Lounsbury, Thozpeon, lieery.
Drugs - J. Duarker.
Dootors = jlcLeen, Edsall, Leador.
Vet. = A. Wilson, .
llcat - Lee, Derbyahire.
Garage = Jackson's, Dorbyslhire, Adems, .
& -
Service~ Featherston, Wigfield, Chute.
Implements - Bob Lynn, ‘
Radiocs, Yen's Vear - D11l MoVittie.
l'en's Vear = Goorge Robinson.
Auto Acceszories - RBill Jackson, lorne Jackson.
Beauty Parlors - Alice Siddal, Zva Liddle, }Mrs., Whitsell.

RERVE - Darryl Getty.

I1igh School Toachers: E. Richardson, Prineipal.
¥rs, )McQuarrie,
l:1iss Robinson, :
I’iss Hoaley, Assistants.

Tublio School: C. Hoyvood, Principal.
Jiss wellaco,
¥iss Yewton
¥rs. Fox, Assistants,
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. records a3 & Crown Loénds Agent for the County. They were an intellect-
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THE CONTRIBUTION OF THE COUNTY
OF KENT TO CANADIAN LITERATURE..

OUR POZTS AND PROSE=~WRITERS
A. LAMPUAN,

The County of Kent has the honor of being the birthplace of
several poets and prose-writers who have ocommanded a wide circle of
readers in our own country and some of them a still wider cifcle ocut-
side of our own, especiclly the country South of us. Among the poets,
Archibald lempman easily occupies the first place im the County, end,
2s @ nuture poet, a mimilar place of priority is eccorded him for the
whole of the Dominion. "The greatest poet that Canada has produced
greuiest os e nature-poet, and as an lnterpreter of the essential mind
und heart of the Canadian people aad country, is Archibald lampmen. He
is & consunmate artist, He is var excellence the poet of Cenadien
llature &nd Hstionality.® This estimate of his place and.vork by Dr.
Iogan end D. R, French in the "Highways of Canadian Iiterature™ has
not buen challenged. "lompman 18 superd; supreme, unmatched and even
unrivalled by any other poet that Canada has yet produced." A native
of tie County of whom such statementis could be made by outstanding men
of literary merit, 1s surely a rersoncsge towards whom local citizens
of Kont 1.ay entertain sentinents of admiration und pride. Tioughk born
in the County, Leampman spent only six years of his life within its
bounus. His Father was Reve Archibald Luwpmsun, appointea Recior of
Trinity Church, lorpeth, and missionary at lerge for the lLake Erio
Dietrfiet in 13580, The lammmans were Pennsylvania Dutch and United
fwpire Loyullsis who had moved North and settled in the Niagara Peunin-
cula at the close of the American Revolutionary War. The poot's father
maryied Cusennah Cesner on May 29th, 1860, fifth child of David Henry
Cesner and his wife, & Stewart from the County of Tyrone, Irelande.

The Gesners were also Pennsylvania Duteh and Loyaslists. Davld Henry
settled on the Talbot Roul about seven miles distant from }Morpeth whore
the homestcad still stunds. He was a prominent citizen in the early
history or this settlemsut and one may find his name on the County

ual family; one of them, Abraham Cesner, a grand-uncle of the poot,
being a well knowvn writer and scilentist of liova Scotia.

Archibeld laxpman, the poet, was borm at Morpeth on Sunday
zerning the 17th of Novenber, 1861l. Vhen he was six years of age his
fether removed to & srall town on the shore of Rice lake .where the
Tfenily remained for seven years.

The rectory here wua damp and Archibald contracted rheumatio
fever and ley suffering ascutely for months. For four years he was lame
and part of the time compelled to use crutches. His physique was never
rowerful unor was his health robust and it may be that the cause of both
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luy in his long illness, "DBut despite his crutches,® &as one has
sold, "he was aotive and interested in 1life for his spirit was
elvays goreat and courazeous to triunph over any ills of body or
cotate vihich-he had .to bear.” : :

The poet, notwithstanding his father's limited means, received
a liboral education., Until he wus nine yeers of age, he was instruct-
ed at home under his father's dirvction. After this, and until he
was thirteen, he attended the school of ¥r. F. W. Barron, a Master
oi Arts of Cambridge and formerly a principel of Upper Canada College,
by whom he was thoroughly grounded in Latin and CGreek and “"taught to
vrite beautifully.” A year in the Coburg Collegiate Institute, and
a course in Trinity College School, Port Hope, prepared him for en-
trance Into Trinity Univorsity, Toronto. He graduated from this seat
of learning in 1882 with second oluss honors in Classics, He could
easily have obtained first, had he applied himself but he spent much
of his time in his lagt year in general reading and social intercourss,
vhich perhaps aided his intellectual development as much as the
additional study of his text-books for examination would have done.
Throughout his course he was hampered for want of means, but, through
tle obtaining of prizes and scholarships both at Port Hope and Toronto,
together with what his father was able to do for him, there vas glven
him an opportunity, on the foundation of which he built a worthy
rorunent for hlnseir, an enduring place smong the great writers of
Canadian Iiterature. In the schools it was saild of him that "he was
probably the poorest man, in 2 worldly sense, and physically the
deast powerful, yet he had a greater influsnce than any of his
fellows.™ This limited neans and narrow income followed him through-
out his 1ife, In his last sickness, the ability to obtain a forced
rost for travel and change of scene was made possible only through
the gensrosity of his intimate friends.end well-wishers., Of him, it
tiicrafors could be truly said, he snatched achievement from adversity.

Archibald lLampman owes his reputation both in this country
and others, not only to the cxquisite felicity of his art, but because
he, as none others like him, interprets for us the sentiments of the
Canadiar heart in compmunion with its native woods and streans and
hills, This is evidenced in the "Three Flower Petals™ one of his
. Pirat two contributions to tho public, Journals which appeared in

18564 in the "Woek", & Canadian periodical which has since ceuased pub=
licaticn. : %

THREE FLOWER PETALS.

¥hat saw I yesterday walking apart

In a leafly place where the cattle walt?

Scomething to keep for & charm in my heart-

4 little sweot girl in a garden gate.

Taughing she lay in the gold sunt's might,

And Lheld for a target to shelter her,

In her little soft fingers, round end white,
- Tho gold-rirned fave of a sunflower.

. Laughins she lay on the stone that stands
From a rough-hewn step in that sunny place,
And her yellow hair hung down to her hands,
Shadowing over Ler dimpled face.

- Her oyes like the blue of the sky, made dim
¥ith the night of the sun that looked at her,
Shone lauching over the serried rim,

Golden =et, of the sunflower.
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Laughing, for token she gave to me

Three petals out of the sunflower. v
Yhen the petals are withered and gone shall be

Three verscs of nine for praise of her,

That a tender dream of her face may rise, -

And lighten ms yet in another hour

Of her sunny hair and her beautirui eyes,

Laughing over the gold sunflower.

- A. lampman,

"Bird Voices"™ appeared in the Century Magazine but the
grestor number of his contributions to periodicals appeared in Seribner's
ng~aine a monthly whioch greatly encouraged him to persevere in the
produotion of his poems.

In 1888 he published his rirut bock which he entitled
rimong the lillet™ named after the first poem of the volume, a private
venture followed five years later by his second entitled "Lyrics of
Earth", a colleotion of poems following the sequence of the scasons. -
His Luiru "Aloyone" was on the Press when he was stricken by the brief
illness which resulted in his death., In 1900 his three books with |
edditionzl poems and a Memoir by Duncan Campbell Scott were published
in one large volume of five hundred pages, an enduring monument enbody=-
ing the great achievement of one of Canada's greatest sons, ;

SAPPHICS.

Clothed in splondour, beautifully sad and silent,
Comes the autumn over the woods and highlands,
Golden, rose-red, full of divine remembrance,
Full of foreboding.

Soon tle maples, soon will be glowing birches,
Stripped of all that surmrmer and love had dowered them,
Drean, sad-limbed, beholding their pomp and treasure
Ruthlessly scattered; . -

Yet thoy quail not. Vinter with wind and irom
Comes end finds them silent and uncompleining,
Finds them twieless, beautiful still and gracious,
Gravely enduring.

Ye too changes, bitter and full of evil,

Dream by dreonm have plundered and left ma neked,
Gray with sorrow. - Even the days before me

Fade into twilisht,

Mute and barren. Yet will I Kkeep nmy spirit
Clear and valiant, brother to these uy noble
Elms and maples, utterly grave and fearless,

Grandly ungrieving.

Brief the span is, counting the years of mortals,

Strange and sad; it passes, and then the bright earth,
Careless mothnr, gleaning with gold and azure, ,
Lovaly wlth blossons=-=



. Never rolbust, his haalth becamze unde
trip to lake Temegaml, induocing a siockmess fram which he died February
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Shining white ancmones, rnixed with roses,
Daisies nild-eyed, grusses and honcyed clover—-
You and me, and all of us, met and equal,
Softly shall cover. .

-=A. lAanrsan.

The first employment that offered itself to him after his
graduation was uncongeniel. Ho wuae appointed an assistant in the
High School at Orangeville, but, although & good teacher, he could not
eniorce disolipline and waus forced to relinquish this on the first
oecasion which presented 1tself. Through the influence of a college
friend, ho obtalned a clerkship in the civil service at Ottawa, to

~ which there was attached a amall salery, but at this post he remained

for the rost of his days doing his work with thorough cere and fidelity.
His leisura he devoted to his writings. In 1887 he married Maud, the
youn; est laughter of Dr. Edward Playter of Toronto, a happy'marrface,
en..anced by the birth of several children, two sons and a daughter.
rmined by the hardships of a holiday

10th, 1E8%Y.

The nbove informeticn wes complled
by the late lev. Hugh Cowen about the year
1926 and extracted by the Keut Listorical

Soclety 1947.
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THE BALDOON

The well-meant but disastrous venture of
Jord Selkirk to assist his tenants - to
found for themselves new homes in Csnada.

With the opening up of the Nineteenth Century, the Thames
Settlement hed made considerable progress and now numbered more
than a hundred families., As the flotilla of canoes, which carried
back Zeisberger and his thirty Indians to the United States in 1798,
floated down the Thames, wonder and surprise was expressed by the
departing missionary, as he saw the progress which had been made in
the settleament [rom what it had been six years before, when he
preached to the vanguard of them, an historic, because the first, -
sermon to the Whlite Settlers in the County of Kent. Not only had
the original number of fanilies becen increased by more than five
hundred ver cent, but there was also a gratifying increase in the
extent ol the clearings made on their farms and the number of houses
erected on them., "The lmprovements which everywhere presented
themselves filled him with astonishment. Sixteen miles below Fairfield
was a flour-mill; near by a saw-mill; and fourteen miles farther
down, Dolsen's Place, an inn and a farm, the proprietor of which
was a warn friend of the Mission." With such progress to its credit,
this first settlement in the County could well be considered as having
been permanently established before the close of the first ten years
of its history.

Znigration of Scottish crofters
to Canada.

The first movement of the Nineteenth Century towards further
settlemeut was the well-meant, but ill-fated, effort of Lord Selkirk
to establish a colony of Highianders on the prairie lands lying
adjacent to the mouth of the Sydenham River. Emigration of the
crofters of Scotland, as the small land-holders or tenants were called,
had in tiis perliod become an economic and social necessity. The
country ves greatly over-populated, and these crofters had to divide
and stibdivide their holdings as their descendeant families increased
until the kbolding beceme too small to provide sufficient land for a
living for their ever increcasing numbers. In addition, the landed
proprietors had begun to put in force what were called "clearances™,:
A new system of farming was being inaugurated. Instead of small ;
holdings and intenslive farming, sheep ranches were being established.
Targer «creages with increased rentals were put into the hands &of a
few holders and the rest were ordered off the estate. Some of the
proprietors were more heartless than others and the fate which might
befall their erstwhile tenants gave them no concern. Others were
more humane and sought to assist the evicted tenant to find for him-
self another home. Of this latter class was the young nobleman,
Thomas Douglas, the only son of the fourth Earl of Selkirk who was
born in 1771 at St. Mery's Isle, mouth of the Dee, in Kirkcudbright-
shire, Scotland. When his father died in 1799, he inherited the
esta.e and became the fifth Earl of Selkirk. Immediately he took
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possecsion he began to put into effect his scheme for the amelior-
ation of the hardships of his over-populated tenantry. Patriotioc as
woll &5 benevolent, emigration to Canada appealed to him as the
golution. Instead of belng erowded together on one estate in Scot=
lend lLie would oreate three estates in the New World, and on these
would find for his tenantry new and more profitable homes. One of
these estutes he established in Prince Edward Island, a second at
Kildonan and the third in this County.

Journey from Tobermory to Kent
by sailing vessel and open boats.

In 1803, he began to make preparation to bring out this
third colony. = They were gathered together at Tobermory, a port of’
Mull, twenty-six families comprising one hundred and eleven persons,
scme fronm the Isle of Kull, some from Teree, some from the mesinland .
of Argyle and one at least from Glasgow. From Tobermory they set
cail for Kirkecaldy but hearing that war had been declered between
Trance and England, and fearing they might be molested by French
privateers, under counsel of the young Earl, they remeined for the
winter at this port. In May, the following year, they set sail in
the ship "OQughton™ of Greenock arriving within sight of the banks of
Newfoundland within five weeks' time after theilr departure and at
Montreal one week later, The trip might be sald to be uneventful
save for the death and burial at sea of one of their numbers, a
young Tarmer by the name of Buchanan, &an incident which cast a gloom
over the whole company and might be sald to presage the many other
misfortunes vhich were to befall them. From Montreal they were con- .
veyed by Trench carts to lachine where batteaux awaited them. By
nmeans of these they were conveyed safely to Kingston, the men of
thelr party rowing these unwieldy vessels suooessruliy up against
the swift stream of the St. Lawrence. Here they were Joined by the
Earl, who had preccded them to America by way of New York coming
- overland from thence to Kingston. A small ship was chartered to
bring them across Lake Ontario to Queenston, After their effects were
ccaveyed a safe distance above Niagara Falls, their men again took
bavteaux and rowed themselves along the shore of Lake Irie to Amherst-
ourg and from thence by open boats to their destination.

After four months they arrived at
Baldoon, September, 1804,

2 It was now September,more than four months having been ex-
pended in making the Journey, when they landed at the fam which had
besn selected by the Earl for his settlement., It was a triangular
picce of land containing about nine hundred and fifty acres between
the Chonal Ecarte ond the Sydenham River, a part of the low-lying and
treeless prairie of thisly thousand aores bordering lake St.Clair.

hey ncmed it Baldoon after a parish in the Highlands of Scotland.
‘The appearance of the place was frcm the first a rude disappointment.
Ship-carpenters and others had becn sent in advance by the Earl to
provide dwellings, but notwithstanding none had been erected. Tra-
dition informs us that these, afraid of Indlans, hed betaken themselves
to Sandwich, leaving the future settlers of Baldoon and thelr children
to their unsheltered fate. The days Were shortening, rains vere fre-
quent, cool nights had already come., Without equipment or material,
they had only a short month left to provide for themselves sufficient
shelter to meet the requirements of a Canadian winter. They had
seitled where flat creeks, stagnant pools, and abundance of decayed
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vogetable matter made matrarieal fever a certainty. Their food was

nly of the poorest and coarest kind, and in no case could be over-
atundant. To the North and East they were surrounded by & dense forest,
most of i1t swamp lands. The Thames Settlement, the only other white
sottlement in the district was seventeen miles away and could only be
reached by devious Indilan trails through the woods. Little help could
be expecied from that quarter. But with earnestness and some enthus-
iasn alse, for these hardy Highlanders did not soon allow themselves
to become the victims of despair no matter how untoward the circum-
stances, thoy set themselves bravely to wrestle with the problems irmed-
jately 1acing them.

Owing to their inexperisnce and unpropared-
ness, and the ravages of diseasea, many of
them porish.

The 1nevitable happened.’ The lack of dwellings was not their
greatest problem. ¥From near copses of elm, walnut or willows on the
pleins, or from the neighboring forest, they collected small timber
end erectod for thamselves temporary huts., But an epidemic of fever
and dyscnto visited the colony and before they were there one month,
Dopald McCellum and his wife and his daughter Enily, aged ten, died rrom
its ravages within Tive days of ecch other. A little knoll in that
monotonously level country was selected and there the three wore laid
awey the Tirst tenants in that ploneer cemetery, now neglected and :
forgotten, where they were Tfocllowed by thirty-nina others of their
nuricr before the year was out. Those who escaped or recovered from

Le opidowio continued their brave fight egainst adverse circumstances.
end succceded in establishing a falrly prosperous settlement. But '
they had two other enemies yet to face - the one was the American
Nation and the other the moody waters of lLake St. Clair. .

Hardships incrcased and the settlement
robbed of its sheeop and cattle by Amer-
ican soldiers in the war of 1812-1k.

If this venture of lord Selklirk failed, it was not from any
leck of motive or effort on his part. Among other undertakings for
the benefit of the colony, a ship-load of one thousand sheep were
brought out by him from Scotland. Lionel Johnson, & native of Northum-
- berland, ZEnzland, a shepherd of Fenton Farm, Woller, came out to America
the prevlious year, 1803, and sottled at Albeny, New York State. This
man was engeged by lord Selkirk to take charge of these sheep. With
his family, consisting of his wife, one daughter and two sons, he accom-
panied thz Zarl to Kingston and jJoined with him there the other members
of the colonye. At Hamilton, he and his eldest son, James, a lad of
elzht years, awaited the arrival of these shesp and drove them from
there 1 the way throu;h the woods to the Baldoon farm. A large pen,
or fold, was bullt for them on the South-eaatcrly part of the famm
fronting on the Sydenham, where they were placed every night to protect
them from wolves or other wlld beasts and & section of the surrounding
prairie zet apart for thelr pasturage. In eddition to this successful
sheep ranch, the Earl had procured & herd of several hundred cattle,
which a_so found plenty of pasturage on the treecless plains in the
Immediate neighborhood, but on the opposite side of the river, from the
colony. When tle war of 1812 broke out, several raids were made by
detachments of Americean Jilitia on this little and helpless colony.
Their stores of grain were pillaged, their cattle driven off, and their

sheep taxen off by Captain Forsyth to Detroit under instructions from
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Gencral "cnrthur a blow to the struggling settlement from which it
never apparently rallied.

Finally they vere'rlooded out by the
overflowing waters of the Thawes and
Sydenhean, ,

Gut the biggest obatacle to progress was the nature of the
slte chosen. It was in a section of the country so low as to be
scurcely above lake level. Every Spring, as the waters of the Thames
ard Sydanham and numerous corceks became swollen with the increased
volune of water made by the melting snow of the district which they
druined, thoy overflowed their banks and the plains became inundated.
A steady rise of the lalke level above that which it was in 1804 made
these conditions to become permanent, What had been before arable
Jlend becams a sea of water over which cances and boats of considerable
draught could be easily floated. These conditions grew worse as the
lake level continued to rise which it did to its greatest height in
1825, One by one the settlers became discontented and moved off the
Earl's estate leaving at least not one descendant of the original -
hundred and eleven behind. )

. 014 country conditions did not find o :
a favorable soil for ooqtinu&nde in
Canada, :

" Put had the conditions been favorable, it is daubtful if the
vent"re would have succecded in the form which it hed been attempted
by the Tarl, It was an effort to reproduce 0ld Country conditions
in this new land and althoush the motive was benevolent and generous
above roproach, it could only succeed by the lands of this country
getilng 1nto the hands of a monopolistic class as they had in Scotland
and other European countries., All around the Baldoon sectlon, the
couniry was being opened out and surveyed into 200-acre lots, of omne
of which 2 settler might obtain possession on condition of paying only
reglstration of Patent fees after doing needful settlcuent duties.
Goquay, an historian, writing of the conditions of the settlement in

£€17-16, says, "From an’ oricinal roll of one hundred and eleven souls
W“u had cettled in 1804, throuch death, desertion and war causes, it
bad dwindled dowmn to about ten famllies and fifty souls." James
SnuLar, writing in 1882, says, "This is not quite correct. In spite
of the causes nanmed, the settlement - now partly spread over adjoin-
ir;, luands at the date referred.to contained all told, perhaps including
a very few not originel emigrant settlers or thelr descendants, one
hundred end fourteen souls."™ The Parish Records of Dover Towvnship of
thal yeour substantiate this latter statement, showlng an increase of
tiree over its original number in the population of the settlement at
tie end of ths thirteenth year of its existence.

The Iarl's venture, undertaken at so great a pecuniary cost to
hincelf corld be counted a failure only in the form originally planned
by him. As a benovolent movement in behalf of his tenantry, it was
as great & success as could be expected under the cirocumstances. O0f
Donald licCaliun's family, sc sorely stricken by the epidemic, five of

Note: In Scotland, 1700 landlords were represented at that time
as holding i? 000,000 acres of land, that 1s, an average
of 10,000 acres e&cn.
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his family survived, a son and four daughters. Hugh, his son, -
becere founder of Walluoeburg and its first postmaster. Lionel
Jol msom, 3 srandson, was Reeve of Chatham Towvnskip for several years
and wWarden of the COunty in 1863. A great-grandson, Norman Gurd, is
a respecoted citizen and eminent barrister cf Sarnia and a writer ‘of
considerable merit., If the story of each other family were vritten,
it wvould doubtless show an equally creditable record.

To Lord Selkirk himself, the venture brought no gain. The
patent to the Baldoon Farm was granted to him in 18C6. He also owned,
besldes several other lots in Dover Towmship, ILots 1 and 2, Chatham
Township, comprising 389 acres, this land now forming a part of the
City of Chatham North of the River. Twice only, after his initial -
“rip to Baldoon, did the Earl pay a visit to hia Kent County estatea,
once in 1816 and egain in 1818. On the last trip, he sold his Baldoon’
Farm and other Dover Township lands to John McNab, a Hudson Bay trader,
and his Chatham eatate to Jemes Woods of Sandwioh, his solicitor, the
father of the late Judge R. S. Woods of Chatham, and went back to the
01d Country in shattered health, two years arterwards to die. He
received for his lands but a trlrling sun, not sufficient to pay .
interest on the money spent, but the country to which he brought 'his
tensuts received in these oolonista an asset of lnestimable value.

Note: Dover Parish Census, 1817, Baldoon Settlement.
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THOMAS DOUGLAS
the Fifth Earl of Selkirk,
Born June, 1771, at St.hary's
Isle, xircudbrightshiro,
Scotland. G

The founder of the Buldoon Settlement wus a scion of one
of the old and noble families of Scotland, the seventh son of
Tunbar, the fourth Earl of Selkirk. He sucoeeded to the family
sarldon at twenty-eight years of age, Leing the only survivor of
ceven brothers at the time of his father's death, In his personal
appearznce, he has been described as pleasant in countenance, tall
and spare, fully six feet in height, energetic and resourcerui,
remar<able man who had the misfortune to live before his time'. He
was & contemporary student with Walter Scott at the University of
Edinburgh, a man of literary abllities, the author of several books
and possessed a kindly and generous disposition which led him after
inheritance of the family earldom to devote himself to the assisting
0 the poor of his own countrymen to better their economic conditions
by emigrating to Canada., Although a Southron, he learned the Gaelie
l_“guube cnd during frequent visits to the North of Scotland he
became extremely fond of the Highland people. loved with compassion
by the distress caused by the Napoleonic wars and the landlord
"clearances™, at the beginning of the Nineteenth Century era, he
laid plans for & systematio emigration policy which he deemed as
the best solution for the removal of the economic distress from
which the British nation was at the time suffering. In August,

* 1803, he brought over three shiploads of Highlanders to Prince

Edward Island, where they settled and became a prosperous colonye.
The next year, the Baldoon Settlement arrived, and the Prince

Rupert and Red River Settlements followed soon after.

In addition to the establishment of these colonies, to
rernove the obstacles to settlement and improvement arising. from
lack of facilities for communication, he offered to bulld a road
at his own expense from York to Amherstburg at an estimated cost
of 240,000 sterling, payment to be made by a grant of wild lands
on which he would be able to settle other immigrants. This offer
was turned down by the Government. Had it been accepted, we would
have had a "Selkirk Road" corresponding to Talbot's, and settlement
of Wectern Ontario would have taken place fifty years in advance
of what it did. The Baldoon Road was built between his two proper-
ties, at Chatham and Lake St. Clair, but his Canadian undertakings,
taough highly beneficial to the immigrant poor of his own country,
proved unremunerative to the earl himself. He dled in early life,
April 8th, 1820. "I mnever knew in my life,™ Sir wWalter Scott wrote
of him, "a man of more generous and disinterested disposition, or
one whose talents and perseverance were better qualified to bring
great and national schemes to conclusion”,
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JAMES JOHNSON
of the
Selkirk Settlement, 1796-1873.

Janes Johnson was born in Northumberland, England, in 1796,
the son of Liomnel Johnson, the shepherd whom Lord Selkirk engaged to
look after the ship-load of sheep which he brought to the Baldoon
Sottlement in 1804. Jemes Johnson is of special interest to us, since
as & boy eight years of age, he accompanied his father and walked with
Linm as hLls assistant in driving the sheep (1000) through the woods all
the way from lllagara to Baldoon with only Indian trails at best for
Lieir guidunce. He married Margaret McCalluz, also of the Selkirk
Settlement, and followed farming on the Baldoon tract as his occupation
in life. The i1llustration shows him dressed in the military uniform
which he wore in service as a volunteer in the Kent Militia during the
war of 1812-1814. His son, Lionel, beceme a prominent merchant in the
Village of VWallaceburg, was postmaster, & Warden in Kent County and |
held other important public offices, Henry E., Johnson, a grandson, was
clerk of the Town of Wallaceburg for many years, J

MARGARET MoCALLULN
wife of James Johnson, -
1797-1891,

Margaret licCallum was born on the Isle of Mull, Scotland, in

1797, daughter of Daniel McCallum and Mary Morrison, who came to ,
Canada in 1804 as a part of the Selkirk Settlers. Her father, mother
and one sister died within three weeks of each other, the first of the
forty-seven of the settlers to perish because ot the hardships met '
within their first year in Canada., She married James Johnson in 1817,
and they settled on & farm, a part of the Baldoon tract, where was born
to them o family of ten children, all of whom became prominent citizens
in the pioneer days of the Western District.

LIONEL JOMISON,
County Warden,
1863.

Liczel i, Johnson, of lallaceburg, was the eldest of a fanily
of eight children of James and Larguret Johnson, born at the "Baldoon
Tract™ in 1818, FHe spent his younger days on the farm; was educated
at ths Upper Canada Acadeny; moved to Wallaceburg in its primitive
days, and entored commercial life., He was married in 1839. During the
time that the Chatham Gore belonged to Sombra, he was chosen, first in
18L,5, as its representative in the District Council of Essex, Kent and
Lembton, On the establishment of municipalities in 1850, he was elected

ts first Reeve and continued to hold the office of Reeve, or Deputy
Recve of Sombra or Chatham Township for over twenty-five years. He was
Werden of the County in 1863. In 1837, he joined the militia, and
served on the frontier till the restoration of peace. He wg:spostmaster
ol Wzllec T 840 until his death. His son, H. E. JO on, was
town clergbgiﬁ lfg?hgiéh of the Public Library, willaceburg.‘
over)
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THI MERCZNCE OF CHATHAL FROM
TN LOG CARYN ¥RA.

The first framo house wus built in Chatham in 1831; before
this it wana a villege of log cabins. As the population at that time
win sonething over one hundred, &t lcast thirty of these dwollings
vuld be roquired to house its inhabitants. though thirty-rivo
vears had by this time passed siuce the placc was surveyed into &

“ovm plot, tha village of 1831 represcntod only & ten year*s growthe

Jlter the cepsation of the Covermment ship-building Industry and the

ecatterings of -Captain Baker and his men to Scndwich and other places,

the tou plot became deserted; no settlers were added to its porrmanent

growth wntil 1820. The distinotion of starting out tho future city

on LLie cecond stage of 1ts carcer belongs to William Chrysler cnd

Lis zon lenry. The son provided the firat influence of attruction to

the pluce as & contro of trade and cormerco. As early as 1823 ho '
!

ercctod a blacksmith shop and served industriously for nmany years at

this tiude, u great convenience to incoming settlers on the farms of
the sursounding district. The elder Chrysler seoans (o huve devoted
a purt of his tire to furming on his town lot, as it 1s recorded that

he raiscd a ton of tobacco on an acre of it in 1822, It is also - ,
claimed that a James Chrycler wus the first school teecher of Chathum, |
AL any rate the famlly occupicd & prominent place in its subsequent
hi GLOTYe

Put tho funily rmost pronminently cssociated with Chatham, in
Lhese early years of its history, and tho only family to form a
couneoting link, betweun tho first and seoond stages of its growth, was
that of tlhie above mentlconcd Zberts faudly. ‘

The history of this family takes us back to the VWar of Amerie
enn Indorondence and the employment by George III of Iessien troops
to fight the Revolutionocry Army in his American Colonios. The original
of the Chathum Femily - Dre Horman Von EZberts, the profix *Vor' is now
dropped by all the fanilies of that pame - was of Austricn descont
end beo me attached to the Hessien Regirment as surgeon. Aftor the
21099 o the war, this unit was disbunded in imerica, and many of the
troopsrenained in the new land, and beccme settlers of Canades Dre
%8 cottled cfter the war in Yontreal where he remained for two
sers vhen ho was appelated in 1784 to be Covernor of lichligan, that
territory being still undor Pritish occupation. When it passed into |
the hanus of the Americans in 1796, he moved to Sandwich. -

Uis son, Joseph, was born at Couchcxville, Lower Cencda,
arol 158%, 1705e  In 1610, ho nerried Anne, the eldest daughter of
antodn Delker. He served for same years as on officer of thio North=-
9% Pur Counany, under tho late Alexander MoIntosh of loy (now
irdsor, onte) and subsequently becams a trader und monufacturer
Wcrae .o sarved throughout the war of 18]2 as a captain in the
szom nocinent of 18litic, and perticipated in all the chlef events of
hat we~ on the Weatorn frontier; 0N one occesion durirg his abscnce
om serv.ce, his house wus destroyed by the imoericans, his wife ond

5o chilirem being turusd out on the road. After the removal of kKr.

£
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history wos one Iorael Ivaps whose femily was lons identificd with its
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Baker rrow (Lhatham, Joseph Eberts took possessicn of his fathor-in-luw's
farm on .o outakirts of the town plot, on which ko lived continuously
cftarm.ards, and reared a fonily of three sons and feour daughters, two
of whcx, Walter and Willlaa becume pronincnt merchunts end boat-builders
n Chuthazm, Joseph Eberts, as did Dolsen, opcned a storo on his farm,
viere he did an extensive 5usinass. Defore bridgea were built, a con-
siderablo Lusincss wus dome inm ferrying, and he eontrolled this business
which bhe carried on in conjunction with his furming and merchunt trading.

Iis two cons, Williem and Velter,moved the store from thelir
fathor's farm in 1836 and opensed out business on the corner of Eing and
Firih Otreots, in a frame building which has since been replaced by the -
brick block bearing their neme. In addition to their store, thay had a
boat bullt, which they named "The Brothers™, in 1839 and cormenced saile
ing ths followlng year, one of the brothers being himself captaln of it.
This voesscl did a conslderableo carrying trade on the Themes and many of
the eirly cottlers came in on it. They also had a share in the building
of the Tir:t dock in Chatham, and in many other ways becuaxme promineantly
ﬁemti‘.‘:ia& with undortakings louding to the advancoment and progress of

® CilYe. :

Another proninent man to arrive in this period of the city's

gubsequent history and whoss son was License Inspector for xzany years. -
He grrived about the year 1825, was a miller by trade, end for about

five yeurs follcwed that calling in MeCrogor's Xills. . Im 1830 he pure
chased the properiy new coccupyiod by the Carnsr louse end threc years .
later ercciod & carding and grist mill on the Horth end of the property.

This may properly bs called the pioncer industry of the city zs the '
KeCrogor llls were cutside the olty limits. . This was of neccssity a

rather nrimitive undertaiking, the motor power being supplied by horses
tut it Zupnlied a much nceded ¢onvenlence for the incoming settlers en
seyved to ai;'.d to the atirzotions inducing others to come and scttle on
ile tocua plot. :

Yo school had beon estatlished in this period of the city's
history, tut a church was erccted in 1820 under Anglican suspices. The
incuzlicnt wus the Rev. ¥r. Morlicy, who continued his residconce here for
a nunter of years. i

The appearance of the villege et this tire was said to be not
very etir.ctivee %ho strects wero but tralls through the woods, full of -
holca wad otumps, twisting along tho bonds of the river; and barely
paegsable I vheclied vohicles. There was very little clearing done
within tho town plets. The Barrack grourd wus under crop &s 1t had boen
clearcd ¢ ring the time of its ococupation by the Governzent as a military
post. A cuger bush, a beautiful grove of maples,stood in the middle of
the tovn vhich wus ione; uapd aftorards for a gathering place of politic- |
fenz end plonickers and served s a pollins booth whers the first and
open elections werae held, Even the portion of the town plot set epart
for school yurposes was & demse bush up to 1840, while a large swamp
scecupied that spzee of the grounds along Wellinglon Street where now are
built the principal churches of the city.

The period when settlers becun to come more mnumerously dates
from the year 1830 until the coming of the first reilwey into the distriot.
Te vas ad this time 2lso when Chatham began to move forward rapldly :
toweds that progress and achiovement to which it has since atteined.
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. it vms in 1836 that Mrs. Jamoson paid hor first visit to
Chathati, _‘"I can hardly imagine a woro bezutiful or rore fortunate
posltlon for & new city than thls of Chatham,” she wrote of it, describe
ing 1t loters It is sulflciently ifnland to be scfe, or easily secured
agelinst llic attacks of a forcign enchy; the River Thanes is navigable
from tho iouth un %o the town, a distance of sixtecn miles, for all
kinds of .s,._-u erart, iucluding stewrers and schocnsers of the largest
?lf:'ss. iaxe Ot. Clair, into which the Thures discharges itself, is
seliceon Luke Irle end Izke Huroag tho banks are formed of extensive
pruiries of exhaustless fertility, where thousands of cattle might roem
at will. s a port aad dopol for cormerce, its position and capabilities
con hardly be surpassed, viiile as en agricultural country it muy be sald
1itorally o flow with millki and hency. A rich solil, no rent, o taxes =
vt here is wanting byt more intelligence and a better employment of
corital to prevent the people from siuking into brutiried laziness,
-and stirulute to something like mental activity and improvement! The '
proluse ilts of nature are here rumnning to wuste, while hundreds and
thousands Ila the old country are trampling over cach other in the ecger, .
bungry confliet for daily food.” : - .

Ey this tine the budding villege had added a school house to the

clhureci, il could Leoust of et least two taverns, end & population of

« threo Lwiirad people. One of these taverns bad & roputation of belng
ono of Lle bost in the district,. The other did not bear co good a
reputation. "The first view of the beautiful little town," countinued
Mrs. Jexccon, "made nmy sinking spirits bound like the sight of a friends

- There wuce, besides, the hopc pf & good innj for wy driver had cheered
me on during the lust few 1iles by a deseription of "Irocuman’s Hotel"™,
which ho culd wag one of the best in the whole district.e Judge then of
ny disappeintrent Lo learn thut lir. Freeman, in consequence of the
“Rick prico of uwlicat", could no lcnger ufford to tuke in humgry travellers
and had "o accornodation.” I was driven to teke refuge in & miserable
little ylrce, whoro I fured as 11l ac possible.s I was shown to @ bed=-
reem withioul ellalr or tabley ULubt I wus too utterly leaten down by
fetigue und dojection, too sore im body und spirit, to rexonstirata, or
even to siir hand or focte Wrapplng ny cloak around me, I flung myself
ox the bocu, and was soon ip & state of fofgetlulness of all discomforts
and niscrics. MNext morning I rose relreshed cud able to bestir myself;
and by dlnt of bribing and bewling and scolding and cajoling, I at
ler th procured plenty of hot and cold wuter, and then a good breakfast
of eros, tea and corn cakes; - and then I ecl fortha to rcconnoitro.”

The village which thus rouscd tie ecstucles of lirse Jameson was,
as wo have obuerved, not much better than a scattering cluster of log
ecbins, with here and there & frame buildloz giving promice of the
progross which had pow begun for Chethar, Nany fresh arrivels marked the
yeors botween 1€25 and 1835, begimning with P, P lucrolx, there were
added such names as: Joseph Northwood, Herry Van Allen, Jemes Reed,
Henry Verall, sceversl of the Buxters, Joseph and Robort £, Woods. The
coning of ilose famlliss of cnterprise gave a now inpetus to the 1life
of the village. Its growth for a fow years afterwurds was rocariably
rapid. TFrom three hundred of & population, it rose to seven hunired and
fift ~ninz in 1840, eight hundred cnd twelve a year later until it
rascacd no less then one thousand and oighty-two in 184,3. The future
of tiec viilazge was now certain. Tho coning of the yrailwuy in the riddle
of the csutury and tho boom in the lusbering industry followlng it kept up

tis peca of progress seot for it in the five years preceding 1240,

(over)



The above is information compiled by the
late Rev. Hugh Cowan about the year 1926 and -

extracted by the FKent Historical Society 1947. ,
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“punciation of 2o brilliant a prospeot a&s seecmed to be awaiting him in

- and Jor i1ts ashlevement he devoted the remnipins yoars ol his lifo.

14¢

THE LAKE ERIE SETTLIENT

Colonel Talbot oxtended his activities into Kent,
invlueneing the settlement of the Southeast end of
tho County, following the construction of his road
Wealward towards the Dotroit River. oot

Tollowing next in order to the Raldoon Settlement we have the
Loke Bric Cettlement. Although settlors began to locate on the lands
borderin; on the lake as early as 1809, it was not until 1816 that
gettlenecnl in the Southera section of iho County oould be suid to have
really b.osun, ¥ven thon it was but an extension of the Talbot Settle-
ment in LLe County of Elgin, a part of that colonization scheme entruste
ed %2 Colonel Talbot. _ . '

This outstunding pioneor was & scion of nobility, an Irishman by |
birtl, ¢nd one to whom settlement in ¥ostern Onturio owes more than to
any oller mon, e was bora in the year 1771, and just attained his
majority when he accompanied Governor 3imcoe a8 a purt of his suite on
his first official trip from Niesgara to Detrolt in 1793. He began his
gareor a3 a soldier In the 24th Rogiment aénd had atteinod to the rank

of Lioutonant when he becanas a momber of the Covernor's official sterf

in 1792, During Governor Sirmoce's rogime he was attached to the Queen's
Rangers at ITlagara but after the Governort's period in office had expired
Lieutunant Talbot returned to the 0ld Country where he booame attached

to the £5th oot Regiment with the rank of Major. 1In 1796 he was made
Lieutencit Colonel enjoylng all the prestige that comes from belonging

o ¢ gr.. .t famlly, a favorite at the Royal Court and a popular officer

a8 the Areyes I 1800, tho firat year of tho centuryx that saw the organe |
izatlon of Canada into a nation enjoying freedom as & part of the great |
British epire, ho turned his back upon the promising carecor awaiting

hin in t.e Asmy end returned to Cepade to become the ploncer settler of :

Elgin County.

VWhy 414 Colonsl Talbot dovote his life }
to the settlonent of Southwest Ontario? ;

Trore are many who have tried to analyzs his motive for his ro-

tlis 0ld Country for the comperatively obscure life of a pioncoer in the
Tforest wildernosses of Upper Canada. Somo olaim his reasons to have ,
boon patriotio, othors cammercial. Porhaps we would bo noaror the truth
A7 we soid thut they wora & combination of both though no man could have
clioccn the carcer which he followed unless he had strong likings end j
otlor propelling roasons for his choice. Life in the 1llimitable forest.
pust have had its appesl to him else he would not have sacrificed so f
Luse aven for a doubtful horo thut he night some dey be the lord of a ;
lorso lunded estate in Canade,  Llke Covermor Simcoe, with whom he was |
eooocintod 80 long, and whose counssl must have had much influence ovor |
hiz, his heart was made gore us he saw the entorprising and thrifty sons.
¢/ Tngland, Ireland and Sootland emigrating from thoir ovn native land |
to boocwo eitizens undser the now alien flag of the Unlted Stutes, To |
tusL Sl 3 tide of dssirable sottlors towards Canande was bkis great aim !
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The country through which he passed on his initial journey to
Lotrolt 1 1793 sugpgested to him the possibilities which awalited all
oo who had the courage and industry and perseverance to face the
hardshiro of ploneexr life for the few years wiich would be required
to translorn the treo-covered fortile solls into grain-producing
farms, Ie hed elready mado a successful experiment of hemp-
tnd fsie dccizved to obtuin a tract of land on the shors of Lake Erie,
whero he would continue the exporiuont on a lurge sccle. He had been
provioed by Governor Simcoe a tract of five thousund acros to which
bis ranit In the An:y cntitlod hinm eccording to the practice of giving
itoe grenis then in vogue but unfortunately General Simcoe had quit
the office of Lieutenant Governor beroro the grant was nade offective.
£till, In expectation of rocelving it from the new Governor, he
rotuined to Cannda and sturted a cloarance on tho shore of Lake Erie,
nour to tho pluce where Port Stanley now is, the distriot which he
had selcoted for his grant. Finding dirfficulty in obtaining it
Lo roturnesd to London where ho busied himself in givigg infbrmatfon
te e (overnmunt regarding the soll, clinmate and dbrilliant prospects
orf the Loko Irie Districts In the meantime, throush the good offices
of CGenernl Slrcoe, now in Yondon he obtained a grant of five thousand
aores in Dunwielh Tovmship and waa given control of the remaining
dund of tivls township together with the whole of Alborough Township
gor the purposes of carrying out his scheme of cettlement of the
oUNLIYe ‘ :

Talbotvlille founded Lay 21, 1€03.

To this Uract of land he oame on the 21st of May, 1803, landed
with four helpsra at the mouth of a little streem, olimbed-thoe high
arbanipont aud sceleocted an elovaticn overlooking £ho lake as his
ruturs hoog, the prettiest srot along the whole of the Luke Zrie
fhore. ilera, with his own hunds, hoe felled the first tree, and in
this way inlitiated the work of settlement to wiich he consecrated
the rost of his life. Disassoolating hinmsolf from the Royel soolety
to wiiich Lo had hitherto been accustomed, end the comforts and ele=-
gancies attached to such a 1lifo ho set himself to the arduous task
¢ gettling the country with thoso whom ho decmed well qualified to
bs the foundation strata of a pation yot to bo and loyal to its great
rothor agaross the sod. - :

Tulkot cacourages his prospective
settlors to ocultivete self-reliance
and self-helpfulhess,

Hig nethod of procodure was wise and fruitiul, Although the
ereater nurt of his work was done in the nelghboring county, . yet
his cxorl.ons were extended later to Xent, and his methods there
follcued ir a nessure here. To divert emigration to Canuda, he sont
aronts ont auongst the new-comers in lNow York and adjaocent States,
seb Lafooo them the favorable olimute and soil of the Luko Erie
Digtziot, with an offer not only of a free grunt to each of fifty
curos @f land, but to reonder them also such eld as night eneble them
+c meet suocessfully the first few und hardest yeoars of piloneer life.
1t is pot unusual, in reading the sStory of thoso early settlors of
Kent to iind that they had spent & year or two in the United States
before couing to Canada, the offorts of Talbot acocounting rir thoir
chanze oo cbode. His agents wore instruoted to muke wise Selootion
of the r.-n to whom they offered
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grontg, his proflercnce belns the Welsh and Scotoh than amigrnt-
Al S0 awiercusly frou their own over-populated native .
In zony instances he Lad those new=-coniers engaged on his om
eatate, and aftor recolving thore both test end training, they
werée set up on lands for themselves, with continued eid untilk
thoy hed attained unto a poalition of self-deopendence. On his

“own estate, ho worked dilipmontly clearing lands to produce the -

necessaries of l1life, superiutendod the building of houses,
undertaking a full ocomplexcnt of the work himself. He was not
stove tho menlal offlces and tasks attached to the pionmeer's
1ifo in the undeveloped forest lunds of Canada, If we ccn rely
upon contemporary tradition, he beked his own broad, milked his
¢ous, made his owvn butter and choeve, vashed his own clothes,
ironod and dressed his own linon. Hln doing of those things

vies attrituted to ecoentriolty, but whon we considor his eim as
ho adhorsl to 1t throughout his whole life, we can casily seo a
higher inlluonce behind these so-called eccuntricities. In the
unorgenized state of soclety then existing, and the utter ignor-
ance und inexperienco of many, if not of the most, of tho immi-
grentzs in reference to ploncer tasks and hardships, the tendency
would Lo to discouragement ending in despair. Colonsl Talbot
well kuocw that the successful man must cultivate a spirit of
sell-relicnoes, leading to self-helpfulness and self-sufficiency,
cnd he looked for these traits of character in the persons whom
ho :ou,ft toigid, and cultivated them by precept and oxauple in
favorable soll. : :

Jrogrees halted by the wWar of 1812,

Tut novwithatanding his coimmendable cim and strenuous
afforts, progress Tfor the first few yoars in the history of the
sotile ont wus slow, very slow. The var betweon Oreat Britain -
and Proase had jugt boen rosumed, and this gave occupation to
all ayezluble wen citusr as coldfera, or as mechanics and trados-

‘pen atlooched to the amy, and in the factories providing runitions

and othur war equirment., In 1809, after six years of erffort,
there vwas gald to Lo not rore than a dozen fumilies along the
wiole ol Tulbot Road in the four townships of Dunwieh, Soutiwold,
Yermouth end Falahide. Iut ho continued to porsevere and cuccess
was bopipning to crown his offorts when tho war of the Americans
ezeinst ua in 1812 broke cut. In 1814, the scttlemont vas ine-
vaded by American soldicrs, his mills burned and other injuries
done to the struggling ploncers, which rotarded but did not stop
the progrons of the sotilomente

N 1070 he hed completed the looation duties on tho lands
Civat cilotted to him. After this the whole of Southwestern

putario wes yub under his chergo snd the construction of the
T.1b0t oot from Delhi to Sandwich completed., By 1825 ho had
pl.sod L.oonty thousand persons on the lands granted to him

without 2ny expense to the Government but at an oxpense of one
hurire? thousand dollars, (twenty thousand pounds), to himsclf.
Ny 1l€3L, in ell of tho iwenty-eight tovmships in Southwestern
ortaric placed at his disgosul conprising more then half a
ri1llicn ceres, he had influenced forty thiousand settlers to
locate «nd perform thsir sottlement duties.

"] was the first percon,” he wrote to Sir John Colborne in
thut year, "who exacted tho porformance of sottlemont duties,
vnd actual residence on the lend locuted, which at that tirxe vas
considorad most arbitrary on ny part, but the consequence now is
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that the gettlers that I forced to comply with my system are
109t grateful and seusible of the advuntige they could not
otherwico have, for a length of time derived by the aocomplishe
rent of good roada, and I huave not any hesitation in stuting that
there 1s not another satilentnt in North Amerioca which cun, for
ius 0 and extent, exhibit so compact and profitably sctdad a
rortion of the new world as the Tulbot Settlemcnt.®

. For every sottler whonm he induced to come and muke his
rormacent abode in the country, there wus given & freo graent of
L%ty aores to the cottlor end two hundred to Colonmel Talbot for
nrocuTing the settler. This lané was granted to incoming faimers -
on 'coudition that they would ercct a houce on their lot fifteen
Tool by Gnenty feot in dimensions, one storey high, end oleur a
sozly ot leud across the Ifront of their lot one hundrod feet in
donti., & total of about ‘cix acros of cleured lend in areca. At the
eid of flve yeoars, having comploted theue settlement dutiecs,. they
wora given a certd ricate of ownorship and the balence of the lot
soid Lo them at & noninal price.. ‘ U Cind kel Al

The Talbot Roud constructed in 1816
opened uyp tho lake Erio section of
Reunt for setticment.

Road-building vas considored by Colonel Talbot s an
eszgential part of the work of settloment end the first task which
b9 uanaertook after he had cotablished Limself on his own five-
tlhousand-acre estate, A road was surveyed four hundred rods Irom ¢
the shore of the leke and running parcllel to it on c¢ither cide
of wiiich were laid out fame-lots of tvio hundred acres each. These
lote were nmade narrow, elghty rodo wide, in order that tho settlers
chouid be established olose to eaoh other and have tiie benefit of
near uoighbors., This road was first blazed ocut in Zlsgin County
in 1lul Uy a lire John Beoatwlel, a oon of a Churca of Iigland Clergy=
run, ocne of its first settlers and later a high ccnctuble and
gharlff of the London Diatrict. After it wus constructed in that
Couniy, it was extended Westward through Kent. Tho survey of the
. mad in Kenbt County was made by Colomel Burwell, a native of New
Jerccer, 'a gentleman who bocane 4 conspilcuous figure in the life '
of 4.5 settloment for the rest of his life - as Colonel of :ilitia
24 omber of Parllament as well as ia his capaocity of surveyor of
rany cortions of the tovnship lands and of the Town of London.'!

He besan his survey of this road in tho County of Kent in 1612 with
its line of usual s8ized lots on eithor side, bLut his oporations

wers intermupted by the outbreul: of war. }His stores eand scurveying |
inatruuents wore capburod and ocurried off by a detachmont of
fmericem Militia, end he was uncble to proceed with the vork until
e?tor the eclose of the war in 1815, That year it was recumed and
contimed as far as the Raleigh townline.

The construotion of this road in 1816 was the occasion
{~r 10 inconing of many sottlora into the county. There were,
Lovever, @ Tew settlers loceted prior to this in the luke Erie
Pistriets A man by the name of Crewford located at the Xau as
carly as 1809, and with bhim two other settlers, Dickson, an
2resican hunter, wlterwards purdered by scme unidentified end
tie-ofore unpunishocd person, and Ramsay the owner of 1200 aores of
whet is now very voluable farm lands on the Iau roade Thres years
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<o brothera, Rdward and Joseph Hackney, added two mors to
't contingent of the JTuke rrie Setuuganm Following; theae
“hers were none until after the Telbot Road wec opened up, alter
'i'-.;lt;h "Zelilers flled in along its longth, &ud ere the expiration
of the year L 20 708t of the 18 lying thereon, particularly 4n
Fowurd, had Lorn telien up. John Hury and sons, as carly as the
Srring of 1016, had establislicd thamoelves on Iot 59 end adjoining
4058, DESL ol Uic glte of wodern Clearville, und had already felled
tho hisloricud troce The muwe Foll Josoph Woods and sons bhad laid
the sltc @nd orsned tha history of Yorpeth by a pimilar cot. Tho
your following sow De Se Duldwin, Sexuel Burns, E. Neweomb and John
Kitchen loceted as neighbors to lir. Bury; end in Howard, pioneor
Nre 0ous was already equally well supported. On the soveral lots

.. Girsetly ecpposlte the latter, or near by, throe or four members of

fo patriou famdly of Coll, Irom the Themes River, whose parent

sioad and 51 sons had tolen up arms at the call of country An the
evontful ver of 1812, woro st work on their drawings; and irmediately
inst, on Yot Noe 90, Nicholas Cornwull, a rcnbor of that U. E. loyalist
fanily wihose membera formed early J.oud.{ns, setilers of Colchester and
£ha Uppor Whames, end not only twice gave the County of Xent a lembor
of Tarioment, but the County of ¥ssox one of the first and subsequente
1y, by rarriege, a scoond, undor the ‘name of MecCormiok, had broken .
into the surrounding forast, end wis then periweps plancing end antiol-
poiling the vrection of his ploneer suw mills on Big Creek, which he
completcd in JE19 or 1820, ILuter, and a little farther Ecst, the ‘
EBacknoy bLrethors, lr, Desmond, aleo of patyrictlio 1812 feme, not
forgetiing Mre Crecn, a menber of that long~lived family wﬁoae eleven
penbers apgnrepated a lease of life of 907 yeurs, were at work hewing

“(‘

_out Lhelr future hcnes. Presont Puluyra wias located for thoe future

the naveny of Messrs. Streot, Lborlle and We. 2ills, the lattor
dittle “hiiilug that his son in the porson of the Hon. David 'ills
would nol only represent his own loculity end the County of Bothwell
in the ‘urlianment of the Country, Lut become & leuding Ninister in
the caliuet Councilse But it is ncodless to continue the list of
ploicera whoge many enterprising sons still very ponerally possess
whe Lor csleuds of thelr fathers = the Pells and =:iths of pogistorial
roputationy Unsworth of the Western District Jauilorshkip; Stover, the
first Jocal tavern=keepsri Ammstrony, Desuond, Gulbraith, Ste\-mra.
Palpor wid other well-lnown faxilics in the veat; and Moorehouso,
Cespor, .idley, ell of municipal fame; lcTavieh, locrhall, Mclaren,
and Butiven in tho Baste In Horwich, teo, & zumber hud settled in
tha locality long known as the *0ld or littlo Flelds," and had effected
out of the densa bush what the nane supggests, & cultivated ocasis, whon
the diccovery of prior grants and other ocsuses dispossossed and ve
then fron thelr clearings, two or three of Gheir numbor, Hell, EBolton,
elc., roing to the Uppor Sydemhem ond thero becoming the plonsers of
that river.”

The ohicfl seorvice wiiich Colonel Tulbot rendored to the
County of Kent wvas the bullding of the Telbot hoad which opened out
the Southorn seotion of the county for settlecuzent. Uhile ®lgin
County, whare he lived end where Lo did the mejor share of his life's
wor:, owes its settlement more to him than to any other man, Kent
County vwas well on its wuy towurds settlement two docados boforo he
may Le said to have begun hise Every institution of e ploncer settle=-
pent - ristmill, sawe-ndll, truding house, church and school =~ had
become o permunent establishment along the Thumes eand the settlement




well on towurds a self-supporting stege a full decade at

Egéora ?;,§q§1%gg gggun tg a:::lg Blgin County. But éettlt;:::.on
: 2 ron or that enterpri Coun

he « rucelve khis Junt’moca of praise. plkc > 3¢

POPULATION OF Ti’l. COURTY OF KENT 1817-1EE81
ad SO
that of the last Census Returms, 1921,

1817 2842 1esl 1861 1871  18c1 192

Canden | 102 298 14 2744 LGC95 3239 21

tht"mz T™wp. 162 931 1768 3585 5C36 5907 5722
Dever 324(1) 1075 1723 2656 3315 7 4345
Hariish 114 1590 2627 5,556 5975 410 4952
Loverd 150(0) 1891 5384 3976 5512 3962 2297
Orlozd 167(2 575 - (&) 2556 3113 3766 2032
Ralo!ch 273 1595 21,60 3750 L0881 5298 4353
Raney 30 37 - (5) 470 711 1082 1563
Tilbuzy est &0 510 1023 1267 1846 2872 3197
LS.Q:F. - - 112 - {6 115 1083 1495 905
Chuflas Town - - (3) 2070 u.bz 5873 7873 13256
;iir;QLI - - - - 995 5 633
Dresden - - - - - 1979 ° 1339
iddzetown - - - - - 1538 _ 1855
L4Cl01inm 5 - - - - - 1212 1565
Thamesvillo = - - - - 740 £C0
Wallacobur; = - - - - 1525 4006
Indian Recorvea B - - - - i011
Tiibury -~ ~ ~ - - - 1123
Brieccu Ville = - - - - - 205
Eric Beach vill. - - - - - <3
Hichoete Ville- - - - - - 394
wheatley Vill.- - - - - - 378

A2 9832 1469 21183 40634 54310 58726

(v} Includes Tulbot Streeot, Orfords (1) Includes 54 in Baldoon
Settlemont. (2) Moravian Indians, (3) Chathan Village numbered €12, In
1C20 therc wors but A0C0 in Xent and Lambton, und in 1835, 900 in :
Chethom, (L) TIncluded in Howurde ({5) Included in Tilbury. (6) Includ
in Camden. Iu 1842 Zone then included Fuphemia. 1In 1842 population of

Kent cad lenbton 16,000.00.

The «bove table is hore insertcd to indicute the yoars in which

the popul:..on of the County made its greatest progress. The thirty
veors, 1830-1860, were the years whorsin the settlement of the County
by irr igroclon mainly took place. . Aftor that period the natural in- |
creacs accounted for the growth in population, the addition to it from
fuzisratica beconing & negligibleo guantity, and nmuch less than what was
looe of too netural incrcase to the United Stutcs and to other sections
of the Dc..'nion. It will beseon thut althoush there has beoen An increase
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of 4,16 for the wiole County in the thirty years Letwoen 1881 and

1921, thore has been @ marked deorcase in every rurul district
oxoopt.im, omney and Tilbury and in the rural towns and villages

also, Chuthom and Hmaceburg because of their industries, elone ahovdng
a puried increase. = _

The above is information compliled
by the late Reve. Hugh Cowan about the year
1926 end axtrooted by the Kent mtorical
Soolety 19107.
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PATTLE OF THE TILA/ES
and

DRATH OF TECUMSEE .

Dy Thaddeus 3. Arnold.

In writing an sccount of the death of Tecumseh, I em aware
that I undertuke no ordinary task for there are as many contradiotory
acoounts of the rmanner and circumstances of his death as there have
been vriters upon the subject, end, although his death occurred in a
neighbourhood which was fairly sotilod at tho tine, the cotusl ocourrence
of that day ero to many students of Canadicn listory still shrouded
in ryutorye iy faocilities for sathering togethier the facts in _
gonneation with the death of Tecumeeh and the Buttle of thoe Thames
have been oxeceptional in that uy Crandrather, Cuptaln Christopher
Aruold, born in 1774, had lived sincoe boyhood on his farm about six y
milovs from the scene of the battle,and,besides having been intimately |
aoguainted with Tocumseh in the previous campaign in the vioinity of ‘
the Mawnes, had beou in consultution with bhim at his house tho alternoon
and night before the battle end wes on tie ground shortly after his
deathe I rocucmber well a numbor of times when out hunting with ny
father that he, wiille sitting down to root, reopeated to mo the many oft
told Incidento that he had gathered in reforonce to that memorable men,
Tocumseh, and the manner of his death., All these things are as fresh

in ny nerory ss 4 tecld but yesterday,.

: Teounseh was born near where Springfiold, Ohio, now stands,
wos the fourth son eof a fanily of seven, his parcnts belng of the
Shawanee Tilbe, having a tribal distinotion of the totem of the turtle.
He was &n athlotic Indien, vbnormally sirong in both body and mind, end
ie thought to have been born in or ubout the yecar 1768. Tocumseh opent
most of Lis life at wur. His first battle was fought when ho was only
geventoen yours of age with come Kentucikiens on Mud River, Ohlio. Troa
thizs date to the beginning of the War of 1812, he was continually et
war in some part of tho country until his fame bocame as wide as the
gontinent on whioch he lived. He elvays displayed great skill and
bravery in battle and suffered stolcally and without a murmur. Whend

the ax of 1812 broko outy, Teoupgohy,Wg.had RV, k)iR FiE8nCatEEd000gea
2ﬁ°r:n3331%t°89eéﬁ &gﬁfdtunce in sevorul buttles. He was with Genoral
Brocik av the esurrender of Hull end was presontod by the Coneral with
a sash ea cn evidenco of his bravery. So far what I have writton 13 a
ratter woll known in history as are tho acgp:gﬁsrggo:geuggzgmgg;grgl

™ T g0 ©
g tor Bl e e ens Artortﬁgon::ggih gsailed across, while Tecumseh,

fu-rauny 4 t‘ engon r
WA Ul :;Q“fo lggogs,ggarono& sround the lake, joining foroga at lalden.
Yro. chis time to the death of Tecumseh, Prootor soems to bhave loot

s
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heurt, rofucing to faco the Arcericens even when urged by the brave
Tocwiteh to do S0, One position after auother wanakbungﬁncd, ruch to
tho ciacugt of :ho_Inginn Chiol, until a astand wus made on the spot
known as Teow.soeh furk, Chathen, but, when the Ameri:ans approuched,
Prgo:or rotreated, leaving a roar guard of Indians to ochock the Kontuoke
1;333 Ao a‘daah W6 mudo for tho bridge which spanned }eCregor's Creek,
Ewtdﬁndians fired, killing throo Americens, and it is suid soveral
4rciono woro killed, one of whom, a chief high in Tecumseh's favor, wus
Fiually Lucied near whore the dwelling of D. K. Venallen now standa,

“he yoar gocrd of Indians was forced to rotire up the river, and, in
;;gu}:;,‘farned leGrogor's grist nill, Tecumsch rode swiftly to the farm
ol .l oll scquaintance, Capt. Christopher Arnold, on the river front in
flowvard, t'olve miles from Chathams It was at tho residence of lre. Arnolé
thet the plan of tho morrow's battle wus arranged.

1 Sevaral yours ago, o writer in the Chathom Bunner under the
nom de plume of il,L.H., sald: "Twenty years later at a point where
¥ecOresor's Croeok slips quletly into the Thames, thore existed a small
clustor of rude log houses surrcunded by the usual stookado, This was
Cistica of a contury ugo. 1t was hore on the spot where now stands
ToocuLcel Tark that one of the nost remarkeble men that Anerica ever proe |
duccd, tlc ncble Tocumuseoh, recolved the wound which led to his death.»

Claude Jjuer, in speaking of the douth of Tecumusch, says:
"llow reclotunco wiec no longer thought of and the dreedful oriecs of
Sujitive and purcuer, evary nan for himself, quarter to none, mirgled in |
tho Leavy outunn woods, Urging to greator specd the panic stricken
reononts of Irootor's once victoriocus army, all about the flying chieftan
&d his pale faged friend aund through the dark seared forest aislcs, old
worriols wnd youthe flew biindly forward, nono escaped the drcadful spell
¢ Juale. Of & sudden the pitiful ping of a rifle bullet rettled through

tho Larg, leafless trees cnd Teoounsoh, olapping hls hand to his alrondy
gvLirred breast, foll heavily foruwaerd and oxo od: "I an dying, leave

e nond save youraelf.” This sanowhat eloguont atatemont laclkis tho
ingoztant elsment of truth. It 15 uo nearor truth than the assertion of
—usens Tmalley who says ithat Tocunmach met his doath at the battle of
Tippecanoce in the yeor before the wWar of 1812, and pornit me to add

here thut the wounding of the Chief ut Chathuny is purely imsaginary and
written, I incegine, at & time wlien the wiriter dosirced tc see the monument
buil? in Tocwusch Parik, the spot whero-the wounding i1s said to have
ocourred. T e Merrifield gives a longthy acoount of the doath of
Tosumseh ¢s told by Josoph Joaruston, a man who lived from childhood with
tho Indiunc, Iis story vas as {ollown: MNe with othor Britlsh white
traders hed beon with tho Shewanecs and Teoumseh for a long time, and,
when tho var vith the United States corzuenced, thoy Joined with the
Indicus on the retreat of the Eritish from liohigun to Cunuda. The
Indlang were afrald thelr beloved ohlef might be kllled by treacchery .
a3 thoy Lnew tho invotersto hatrod of ths Yankees for Tecumsoh would moke
tho: hogitate at nothing to accomplish his destruction. To proteot hinm,
Joe Johno.un, two other white traders and three Indlan sube-chicfs forumed
thonselyos into & bodyguard and wore fighting eround Tocumseh when sone
tine eftus the routs of Frootor, Tocumseh was shot through tho thigh and
dicibled rom steandlng. The bodyguard bound up tho wound end sot him
erai st 4 tree sonc clstanco in the mer of the fighting line vhere he
coulis 8till cheer hisz warriors and direct the buttlic. In a fieroce

eliir;0 macoe by the Yaniges, the Ipdiens were prossed dbuck to where

Moo neh wos seated and a rounted officer seoing hinm apparently helplesa
doshed toverd him, pietel in hund, but, bofore ho had time to fire, '
Tecnmueh threw his tomahuwiz, hitting him on the side of the face, =
s21ioein, Lig head end tucbling him from his horsee The Yoaukoco cherge
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w4 repulsed, dbut, for fear of ansther such ds er to weg 8 body-
guard carried him furthor to the rear eand aoatgs kin bgggdo :g.eg: tree
while his war shouts rang tirou.l: the {forest, ancoursging his warriors in
their dospeicto dofencs oiouinst the tromendous 6dds in larzrison's aray.
All at once wieno erles cowsod, Joe Johnston and the rost of his body-
guard ren 1o wiore they hed lert him, knowing somotLing surious had happene
ed, Ther Tourd Tooumach strctehod in death.”™ I'r. Merrifields then te

of tho curiring wwoay of the body, its burisl and the solewn oath nover

0 rovounl the S0V

_ 1y Cfatbhor always stutoed that Joe Johnston was not a trader
nelther was ho o warrior; he was not with the Indians at Chuthun nor was
49 wild Tecunseh the night bofore tho buttle; in short, he was not at the
Lutllic of llc Thames uor wad he over wssoolated with Tooumsch in eny of
iz uwndortellrss, that he possessced none of the churacteristics of a
warrior, and, in fact, wuis unfitted in evory way for eny material achiove=
Bent. O an quite certaln tho worslion of the Chlef's death given by Mr.
koxrifield, Ir told by Johnston, wus siuply e oreation of his untutoroed
dneglinesion. My father, whio imow Johnston well, asked him if he knew
Viore Tueow soh was burled. o wiswered: “Mr. Arnold, I wes too long with
tha Jodluns not to mow vhero the Chief 1s buried.”  ™ihy do you not let
uo lwow £0 that we can ercat a nonunment?® Johnston replied: "If I told
woore he lies, the Yankeos would come over and stezl his bones end work
<22 Bhin bouned up into butlon wolds.™ ome yoars later, Joanston and ny
sotaer veat W the soecne of tlhce battla and Johnaston pointed out the spot
botween wo becch trees on whioh thore wore markings which he olaimed
pilgnirled tiat the thawanos Chlel wus burled there., Some years efter, my
father vriod to find the syot but falled entiraly to locuto it as the land
had boon cleuared and the landrmaries all reaoveds. I lately ooume into
Pesscocion of a doed nade Ly Joseph Johmoton bouring date 1610, Ho had
puroiasod the Jand from Abner Bole somo years proviously,’ This proves
positivoly thut Johnoton lived in the County of HXont several years before
tha bLrooiing out of the War of 1812 and from first to last possibly never
guﬁf 150 ccutact or ever haed enytning to do with Tecumseh or his so called

odypuerde

Che confidence I placo in the story told by ny fatlier I think
i3 Tully werrentod by tio eirowsstances surrounding it., Tecuwsch and
soveral of his Chiefs pascod theo uight of the 3rd of October, 1813, at the
house ¢f Cuptalp Arnolds They hud two obJeois in vieow, first to prevent
the Indlaps fronm hurning Armold's mill as thoy had done MeGregor's mill at
Chathon, and, socond, to consult with Caplaln Arnold as to tho plan and
plage of the battle that Tecunseh wa# detormined to fight bofore roaching
the Inddan coittlement at jloravlicntown.

1% was arranszed that Tecumseh should watoh for the Yunkees
under ¢ larce trce on the rocd about & half milo from the mill whilloe
Captain .rnold was to wateh for tholir coming on tiieo mill dam. IJI Capt.
Acnol. saw then first, he was to throw up & shovel of eurths thon Arnold
firat saw then, he looked for Tecumseh who had beon standing beside his
v/211o Loros with hie elbow on its withers but the Chief was on his horoe
and tha enirao)l was rannirs at full speod. The /mericans gave chase but
tue flost Cooted pony was (00 specdy for his pursuers. Tecumgeh Kept to
t.s yood until he reociacd the Hubble farm; he threw & bag uiich contained
Sosa 1loar Coite AImOld had given him, iunto Hubblo's yarde. e then rede
3 tioo vlver Lonk some distance further up the stream to & spot whero a
squew ovaited bis ooming. Ho at once got into a cunoe his whito pony
swirrin: by the side, end quickly passed to the oppoalte bank, thus throwing
his pursuors [or a time off the trail. Iinally, the Xentucklans rfollowed
him to tlhe coone of the battle two miles Bast of Thunssville, The ground
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tas o Irebly adapted for defenca. The British occuplod the left wi
p?czcriad by the River Thames, wihile the Indians extgnded to the rlggg' -
a4t oo odgle of 45 degress behind & bog swamp extending noarly to the bank
of The viver. There wore about 900 Indlens and 600 Britich. Harrison
nade o galay but Iincmediately rushed to the attack., Proctor's lines wore
soon bgoacn. Proclor orderod & rotreat to the everlasting disgust of
wany of his followers. Xt 45 sald that many of the militia in their rage
and disgust et Proctor's want of courage, broke thoir guns end rofused to
otey the order to retreat. hon tho attack was made, the British \
corcander lost Lls self possesaion &3 he had elready iont his courage.

e procipitntely left the field in a headlong flight for the British
canp oo Eurlington, arriving there with some 24,0 of his followers.

Toounsech, with his braves, fought desperutely and paintained
trelir ground until their Chief fell mortally wounded. At onco the eory
recounded thirouch the woods end tho Indians vanished, taking the wounded =
posalbly tlhien dead - Chief with them. The manneor of his death vas as
follows: .an American hed ponotrated to near tho tree behind which Tecume
8sh stood, the Chlef wounded him and he fell. Tecumseh, with uplifted
tomehawk, spreng to findsh his fallen onemy, but had not reached the
spot befcro @ bullet from tho pistol of his intended victim plorced a
vital spot in his body end he fell to rise no nore.

Watason, in his History of the United 3tates, page 713, eays:
"Aa Narpdoon rapldly pursued, the Eritish ocormander determined to meet
hir and accordinzly posted his army on the right bank of the River Thames
nour loreviuntomn. MHere he was overtaekon on the 5th of QOctober by
Earrison. The eneny, thrown into confusion, could not be rallied. The
Indlaps stood five cod & dosperute conteat onsued between thon end the
mounted Ecalunekians cormonded by Colonel Johnston. Tocumseh cheored his
werriors uatil be wes chot dead Dy an unknown hand."™ :

Thie 18 the truc story of the death of the great Tecumseh.
As scon o2 tho Yankees returacd aftor tho battle, Cuptain Arnold, with a
few frienda, visited the ficld und buried the deazd cnd assisted tho
wouniode JAndrew Tlemming, tihcn & btoy of 13, with hls father, visited the
sconze of the confliot. 3cme Noutuckions were shkinning on Indlen, ecying
they were going to teke Tecumceh's skin to muke rezor straps. When told
that the gkinned Indian wus not Tecumseh, one rexarked: I guoss when
wa get back to Kentucky, they will pot krow his okin from Tecumseh's.”
when the Ancricans returned to Arnold's rill, meny of then had strips of
this ekin sereping 4% with thelr long hunting knivea, One of them had a
lover jJew h= was geraping, saying 4t belonged to Tecumseh, iy Crand-
fatber, Cuiicin Arnold, alternvmrds discovered thet it belonged to a squaw
whom the Y.ikecs had wantonly stot across the river four niles from tho
sgona of 1.0 Luttle, A remarkable incident ccourred at tais time whioh
I thi:k worthy of notico. lir. Arnold, eppreliending that the Yankeed
might oburn nis mill, took one of tho nill stones out to the woods end hid
it. U thon pointed out to them that the mill could not grind, hence it
was usoless. In this way he no doubt saved his mill from destruction.

Yhon 1t 12 remembercd that Captain Arnold lnew Tecuuseh well,
bavir- becs with bhin st the strurzles at the laumee, thet Tecw:iseh was ab
Captuin Ariold's placo end consulilng with him curing the whole night
provicus to the battlo, end ate his last meel et tho table of his white
brother, w.o, @8 econ &3 the fZrpericuns had retired, visited tho battle
sround, and to the end of his doys delighted to repeat the verious
in0idents sonneoted therewith to my father -- when ell this is token into
conoidoration, it will not be wondered at that I pluce entire confidenoce
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5n the story of the death of 'recmoh as ropeatod to me by my father so
ften in tiwes that are gono.

This narretive possesses ono merit that is not to be found in
pany of the accounts writton of this event in Canadian History inasmuch
as it 1s firmly belleved to be true by the ran who wrote it.

The abow was writton bty Thaddeua 3, SArnold
aetbout thoe year 1901 and wrosorted to tho

. Eent ldstoricul docliaty by Hite J.B. J'IMld
in Mh. lgkfl L



‘THE KETHODIST CHURCH
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lethodisn bepan its career in Kent County in the year 180L.
It was the expression of & reoligious revival which began in England
in 1739 under the prouching of John VWesley, who, ordained a minister
of the Angliean Church in Englend in 1728, in the meantime came under
Lo Iafluences of the teaching of the Moravian Brethren, unto whom,
unier Cod, he owed that nissionary zeal and religlous fervor which
E.J:.otsfizod his subsequent labors and produced such great evangelis-

i¢ results.

Ceorge Neal, a disbanded RBritish soldier
settled in the Nliagara Distriot, was the
pioreer of lLethodism in Upper Canada.

Philip Embury, an Irish local preacher, is the acoredited
pioneer of HMethodiem in the United States. In 1766, he preached his
Tirst serncn and formed a cless in New York, twenty-seven years after
John Wesleyv began his itiperant work in and. The work in Canada
begaen as oo overflow of that prosecuted in the United States. A local
proucher nomed Tuffey, a soldier of the L4th Regiment stationed at
Cushoe, logan preaching efter his arrival in 1780, and, although no
or-onizivion was established as the result of his efforts, he left
seveoral converts behind him, ani is, therofore, considered the ploneer
of iethodisa in Canada. In Upper Canada, George leal, &n Irishman
end o mejor of the British Cavalry Regiment in the United States, came
to Cenc’a as e disbanded soldier to take possession in 17€6 of an
officer's grant of land 1in the Niegara Distriect. Here he exerclscd
bhimsel? in the triple occupation of farmer, school teacher and local
preacher and was successful in organizing a society and class In his
neighborhood. Theso local preachers vere followed in 1789 by the
aprointrent to Canada by the american Conference of the Methodist
Episcopal Church of the first regular preccher to Canada, Williem
lonee, & lovalist, who began the rirst regular circult in the Day of
Quinte dlet.iect. From these beginnings the lethodist Church continued
to ~Tow until it had become one of the largect Protestant Clurches in
Cor.de o6 c¢ha tlie of its cntrance into that lurger organization, the
Untied Church of Can-da, on June 10th, 1925, closing a poriod of 115

eu1s of history in Ceneda, Itsa necbersaip had reached a toial of
1750 in otlier sections of Canada by the time the work wus first under-
tukcoa i dent County.

Nathan Punce Trom the Methodist Episcopel
Clmurch cf the United States was the pioneer
missionary ol Kent County.

The missionary whc began this work was Nathan Bung=, Of
rsoessity, he began his work in the Themes River Settlement as this
v~ the only settlement in the County at that time. It will not be
w1, 0ut interest to our readers if we quote verbatim his own des-
sription of the manner in which Methodism was first introduced in

-
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écnté v Lten in his History of tho Method!st Zpiscopal Church in
enadas

"ihis year also (1804), Nathan Bangs solicited and obtained the
appointmert of a missionary to a new sottlement on the River Thames
in U »or Canada. This plece had long dbeen on his mind as a pronising
fielc Tor nisalonary lebour and he had freguently offered to explore
it in the noue of the lord but his presiding elder objected on account
of the fcoelble state of his health end the unhealthiness Oof the climsate,

ifis deseripiion of the annuval epidemic
of fever and ague.

Perhaps no part of our country is more subject to fever and egue,
or "laxe fever™ &s 1t was called, than along the banks of the River
Thii oo, occasioned by the stagnant swamps which are formed a little
dislince from the river on each side and the unwholesomeness of the
vetor which the people were obliged to use. The missionary arrived
thore in the month of August and in the month of September the fover
be un to rage; and during its progress, in almost every famlily nore or
less vere sick and in some instances every member of a femlly was
prostrated at the same time, though it seldon proved fatal. When the
miscionary Tfirst visited their houses, he was generally presented with
a Lottle of whiskey and urged to partake of it as a preventative
aprinst the fover; but he declined the beveruge and told them they
misht if they chose drink their whiskey and he would drink water and tea
and sce who would have the better heulth; and when the fever commenced
its ravages aa ebove deseribed so that he could visit scarcely a house
without sceing more or less sick, he constantly travelled the country
in health until about the close of the sickly season but by timely
repedies le escaped with only three paroxisms. -

The first service held - his own
narrative of it.

i.iile at the conference at New York that year, llathan Bangs
mede luiovn his desires end impressions to Bishop Asbury end he eppointed
hinm o nicsionary to that place. He accordingly left the Ciiy of

¢ Rew Yor:z in the latter part of the ronth of June, went into Upper
' Canada by way of Kingston, thence up ithe country, along the liorthwestern

shore of lske Ontario to the Long Point eircuit, and thex on through
Oxford to the Town of Delawars on the River Thames., Here he lodged for
the night in the last log hut of the settlement end the next rorning

as ti. day begen to davn he arose and took his departure, and, after
travollins through a wilderness of forty-rive miles, guided only by
rorked trces, he arrived at a solitary log house about sunset, weary,
‘wunlry enc thirsty, where he wus entertained with the best tho house
could afford, which was some Indian pudding and milk for supper, and

= btundle of straw for his bed. The next duy about twelve o'clock, he
arrived et en Indian Village on the North bank of the River Thumes, the
inhobitants of which were under the instruction of two Joravian }isslon=-
cmics. %nile there the Indiens were cualled to worshlp, which was per-
fo=~2 in & very simple nunner by reading a short dlscourse and singing
a ;o versces of a hymn. 7The nissionaries and the Indians treated hinm
witi great respect and affuction and seemed to rejoice in the prospect
s Luving the gospel preuached to tho white settlements on the bunks of

tio river below.

About three o'olock in the afterncon he arrived at the first



house in the settlement when the following conversetion took place
betvoen the missionary and & man whom he saw in the yard beforo the
housee Arter the introductory salutation, the misslomery inguired,
wis you want the gospel preached here?” :

:-.?tr‘ some deliveration, it was answered, "Yes, that we do.
Do you proach the gospel?"

“That 1s ny ococupation.™
"2light from your horse, then, and come in, will you?*

"T have come a great distance to preuach the gospel to the
people hLore and it is now Saturday afternoon, tomorrow is the Sabbath, |
and 7 must have & house to preach in before I get off from ry horse."

After a fow moments of consideration, he replied, "I have a
 house for you to preach in, provender for your horse, &nd foocd and

~ lodging for yourself; and you shall be welcome to them all if you will
. dismount and come in." ;

Thanking him for his kind offer, the missionary diszounted
and entered the hospitable mansion in the name of the loxd, saying
"oguce be Lo this house.' A young nun mounted his horse und road ten
iadles dovn the river, inviting the people to attend meeting at that
ifwouse the next morning at ten o'clock.

At the tine aprointed the house was filled., W¥hen the misslon-
ary rose up, he teld tiie people that whenover a stranger makes his
eppocrance in & place the people sre generally anxious to kpow who he 18
wWhouce hs came, wherc he is pgoling, and what his errand is among thexm.
HIn tlese things", sald Le, "I will satisfy you in a fow words."

Ilie then gave them a short account of his birth, education, of
Atz conversion end call to the wministry, and the motives which induced ‘
iilm to ccme amongst thex, and concluded in the following manner:

"I am & liethodist preacher and ny method of worship is to stand
up and sing, and knesel in praycr; and then I stand up and teke a text
and preach, while the pecrle si¢ on their seats. As mehy of you as see
£it to join me in this method, you can do so; but if not, you can
choose your ovn method.”

121cn e gave out the hymn, they all rose, msn, woman end |
child. %hen he kneoled in prayer, they all, without exception, Eneeled
~down. Thoy then took their seats and he stood up and gave out the text,

"Repent ys, therefore, and be converted, that
your sins may be blo%ted out, when the times
:I!; rle‘orrrgshingw shall come fronm the presence of

e of :

ile preached as he thousht, with the Holy Chost sent down from
Haaven., Iav. concluded his discourse, he explained to the audience
. bis manner of preaching, by itinerating through the country, his doctri
and how supported, eto. He then said:

"All you who wish to hear any more preaching, rise up."

Lvery umen, woman and child stood up. Ee then told thexm they

e Il e i — S . - L =T i . e i s



gight Cipect preoaching there again in two weeks,

Zho opposition met with by this first
missionary, -

oy Cuch a commencement in a strange place he considered as a token
iff,*fod' He then sent on appoiniments through the settler.ents along
:.;u_.he r}vor. widch he filled in e mennor similer to the ebove, and
des ocvorywaere recelved with great oordiality. He continued among
gacn about three months when he left them for the Niegara circuit. He
Wag cuccecded the next year by Willlem Cese, who was instrumontal of
qxta? good to the souls of the people.. Societies and a regular circult
:ffgiir“cd wihich have continued to flourish and inoreese to the prosent

“ut it must not be supposed that Nethan Bsngs, whenm lavine the
foundations of lethodlsn in Southwestern Ontario, not with buz gﬁsy
aoiicve ent and no reverses or failures. In his itineraries he visited
rot only the cettlers along the Thaes River but those also on St.Clair
eénd Iwrle Lakes, and those also at Fort lalden, Sandwich and Dotroit.

77 waos0 places he found himself preceded by missionarics representing
20 Duplist end Congregational Churches, from one of whom he seems to

» recoived a glad welcome but from the other considerable opposition.
_dilfiicultiea he faced have beon described for us by one of their
:rly church's historians; :

-

erIre»
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“.ae moral condition of tho settlers was indeed lamentable. They
Lad o means of grace, and little desire for eny, loving drinking, -
duncing, Lorse racing and other sporis., A Baptlst exhorter from the
United States, used to have meetings occasionally but vas hichly
prejudiced against the Methodists and brought the people to have
ginjlar feolinga. On his first visits a number of houses wcro opened
for him to preach in; but, through the Baptist, they were socon oclosed
again. A rich man had opcnod his house for preaching and aftcrwards
turncd the preacher out of doors in the presence of the congrczation -

fwiyod the dust off as a tostinony ageinst them." A few months later
the affal»s of this man bogan to reverse. He learned to drirk and
bacane & drunkard. His wife wont off with another man., Eis children
ran to ruin. JIn years after he wandered about &s & vagrant, indebted
to friends for dsily food, In 1833, he was visited by the preacher
on the Cosfield circult, who found him on the verge of the grave with
po proparation and no dosire for it. IHis mind wes weak and his body
eniocbled by dissase. o lived in ignorance and disobodlence to God,
and so0 he died."

whon taking out his handkerchief, end lifting his feet, the proacher ‘

The first circuit wes established in
1809 and numned Lae Detrolt Clrouit.

Yhen an orgenizetion wwus first effected in this section of
ontario by the Methodist Iniscopal Church, it was established under
sho nome of the Detroit Circuit, and included the setilexents in that
territory covered by the ilinerancies of Hathen Bangs - Dobtrolit, the
sectlemonts on the Thames hlver fronm Moraviantown to St.Clair Iake and
alonz lake Brie especially in the Townships of Cosfield and Colchester.
This toolk nlace in 1809, Joseph Sawyer being the first presiding elder
end under o ¥Williem Case as the missionary on the field., At the end
of the Ti.. L conferonce year of the circuit, the total enrolmzent
recorded © .3 seventy-eight members, which had inereused to oue hundred
and thir, ~four ot the time of the outbreck of the war in 1€12, The



/5
effees of (1l3 war upon chureh progress may be

esfeqs of Lils b cauged from the faot

vinl Lo U next five years after tais there wasugn increuse of a

vobal of ouly eix members throughout the lensth and breadth of the
vhole -iclis From that time forward, Lowever, progress was steadily
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T.e Thames River separated frou the Detroit,

an independent eirecuit, 1817, Henry Ryan,

Presiding clder,

in 1517, the settlements on the Thames River were established an

independent cirecuit, end reported in that conforence year en enrolment
of' one huiired and sixty members, or twenty-four more then there were in
the whole Tiostern District, inoluding Detroit, at the outbreak of the
Wars i€ Ryan was now tho presiding elder with 211jah Varren as the
missionar) in charge of the field. :

Remurkable Religious Revivel followed the
first Canudien Conference in 1817,

Tho next step in advance which concerned the Thames River Circuit
in conjunctiion with all the rest in Cenada, was the establishucnt of a
Cancdicen Conference in 1€24. Hitherto the different circuits in Canada
tere & part of the Genesee Coaference which in 1817 was muade up of eighty-
two ndnlisters of whom sixty were in tne United States and twenty-two in
Cenade. Twice this conference hed mect in Canade, once at Elizebethtown
in 18617, and egaln at Niegera in 1820. A remurkable event occurred at
this first oonferonce, a great revival of religion, awukencd by the
sormon = preached by the chalruan of the conference, Bishop Ceorge, and
which eventually spread throughout the whole of the liethodist Circuits
esyecianlly in Vestern Cansde. It is thus described by one of the members:

vwith ruch [ireedom and power; and so great was the revival which followed
that 1t 1o Lelieved nore than one hundred persons were awekcned at the
confer.ncc. Conversions now becerie frequent. Tie power of Cod was dise
played at -c3t of the meetings. The deist and the drunkard, o3 well cs
the morclicy «nd children of ten years, found one common place at the
alter of vunltoree; and celling on the Lord for mercy, werc made to re=-
Jolce witih jor uuspeskeble, (diole femilies were made the subjeeots of
saving groosy and not @ few who Lud declined in their religion were re-
claime’ an. restored to thelr first love, The neighboring Townships
now to .z lame. From attendin; tho preaching at the conlerence, the
people returned to their homes with greet seriousness cnd earnsest prayer
for tho divine blessing.”

The total incrcuse of membership rosulting from the revivael
initiaced ot the confercroe neeting bas been estimated as being not less
than fourtcen hundreds The Themes Circuit was travelled that year by
zlijch .arren and he reported a mighty impetus, resulting in & large
inorsuse of the membership of that circuit, created by this conference
rovival.

"Throughout the whole sitting of five days, the word was delivered ‘

The general effoct cf this Revival
desoribed,

v, 1tera have not been wanting who have given us a desoription
of ito per ral effect on the cormunitics in which it made hoadway. "A
great inpr-ossion was made on the public nind," one has said, "by the
1etimes wonderful, chenge of charecter and of life in so many

e Yo g =r
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rersons and in 3o short o time. The yo had forseken -
vo%;tiea apd Vore now sorious, fond orutge Dlble, and s:g;i:étziou;
Je -2 to milo then useiul. Those indifferent to religion, lovers of
Paoocure and not lovers of Cod, were now zealous for tho ruth and
_lovers of the Zabbath. “he quarrelsome had learned, 1n.maeknéss and
iove, to bear with evil ones and to forgive. leny drunkards had sub-
afafk;ed @ resor{ to the houce of Cod for the tavern, the psalm and the
fUon .or tho song of Pachus, and cleanliness end sobriety for strong
gishjfinﬁgdesgomgagie; updtpcighbgghooda loved the devout assembly of
Y pen elr labuiailo e li
SN0 aaiat ﬁonpitublo." the Jiouse of Cod, und became orderly,

"The awakening and converting power of Cod has eppeared fre-
quently at those sessions, but at nome, of which there is any record,
whore the divine power was so greatly munifested and with such great
results. Tie Gospel received now e nmighty impetus, and, from the year
1817, for u number of yeurs, there is scarcely ought to record in the
Methodlist cnnels but progregs and increuse,The most favored last year
{1819) viora the buck settlements of Augusta, Rideecu end the sottlement
on the River Thames.” (Report of the presiding elders, Henry Ryan
aud will.om Cese, to the Coneral Conference, 1820, ) )

Perliod of controversy followad rosulting
in the establishuent of two independent
brunchoes of J.ethodism in Canada, g

Unfortunately, this secuson of revival and progress vas followed
by the outbLreak of controversies, rivelries and disunion arising from
two sourcuc -~ the one, fron the movement to establish an indeendent
Cunadiun Churcel, and the other from the presence on the same {ield of
two Metholint [losionurles represeunting two different conferonces -
the one 1.2 Tuglich und the other, the American. The evils arising
from thiz du:l workwere overccne by amicuble settlement botween the two
cenfceronces whereby the territory covered was divided, the American

Coenlcrunou Laving superviilon over the work in Upper Canzde and the
Buagllioh, Iouer Culudae Dubl thio other movouent vas not &0 easlily
brov 1t ©c on amicable solutlione The Americun Confsrence in 1824

gataellieclod wull the olrcuits in Cenada into & new Confercnce, glving .
tho tethodists in Cunade the direction of their owa work, yot under

the suprcrintendsncy of the jmerlican llothodist Episcopal Church. This,
i1t was vhought, would bYe & sailsfactory solution to those who wore
lucking towards en ipdependent Cenadiun lethodist Church. EBut it was
nos Lo procure grouter officicncy in the procecution of the clhurch's
diotlnetive work whersin lay the notive behind this moverent towards
indepondency. The movencni was political, rather than spirituel., There
began to gruw an increasing diclike among Canzdian liethodists to the
rule of o oy unization situcted in and & part of the United States of
Amorics, -~ tnirit whioh wis incroased by the Var of 1812-1815. liurmur-
in;= of diusconvent begen te bu circuluted thet the preachers sent to
ther wore not only fmerican by Lirth but merican in sentiment. It was
11 veldn that the officilals in the United Stutes pleaded for unity,
pointing out that the iethodists were not only oue body as between
Conade and the United Stetes but one body throughout the wholo world.
The demc: < .or separation increaused. The lcader in the aepuratigt
povement - Canada wus Henry Ryan, the presiding elder over the Vestorn
distriet '..ich ipeclucded the Themes River Circult. Mr. Ryan was a pan
ofexauzin, ohysioel strensth ead of a courage and uwlertness equal to his
girousth. JLlthough born in Comnnecticut, of Scotch and Irish parentage,

_:;: ¢ ardent Briticher, cspeclielly after the war and the invasion of

-
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Conuda by the American Ammye V1th charactoristioc vehemence he threw
himelll Into the rovenment, and, after a consideradle pericd of controversy,
ne withdrew himself from fellowshlip with the brethren in:the United
Ohotes in 1827, and proceeded with otheors to orzanize the Canudian
Lefieyon Church. - In the nmeantime, to offset this movewment and to
provent o schlsm in tie Cancdien Church, the American General Conferonce
griutcd independence to tho Cansdian Conference so that from this tinze
forth, e.y officiel connectlon of the American and Canadian Conferences
cevcreu., 7Vet, notwithetandin; this concession, Elder Ryen continued

his work of orgenizing a new branch of ﬂethodlsm in Canada, the estad-
lishment of which was finally effected in 1829,

The above is information compiled
by tho late Rev. Hugh Cowan about the year
1926 and extraocted by the Kent Historical
Sooclety 1947. '




This ghz ptor 1s a roprint from the narrative
cke‘t:c.;-:.-a pzcpared by r. Melonald in 1€62, who,
5:;'1 turL, 1as dndelbed to Jemes Soutar of Chathem
=0T =udh of his navtericl, supplenented by the
corrousrative information supplicd hin by the
irmedliute descendunts of these rirst settlers.
Though much of tho material deazlt with in this
chapter will be referrcd to in other chapters in
this volume, & good purrose it is thought will be
ecrvad by reproducing the story of these early
ccttlements in Mre MeDonald's owm words,

CALDEN TowNsHIP

Bais e e Y

“hLe Township of Canden includes within its bounds two incor-
poruted villeges, Themesville, situuted on the Ilorth bank of the
Tiucnes; end Drosden, on either bank of the Sydenham. The original
“onsliy of Ceuden Vest (there being another Township df Camden in
Lho County of Addington) embraeced but a encll gore-shaped torritory
1ying botween the Thures on the Scutheust, the Chathenm Township Line
or Lho West, and the line which bounded the original Indian grant on
«Le Horth, forming also  the Northern limit of Canden. The line
referred to, running due Zast and Vest from the Thames to Leke St.Clair
now fors the division between Canden proper und the Core of Camden,
£0 valled prolably because it beurs not tho slightest rescmblance to
& pgoro, The so-culled "Core” is un oblong shaped plece of territory
gtmt:idnc about twelve miles from Last to Woest eand four from North

a Soutli.

The fitness of things has bLeen untterly disresurded iz the
ranine of these two sections of the Township; for, wiile tho shape :
oI the co-called gore altests thoe inaccuracy of its nomenclature, the
tilnne: of the Township is roally a gore in shape, and the combined
clrow “tances Justily the conclusion that when the nanes of Township
and Co.s were decided upon, thelr bestovsl was decided by lot with a
result Lhe roverse of what it should have been.

tooden oxtends on the Zust almost to tihe intersaction of the

105 % Core oo ludsd to, with the Thames and Core of Zone intervening
Zone focmming ZUs Rorthern bouudery till the Core of Cunden 13 reuc.he&;
Devin, in Lreilton County, licos irmediutely to the Horth; the Towvnship

and c';v;-c of Chutham to theo tcst; and the Themes to the South or South-
viste %ho Jore of Camden aluo extonds about half i1ts length to the
/o3t of Chathum Township lipe, its Vesterly portion being bordered on
sho South by that Townshipe The surfuce of Camden is fairly repro-
entative of the penaral lcovel wilch distinguishes the entire Countye
' Southern portion is muarked by an cntire absonce of stroamg, with
sie oo two insigniflcant excsptions, but the Core is traversed diezon-
2llv Ly the Sydenhom wuiiich enters its borders on the MNortheacst corner
~4 T1-repce and pursues o romarkably tortuous course to the Gore of
rloohe: borders The bunks of this streon are very fertile and highly
calsivated, wiich remark epplieos with equcl justipe to the banks of
Lo Thases, Creat natural Tertility likewise murks the greuter part



of tie bulunce of the Townohip but lack of drainago vents its
utilization in scne locallities remoto from the r:lagarzumod.

Comden, in cormon with the Tovnshipa to the West, received

i1tn Jlrat seitlers sbout tho close of the lust century when tihe altored
‘wletions Detwecn Great Britalin and hor former thirteen colonies induced
Lie rerovel of S0 puny lLoyalists to Canada, Of the representatives of

that class wio cane into FKenty County but very few found their to
Camden, which “ownship remained aliost unsettled untid I'J.our:l.em'fa.y
cormunities hod Deon formed along the River Tront of the neighbor
Towaships. JAbout 1796, however, or soon thereaftor, Joshua Corn
losntod 1ot Fourtcen oi‘ the River Front. e was a United Eupire loyulist
Tacn Cocnccticut who hed como to this Jocality directly from Detrolt,
Lot Tleh odpt many of the ploncers of Kent *rendezvoused®, and others
rovficed, prior to meking their onslaught upon thoe forests of the Thumed.
Ire Gumooall's doccendants still living cunnot locates the exact date

of Lla wrrival but it was certainly prior to the year 1800, which was
the Cate ~f the dirth of his son lathan, & native of Camden, the first
white chlld born within its linits, end from 1834 to 1841 @ moszber of
tlo Conccionn jzoembly of Eent as his father hed boen from 1812 to 1£16.

Liers among tho curly residents of the River Front were

Aboeloa lau, wicss descondants are now quits numerous in the Township,
and Laomuel shermon, a Comnecticut loyalist. who located Iot Fiftesn,
whors Thamesville now stunds, in 1805 or the following year, his house

oln , situsted Just South of tue prescnt village on the river bank,
mniz vms about the extent of the Camden Settlament until ufter the Var
of 1212-15, when e new rosident owso to the Township Iin the person of
Tiontenont mnicht vho 00X up a location about @ mile East of Xent
Brid-o. e bed served in the British Amy during the then rocent un-
plocs atness end soon efter its close had rmarried a daughter of william
Bolior (vio hed superintondsd the Covernment ship-yard at Chathan), after
whiech %o sottled downm to @& pioneer's life on the bank of the Thames,
JcL T.sca, Condeon. Soma of this gontlemunt's descendants still reside

o L

in the Couniy. 7
Mo most importent settlcment following thal ca the Thazes
gur cifoobed elong the Sydenhem batweon Dovam Hills and Florence aboud

£20. t - nioncers beinz parties who had previously sottled on 0ld
Teli.t oorceot in Derwich, whence they rewmoved to accept grants in this
loculity on discovoring the land occupied by thom in Harwich to have _
hocn olioady cooded to other parties. JAzong those who thus located along
tho =l o nomed wero John end nilliam 7Tiffin, Job Haell, and & family

¢ 3¢ oltou, they forming at that time the first settiocment on that
sy Suouhwest of Strathroy or Eust of Wallacoburge

"o locality of Dwun 14115 was first setiled in 1830, tho
pionsar ~ine S11lien Teylor and Jumes Smith, who bullt a grist mill
o i Lo.ih benk of tue Jydenhun. Prior to the construction of that

he sottlers woro oblized to go wo uotroit In Cunoca t.o huve thelr

crisuing done, tao only milis nearer that point belng on tie Thanes,
botweon waich stream and theo Sydenliui way 43 yot & p-.xtaloss_mfest.
niode tvo gentlescen wielded great influence in shaping the ucs::-iny of
helr loecality; being upright, inteliipent, fudustricus and er.;furpris:lng.
thoir efforts were scon parked in the dovelorment of the surrcunding
secticn. ouring the rebellion, lir. Teylor was cozmissioned ¢ captuin
an? wadzol a company in which lr, Smith served es ucutenan‘g, their
prosorsy Leing thus lelt to take care of itsolf until the weifare of

spcured. Mre Saith parried tho eldest daughter of the

o ) »
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t~i»  oocn thercafter sucsoedins to the - '« rontrol »f ' = mille |

togk = eotive part in municipe. o Uruive <. tho _.urc . .tion of
Lok 8y. oa, wWes rony years Reove «f Cw fun, o | siaver sor - cutive
yoord doodsn of Toul Sountye
village gracunlly clusterod around the nilis o cted by
‘3. Taylor and 8=l t nden was cotorded tue oo oF Dawn Xills,
7 18 now the Goxr: Cridlen wad toon ot cmd poacel of Doawn,
» ‘ 3 4.e nane, DRy .tho vdalor ! of tie luni~inal Aot of 1850,
P | rez, the "o -uhip Mumits of € len were exic.dled Northward (o the
f 5y i1, and © = to thelr pres: .t locailion on the ILambton Coiuty
1 ¢ Anot “ho early resideats o Down !’ills was Charles
e v wl ated as niller in Suith's ni . for many years,
: 1_aaip 2w a wide acquainteance umong i v residents of that
b 1 . « xter v roor of Lioutenant-Colonol Baxtor of Chatham,
] ot & o soom art. ~ 103 Ath bis sons, one of whom, Charles
en wn to o ‘s | tilory was 4 partnor I the riraf.
o iv uown MLl b y _s1n the first in tho Tow hin, openod -
it J with L., , £horo nuned, as the other _.rl cr; end
A wx early reocico oz, wwkd Wellace deservea mentlon 4

, The banks of the rivuer below Dawn ¥ills did pot becciie scttled
F 1 some time after the eastablishment of a considerable villoge at.
.4 point. The sharpo & ~11v wera the ezrliest to locate on the

~outh ailde sbout midw ... o thore and the prescnt Villege of.
Lraesden, while nearl; *  them,on the Forth side, werc a fanlly
‘ of Trax*' and on i and ?{ve. Concession FPive, Ju2t in the
; "orthar ©of Dre n - = a present, Abrzm Devens ofose a location
' @ 1% 17 . “alow D: . , 7. in jcDonald settled on Lot Three, Con-.
9y .. =, smomg - . . . sobt residents of tho south bauk, end a
£ netion in : ~ ! to the North bank i ue to ¥ em
R ¢ : .

~ -
¢

The ebove is information ocmplle. .
by , late T v, Hugh Cowan about the yc _ -
1655 «pd ext od by the Kent Historicu
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